Water
"1 Reclamation
b/ District

2015 West Oakland Avenue, Bloomington, Illinois 61701

Board Meeting
June 10, 2024

MISSION STATEMENT

The Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation District (BNWRD) shall provide wastewater
transportation and treatment services to its constituency so as to provide environmental
protection, protection of the public health, a favorable climate for commerce, and enhanced
quality of life in co-operation with other community projects. The service area shall remain
flexible so as to address future wastewater treatment needs of McLean County. We shall strive
to maintain premiere, state-of-the-art services in all aspects of operation through research,
development, and application of innovative technologies while providing maximum stewardship
of the available land, water, financial and human resources.




This Page is Intentionally Left Blank




Bloomington and Normal
Water Reclamation District

»
|4

pV’B

REGULAR SESSION BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA
TRUSTEE BOARDROOM
2015 W. OAKLAND AVE., BLOOMINGTON, IL 61701
MONDAY, June 10, 2024, 4:00 P.M.

1. Roll Call
2. Public Comment
3. Recognition/Appointments
4. Minutes
A. Approve the Regular, Budget Public Hearing, Show Cause Hearing, and Executive
Session Minutes of May 20, 2024
5. Financial Transactions
A. Approve the Regular Bills & Financial Reports, Special Bills, Purchases
Confirmation, and Authorizations.
6. Reports

A. Presentation of the Operations Report
B. Presentation of the Engineering Project Reports
a. The Farnsworth Group
b. Baxter & Woodman
c. Annual Farm Report
7. Old Business
A. Consideration and Approval of Ordinance 2024-15, An Ordinance Enacting a
General Waste Control Program Regulating the Use of the Public Treatment
Works and Public and Private Sewers and Drains in the Bloomington and
Normal Water Reclamation District to the United States Environmental
Protection Agency:
Recommend Approval of Ordinance 2024-15.

8. Consent Agenda

(All items under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion
of these items unless a Trustee, Executive Director or Corporation Counsel requests. In that event, the item will be removed from
the Consent Agenda and considered in the New Business Agenda, Item #10. Waiving the competitive procurement requirements
may be approved when the Board of Trustees determines the bid waiver to be in the best interest of the District and the waiver is
for construction contracts, professional services, single source, repair and maintenance, services, goods, supplies, materials, and
equipment which is authorized by two-thirds of the Board.)
A. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2024-05 for the Executive Session
Minutes Semi-Annual Review:
Recommend Adopting Resolution 2024-05 the Retention and Release of Executive

Session Minutes.



10.

11.
12.
13.

B. Approve the Renewal of Property, Liability, Pollution, and Cyber Insurance:
Staff requests that the Property and Liability Insurance renewal with Travelers,
Pollution Insurance, the renewal with Navigators Specialty, and the Cyber
Insurance renewal with Beazley be approved and the Executive Director authorized
to sign the necessary documents.

Annexations

New Business

A. Approve Initiation of Hydrocyclone Pilot Study at West Plant #3:
Recommend that the Agreement with World Water Works Inc., as a Sole Source
Supplier, in the amount not to exceed $54,550 be approved and authorize Executive
Director to sign necessary documents.

Additional Business/Discussion
Executive Session

Adjournment



Recognition/Appointments




This Page Left Intentionally Blank




MINUTES




This Page Intentionally Left Blank



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Regular Meeting

The regular monthly meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Bloomington and Normal
Water Reclamation District was called to order at 4:00 p.m., Monday, May 20, 2024, at the
Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation District ’s West Plant Board Room.

Upon roll call, Trustee Feid and Trustee Behrens, answered present. In attendance for the
District were Timothy L. Ervin, Executive Director; Jake Callahan, Director of Operations &
Maintenance; Josh Stevens, Operations Superintendent; Duane Lindeman, District Engineer; Joy
Hall, Laboratory Director; Kyle Clark, Pretreatment Assistant; Jessica Runge, Finance Manager;
Andrew Coffey, Administrative Assistant; Attorney Elizabeth Megli, Partner with Livingston,
Barger, Brandt and Schroeder, LLP; Bob Kohlhase, Principal, Zach Knight, Engineering Manager,
both of the Farnsworth Group; and Brent Perz, Vice President-Wastewater Department Manager
via Teams, and Mark Gockowski, Assistant Wastewater Department Manager both of Baxter and
Woodman, Inc.

Trustee Feid opened the meeting to receive Public Comments. No public comments were
received.

Trustee Feid introduced Recognition and Appointments. The Oath of Office was
administered to Dr. Joan Brehm for a three year term.

Motion by Trustee Behrens for the Board reorganization with Jeffrey Feid as President,
Marty Behrens as Vice President, and Dr. Joan Brehm as Treasurer/Clerk. Attorney Megli
suggested the motion be amended to reflect Marty Behrens as Vice President/Treasurer due to the
WIFIA fund documents reflecting Trustee Behrens as Treasurer. Motion by Trustee Behrens to
reorganize the Board follows Jeffrey Feid as President, Marty Behrens as Vice
President/Treasurer, and Dr. Joan Behm as Clerk, seconded by Trustee Behm, and the motion

passed.

Page 1 of 9



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Regular Meeting

Motion by Trustee Behrens, seconded by Trustee Feid to approve the Special Meeting and
Regular Session minutes of April 8, 2024, and the Special Meeting minutes of April 15, 2024, and
the motion passed.

Motion by Trustee Behrens, seconded by Trustee Feid to approve the financial transactions,
Regular Bills, and Financial Reports; Approval of Special Bills; Confirmation of Purchases; and
Authorizations as submitted, and the motion passed.

Trustee Feid introduced the Operations Report. Josh Stevens, Operations Superintendent
provided the April 2024 Operations report for the West and Southeast Plants. Both wastewater
facilities were in full permit compliance with effluent limits. The West Plant treated an average of
23.2 million gallons per day of wastewater during April, 103% of the design average flow. Water
analysis leaving the plant showed the monthly average for total suspended solids was 3.5 mg/L,
ammonia nitrogen levels at 1 mg/L, carbonaceous biological oxygen demand at 3.1 mg/L, and the
daily minimum of dissolved oxygen was 7.6 mg/L. The SE Plant treated an average of 6.1 million
gallons per day of wastewater, 81% of the design average flow. Water analysis leaving the plant
showed the monthly average for total suspended solids was 2.1 mg/L, ammonia nitrogen levels at
0.08 mg/L, carbonaceous biological oxygen demand at 2 mg/L, and the daily minimum of
dissolved oxygen was 8.2 mg/L.

Superintendent Stevens noted the W. Plant ultraviolet disinfection preparations were
completed. The NPDES permit requires seasonal disinfection of the W. Plant effluent from May
1°* through October 31%. Disinfection involves reactor channel cleaning, lamp replacements, and
wiper system maintenance. During the infrared inspection, the main electrical transformer serving
the W. Plant laboratory and operations building was found faulty. Replacing the transformer

required coordination to shut down the power to the building and transfer power to the portable

Page 2 of 9



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Regular Meeting

generators for critical equipment. Trustee Feid questioned finding a replacement transformer.
Superintendent Stevens said WM Masters was able to find a replacement.

Trustee Feid asked about the precipitation. Superintendent Stevens replied that recent rain
events added about 10 feet of water to the CSO Lagoon. Trustee Feid questioned managing the
precipitation at the SE Plant during construction. Superintendent Stevens replied that precipitation
would become challenging as construction continues, and bypass pumping or shutdowns could
occur.

Trustee Behrens said he had asked Executive Director Ervin and Director Callahan if they
were comfortable with the transfer between the two plants. Executive Director Ervin
acknowledged that the SE Plant was temporarily shut down last week for part of a workday.
Director Callahan said Chief Operator Willis and Superintendent Stevens did an excellent job
coordinating the plant shutdown transfer process. A handful of gates at the SE Plant were field
verified prior to ordering and shop drawing reviews.

The District hosted events at the SE Plant Schroeder Wildlife Sanctuary which included a
field trip to the wetlands for the Bloomington High School students, planting approximately 1,600
seedling trees by the Ecology Action Center volunteers, and K9 training for the McLean County
Emergency Management Agency. Trustees accepted the report as presented.

Trustee Feid introduced the Farnsworth Engineering Project Report. Engineer Manager
Knight reported the SE Plant’s construction work has recently focused on earth-moving activities
and construction of two new buildings from the ground-up. The Chemical Feed Building aggregate
base and concrete floor slabs were poured today. The storage building had a concrete floor slab
installed a few weeks ago. The sheet piling has continued on the northeast side of the Plant due to

deep excavation for the new supplemental influent pump station. Trustee Feid appreciated the

Page 3 of 9



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Regular Meeting

construction photos Engineer Knight provided in his report.

The Interceptor Sewer Rehabilitation lining (Task Order 2023-3), Hoerr Construction will
begin on the Far West Sewer followed by the 51°° Interceptor during ISU’s summer break and
finishing with Cargill during their shutdown in July. SAK will begin the Eastside Interceptor lining
following the 2024 harvest season to prevent crop damage. Trustee Feid questioned changes to the
SAK contract due to waiting for the harvest season. Engineer Manager Knight said the work
schedule was planned into the contract.

The Interceptor Grit Assessment Phase 2 (Task Order 2023-8) will begin in July 2024.
Hoerr Construction has nine different District interceptors to complete. The GE Valley Generator
Replacement, replacing the diesel with a natural gas generator, progress plans were given to
District staff.

CSO 13 Design and Permitting — Phase 1 & 2 (Task Order 2023-6), phase 1 easement
documentation was given to District staff along with the IEPA and RR construction permit
application package. Trustee Feid questioned the easement documentation and whether the District
would need to acquire these. Engineer Manager Knight responded the easements would need to be
acquired. Engineer Manager Knight acknowledged that there was already considerable
infrastructure in the area. These would include both permanent and temporary construction
easements. Executive Director Ervin noted staff would pursue the purchase of easements for all
phases of the CSO 13 project. The Trustees accepted the report as presented.

Trustee Feid introduced the Baxter & Woodman Engineering Report. Mark Gockowski,
Assistant Wastewater Department Manager highlighted items that were wrapping up. The
phosphorus discharge optimization plans were completed and submitted for both the W. and SE

Plants to the IEPA. The W. Plant Master Plan was completed including the Ameren coordination

Page 4 of 9



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Regular Meeting

for the future service of the combined plants. Trustee Behrens questioned if Ameren had provided
any comments. Mr. Gockowski said Ameren had questions about future load projections and
current connected loads.

The Plant 1 Headworks construction and Plant 3 Headworks design project kick-off
meetings were both held on May 6th. Plant 1 Headworks construction should wrap up in the
summer of 2025 with Plant 3 Headworks design phase wrapping up shortly after. The Survey and
geotechnical work were initiated.

The Digester & CHP Improvement project design is close to 60% milestone. To meet the
requirements of the Inflation Reduction Act Investment Tax Credit, there is a need to purchase
some equipment separate from the larger construction contract. These procurement documents are
scheduled to be ready for legal review by July 1. The goal is to advertise the procurement bid
package by October 1, 2024. The contract must be fully executed by the end of the year for the
District to capitalize on IRA funding opportunity. Executive Director Ervin noted that the
requirements include making purchases of at least 5% of the total cost before the end of CY 2024.

The Arc Flash study single line drawing has been given to the District for review. The next
step would be to address the District ’s comments and provide them to Schneider Electric for label
printing.

Trustee Behrens questioned the Bike and Pedestrian Plan completion date. Mr. Gockowski
said the completion date was a typo, it would be changed to July 20™. Executive Director Ervin
said Mr. Gockowski and the Farnsworth Group were helping the $20M community change grant
where the District is the local government, and the non-profit is the Boys & Girls Club (Club). The
Club will receive funding from the US EPA to construct the new facility and the District will repair

the sewer laterals for residents in the neighborhood.

Page 5 of 9



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Regular Meeting

Director Callahan provided an update on the Nutrient Assessment Reduction Plan (NARP)
included as a special condition of the NPDES permit. North Water Consulting completed a series
of water quality analyses over the past two years. A sampling plan was followed. The IEPA
determined risk in nitrification based on the data from instream monitoring. The draft strategy was
received from North Water Consulting for District feedback. Staff plans to provide feedback to
North Water Consulting and determine the next steps to complete the special condition. The
Trustees accepted the report as presented.

Trustee Feid introduced the Annual Storm Water Report. Executive Director Ervin noted
that Micheal Brown, Executive Director of the Ecology Action Center provides the annual report
for the District. Mr. Brown summarizes how the District’s contribution to education and operating
programs are used throughout the year. The Trustees accepted the report as presented.

Trustee Feid introduced Old Business, Approve the Budget, and Appropriation Ordinance
2024-14, and noted a public hearing was held earlier. Executive Director Ervin addressed the
Budget and Appropriation Ordinance 2024-14 for Fiscal Year (FY) 2025. He acknowledged
Jessica Runge, the Finance Manager’s hard work to produce the budget. He recommended FY
2025 budget be approved for $68,565,218. Motion by Trustee Behrens to approve the Budget and
Appropriation Ordinance 2024-14, seconded by Trustee Feid, and the motion passed. Trustee
Brehm abstained.

Trustee Feid introduced Akshar Plastics, 1100 Bunn St — BNWRD Permit 41, and noted
that a show cause hearing was held earlier. Attorney Megli said the show cause hearing was closed
without taking any evidence based upon an agreement reached with Akshar’s Corporate Counsel.
The agreement states Akshar would pay $10K in certified funds to the District by the end of

business today, by June 7" a site plan will be provided, if they can locate the source of the discharge

Page 6 of 9



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Regular Meeting

and is either potable water or groundwater the District would agree they could stop their
investigation and stop their site plan. This would be subject to the District verifying the information
provided. If the source cannot be found or the District does not believe Akshar has produced a
complete reflection of the source the site plan will be needed. If the source is found to be other
than groundwater or potable water, then Akshar will be responsible for resolving that. If those
things are met and on June 15" Akshar provides another $5K in certified funds then a final walk-
through would be conducted, and the permit would be closed due to Akshar not currently
operating. Should those conditions not be satisfied, fines would be expected, and the District would
proceed with a show cause hearing in June and recommend further action.
Motion by Trustee Behrens to accept the agreement as outlined by Attorney Megli,
seconded by Trustee Feid, and the motion passed. Trustee Brehm abstained.
Trustee Feid introduced the Consent Agenda items (A) through (E):
A. Accept the Proposal from WM. Master for the West Plant Solids Processing
Building Fire Alarm Replacement.
B. Consideration and Approval of Resolution 2024-04 Signatory Listing and Account
Authorizations.
C. Approve the Engineering Services Agreement with Baxter & Woodman for the
conceptual design of a Green Infrastructure Park Design located near West Plant.
D. Approve the Engineering Services Agreement with Baxter & Woodman for the
Sugar Creek Restoration Project Design.

E. Negotiate the Purchase Price for Parcels 29-39 Richwood Trail in Woodbury
Estates.

Motion by Trustee Behrens, seconded by Trustee Feid to approve the Consent Agenda, and
the motion passed. Trustee Brehm abstained.

Trustee Feid introduced New Business, item A, Approve an Annual Merit Salary Increase
for Executive Director Timothy L. Ervin for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 as set by the Board of Trustees.
Attorney Megli suggested the agenda could be changed to move up item B on New Business,

Appointment of the Assistant Executive Director, and item A, Approve an Annual Merit Salary

Page 7 of 9



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Regular Meeting

Increase for Executive Director Timothy L. Ervin for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 as set by the Board
of Trustees moved to after the Executive Session. Motion by Trustee Behrens to move the Approve
an Annual Merit Salary Increase for Executive Director Timothy L. Ervin for Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 as set by the Board of Trustees moved to after the Executive Session, seconded by Trustee
Feid, and the motion carried.

Trustee Feid introduced the Appointment of the Assistant Executive Director. Executive
Director Ervin said the District has the highest number of ongoing projects behind the origination.
This Assistant Executive Director would provide a supportive yet significant role in the District ’s
management and operational framework. This position involves a blend of strategic planning and
day-to-day operational oversight to ensure the efficient completion of the organization’s goals.
Through close coordination with the Executive Director and departments, this role contributes to
the development and completion of capital projects underway and planned. Executive Director
Ervin recommended the appointment of Jake Callahan as the Assistant Executive Director.
Executive Director Ervin noted Jake’s strong background working with our primary capital
projects, particularly the treatment plant improvement designs. Motion by Trustee Behrens,
seconded by Trustee Feid, and the motion passed.

Motion by Trustee Behrens to convene into Executive Session pursuant to Section
120/2(c)(1) of the Open Meetings Act to consider the employment, compensation, and
performance, of a specific employee, seconded by Trustee Feid, and the motion passed.

Motion by Trustee Behrens to reconvene the Regular Session, seconded by Trustee Feid
and the motion passed viva voce at 5:05 p.m.

Trustee Feid introduced the Annual Merit Salary Increase for Executive Director Timothy

L. Ervin for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 as set by the Board of Trustees. Trustee Behrens

Page 8 of 9



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Regular Meeting

recommended a 6% salary increase for Executive Director Timothy L. Ervin for Fiscal Year 2024-
2025 retroactive to May 1, 2024, seconded by Trustee Feid, and the motion passed.
Motion Trustee Behrens, seconded by Trustee Feid, to adjourn the meeting and the motion

passed viva voce at 5:10 p.m.

Jeffrey K. Feid, President
Board of Trustees Bloomington and Normal
Water Reclamation District

Dr. Joan Brehm, Clerk
Board of Trustees Bloomington
and Normal Water Reclamation District

Page 9 of 9



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Budget Public Hearing

The Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget Public Hearing of the Bloomington and Normal Water
Reclamation District was called to order at 3:45 p.m., Monday, May 20, 2024, at the Bloomington and

Normal Water Reclamation District's West Plant Board Room.

Upon roll call, Trustee Feid and Trustee Behrens answered present. In attendance for the District
were Timothy L. Ervin, Executive Director; Jake Callahan, Operations and Maintenance Director; Duane
Lindeman, Engineering Director; Jessica Runge, Finance Manager; Joy Hall, Director of Laboratory
Services, Josh Stevens, Operations Superintendent; Andrew Coffey, Admin Asst., Attorney Elizabeth
Megli, Partner with Livingston, Barger, Brandt and Schroeder, LLP; Bob Kohlhase, Principal; Engineer;

and Zach Knight, Engineering Manager, The Farnsworth Group.

Trustee Feid opened the meeting to receive Public Comment. No individuals provided comments

during the meeting.

Trustee Feid introduced the Public Hearing for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget and
Appropriation Ordinance. Executive Director Ervin noted the District received no questions or comments

related to the budget which was published in accordance with the law in the Pantagraph on April 12, 2024.

Motion by Trustee Feid adjourned the public hearing for the FY 2024-2025 Budget and
Appropriation Ordinance with no comments, objections, or responses from the public, seconded by

Trustee Behrens, and the motion passed viva voice at 3:52 p.m.

Jeffrey K. Feid, President
Board of Trustees Bloomington and Normal
Water Reclamation District

Martin F. Behrens, Clerk
Board of Trustees Bloomington and Normal
Water Reclamation District



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Show Cause Hearing

The special meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Bloomington and Normal Water
Reclamation District was called to order at 3:35 p.m., Monday, May 20, 2024, at the Bloomington
and Normal Water Reclamation District’s West Plant Board Room.

Upon roll call, Trustee Feid and Trustee Behrens answered present. In attendance for the
District were Timothy L. Ervin, Executive Director; Jake Callahan, Operations and Maintenance
Director; Duane Lindeman, Engineering Director; Jessica Runge, Finance Manager; Joy Hall,
Director of Laboratory Services, Josh Stevens, Operations Superintendent; Andrew Coffey,
Admin Asst., Kyle Clark, Pretreatment Asst., Attorney Elizabeth Megli, Partner with Livingston,
Barger, Brandt and Schroeder, LLP; Bob Kohlhase, Principal; Engineer; and Zach Knight,
Engineering Manager, The Farnsworth Group.

Trustee Feid opened the meeting to receive Public Comments. No public comments were
received.

Executive Director Ervin introduced the Akshar Plastics Show Cause Hearing stating this
was a continuation of the April 8, 2024, Show Cause Hearing.

Attorney Megli stated that after discussions with Akshar Plastics’ attorney, there is likely
an acceptable outcome that includes the following:

e $10,000 payment in cashier-certified funds due by end of business today.
e The site plan is to be completed and returned to the District by June 7, 2024, subject to a caveat.
e $5,000 payment in cashier-certified funds due by June 15, 2024.

Attorney Megli stated the caveat is there is a tentative agreement which could be reduced
to an agreement in writing. Akshar Plastics would complete the jetting of lines, if they locate the
source of the discharge, and the source is potable water or groundwater, the District would agree

to allow them to stop that process at that point. The District would then move forward with closing

Page 1 of 2



Minutes of May 20, 2024, BNWRD Show Cause Hearing

their permit.

Attorney Megli continued if Akshar Plastics cannot locate the source of the discharge, or
if it is not the complete source of the discharge, or if the discharge is not potable water or
groundwater, then Akshar Plastics will be required to resolve whatever the source of contamination
is. If they locate a source, the District can require them to keep looking if the District does not
believe it is the 100% cause of the contamination. The District reserves the right to submit the
results to be verified using a third party. At this point, Director Hall would do a final on-site
inspection, and upon satisfactory findings, the permit would be closed, and the matter concluded.

Attorney Megli stated that if the terms are not met then the matter would be reset for June
2024, and the District would pursue all fines, penalties, and issues of non-compliance.

Executive Director Ervin indicated that a staff member from the District did complete a
walkthrough of the Akshar Plastics facility earlier today and prepared a memorandum for the file
on his observations.

Trustee Feid questioned what would happen to the remaining fines if the agreement was
completed. Attorney Megli advised they would be waived.

Executive Director Ervin advised that Director Hall and staff did a site visit at Kickapoo
Creek and no discoloration was observed.

Motion Trustee Behrens, seconded by Trustee Feid, to adjourn the meeting and the motion

passed viva voce at 3:44 p.m.

Jeffrey K. Feid, President
Board of Trustees Bloomington and Normal
Water Reclamation District

Martin F. Behrens, Clerk
Board of Trustees Bloomington
and Normal Water Reclamation District

Page 2 of 2



FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS




This Page Intentionally Left Blank



BLOOMINGTON AND NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT
Financial Report & Transactions
May 31, 2024

A. Approval of Financial Reports:
1. Refer to the Financial Statements for each fund.
B. Approval of Regular & Special Bills:

1. Refer to Payment History Report
a. Payroll — May 15, 2024 -- $123,373.52
b. Payroll — May 29, 2024 -- $130,697.04

C. Investment Authorization & Confirmation

1. Short Term Capital Fund
i. Certificate of Deposit
1. Goldman Sachs Bank USA
a. $44,000 — @ 5.45% with a maturity of April 11, 2024
2. Beal Bank USA Las Vegas Nev
a. $44,000 — @ 5.45% with a maturity of April 24, 2024
2. Equipment Replacement Fund
i. Certificate of Deposit
1. Goldman Sachs Bank USA
a. $73,000 — @ 5.45% with a maturity of April 11, 2024
2. Beal Bank USA Las Vegas Nev
a. $74,000 — @ 5.45% with a maturity of April 24, 2024
3. Nutrient Fund
i. Certificate of Deposit
1. Goldman Sachs Bank USA
a. $78,000 — @ 5.45% with a maturity of April 11, 2024
2. Beal Bank USA Las Vegas Nev
a. $79,000 — @ 5.45% with a maturity of April 24, 2024



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid
10

10 West Plant 0711120600013 1.02 05/07/2024 V1139 BDI Inc 9503686022 420600 Supplies 1.02
69

10 West Plant 0711120600013 80.30 05/07/2024 V1484 MTI Distributing 1425495-00 420900 Plant Mainte- 38.72
70 Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600013 80.30 05/07/2024 V1484 MTI Distributing 1423147-01 420900 Plant Mainte- 41.58
70 Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600013 172.45 05/07/2024 V1044 VWR Interna- 8815870023 420600 Supplies 172.45
71 tional Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 486.43 05/07/2024 V1025 Wilkens-Ander- S1208632.001 420600 Supplies 486.43
72 son Company

Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 384.62 05/07/2024 V1055 McMaster-Carr 25822699 420600 Supplies 325.79
73 Supply Co Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 13,226.25 05/07/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0257705 420200 Pretreatment En- 1,826.25
74 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600013 13,226.25 05/07/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0257705 420200 Pretreatment En- 7,602.50
74 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600013 13,226.25 05/07/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0257705 420200 Pretreatment En- 172.50
74 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600013 13,226.25 05/07/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0257705 420200 Pretreatment En- 632.50
74 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600013 13,226.25 05/07/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0257705 420200 Pretreatment En- 112.50
74 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600013 13,226.25 05/07/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0257705 420200 Pretreatment En- 1,640.00
74 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600013 13,226.25 05/07/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0257705 420200 Pretreatment En- 1,240.00
74 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600013 334.00 05/07/2024 V1068 lllini Fire Equip- 1244302 420900 Plant Mainte- 334.00
75 ment Co Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600013 190.00 05/07/2024 V1220 All About Eyes 392461 410600 Employee Bene- 190.00
76 fits

10 West Plant 0711120600013 1,109.48 05/07/2024 V1026 YSI Inc A Xylem 1074536 450000 Equipment 1,109.48
77 Brand

10 West Plant 0711120600013 3,230.93 05/07/2024 V1089 Evergreen FS 10241441 430000 Utilities 1,440.02
78 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 356.80 05/07/2024 V1402 Depke Welding 0002284416 420100 Service Con- 24.80
79 Supplies Inc tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600013 356.80 05/07/2024 V1402 Depke Welding 0002284662 420100 Service Con- 332.00
79 Supplies Inc tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600013 1,511.78 05/07/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9100806422 410800 Safety 77.76
80 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 1,511.78 05/07/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9101869965 420600 Supplies 188.53
80 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 1,511.78 05/07/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9102233179 420600 Supplies 377.06
80 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 1,511.78 05/07/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9102233187 420600 Supplies 188.53
80 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 1,511.78 05/07/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9103784345 410800 Safety 599.70
80 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 97.23 05/07/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM492910 420900 Plant Mainte- 23.15
81 pany Inc nance

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 1



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid

10 West Plant 0711120600013 97.23 05/07/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM492947 420600 Supplies 51.09
81 pany Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 97.23 05/07/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM493079 420600 Supplies 22.99
81 pany Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 800.00 05/07/2024 V1167 Machine Evalua- 240414 420900 Plant Mainte- 800.00
82 tion & Training nance

Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600013 5,249.63 05/07/2024 V1260 TEKIlab Inc 306027 420100 Service Con- 776.23
83 tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600013 5,249.63 05/07/2024 V1260 TEKIlab Inc 306028 420100 Service Con- 567.10
83 tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600013 5,249.63 05/07/2024 V1260 TEKIlab Inc 306029 420100 Service Con- 567.10
83 tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600013 5,249.63 05/07/2024 V1260 TEKIlab Inc 306105 420100 Service Con- 1,571.50
83 tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600013 5,249.63 05/07/2024 V1260 TEKIlab Inc 306030 420100 Service Con- 1,767.70
83 tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600013 94.47 05/07/2024 V1082 Kirby Risk Elec- S$210319266.001420600 Supplies 18.15
84 trical Supply Co

10 West Plant 0711120600013 94.47 05/07/2024 V1082 Kirby Risk Elec- S210319734.001420900 Plant Mainte- 76.32
84 trical Supply Co nance

10 West Plant 00013 1,656.24 05/07/2024 V1124 Digital Copy Sys-AR252863 420100 Service Con- 1,656.24
0711120685 tems LLC tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600013 11,057.95 05/07/2024 V1469 Ampion PBC - 2024050001100 430000 Utilities 11,057.95
86 Marine 1 529

10 West Plant 0711120600013 8,609.34 05/07/2024 V1431 Ampion PBC - 2024050001100 430000 Utilities 8,609.34
87 Sparland 432

10 West Plant 0711120600013 1,504.40 05/07/2024 V1084 Morgan Distribut-INV-010311 420900 Plant Mainte- 1,504.40
88 ing Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600013 5,377.40 05/07/2024 V1432 Ampion PBC - 2024050001100 430000 Utilities 5,377.40
89 Cameron 437

10 West Plant 0711120600013 63.99 05/07/2024 V1043 NAPA Auto Parts729863 420600 Supplies 63.99
90 MPEC

10 West Plant 0711120600013 9,366.97 05/07/2024 V1433 Ampion PBC - 2024050001100 430000 Utilities 9,366.97
91 Hopewell 439

10 West Plant 0711120600013 5,699.04 05/07/2024 V1470 Ampion PBC - 2024050001100 430000 Utilities 3,457.36
92 Marine 2 528

10 West Plant 0711120600013 135.19 05/07/2024 V1306 Imaging Office LAB028004 420100 Service Con- 135.19
93 Systems Inc tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600013 611.23 05/07/2024 V1208 Express Ser- 30662054 420100 Service Con- 611.23
94 vices Inc tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600013 61.60 05/14/2024 V1281 JX Enterprises 1938566S 420900 Plant Mainte- 61.60
95 Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600013 286.53 05/14/2024 V1046 Don Owen Tire 331337 420900 Plant Mainte- 286.53
97 Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600013 36.27 05/14/2024 V1139 BDI Inc 9503698242 420900 Plant Mainte- 36.27
98 nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 173.49 05/14/2024 V1052 FedEx Inc 8-480-16099 420600 Supplies 173.49
00

10 West Plant 0711120600014 6,111.26 05/14/2024 V1135 Brenntag Mid- BMS656693 420800 Dewatering 6,111.26
01 South Inc Chemicals

10 West Plant 0711120600014 202.92 05/14/2024 V1484 MTI Distributing 1425495-01 420900 Plant Mainte- 202.

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 2



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid

02 Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 445.96 05/14/2024 V1174 Airgas Inc dba 5507602898 420100 Service Con- 445.96
03 Airgas USA LLC tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600014 402.62 05/14/2024 V1214 Automatic Data 660348225 420100 Service Con- 402.62
04 Processing Inc tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,666.20 05/14/2024 V1464 Armature Motor 40826 420900 Plant Mainte- 2,666.20
06 & Pump Co Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 273.00 05/14/2024 V1197 Fish Window 2879-121458 420100 Service Con- 273.00
07 Cleaning tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,977.00 05/14/2024 V1132 LAI Ltd Inc 24-61022 420900 Plant Mainte- 2,977.00
08 nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 11,968.38 05/14/2024 V1491 Ampion PBC - 2024050001100 430000 Utilities 11,968.38
09 Highland 1 530

10 West Plant 0711120600014 13,259.48 05/14/2024 V1147 Securitas Secu- 11719189 420100 Service Con- 6,629.74
10 rity Services tracts

USA Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 315.00 05/14/2024 V1168 Clark Baird 115 420100 Service Con- 315.00
11 Smith LLP tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600014 4,000.00 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258978 420100 Service Con- 880.00
12 man Inc tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600014 4,000.00 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258977 420100 Service Con- 1,137.50
12 man Inc tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600014 4,000.00 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258845 420200 Pretreatment En- 105.00
12 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600014 4,000.00 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258845 420200 Pretreatment En- 582.50
12 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600014 4,000.00 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258845 420200 Pretreatment En- 287.50
12 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600014 4,000.00 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258845 420200 Pretreatment En- 720.00
12 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600014 4,000.00 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258845 420200 Pretreatment En- 287.50
12 man Inc gineering

10 West Plant 0711120600014 430.00 05/22/2024 V1217 AB Hatchery Inc 4569 420900 Plant Mainte- 430.00
13 nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 743.54 05/22/2024 V1124 Digital Copy Sys-AR253530 420100 Service Con- 171.78
14 tems LLC tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600014 743.54 05/22/2024 V1124 Digital Copy Sys-AR253530 420100 Service Con- 278.82
14 tems LLC tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600014 743.54 05/22/2024 V1124 Digital Copy Sys-AR253249 420100 Service Con- 61.07
14 tems LLC tracts

10 West Plant 0711120600014 119.80 05/22/2024 V1120 Prairie Land Golf 03-36694 420900 Plant Mainte- 119.80
15 Cars Ltd nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,439.13 05/22/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9105224662 420900 Plant Mainte- 427.60
16 Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,439.13 05/22/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9104846010 420900 Plant Mainte- 558.17
16 Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,439.13 05/22/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9105793682 420900 Plant Mainte- 52.48
16 Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,439.13 05/22/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9104667242 410800 Safety 131.27
16 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,439.13 05/22/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9107896525 420600 Supplies 12.23
16 Inc

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 3



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid

10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,439.13 05/22/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9117868159 410800 Safety 211.43
16 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,439.13 05/22/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9115330087 420600 Supplies 9.50
16 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,439.13 05/22/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9121871751 420600 Supplies 35.72
16 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 219.06 05/22/2024 V1032 Miller Janitor 115121 420600 Supplies 219.06
18 Supply Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 111.40 05/22/2024 V1118 Nord Outdoor ~ P04988 420900 Plant Mainte- 111.40
19 Power Corp nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 721.20 05/22/2024 V1025 Wilkens-Ander- S1208783.001 420600 Supplies 721.20
20 son Company

Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 343.80 05/22/2024 V1326 Staples, Inc 7000593628 420600 Supplies 152.58
21

10 West Plant 0711120600014 205.81 05/22/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM493319 420600 Supplies 16.40
22 pany Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 205.81 05/22/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM493626 420600 Supplies 184.52
22 pany Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 205.81 05/22/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM493685 420600 Supplies 4.89
22 pany Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 5,878.61 05/22/2024 V1493 Western Avenue May 2024 420400 Public Relations 5,878.61
23 Community Cen-

ter

10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,269.24 05/22/2024 V1030 HACH Company 14023154 420600 Supplies 1,269.24
25 Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 34.95 05/22/2024 V1079 Capitol Group ~ S2470989.001 420900 Plant Mainte- 34.95
26 Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,068.29 05/22/2024 V1139 BDI Inc 9503718866 420900 Plant Mainte- 1,068.29
27 nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,281.90 05/22/2024 V1044 VWR Interna- 8816078843 420600 Supplies 425.22
28 tional Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,281.90 05/22/2024 V1044 VWR Interna- 8816087690 420600 Supplies 100.31
28 tional Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,281.90 05/22/2024 V1044 VWR Interna- 8816083976 420600 Supplies 437.42
28 tional Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,281.90 05/22/2024 V1044 VWR Interna- 8815991222 420600 Supplies 318.95
28 tional Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 428.89 05/22/2024 V1043 NAPA Auto Parts731123 420900 Plant Mainte- 59.98
29 MPEC nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 428.89 05/22/2024 V1043 NAPA Auto Parts730669 420900 Plant Mainte- 139.98
29 MPEC nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 428.89 05/22/2024 V1043 NAPA Auto Parts730785 420900 Plant Mainte- 228.93
29 MPEC nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 138.89 05/22/2024 V1484 MTI Distributing 1427964-00 420900 Plant Mainte- 138.89
30 Inc nance

10 West Plant 0711120600014 6,055.00 05/22/2024 V1399 TPC Training INTELE11001 410600 Employee Bene- 4,844.00
31 fits

10 West Plant 0711120600014 235.70 05/22/2024 V1055 McMaster-Carr 26838347 420600 Supplies 13.51
32 Supply Co Inc

10 West Plant 0711120600014 235.70 05/22/2024 V1055 McMaster-Carr 27055027 420900 Plant Mainte- 109.29
32 Supply Co Inc nance

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 4



BNWRD
Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid
10 West Plant 0711120600014 235.70 05/22/2024 V1055 McMaster-Carr 27126539 420900 Plant Mainte- 112.90
32 Supply Co Inc nance
10 West Plant 0711120600014 50.00 05/22/2024 V1443 American Pest 673775 420100 Service Con- 50.00
33 Control Inc tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,076.38 05/22/2024 V1214 Automatic Data 661058229 420100 Service Con- 1,678.30
34 Processing Inc tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,076.38 05/22/2024 V1214 Automatic Data 661200166 420100 Service Con- 398.08
34 Processing Inc tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 326.88 05/22/2024 V1450 CDW Govern- RF81955 420600 Supplies 326.88
35 ment LLC
10 West Plant 0711120600014 319.25 05/22/2024 V1057 Safety-Kleen 94291379 420900 Plant Mainte- 319.25
36 Systems Inc nance
10 West Plant 0711120600014 683.97 05/22/2024 V1092 Red Wing Shoe 2024051010987 410600 Employee Bene- 422.98
37 Store Inc 7 fits
10 West Plant 0711120600014 18,839.32 05/22/2024 V1171 Evoqua Water 906461764 420700 Odor Control 18,839.32
38 Technologies
LLC
10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,236.34 05/22/2024 V1089 Evergreen FS 10241607 430000 Utilities 1,236.34
39 Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,848.53 05/22/2024 V1129 USA BlueBook INV00363437 420600 Supplies 1,848.53
40
10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,159.73 05/22/2024 V1494 Dexter Distribu- INV-100427528 420900 Plant Mainte- 1,159.73
41 tion Group LLC nance
10 West Plant 0711120600014 909.09 05/22/2024 V1208 Express Ser- 30729290 420100 Service Con- 909.09
42 vices Inc tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 13,342.40 05/22/2024 V1147 Securitas Secu- 11731783 420100 Service Con- 6,671.20
43 rity Services tracts
USA Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 2,085.00 05/22/2024 V1247 Martin Industrial 1455 420900 Plant Mainte- 1,042.50
44 Site Services nance
LLC
10 West Plant 0711120600014 573.00 05/29/2024 V1066 llinois State 176420 420500 Dues, Fees & 573.00
45 Chamber of Subscriptions
Commerce
10 West Plant 0711120600014 3,332.50 05/29/2024 V1182 Barnes & Thorn- 3257690 420100 Service Con- 3,332.50
46 burg LLP tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 276.94 05/29/2024 V1176 Forvis LLP 2109155 420100 Service Con- 276.94
47 tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 506.34 05/29/2024 V1025 Wilkens-Ander- S1208783.002 420600 Supplies 506.34
48 son Company
Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 130.00 05/29/2024 V1060 IL Assoc of 5697 410600 Employee Bene- 65.00
49 Wastewater fits
Agencies
10 West Plant 0711120600014 130.00 05/29/2024 V1060 IL Assoc of 5697 410600 Employee Bene- 65.00
49 Wastewater fits
Agencies
10 West Plant 0711120600014 484.18 05/29/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM493819 420900 Plant Mainte- 52.28
50 pany Inc nance
10 West Plant 0711120600014 484.18 05/29/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM493849 420600 Supplies 7.40
50 pany Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 484.18 05/29/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM493900 420600 Supplies 272.9¢

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 5



BNWRD
Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid
50 pany Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 484.18 05/29/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM493905 420600 Supplies 13.92
50 pany Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 484.18 05/29/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM493978 420900 Plant Mainte- 137.59
50 pany Inc nance
10 West Plant 0711120600014 230.15 05/29/2024 V1055 McMaster-Carr 27336079 420600 Supplies 28.30
51 Supply Co Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 230.15 05/29/2024 V1055 McMaster-Carr 27438078 420900 Plant Mainte- 157.61
51 Supply Co Inc nance
10 West Plant 0711120600014 230.15 05/29/2024 V1055 McMaster-Carr 27433874 410800 Safety 44.24
51 Supply Co Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 396.12 05/29/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9125226218 410800 Safety 193.90
53 Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 396.12 05/29/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9128007037 410800 Safety 99.22
53 Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 48.59 05/29/2024 V1118 Nord Outdoor P05597 420900 Plant Mainte- 48.59
54 Power Corp nance
10 West Plant 0711120600014 949.89 05/29/2024 V1208 Express Ser- 30757744 420100 Service Con- 949.89
55 vices Inc tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 607.85 05/29/2024 V1172 Rush Truck Cen- 3037343526 420900 Plant Mainte- 607.85
57 ters of IL Inc nance
10 West Plant 0711120600014 7,372.55 05/31/2024 V1387 IGS Energy 426785 430000 Utilities 3,297.93
58
10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,677.20 05/31/2024 V1414 Phenova Inc 205402 420100 Service Con- 1,677.20
60 tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 24.00 05/31/2024 V1402 Depke Welding 0002294122 420100 Service Con- 24.00
61 Supplies Inc tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 8.15 05/31/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9130639975 420600 Supplies 8.15
64 Inc
10 West Plant 0711120600014 63.00 05/31/2024 V1057 Safety-Kleen 94633771 420900 Plant Mainte- 63.00
65 Systems Inc nance
10 West Plant 0711120600014 186.30 05/31/2024 V1124 Digital Copy Sys-AR255477 420100 Service Con- 186.30
66 tems LLC tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,165.50 05/31/2024 V1208 Express Ser- 30804860 420100 Service Con- 932.40
67 vices Inc tracts
10 West Plant 0711120600014 1,165.50 05/31/2024 V1208 Express Ser- 30804860 420100 Service Con- 233.10
67 vices Inc tracts
10 West Plant 101807 120.00 05/14/2024 V1492 IL Dept of Agri- Austin 2024 420900 Plant Mainte- 120.00
culture nance
10 West Plant 101808 1,717.55 05/30/2024 V1071 Birkeys Farm P67098 420900 Plant Mainte- 988.04
Store Inc nance
10 West Plant 101808 1,717.55 05/30/2024 V1071 Birkeys Farm P67680 420900 Plant Mainte- 77.68
Store Inc nance
10 West Plant 101809 366.18 05/30/2024 V1002 Bradford Supply 2623268 420900 Plant Mainte- 137.22
Company Inc nance
10 West Plant 101809 366.18 05/30/2024 V1002 Bradford Supply 2622232 420900 Plant Mainte- 116.55
Company Inc nance
10 West Plant 101809 366.18 05/30/2024 V1002 Bradford Supply 2620787 420900 Plant Mainte- 48.55
Company Inc nance
10 West Plant 101809 366.18 05/30/2024 V1002 Bradford Supply 2617757 420600 Supplies 63.86
Company Inc
10 West Plant 101811 9,227.74 05/30/2024 V1053 Central lllinois  101W53256 420900 Plant Mainte-

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 6



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid

Trucks Inc nance

10 West Plant 101811 9,227.74 05/30/2024 V1053 Central lllinois  101P156603 420600 Supplies 20.24
Trucks Inc

10 West Plant 101811 9,227.74 05/30/2024 V1053 Central lllinois  101W53219 420900 Plant Mainte- 1,498.36
Trucks Inc nance

10 West Plant 101811 9,227.74 05/30/2024 V1053 Central lllinois  101W53151 420900 Plant Mainte- 513.57
Trucks Inc nance

10 West Plant 101811 9,227.74 05/30/2024 V1053 Central lllinois  101W53150 420900 Plant Mainte- 86.37
Trucks Inc nance

10 West Plant 101811 9,227.74 05/30/2024 V1053 Central lllinois  101W53112 420900 Plant Mainte- 1,137.68
Trucks Inc nance

10 West Plant 101811 9,227.74 05/30/2024 V1053 Central lllinois  101W53066 420900 Plant Mainte- 101.37
Trucks Inc nance

10 West Plant 101811 9,227.74 05/30/2024 V1053 Central lllinois  101W52841 420900 Plant Mainte- 101.37
Trucks Inc nance

10 West Plant 101811 9,227.74 05/30/2024 V1053 Central lllinois  101P154634 420900 Plant Mainte- 66.68
Trucks Inc nance

10 West Plant 101811 9,227.74 05/30/2024 V1053 Central lllinois  101W52839 420900 Plant Mainte- 4,807.60
Trucks Inc nance

10 West Plant 101812 352.58 05/30/2024 V1040 Cole-Parmer In- 3722817 420600 Supplies 128.83
strument Com-
pany Inc

10 West Plant 101812 352.58 05/30/2024 V1040 Cole-Parmer In- 3729428 420600 Supplies 223.75
strument Com-
pany Inc

10 West Plant 101814 159.00 05/30/2024 V1004 Culligan Water 0081850 420600 Supplies 159.00
Conditioning Co

10 West Plant 101815 3,366.00 05/30/2024 V1036 Darnall Concrete 015032 420900 Plant Mainte- 3,366.00
Products Co nance

10 West Plant 101817 123.12 05/30/2024 V1012 Heritage Ma- 51949 420600 Supplies 123.12
chine & Welding
Inc

10 West Plant 101818 2,550.00 05/30/2024 V1095 McLean County April 2024 420100 Service Con- 2,550.00
Health Depart tracts

10 West Plant 101819 60.84 05/30/2024 V1075 Menards Inc 36100 420900 Plant Mainte- 60.84

nance

10 West Plant 101820 52.80 05/30/2024 V1077 Mutual Wheel Co8829986 420900 Plant Mainte- 52.80
Inc nance

10 West Plant 101821 18.98 05/30/2024 V1043 NAPA Auto Parts732512 420900 Plant Mainte- 18.98
MPEC nance

10 West Plant 101825 360.81 05/30/2024 V1065 R P Lumber Co 2356001 420600 Supplies 280.83
Inc

10 West Plant 101825 360.81 05/30/2024 V1065 R P Lumber Co 2400733 420600 Supplies 79.98
Inc

10 West Plant 101826 326.95 05/30/2024 V1003 The Copy Shop 0747 420600 Supplies 326.95
Inc

10 West Plant 101827 501.34 05/30/2024 V1209 Winsupply 367163 01 420900 Plant Mainte- 75.07
Bloomington IL nance
Inc

10 West Plant 101827 501.34 05/30/2024 V1209 Winsupply 367184 01 420900 Plant Mainte- 426.27
Bloomington IL nance

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Inc

Page 7



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid
10 West Plant EP2400023 460.18 05/24/2024 V1384 TMobile April 2024 430000 Utilities 79.66
10 West Plant EP2400023 460.18 05/24/2024 V1384 TMobile April 2024 430000 Utilities 380.52
10 West Plant EP2500001 18.40 05/03/2024 V1141 Town of Normal -60609-29882/AP 430000 Utilities 4.60
Water Bills Only RIL24
10 West Plant EP2500001 18.40 05/03/2024 V1141 Town of Normal -60609-29846/AP 430000 Utilities 13.80
Water Bills Only RIL24
10 West Plant EP2500002 167.00 05/03/2024 V1380 Bernard Health DE116148 420100 Service Con- 167.00
LLC tracts
10 West Plant EP2500003 3.00 05/03/2024 V1474 Alpine BH Web May 2024 HSA 420100 Service Con- 3.00
Services tracts
10 West Plant EP2500004 69.00 05/03/2024 V1474 Alpine BH Web May 2024 420100 Service Con- 69.00
Services tracts
10 West Plant EP2500005 55,962.10 05/03/2024 V1473 Direct Energy 2410700541567 430000 Utilities 55,962.10
Business LLC 71
10 West Plant EP2500008 1,879.04 05/03/2024 V1113 Verizon Wireless 9961513412 430000 Utilities 108.36
10 West Plant EP2500008 1,879.04 05/03/2024 V1113 Verizon Wireless 9961513412 430000 Utilities 658.69
10 West Plant EP2500008 1,879.04 05/03/2024 V1113 Verizon Wireless 9961513412 430000 Utilities 49.18
10 West Plant EP2500008 1,879.04 05/03/2024 V1113 Verizon Wireless 9961513412 430000 Utilities 265.90
10 West Plant EP2500008 1,879.04 05/03/2024 V1113 Verizon Wireless 9961513412 430000 Utilities 590.19
10 West Plant EP2500008 1,879.04 05/03/2024 V1113 Verizon Wireless 9961513412 430000 Utilities 206.72
10 West Plant EP2500012 1,850.75 05/10/2024 V1335 Fuelman NP66328387 430000 Utilities 1,850.75
10 West Plant EP2500014 768.52 05/17/2024 V1101 City of Blooming-1179003 430000 Utilities 10.97
ton- Water
10 West Plant EP2500014 768.52 05/17/2024 V1101 City of Blooming-1177760 430000 Utilities 617.01
ton- Water
10 West Plant EP2500014 768.52 05/17/2024 V1101 City of Blooming-1175951 430000 Utilities 51.28
ton- Water
10 West Plant EP2500014 768.52 05/17/2024 V1101 City of Blooming-1177477 430000 Utilities 8.30
ton- Water
10 West Plant EP2500014 768.52 05/17/2024 V1101 City of Blooming-1177636 430000 Utilities 21.79
ton- Water
10 West Plant EP2500014 768.52 05/17/2024 V1101 City of Blooming-1177608 430000 Utilities 59.17
ton- Water
10 West Plant EP2500015 1,660.55 05/17/2024 V1149 Frontier 110889-5/APRIL 430000 Utilities 1,271.90
24
10 West Plant EP2500019 232.51 05/17/2024 V1473 Direct Energy 2412200542680 430000 Utilities 23251
Business LLC 89
10 West Plant EP2500020 1,049.21 05/17/2024 V1119 Ameren IP 01139-06097/MA430000 Utilities 1,049.21
RCH24
10 West Plant EP2500021 3,138.81 05/24/2024 V1258 Nicor 59-85-39-10004/ 430000 Utilities 1,442.90
APRIL24
10 West Plant EP2500022 315.60 05/24/2024 V1074 AT&T Company 05032024 430000 Utilities 315.60
Inc
10 West Plant EP2500023 460.18 05/24/2024 V1384 TMobile April 2024 430000 Utilities 380.52
10 West Plant EP2500023 460.18 05/24/2024 V1384 TMobile April 2024 430000 Utilities 79.66
10 West Plant EP2500026 5,547.58 05/24/2024 V1177 Republic Ser- 0368-001101398420100 Service Con- 5,262.23
vices Inc #368 tracts
10 West Plant EP2500027 1,585.65 05/24/2024 V1119 Ameren IP 1031251028/AP 430000 Utilities 60.42

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

RIL24

Page 8



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid
10 West Plant EP2500027 1,585.65 05/24/2024 V1119 Ameren IP 0129107072/AP 430000 Utilities 1,245.23
RIL24
10 West Plant EP2500027 1,585.65 05/24/2024 V1119 Ameren IP 1020155028/AP 430000 Utilities 122.61
RIL24
10 West Plant EP2500027 1,585.65 05/24/2024 V1119 Ameren IP 3986722736/AP 430000 Utilities 157.39
RIL24
10 West Plant EP2500028 77.15 05/24/2024 V1074 AT&T Company May 2024 430000 Utilities 77.15
Inc
10 West Plant EP2500029 68.80 05/31/2024 V1258 Nicor 39-17-66-16413/ 430000 Utilities 68.80
MAY24
10 West Plant EP2500031 100.00 05/31/2024 V1239 Wageworks Inc  0424-TR95862 420100 Service Con- 100.00
tracts
10 West Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 7,046.63
Shield of IL fits
10 West Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 13,036.38
Shield of IL fits
10 West Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 3,718.45
Shield of IL fits
10 West Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 2,210.63
Shield of IL fits
10 West Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 16,617.60
Shield of IL fits
10 West Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 564.52
Shield of IL fits
10 West Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 8.60
Shield of IL fits
10 West Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 9.72
Shield of IL fits
10 West Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 106.64
Shield of IL fits
10 West Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 11.32
Shield of IL fits
10 West Plant Reversed - (319.42) 05/31/2024 V1311 AEP Energy, Inc 3010845839 430000 Utilities 319.42
3010845839
10 West Plant Reversed - (407.34) 05/31/2024 V1311 AEP Energy, Inc 3010845839/JA 430000 Utilities 407.34
3010845839/JA N24
N24
10 West Plant Reversed - (349.54) 05/31/2024 V1311 AEP Energy, Inc 3010845839/MA 430000 Utilities 349.54
3010845839/MA RCH24
RCH24
10 West Plant Reversed - (32.22) 05/31/2024 V1311 AEP Energy, Inc 3010845839/NO 430000 Utilities 32.22
3010845839/NO V23
V23
10 West Plant Voided - (460.18) 05/24/2024 V1384 TMobile April 2024 430000 Utilities 79.66
EP2400023
10 West Plant Voided - (460.18) 05/24/2024 V1384 TMobile April 2024 430000 Utilities 380.52
EP2400023
Sum for 10 1,136,154.92
1001
1001 District Operat- 101822 4,903.60 05/30/2024 V1015 Normal, Town of 10789 430200 Billing Fees 4,903.60
ing - Other Invoices
1001 District Operat- EP2500006 23.08 05/03/2024 Alpine BH Web 05-01-2024 War- 210000 Payroll Liabilities

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 9



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid
ing Services ren
1001 District Operat- EP2500007 1,446.40 05/03/2024 V1474 Alpine BH Web 05-03-2024 210000 Payroll Liabilities 1,446.40
ing Services
1001 District Operat- EP2500009 2,208.47 05/03/2024 V1198 ICMA-RC Van- 6009900 210000 Payroll Liabilities 2,208.47
ing tagePntTrn-
sAgnt-457
1001 District Operat- EP2500011 24,627.57 05/10/2024 V1106 Commrc-P\C APRIL 2024 230200 P-Card Sus- 24,627.57
ing pense
1001 District Operat- EP2500013 4,042.15 05/17/2024 V1345 American Ex-  April 2024 230200 P-Card Sus- 4,042.15
ing press pense
1001 District Operat- EP2500017 2,208.47 05/17/2024 V1198 ICMA-RC Van- 6214515 210000 Payroll Liabilities 2,208.47
ing tagePntTrn-
SAgnt-457
1001 District Operat- EP2500018 23.08 05/17/2024 V1474 Alpine BH Web 05-15-2024 War- 210000 Payroll Liabilities 23.08
ing Services ren
1001 District Operat- EP2500025 312.61 05/24/2024 V1474 Alpine BH Web 05-20-2024 210000 Payroll Liabilities 312.61
ing Services
1001 District Operat- EP2500032 140.20 05/31/2024 V1474 Alpine BH Web 05-30-2024 210000 Payroll Liabilities 140.20
ing Services
1001 District Operat- EP2500033 23.08 05/31/2024 V1474 Alpine BH Web  05-29-2024 War- 210000 Payroll Liabilities 23.08
ing Services ren
1001 District Operat- EP2500034 2,208.47 05/31/2024 V1198 ICMA-RC Van- 6103071 210000 Payroll Liabilities 2,208.47
ing tagePntTrn-
sAgnt-457
1001 District Operat- EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 210000 Payroll Liabilities 3,055.07
ing Shield of IL
1001 District Operat- EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 210000 Payroll Liabilities 5,346.10
ing Shield of IL
1001 District Operat- EP2500036 192.31 05/17/2024 V1474 Alpine BH Web 05-14-2024 210000 Payroll Liabilities 192.31
ing Services Bonos
1001 District Operat- EP2500037 192.35 05/17/2024 V1474 Alpine BH Web  05-17-2024 Ervin210000 Payroll Liabilities 192.35
ing Services
1001 District Operat- EP2500038 192.31 05/31/2024 V1474 Alpine BH Web 05-28-2024 210000 Payroll Liabilities 192.31
ing Services Bonos
Sum for 1001 158,501.95
11
11 West Plant_EQF 100265 3,493.00 05/30/2024 V1479 A Drain Doctor 10094 600300 Facility_EQF 3,493.00
11 West Plant_EQF 1010000100002 1,888.00 05/07/2024 V1020 Springfield Elec- S010776776.004600300 Facility_ EQF 1,888.00
35 tric Inc
11 West Plant_EQF 1010000100002 15,558.00 05/14/2024 V1140 G A Rich & Sons 1475646 600300 Facility_EQF 6,080.00
41 Inc
11 West Plant_EQF 1010000100002 15,558.00 05/14/2024 V1140 G A Rich & Sons 1475645 600300 Facility_EQF 9,478.00
41 Inc
Sum for 11 36,497.00
20
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600013 676.73 05/07/2024 V1118 Nord Outdoor  P04630 420900 Plant Mainte- 174.56
68 Power Corp nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600013 676.73 05/07/2024 V1118 Nord Outdoor ~ P03737 420900 Plant Mainte- 13.52
68 Power Corp nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600013 676.73 05/07/2024 V1118 Nord Outdoor ~ P03730 420900 Plant Mainte- 488.65
68 Power Corp nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600013 384.62 05/07/2024 V1055 McMaster-Carr 25993238 420600 Supplies 58.83

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 10



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid
73 Supply Co Inc
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600013 3,230.93 05/07/2024 V1089 Evergreen FS 10241476 430000 Utilities 1,790.91
78 Inc
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600013 1,511.78 05/07/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9098001861 420900 Plant Mainte- 80.20
80 Inc nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600013 5,699.04 05/07/2024 V1470 Ampion PBC - 2024050001100 430000 Utilities 2,241.68
92 Marine 2 528
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600013 53.10 05/14/2024 V1118 Nord Outdoor P03743 420900 Plant Mainte- 53.10
96 Power Corp nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600013 92.87 05/14/2024 V1020 Springfield Elec- S010802609.002420900 Plant Mainte- 92.87
99 tric Inc nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 4,559.65 05/14/2024 V1171 Evoqua Water 906442371 420900 Plant Mainte- 4,559.65
05 Technologies nance
LLC
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 13,259.48 05/14/2024 V1147 Securitas Secu- 11719189 420100 Service Con- 6,629.74
10 rity Services tracts
USA Inc
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 743.54 05/22/2024 V1124 Digital Copy Sys-AR253530 420100 Service Con- 231.87
14 tems LLC tracts
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 2,439.13 05/22/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9104138889 420900 Plant Mainte- 448.80
16 Inc nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 2,439.13 05/22/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9120378667 420900 Plant Mainte- 551.93
16 Inc nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 9.18 05/22/2024 V1281 JX Enterprises  19168705P 420900 Plant Mainte- 9.18
17 Inc nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 343.80 05/22/2024 V1326 Staples, Inc 7000539042 420600 Supplies 191.22
21
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 385.00 05/22/2024 V1279 G3 Machining 18488 420900 Plant Mainte- 185.00
24 LLC nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 385.00 05/22/2024 V1279 G3 Machining 18482 420900 Plant Mainte- 50.00
24 LLC nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 385.00 05/22/2024 V1279 G3 Machining 18490 420900 Plant Mainte- 150.00
24 LLC nance
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 6,055.00 05/22/2024 V1399 TPC Training INTELE11001 410600 Employee Bene- 1,211.00
31 fits
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 683.97 05/22/2024 V1092 Red Wing Shoe 2024051010987 410600 Employee Bene- 260.99
37 Store Inc 7 fits
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 13,342.40 05/22/2024 V1147 Securitas Secu- 11731783 420100 Service 6,671.20
43 rity Services Contracts
USA Inc
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 2,085.00 05/22/2024 V1247 Martin Industrial 1455 420900 Plant Mainte- 1,042.50
44 Site Services nance
LLC
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 141.45 05/29/2024 V1031 Interstate All Bat-1900402012475 420600 Supplies 141.45
52 tery Center
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 396.12 05/29/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9126121913 420600 Supplies 103.00
53 Inc
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 266.13 05/29/2024 V1083 Motion Industries|L66-01042659 420600 Supplies 266.13
56 Inc
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 7,372.55 05/31/2024 V1387 IGS Energy 426785 430000 Utilities 4,074.62
58
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 1,440.00 05/31/2024 V1085 Altorfer Inc W0430068886 420100 Service Con- 1,440.00

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 11



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid
59 tracts
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 171.81 05/31/2024 V1326 Staples, Inc 7000716842 420600 Supplies 171.81
62
20 Southeast Plant 0711120600014 192.69 05/31/2024 V1084 Morgan Distribut-INV-015538 420900 Plant Mainte- 192.69
63 ing Inc nance
20 Southeast Plant 101808 1,717.55 05/30/2024 V1071 Birkeys Farm  P66721 420900 Plant Mainte- 491.57
Store Inc nance
20 Southeast Plant 101808 1,717.55 05/30/2024 V1071 Birkeys Farm  P66654 420900 Plant Mainte- 91.86
Store Inc nance
20 Southeast Plant 101808 1,717.55 05/30/2024 V1071 Birkeys Farm  P66743 420900 Plant Mainte- 112.64
Store Inc nance
20 Southeast Plant 101810 88.00 05/30/2024 V1240 Carle Physician R2G-MJ8-15F 410600 Employee Bene- 88.00
Group fits
20 Southeast Plant 101813 144.00 05/30/2024 V1150 Crown Lift 118120057 420100 Service Con- 144.00
Trucks Inc tracts
20 Southeast Plant 101816 2,270.27 05/30/2024 V1047 Gasvoda & As- INV24PTS0241 420900 Plant Mainte- 2,270.27
sociates Inc nance
20 Southeast Plant 101823 1,750.00 05/30/2024 V1371 Phil Bachman  May 2024 420100 Service Con- 1,750.00
tracts
20 Southeast Plant 101824 100.00 05/30/2024 V1064 Prairie Signs Inc 59690 420600 Supplies 100.00
20 Southeast Plant EP2500010 30,057.52 05/10/2024 V1099 Corn Belt Energy2326800/APRIL2430000 Utilities 29,695.59
Inc 4
20 Southeast Plant EP2500010 30,057.52 05/10/2024 V1099 Corn Belt Energy 1649301/APRIL2430000 Utilities 361.93
Inc 4
20 Southeast Plant EP2500015 1,660.55 05/17/2024 V1149 Frontier 112304-5/APRIL 430000 Utilities 388.65
24
20 Southeast Plant EP2500016 493.12 05/17/2024 V1122 Bloomington 1950/APRIL24 430000 Utilities 493.12
Township PWD
20 Southeast Plant EP2500021 3,138.81 05/24/2024 V1258 Nicor 09-09-62-30710/ 430000 Utilities 156.13
APRIL24
20 Southeast Plant EP2500021 3,138.81 05/24/2024 V1258 Nicor 51-96-51-30100/ 430000 Utilities 1,539.78
APRIL24
20 Southeast Plant EP2500024 121.70 05/24/2024 V1101 City of Blooming-1183959 430000 Utilities 121.70
ton- Water
20 Southeast Plant EP2500026 5,547.58 05/24/2024 V1177 Republic Ser-  0368-001101398 420100 Service Con- 285.35
vices Inc #368 tracts
20 Southeast Plant EP2500030 127.98 05/31/2024 V1149 Frontier 060917-5/MAY2 430000 Utilities 127.98
4
20 Southeast Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 1,993.12
Shield of IL fits
20 Southeast Plant EP2500035 57,878.90 05/31/2024 V1081 Blue Cross/Blue June 2024 410600 Employee Bene- 4,154.12
Shield of IL fits
20 Southeast Plant P66913 (44.24) 05/10/2024 V1071 Birkeys Farm P66654 420900 Plant Mainte- 91.86
Store Inc nance
Sum for 20 269,660.63
2001
2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 34,325.94 05/07/2024 V1487 Johnson Con- 41718335 600300 Facility_EQF 16,864.84
placement 34 trols US Hold-
ings
2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 34,325.94 05/07/2024 V1487 Johnson Con- 41718336 600300 Facility_EQF 17,461.10
placement 34 trols US Hold-
ings

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 12



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 755.70 05/07/2024 V1135 Brenntag Mid- BMS654361 600100 Permit Compli- 7,755.70
placement 36 South Inc ance

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 198.86 05/07/2024 V1082 Kirby Risk Elec- S210291212.002600700 Computers 877.55
placement 37 trical Supply Co

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 642.52 05/07/2024 V1049 Fastenal Com- ILBLM492955 600000 Safety EQF 642.52
placement 38 pany Inc

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 207.33 05/07/2024 V1011 Grainger WW 9101098532 600700 Computers 207.33
placement 39 Inc

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 969.00 05/07/2024 V1483 Sheldon Manu- SH-PINV109205 490000 Contingency 969.00
placement 40 facturing, Inc

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 413.29 05/14/2024 V1418 Microsoft Corpo- G046841204 600700 Computers 413.29
placement 42 ration

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 828.40 05/14/2024 V1293 Short Term Capi-APRIL 2024 STC270200 Due To Short 828.40
placement 43 tal Term Capital

Fund

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 45,926.38 05/14/2024 V1389 General Fund  APRIL 2024 270000 Due To General 45,926.38
placement 44 GEN Fund

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 1,424.85 05/22/2024 V1030 HACH Company 14023123 600100 Permit Compli- 1,424.85
placement 45 Inc ance

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 5,967.00 05/22/2024 V1247 Martin Industrial 1449 600200 Process Effi- 1,199.00
placement 46 Site Services ciency

LLC

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 5,967.00 05/22/2024 V1247 Martin Industrial 1448 600200 Process Effi- 4,768.00

placement 46 Site Services ciency
LLC

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 3,285.87 05/22/2024 V1450 CDW Govern- RD67386 600700 Computers 2,661.37
placement 47 ment LLC

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 3,285.87 05/22/2024 V1450 CDW Govern- RF72059 600700 Computers 624.50
placement 47 ment LLC

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 5,929.00 05/22/2024 V1419 Glasdon, Inc S11014709 600000 Safety_EQF 5,929.00
placement 48

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 7,395.36 05/29/2024 V1450 CDW Govern- RD19826 600700 Computers 7,395.36
placement 49 ment LLC

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 34,413.75 05/29/2024 V1429 SKB Cyber 1055 600700 Computers 34,413.75
placement 50

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 5,063.72 05/31/2024 V1006 Farnsworth 251915 600700 Computers 585.00
placement 51 Group Inc

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 5,063.72 05/31/2024 V1006 Farnsworth 251915 600700 Computers 4,478.72
placement 51 Group Inc

2001 Equipment Re- 1010000100002 87.50 05/31/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0259864 600700 Computers 87.50
placement 52 man Inc

2001 Equipment Re- BMS633121 (2,000.00) 03/27/2024 V1135 Brenntag Mid- BMS654361 600100 Permit Compli- 7,755.70
placement South Inc ance

2001 Equipment Re- BMS644736 (1,000.00) 04/12/2024 V1135 Brenntag Mid- BMS654361 600100 Permit Compli- 7,755.70
placement South Inc ance

2001 Equipment Re- BMS645943 (1,000.00) 04/15/2024 V1135 Brenntag Mid- BMS654361 600100 Permit Compli- 7,755.70
placement South Inc ance

2001 Equipment Re- BMS654055 (3,000.00) 04/25/2024 V1135 Brenntag Mid- BMS654361 600100 Permit Compli- 7,755.70
placement South Inc ance

2001 Equipment Re- EP2500001 9,526.66 05/31/2024 V1361 Enterprise FM  583076A-050324600900 Mobile Equip- 9,526.66
placement Trust ment

2001 Equipment Re- S210291212.003 (678.69) 04/25/2024 V1082 Kirby Risk Elec- S210291212.002600700 Computers

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 13

871



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid
placement trical Supply Co
Sum for 2001 198,324.97
3001
3001 Short Term Capi-0711120600000 5,031.25 05/07/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0257697 500900 Other Capital 5,031.25
tal 37 man Inc Projects
3001 Short Term Capi-0711120600000 191.39 05/07/2024 V1009 Forestry Suppli- 541378-00 501000 Environmental 191.39
tal 38 ers Inc Restoration
3001 Short Term Capi-0711120600000 5,957.50 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258981 500900 Other Capital 2,137.50
tal 39 man Inc Projects
3001 Short Term Capi-0711120600000 5,957.50 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258850 490000 Contingency 3,625.00
tal 39 man Inc
3001 Short Term 0711120600000 5,957.50 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258839 500900 Other Capital 195.00
Capital 39 man Inc Projects
3001 Short Term Capi-0711120600000 7,700.00 05/22/2024 V1480 Litwiller Tree May 2024 500800 Grounds - South- 7,700.00
tal 40 Service LLC east
3001 Short Term Capi-0711120600000 3,495.00 05/31/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0259866 500900 Other Capital 3,495.00
tal 41 man Inc Projects
3001 Short Term Capi-EP2500001 7,214.01 05/20/2024 V1355 Stratus Net- 206236 500900 Other Capital 7,214.01
tal works, Inc Projects
Sum for 3001 41,504.15
4001
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 4,000.00 05/07/2024 V1263 McGuireWoods 92783684 700200 Lobbyist 4,000.00
89 LLP
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 154,612.39 05/07/2024 V1006 Farnsworth 250964 700900 Other Nutrient 42,213.84
90 Group Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 154,612.39 05/07/2024 V1006 Farnsworth 250965 700900 Other Nutrient 36,651.50
90 Group Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 154,612.39 05/07/2024 V1006 Farnsworth 250966 700900 Other Nutrient 42,980.75
90 Group Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 154,612.39 05/07/2024 V1006 Farnsworth 250968 700900 Other Nutrient 32,766.30
90 Group Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 5,010.00 05/07/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0257697 NUT 700400 Environmental 4,311.25
91 man Inc Rehabilitation
4001 Nutrient 000 5,010.00 05/07/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0257697 NUT 700000 Design & Studies 698.75
071112060091 man Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 48,295.60 05/14/2024 V1488 Speer Financial, 41-24 700000 Design & Studies 48,295.60
92 Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 9,397.50 05/14/2024 V1195 CliftonLarson- 1241308522 700900 Other Nutrient 9,397.50
93 Allen LLP
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 101,870.35 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258848 700900 Other Nutrient 368.75
94 man Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 101,870.35 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258852 700000 Design & Studies 355.00
94 man Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 101,870.35 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258979 700400 Environmental 2,165.00
94 man Inc Rehabilitation
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 101,870.35 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258980 700000 Design & Studies 480.00
94 man Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 101,870.35 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258847 700900 Other Nutrient 17,500.00
94 man Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 101,870.35 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258842 700000 Design & Studies 793.75
94 man Inc
4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 101,870.35 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258844 700900 Other Nutrient 2,363.7

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Page 14



BNWRD

Payment History Report

Sum for 4001
Sum Total

Created on 06/05/2024, 7:39 AM PST

Fund ID Fund Check # Payment Payment Date Vendor ID Vendor Name Bill # GL Account GL Account Total transac-
Amount Description tion paid

94 man Inc

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 101,870.35 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258988 700900 Other Nutrient 25,168.75
94 man Inc

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 101,870.35 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258846 700900 Other Nutrient 49,960.00
94 man Inc

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 101,870.35 05/14/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258843 700500 Construc- 2,715.35
94 man Inc tion_NUT

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 26,020.00 05/14/2024 V1325 Stantec Consult- 2230032 700400 Environmental 26,020.00
95 ing Service Inc Rehabilitation

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 8,252.95 05/14/2024 V1389 General Fund  APRIL 2024 270000 Due To General 8,252.95
96 GEN Fund

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 11,876.25 05/29/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258851 700400 Environmental 3,900.00
97 man Inc Rehabilitation

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 11,876.25 05/29/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0258849 700400 Environmental 4,050.00
97 man Inc Rehabilitation

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 11,876.25 05/29/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0259114 700400 Environmental 335.00
97 man Inc Rehabilitation

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 11,876.25 05/29/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0259115 700400 Environmental 3,591.25
97 man Inc Rehabilitation

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 4,000.00 05/29/2024 V1263 McGuireWoods 92825287 700200 Lobbyist 4,000.00
98 LLP

4001 Nutrient 0711120600000 19,412.50 05/31/2024 V1006 Farnsworth 251912 700300 Process Im- 19,412.50
99 Group Inc provement

4001 Nutrient 0711120600001 907.50 05/31/2024 V1232 Baxter & Wood- 0259865 700400 Environmental 907.50
00 man Inc Rehabilitation

4001 Nutrient EP2500001 61,265.00 05/09/2024 V1489 AGCS Marine In-815666 700100 Insur- 61,265.00

surance Com- ance_Nutrient
pany
4001 Nutrient EP2500002 172,912.00 05/15/2024 V1289 Arthur J Gal- 5113183 120500 Prepaid Liability 172,912.00

2,049,141.11
3,889,784.73

lagher Risk Man-
agement Ser-
vices, Inc

Insurance

Page 15



Water

o

l.';:l.!"
_"'-\-t..\_,.J_

District Operating

IMistri

B T U b T

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Long-term Assets
Property & Equipment
Other Long-term Assets
Total Long-term Assets
Interfund Due from
Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Short-term Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Withholding Tax Payable
Other Short-term Liabilities
Total Short-term Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Other Long-term Liabilities
Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Total Liabilities and Net Assets

CT

Created on 06/05/2024, 9:32 AM PST

Reclamation

BNWRD
Balance Sheet

Year To Date

Prior Year To Date

05/31/2024 05/31/2023
Current Year Balance Prior Year Summary
3,699,905.00 3,189,521.63 510,383.37
2,167,774.14 2,162,889.67 4,884.47
1,221,192.90 1,254,604.26 (33,411.36)
7,088,872.04 6,607,015.56 481,856.48
148,438,202.50 148,438,202.50 0.00
2,942,553.45 2,942,553.45 0.00
151,380,755.95 151,380,755.95 0.00
330.00 0.00 330.00
158,469,957.99 157,987,771.51 482,186.48
1,138,561.47 308,073.72 830,487.75
8,897.53 8,897.53 0.00
29,316.92 10,683.65 18,633.27
935,726.11 996,729.17 (61,003.06)
2,112,502.03 1,324,384.07 788,117.96
106,465.53 111,465.53 (5,000.00)
106,465.53 111,465.53 (5,000.00)
2,218,967.56 1,435,849.60 783,117.96
156,250,990.43 156,551,921.91 (300,931.48)
158,469,957.99 157,987,771.51 482,186.48

Page 1



o

Water

;ﬂ. Reclamation
IMistrict

BNWRD

Statement of Revenue

Revenue Source

Program Service Revenue
Sewer Connection Fees
User Fees
Billable Revenues
Total Program Service Revenue
Other Revenue
Investment Income
Interest Income
Total Investment Income
Rental Income
Rental Income
Total Rental Income
Gain / Loss on Sales of Fixed Assets
Unrealized Gain or Loss
Gain on Sale
Total Gain / Loss on Sales of Fixed Assets
Total Other Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Property Tax
lllinois Replacement Tax
Transfer From General Fund
City of Bloomington
Annexation Fee
Loan Receipts
Other Contribution
Farm Operations
Miscellaneous
Total Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Revenue

As of May 31, 2024
Year To Date 05/31/2024

Total Revenue Budget Budget Diff
64,311.00 800,000.00 (735,689.00)
924,485.57 11,940,000.00 (11,015,514.43)
18,840.55 131,000.00 (112,159.45)
1,007,637.12 12,871,000.00 (11,863,362.88)
50,514.79 353,500.00 (302,985.21)
50,514.79 353,500.00 (302,985.21)
755.00 9,060.00 (8,305.00)
755.00 9,060.00 (8,305.00)
4,534.81 27,000.00 (22,465.19)
2,776.00 10,000.00 (7,224.00)
7,310.81 37,000.00 (29,689.19)
58,580.60 399,560.00 (340,979.40)
232,408.13 5,646,255.99 (5,413,847.86)
122,448.85 600,000.00 (477,551.15)
0.00 3,100,000.00 (3,100,000.00)

0.00 831,423.50 (831,423.50)

0.00 3,600.00 (3,600.00)

0.00 26,000,000.00  (26,000,000.00)

0.00 34,604,000.00  (34,604,000.00)

0.00 20,000.00 (20,000.00)
3,926.87 18,000.00 (14,073.13)
358,783.85 70,823,279.49  (70,464,495.64)
1,425,001.57  84,093,839.49 (82,668,837.92)




o

Operating Revenue

Revenue - Other
Annexation Fee

Farm Revenue

Gain on Sale

Interest Income

Late Payment Penalty
Misc Revenue

Property Tax

Total Revenue - Other
Revenue - Services
BTPWD - R/E Equivalent
BTPWD_REV

Car Wash Grit

City of Bloomington_REV
Grease Trap Sludge
High Strength Waste
Illicit Discharge

Industrial Permits
Methane

Other Sources

Reporting Violation
Septic Tank Haulers
Town of Normal_REV
Village of Downs - R9E Equivalent
Village of Downs_REV
Total Revenue - Services
Rental Income

Rental Income

Total Rental Income

Total Operating Revenue
Expenditures

Personnel

Salary and Wages
Employee Wages
Employee Wages Part Time
Overtime Wages
Trustee Wages

Total Salary and Wages

Payroll Benefits
Continuing Education
Employee Assistance Program
FR Uniform Service
Health Insurance_ER
IMRF Pension
Insurance Workers Compensation
Life Insurance_ER
Other Benefits
Physical Exams

Created on 06/05/2024, 9:57 AM PST

Water
5 Reclamation
B Iistrict
_"'"-\-L\_,.J_ s, T (I i B LTS sy B 1 . 1 s Bt

Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget
Year To Date 05/31/2024

District Operating

Actual Budget Budget Diff
0.00 3,600.00 3,600.00

0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
2,776.00 10,000.00 7,224.00
7,172.50 55,000.00 47,827.50
0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
3,926.87 17,000.00 13,073.13
232,408.13 964,395.83 731,987.70
246,283.50 1,070,995.83 824,712.33
0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
590,373.94 7,400,000.00 6,809,626.06
0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
18,840.55 40,000.00 21,159.45
0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
1,558.89 0.00 (1,558.89)
0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
321,548.66 4,400,000.00 4,078,451.34
3,631.58 45,000.00 41,368.42
7,372.50 75,000.00 67,627.50
943,326.12 12,071,000.00 11,127,673.88
755.00 9,060.00 8,305.00
755.00 9,060.00 8,305.00
1,190,364.62 13,151,055.83 11,960,691.21
248,439.53 260,198.44 11,758.91
0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
10,792.28 124,500.00 113,707.72
1,200.00 14,400.00 13,200.00
260,431.81 409,098.44 148,666.63
6,185.00 59,500.00 53,315.00
0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00
49,477.73 625,825.00 576,347.27
0.00 28,790.00 28,790.00

0.00 56,500.00 56,500.00

0.00 19,246.00 19,246.00

0.00 4,700.00 4,700.00

88.00 5,000.00 4,912.00

Page 1



o

Water
Reclamation

IMistrict
_"'"-\-L\_,.J_ s, T (I i B LTS sy B 1 . 1 s Bt

District Operating
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Protective Footwear
RX Glasses
Unemployment
Uniforms
Wellness
Total Payroll Benefits
Payroll Taxes
Social Security/Medicare
Total Payroll Taxes
Total Personnel
Occupancy
Rental Easements

Total Occupancy

Service Contracts
Address EPA Ordinance & ERP Comments
Akshar Assistance
Annual PT Report
Audit Services
Bank
BTPWD
BW Project Management
City of Bloomington
Computer Services
Contracted Grounds Services
Copier Machine
CROMERR Assistance
Engineering Services
FSE Layer in Survey
Gen/IU Compliance Assistance
Generator Maint Services
IU Permit Updates
IU Survey
Janitorial Services
JULIE Services
Landfill
Legal Services
New IU Permits
NPDES Lab Services
Outside Services
Payroll Services
PFAS Strategic Plan
Pretreatment Services
Security Services
Service Contracts
Staff & IU Training
Temporary Services
Temporary Services - Land App
Town of Normal
Village of Downs

Total Service Contracts

Created on 06/05/2024, 9:57 AM PST

Actual Budget Budget Diff
683.97 10,100.00 9,416.03
0.00 1,950.00 1,950.00
10.20 6,169.50 6,159.30
3,575.00 20,950.00 17,375.00
0.00 8,500.00 8,500.00
60,019.90 861,230.50 801,210.60
19,571.66 247,469.00 227,897.34
19,571.66 247,469.00 227,897.34
340,023.37 1,517,797.94 1,177,774.57
1,313.10 3,000.00 1,686.90
1,313.10 3,000.00 1,686.90
0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

0.00 70,000.00 70,000.00
431.36 6,000.00 5,568.64
0.00 500.00 500.00

0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00
276.94 160,000.00 159,723.06
1,750.00 21,000.00 19,250.00
247.37 5,202.00 4,954.63
0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
6,077.50 100,000.00 93,922.50
0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00

0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
1,440.00 33,000.00 31,560.00
0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00

0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
4,725.00 58,750.00 54,025.00
0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

0.00 71,000.00 71,000.00
3,332.50 120,000.00 116,667.50
0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00

0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
4,251.20 63,000.00 58,748.80
2,531.68 28,000.00 25,468.32
0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00

0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
13,342.40 325,000.00 311,657.60
726.30 80,000.00 79,273.70
0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
3,024.48 80,000.00 76,975.52
0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00
4,903.60 90,000.00 85,096.40
0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00
47,060.33 1,768,952.00 1,721,891.67

Page 2



W ater
5 Reclamaticon
ISEXRCE i
District Operating
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
Project Expense
Due and Subscriptions
IAWA Membership 0.00 6,065.00 6,065.00
Memberships 573.00 9,510.00 8,937.00
NACWA Membership 0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00
NPDES Permit Fee 0.00 103,250.00 103,250.00
USGS Creek Monitoring 0.00 15,500.00 15,500.00
Total Due and Subscriptions 573.00 147,325.00 146,752.00
Facilities
Building 2,599.67 57,000.00 54,400.33
Dewatering Chemicals 0.00 96,000.00 96,000.00
Electrical System Maint 1,000.73 150,000.00 148,999.27
Equipment Purchase 0.00 14,500.00 14,500.00
Equipment Rental 143.55 15,576.00 15,432.45
Equipment Repair 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
Farm Operations 0.00 11,500.00 11,500.00
Gas Monitor 0.00 24,000.00 24,000.00
Grounds 4,251.74 38,000.00 33,748.26
Mobile Equipment 14,163.77 69,000.00 54,836.23
Pretreatment Equipment 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Preventative Maintenance 3,248.87 58,000.00 54,751.13
Process Odor Control 18,839.32 135,000.00 116,160.68
Process Stationary Equipment 6,941.02 210,000.00 203,058.98
Solids Odor Control 0.00 61,000.00 61,000.00
Solids Stationary Equipment 294.29 220,000.00 219,705.71
Total Facilities 51,482.96 1,168,576.00 1,117,093.04
Insurance
Insurance Automobile 0.00 27,000.00 27,000.00
Insurance Other 4,477.43 50,000.00 45,522.57
Insurance Public Liability 2,336.34 375,000.00 372,663.66
Total Insurance 6,813.77 452,000.00 445,186.23
Supplies
Engineering 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
Janitorial 582.09 9,000.00 8,417.91
Paint 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Postage 71.96 5,500.00 5,428.04
Solids 0.00 16,000.00 16,000.00
Stream Survey 1,821.63 5,000.00 3,178.37
Supplies General 9,414.33 143,800.00 134,385.67
Tools 509.49 20,000.00 19,490.51
Total Supplies 12,399.50 204,300.00 191,900.50
Misc Expenses
Contingency 0.00 27,000.00 27,000.00
Ecology Action Center 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Economic Development Council 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Public Relations 5,878.61 14,200.00 8,321.39
Refunds 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00
Respiratory Fit Test 0.00 10,500.00 10,500.00
Safety 1,008.88 47,500.00 46,491.12
Safety Education 0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00
Total Misc Expenses 6,887.49 182,200.00 175,312.51

Created on 06/05/2024, 9:57 AM PST

Page 3



o

Water
Reclamation

IMistrict
_"'-\-t..\_,.J_ s, T (I i B LTS sy B 1 . 1 s Bt

District Operating
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Printing and Publications
Annual Report
Bid Advertisement
Other Publications

Total Printing and Publications

Utilities
Electricity
Fiber Services
Fuel
Infor EAM Production
Natural Gas
Telephone
Water

Total Utilities

Interfund Transfers
Transfer To Equipment Replacement Fund
Transfer To Short Term Capital Fund
Transfer To Nutrient Fund

Total Interfund Transfers

Total General and Administrative Expenses

Total Expenditures
Change In Net Assets
+ Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Created on 06/05/2024, 9:57 AM PST

Actual Budget Budget Diff

0.00 1,800.00 1,800.00

0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00

0.00 6,300.00 6,300.00
66,809.47 1,215,000.00 1,148,190.53
0.00 76,000.00 76,000.00
4,459.05 116,500.00 112,040.95
380.52 5,200.00 4,819.48
7,372.55 106,000.00 98,627.45
2,868.58 46,160.00 43,291.42
2,683.82 40,000.00 37,316.18
84,573.99 1,604,860.00 1,520,286.01
83,333.33 1,000,000.00 916,666.67
125,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,375,000.00
50,000.00 600,000.00 550,000.00
258,333.33 3,100,000.00 2,841,666.67
421,064.04 6,865,561.00 6,444,496.96
809,460.84 10,155,310.94 9,345,850.10
380,903.78 2,995,744.89 2,614,841.11
155,870,086.65 0.00 (380,903.78)
156,250,990.43 2,995,744.89 2,233,937.33

Page 4



o

Operating Revenue
Revenue - Other
Annexation Fee
Farm Revenue
Gain on Sale
Interest Income
Late Payment Penalty
Misc Revenue
Property Tax
Total Revenue - Other
Revenue - Services
BTPWD - R/E Equivalent
BTPWD_REV
Car Wash Grit
City of Bloomington_REV
Grease Trap Sludge
High Strength Waste
Illicit Discharge
Industrial Permits
Methane
Other Sources
Reporting Violation
Septic Tank Haulers
Town of Normal_REV

Village of Downs - R9E Equivalent

Village of Downs_REV
Total Revenue - Services
Rental Income

Rental Income
Total Rental Income

Total Operating Revenue
Expenditures
Service Contracts
Bank
BTPWD
City of Bloomington
Town of Normal
Village of Downs

Total Service Contracts
Project Expense
Insurance
Insurance Automobile
Insurance Other

Insurance Public Liability

Total Insurance

Misc Expenses
Refunds

Total Misc Expenses

Interfund Transfers

Created on 06/05/2024, 9:27 AM PST

Water
5 Reclamation
£3

IMistrict
_"'"-\-L\_,.J_ i s o, S L 5 ol pl, et

District Operating
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget
Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
0.00 3,600.00 3,600.00

0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
2,776.00 10,000.00 7,224.00
7,172.50 55,000.00 47,827.50
0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
3,926.87 17,000.00 13,073.13
232,408.13 964,395.83 731,987.70
246,283.50 1,070,995.83 824,712.33
0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00

0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
590,373.94 7,400,000.00 6,809,626.06
0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
18,840.55 40,000.00 21,159.45
0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
1,558.89 0.00 (1,558.89)
0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
321,548.66 4,400,000.00 4,078,451.34
3,631.58 45,000.00 41,368.42
7,372.50 75,000.00 67,627.50
943,326.12 12,071,000.00 11,127,673.88
755.00 9,060.00 8,305.00
755.00 9,060.00 8,305.00
1,190,364.62 13,151,055.83 11,960,691.21
431.36 6,000.00 5,568.64
0.00 500.00 500.00

0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00
4,903.60 90,000.00 85,096.40
0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00
5,334.96 250,000.00 244,665.04
0.00 27,000.00 27,000.00
4,477.43 50,000.00 45,522.57
2,336.34 375,000.00 372,663.66
6,813.77 452,000.00 445,186.23
0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00

0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00

Page 1



Transfer To Equipment Replacement Fund
Transfer To Short Term Capital Fund
Transfer To Nutrient Fund

Water

Reclamation
IMistrict

Total Interfund Transfers

Total General and Administrative Expenses

Total Expenditures

Change In Net Assets

+ Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Created on 06/05/2024, 9:27 AM PST

District Operating
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget
Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff

83,333.33 1,000,000.00 916,666.67
125,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,375,000.00
50,000.00 600,000.00 550,000.00
258,333.33 3,100,000.00 2,841,666.67
265,147.10 3,597,000.00 3,331,852.90
270,482.06 3,847,000.00 3,576,517.94
919,882.56 9,304,055.83 8,384,173.27
175,576,534.98 0.00 (919,882.56)
176,496,417.54 9,304,055.83 7,464,290.71

Page 2



Water
e Reclamation
-""“L_.J_ IMistrict

Administration District Operating
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
Expenditures
Personnel
Salary and Wages
Employee Wages 29,969.09 32,335.84 2,366.75
Employee Wages Part Time 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Overtime Wages 21.40 1,000.00 978.60
Trustee Wages 1,200.00 14,400.00 13,200.00
Total Salary and Wages 31,190.49 57,735.84 26,545.35
Payroll Benefits
Continuing Education 65.00 12,000.00 11,935.00
Employee Assistance Program 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Health Insurance_ER 7,055.23 84,560.00 77,504.77
IMRF Pension 0.00 3,453.00 3,453.00
Insurance Workers Compensation 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Life Insurance_ER 0.00 2,035.00 2,035.00
Other Benefits 0.00 2,700.00 2,700.00
Protective Footwear 0.00 500.00 500.00
Unemployment 10.20 800.00 789.80
Uniforms 1,300.00 2,600.00 1,300.00
Wellness 0.00 8,500.00 8,500.00
Total Payroll Benefits 8,430.43 121,148.00 112,717.57
Payroll Taxes
Social Security/Medicare 2,386.07 29,684.00 27,297.93
Total Payroll Taxes 2,386.07 29,684.00 27,297.93
Total Personnel 42,006.99 208,567.84 166,560.85
Service Contracts
Audit Services 0.00 70,000.00 70,000.00
Computer Services 276.94 160,000.00 159,723.06
Copier Machine 186.30 2,000.00 1,813.70
Legal Services 3,332.50 120,000.00 116,667.50
Payroll Services 2,531.68 28,000.00 25,468.32
Service Contracts 122.00 5,000.00 4,878.00
Total Service Contracts 6,449.42 385,000.00 378,550.58
Project Expense
Due and Subscriptions
IAWA Membership 0.00 6,065.00 6,065.00
Memberships 573.00 8,000.00 7,427.00
NACWA Membership 0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00
NPDES Permit Fee 0.00 103,250.00 103,250.00
Total Due and Subscriptions 573.00 130,315.00 129,742.00
Facilities
Equipment Purchase 0.00 500.00 500.00
Equipment Rental 143.55 576.00 432.45
Total Facilities 143.55 1,076.00 932.45
Supplies
Postage 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Supplies General 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Total Supplies 0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00

Misc Expenses

Created on 06/05/2024, 8:43 AM PST

Page 1



ﬂ,"ﬂ%

Administration

Water
Reclamation
IMistrict

District Operating

Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Contingency

Ecology Action Center
Economic Development Council
Public Relations

Safety

Total Misc Expenses

Printing and

Publications

Annual Report

Other Publ

ications

Total Printing and Publications

Utilities
Telephone

Total Utilities

Total General

and Administrative Expenses

Total Expenditures

Change In Net Assets

+ Net Assets

- Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Created on 06/05/2024, 8:43 AM PST

Actual Budget Budget Diff
0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00

0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
5,878.61 12,000.00 6,121.39
0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
5,878.61 39,000.00 33,121.39
0.00 1,800.00 1,800.00

0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

0.00 3,300.00 3,300.00
801.00 21,000.00 20,199.00
801.00 21,000.00 20,199.00
7,396.16 201,691.00 194,294.84
55,852.57 795,258.84 739,406.27
(55,852.57) (795,258.84) (739,406.27)

27,633,550.30
27,577,697.73

0.00
(795,258.84)

55,852.57
(683,553.70)

Page 2



o

IMistrict

S TR

Operations

Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Expenditures
Personnel
Salary and Wages
Employee Wages
Overtime Wages
Total Salary and Wages

Payroll Benefits
Continuing Education
Health Insurance_ER
IMRF Pension
Insurance Workers Compensation
Life Insurance_ER
Other Benefits
Physical Exams
Protective Footwear
RX Glasses
Unemployment
Uniforms
Total Payroll Benefits
Payroll Taxes
Social Security/Medicare
Total Payroll Taxes
Total Personnel
Service Contracts
Copier Machine
Landfill
Security Services
Temporary Services
Temporary Services - Land App

Total Service Contracts
Project Expense
Facilities
Dewatering Chemicals
Farm Operations
Process Odor Control
Solids Odor Control
Total Facilities
Supplies
Solids
Stream Survey
Supplies General
Total Supplies
Misc Expenses
Contingency
Total Misc Expenses
Utilities
Electricity
Fiber Services
Fuel

Created on 06/05/2024, 8:43 AM PST

Water
5 Reclamation
£3

District Operating

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
66,043.42 67,892.57 1,849.15
3,592.78 55,000.00 51,407.22
69,636.20 122,892.57 53,256.37
65.00 12,000.00 11,935.00
15,136.14 195,113.00 179,976.86
0.00 7,377.00 7,377.00

0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00

0.00 5,156.00 5,156.00

0.00 200.00 200.00

0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00
422.98 2,500.00 2,077.02
0.00 200.00 200.00

0.00 1,881.50 1,881.50

0.00 7,200.00 7,200.00
15,624.12 254,127.50 238,503.38
5,090.57 63,407.00 58,316.43
5,090.57 63,407.00 58,316.43
90,350.89 440,427.07 350,076.18
0.00 1,200.00 1,200.00

0.00 71,000.00 71,000.00
13,342.40 325,000.00 311,657.60
2,791.38 20,000.00 17,208.62
0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00
16,133.78 434,200.00 418,066.22
0.00 96,000.00 96,000.00

0.00 11,500.00 11,500.00
18,839.32 135,000.00 116,160.68
0.00 61,000.00 61,000.00
18,839.32 303,500.00 284,660.68
0.00 16,000.00 16,000.00
1,821.63 5,000.00 3,178.37
0.00 16,000.00 16,000.00
1,821.63 37,000.00 35,178.37
0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00

0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00
66,809.47 1,215,000.00 1,148,190.53
0.00 76,000.00 76,000.00
1,236.34 80,000.00 78,763.66

Page 3



Water
5 = Reclamation
;;_LE_J— Iistrict

District Operating

Operations
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget
Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff

Natural Gas 7,372.55 106,000.00 98,627.45
Telephone 905.79 10,500.00 9,594.21
Water 2,683.82 40,000.00 37,316.18

Total Utilities 79,007.97 1,527,500.00 1,448,492.03

Total General and Administrative Expenses 99,668.92 1,875,000.00 1,775,331.08

Total Expenditures 206,153.59 2,749,627.07 2,543,473.48

Change In Net Assets (206,153.59) (2,749,627.07) (2,543,473.48)

+ Net Assets - Beginning (27,334,114.74) 0.00 206,153.59
Net Assets - Ending (27,540,268.33) (2,749,627.07) (2,337,319.89)
Page 4

Created on 06/05/2024, 8:43 AM PST



o

IMistrict

Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

B U e I BT ey R B

Water
5 Reclamation
£3

District Operating

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
Expenditures
Personnel
Salary and Wages
Employee Wages 31,398.71 33,581.77 2,183.06
Overtime Wages 138.65 3,000.00 2,861.35
Total Salary and Wages 31,537.36 36,581.77 5,044.41
Payroll Benefits
Continuing Education 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Health Insurance_ER 3,728.17 44,621.00 40,892.83
IMRF Pension 0.00 3,587.00 3,587.00
Insurance Workers Compensation 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00
Life Insurance_ER 0.00 2,478.00 2,478.00
Other Benefits 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Physical Exams 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
Protective Footwear 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
RX Glasses 0.00 500.00 500.00
Unemployment 0.00 250.00 250.00
Uniforms 1,625.00 3,250.00 1,625.00
Total Payroll Benefits 5,353.17 75,686.00 70,332.83
Payroll Taxes
Social Security/Medicare 2,494.12 30,828.00 28,333.88
Total Payroll Taxes 2,494.12 30,828.00 28,333.88
Total Personnel 39,384.65 143,095.77 103,711.12
Service Contracts
Address EPA Ordinance & ERP Comments 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Akshar Assistance 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
Annual PT Report 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
BW Project Management 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Copier Machine 61.07 800.00 738.93
CROMERR Assistance 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
FSE Layer in Survey 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00
Gen/IU Compliance Assistance 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
IU Permit Updates 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
IU Survey 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
New IU Permits 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
NPDES Lab Services 0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00
Outside Services 4,251.20 40,000.00 35,748.80
PFAS Strategic Plan 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
Pretreatment Services 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
Service Contracts 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
Staff & IU Training 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Temporary Services 233.10 17,000.00 16,766.90
Total Service Contracts 4,545.37 372,800.00 368,254.63
Project Expense
Due and Subscriptions
Memberships 0.00 1,300.00 1,300.00
Total Due and Subscriptions 0.00 1,300.00 1,300.00
Facilities
Equipment Purchase 0.00 14,000.00 14,000.00

Created on 06/05/2024, 8:44 AM PST

Page 5



o

Lab

Water
Reclamation

IMistrict
_"'-\-t..\_,.J_ s, T (I i B LTS sy B 1 . 1 s Bt

District Operating

Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Equipment Repair
Pretreatment Equipment
Total Facilities
Supplies
Postage
Supplies General
Total Supplies
Misc Expenses
Contingency
Public Relations
Safety
Total Misc Expenses
Printing and Publications
Other Publications
Total Printing and Publications
Utilities
Telephone
Total Utilities

Total General and Administrative Expenses

Total Expenditures
Change In Net Assets
+ Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Created on 06/05/2024, 8:44 AM PST

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00

0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

0.00 23,000.00 23,000.00
71.96 3,500.00 3,428.04
7,419.74 50,000.00 42.580.26
7,491.70 53,500.00 46,008.30
0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00

0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00

0.00 500.00 500.00

0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00

0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00

0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
265.90 3,000.00 2,734.10
265.90 3,000.00 2,734.10
7,757.60 88,800.00 81,042.40
51,687.62 604,695.77 553,008.15
(51,687.62) (604,695.77) (553,008.15)

(3,335,154.50)
(3,386,842.12)

0.00

(604,695.77)

51,687.62

(501,320.53)

Page 6



o

Water
Reclamation
-""“L_.J_ IMistrict

Maintenance District Operating
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
Expenditures
Personnel
Salary and Wages
Employee Wages 92,638.42 95,652.21 3,013.79
Overtime Wages 6,983.72 65,000.00 58,016.28
Total Salary and Wages 99,622.14 160,652.21 61,030.07
Payroll Benefits
Continuing Education 6,055.00 20,000.00 13,945.00
FR Uniform Service 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00
Health Insurance_ER 20,783.04 268,229.00 247,445.96
IMRF Pension 0.00 11,090.00 11,090.00
Insurance Workers Compensation 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00
Life Insurance_ER 0.00 7,800.00 7,800.00
Other Benefits 0.00 800.00 800.00
Physical Exams 88.00 1,500.00 1,412.00
Protective Footwear 260.99 4,900.00 4,639.01
RX Glasses 0.00 500.00 500.00
Unemployment 0.00 2,713.00 2,713.00
Uniforms 0.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
Total Payroll Benefits 27,187.03 360,532.00 333,344.97
Payroll Taxes
Social Security/Medicare 7,413.71 95,334.00 87,920.29
Total Payroll Taxes 7,413.71 95,334.00 87,920.29
Total Personnel 134,222.88 616,518.21 482,295.33
Occupancy
Rental Easements 1,313.10 3,000.00 1,686.90
Total Occupancy 1,313.10 3,000.00 1,686.90
Service Contracts
Contracted Grounds Services 1,750.00 21,000.00 19,250.00
Copier Machine 0.00 852.00 852.00
Generator Maint Services 1,440.00 33,000.00 31,560.00
Janitorial Services 4,725.00 58,750.00 54,025.00
Outside Services 0.00 23,000.00 23,000.00
Service Contracts 604.30 35,000.00 34,395.70
Temporary Services 0.00 43,000.00 43,000.00
Total Service Contracts 8,519.30 214,602.00 206,082.70
Project Expense
Due and Subscriptions
USGS Creek Monitoring 0.00 15,500.00 15,500.00
Total Due and Subscriptions 0.00 15,500.00 15,500.00
Facilities
Building 2,599.67 57,000.00 54,400.33
Electrical System Maint 1,000.73 150,000.00 148,999.27
Equipment Rental 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Grounds 4,251.74 38,000.00 33,748.26
Mobile Equipment 14,163.77 69,000.00 54,836.23
Preventative Maintenance 3,248.87 58,000.00 54,751.13
Process Stationary Equipment 6,941.02 210,000.00 203,058.98

Created on 06/05/2024, 8:44 AM PST

Page 7



o

Maintenance

Water
5 Reclamation
B Iistrict
_"'"-\-L\_,.J_ s, T (I i B LTS sy B 1 . 1 s Bt

District Operating

Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Solids Stationary Equipment
Total Facilities
Supplies

Janitorial

Paint

Supplies General

Tools
Total Supplies
Misc Expenses

Contingency

Public Relations

Safety
Total Misc Expenses
Utilities

Fuel

Infor EAM Production

Telephone
Total Utilities

Total General and Administrative Expenses

Total Expenditures
Change In Net Assets
+ Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Created on 06/05/2024, 8:44 AM PST

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
294.29 220,000.00 219,705.71
32,500.09 817,000.00 784,499.91
582.09 9,000.00 8,417.91
0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
1,994.59 72,000.00 70,005.41
509.49 20,000.00 19,490.51
3,086.17 103,000.00 99,913.83
0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00

0.00 700.00 700.00
566.96 11,000.00 10,433.04
566.96 24,700.00 24,133.04
3,222.71 36,500.00 33,277.29
380.52 5,200.00 4,819.48
738.35 9,500.00 8,761.65
4,341.58 51,200.00 46,858.42
40,494.80 1,011,400.00 970,905.20
184,550.08 1,845,520.21 1,660,970.13
(184,550.08) (1,845,520.21) (1,660,970.13)

(15,905,102.60)
(16,089,652.68)

0.00
(1,845,520.21)

184,550.08
(1,476,420.05)

Page 8



o

Expenditures
Personnel
Salary and Wages
Employee Wages
Overtime Wages
Total Salary and Wages

Payroll Benefits
Continuing Education
Health Insurance_ER
IMRF Pension
Insurance Workers Compensation
Life Insurance_ER
Protective Footwear
RX Glasses
Unemployment
Uniforms

Total Payroll Benefits

Payroll Taxes
Social Security/Medicare

Total Payroll Taxes

Total Personnel
Project Expense

Facilities
Gas Monitor

Total Facilities

Supplies
Supplies General

Total Supplies

Misc Expenses
Contingency
Respiratory Fit Test
Safety
Safety Education

Total Misc Expenses

Utilities
Telephone

Total Utilities

Total General and Administrative Expenses

Total Expenditures
Change In Net Assets
+ Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Created on 06/05/2024, 8:45 AM PST

Water
5 Reclamation
B Iistrict
_"'-\-t..\_,.J_ s, T (I i B LTS sy B 1 . 1 s Bt

District Operating
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget
Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
6,773.77 7,318.59 544.82
55.73 500.00 444.27
6,829.50 7,818.59 989.09
0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
564.52 6,774.00 6,209.48
0.00 782.00 782.00
0.00 500.00 500.00
0.00 537.00 537.00
0.00 500.00 500.00
0.00 500.00 500.00
0.00 175.00 175.00
0.00 600.00 600.00
564.52 14,368.00 13,803.48
513.62 6,718.00 6,204.38
513.62 6,718.00 6,204.38
7,907.64 28,904.59 20,996.95
0.00 24,000.00 24,000.00
0.00 24,000.00 24,000.00
0.00 800.00 800.00
0.00 800.00 800.00
0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
0.00 10,500.00 10,500.00
441.92 35,000.00 34,558.08
0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00
441.92 59,500.00 59,058.08
49.18 600.00 550.82
49.18 600.00 550.82
491.10 84,900.00 84,408.90
8,398.74 113,804.59 105,405.85
(8,398.74) (113,804.59) (105,405.85)
(217,217.84) 0.00 8,398.74
(225,616.58) (113,804.59) (97,007.112)

Page 9



o

Engineering

Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Water
5 Reclamation
B Iistrict
_"'"-\-L\_,.J_ s, T (I i B LTS sy B 1 . 1 s Bt

District Operating

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Expenditures
Personnel
Salary and Wages
Employee Wages
Total Salary and Wages

Payroll Benefits
Continuing Education
Health Insurance_ER
IMRF Pension
Insurance Workers Compensation
Life Insurance_ER
Protective Footwear
RX Glasses
Unemployment
Uniforms
Total Payroll Benefits
Payroll Taxes
Social Security/Medicare
Total Payroll Taxes
Total Personnel
Service Contracts
Copier Machine
Engineering Services
JULIE Services

Total Service Contracts
Project Expense
Due and Subscriptions
Memberships
Total Due and Subscriptions
Supplies
Engineering
Total Supplies
Printing and Publications
Bid Advertisement
Total Printing and Publications
Utilities
Telephone
Total Utilities
Total General and Administrative Expenses

Total Expenditures
Change In Net Assets
+ Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Created on 06/05/2024, 8:45 AM PST

Actual Budget Budget Diff
21,616.12 23,417.46 1,801.34
21,616.12 23,417.46 1,801.34

0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00
2,210.63 26,528.00 24,317.37
0.00 2,501.00 2,501.00
0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00
0.00 1,240.00 1,240.00
0.00 700.00 700.00
0.00 250.00 250.00
0.00 350.00 350.00
650.00 1,300.00 650.00
2,860.63 35,369.00 32,508.37
1,673.57 21,498.00 19,824.43
1,673.57 21,498.00 19,824.43
26,150.32 80,284.46 54,134.14
0.00 350.00 350.00
6,077.50 100,000.00 93,922.50
0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00
6,077.50 112,350.00 106,272.50
0.00 210.00 210.00
0.00 210.00 210.00
0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

108.36 1,560.00 1,451.64

108.36 1,560.00 1,451.64

108.36 6,770.00 6,661.64
32,336.18 199,404.46 167,068.28

(32,336.18) (199,404.46) (167,068.28)
(549,377.59) 0.00 32,336.18
(581,713.77) (199,404.46) (134,732.10)

Page 10



Water

5 = Reclamation
;;_LE_J— Iistrict

Equipment Replacement

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Long-term Assets
Other Long-term Assets
Total Long-term Assets
Intangible Assets, Net
Amortization
Total Intangible Assets, Net
Investments
Long Term Investments
Total Investments
Total Assets
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Short-term Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Other Short-term Liabilities
Total Short-term Liabilities
Interfund Due to
Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:16 PM PST

BNWRD
Balance Sheet

Year To Date Prior Year To Date

05/31/2024 05/31/2023
Current Year Balance Prior Year Summary
3,488,534.49 4,645,292.58 (1,156,758.09)
209,394.24 209,394.24 0.00
1,303,054.56 1,362,132.39 (59,077.83)
5,000,983.29 6,216,819.21 (1,215,835.92)
316,444.56 316,444.56 0.00
316,444.56 316,444.56 0.00
123,838.79 123,838.79 0.00
(123,838.79) (123,838.79) 0.00
(193.90) (4.67) (189.23)
(193.90) (4.67) (189.23)
5,193,395.16 6,409,420.31 (1,216,025.15)
(38,236.63) 12,993.71 (51,230.34)
1,162,622.96 1,221,700.79 (59,077.83)
1,124,386.33 1,234,694.50 (110,308.17)
37,831.19 37,831.19 0.00
1,162,217.52 1,272,525.69 (110,308.17)
4,031,177.64 5,136,894.62 (1,105,716.98)
5,193,395.16 6,409,420.31 (1,216,025.15)

Page 2



o

Water
Reclamation
IMistrict
_"'"-\-L\_,.J_ sy VT Fd e B BT iy B 8 . 1R b Bt B -
Equipment Replacement

Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget
Year To Date 05/31/2024

Misc Expenses

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:53 PM PST

Actual Budget Budget Diff
Operating Revenue
Revenue - Other
Interest Income 7,219.81 50,000.00 42,780.19
Investment Change 1,058.16 10,000.00 8,941.84
Investment Interest Income 2,093.36 5,000.00 2,906.64
Property Tax 0.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Replacement Tax 122,448.85 600,000.00 477,551.15
Transfer In 0.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
Total Revenue - Other 132,820.18 2,665,000.00 2,532,179.82
Total Operating Revenue 132,820.18 2,665,000.00 2,532,179.82
Expenditures
Service Contracts
Bank 938.16 4,700.00 3,761.84
Total Service Contracts 938.16 4,700.00 3,761.84
Project Expense
Facilities
4" Portable Pump 0.00 84,000.00 84,000.00
Actuator 5,967.00 25,000.00 19,033.00
ARC Flash PPE 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
Building Maintenance 3,493.00 125,000.00 121,507.00
Computer Upgrades 10,681.23 240,000.00 229,318.77
Driveway & Concrete Repairs 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
Fixed Film System Repair 0.00 12,000.00 12,000.00
Flow Monitor Maintenance 0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00
Forklift 0.00 34,000.00 34,000.00
GEVPS VFD Replacement 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
Grit Cleanout 0.00 175,000.00 175,000.00
Headworks Components 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
Landscaping 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
LKPS Control Structure Rehab 0.00 353,500.00 353,500.00
Mowing Equipment 0.00 29,000.00 29,000.00
Network Upgrades 34,413.75 0.00 (34,413.75)
Non-Potable System Repairs 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
PLC Upgrade 4,478.72 50,000.00 45,521.28
Process Instrumentation/Sampling 1,424.85 50,000.00 48,575.15
Pumps_EQF 0.00 262,500.00 262,500.00
Safety Equipment 5,929.00 30,000.00 24,071.00
SCADA Misc Programming 672.50 60,000.00 59,327.50
Security Enhancement 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
Sewer Televising 0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
Software 0.00 200,000.00 200,000.00
Store Room Centralization 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00
Tertiary Chemical Treatment 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
Tertiary Filter Media 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00
UV Materials 0.00 135,000.00 135,000.00
Vehicles_EQF 9,526.66 60,000.00 50,473.34
Wheeled Loader 0.00 196,250.00 196,250.00
Total Facilities 76,586.71 2,554,250.00 2,477,663.29

Page 1



Water
5 = Reclamation
;;_LE_J— Iistrict

Equipment Replacement
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget
Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff

Contingency 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
Total Misc Expenses 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
Total General and Administrative Expenses 76,586.71 2,654,250.00 2,577,663.29
Total Expenditures 77,524.87 2,658,950.00 2,581,425.13
Change In Net Assets 55,295.31 6,050.00 (49,245.31)
+ Net Assets - Beginning 3,975,882.33 0.00 (55,295.31)
Net Assets - Ending 4,031,177.64 6,050.00 (104,540.62)

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:53 PM PST Page 2



Water
- Reclamation

;;_:i]- District

Short Term Capital BNWRD

Balance Sheet

Year To Date Prior Year To Date

05/31/2024 05/31/2023
Current Year Balance Prior Year Summary
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,746,873.23 3,198,609.27 548,263.96
Other Current Assets 605,724.00 1,300,000.00 (694,276.00)
Total Current Assets 4,352,597.23 4,498,609.27 (146,012.04)
Investments
Long Term Investments (116.83) (3.52) (113.31)
Total Investments (116.83) (3.52) (113.31)
Total Assets 4,352,480.40 4,498,605.75 (146,125.35)
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Short-term Liabilities
Accounts Payable (2,987.61) 709.59 (3,697.20)
Other Short-term Liabilities 605,724.00 1,300,000.00 (694,276.00)
Total Short-term Liabilities 602,736.39 1,300,709.59 (697,973.20)
Interfund Due to 2,987.61 2,987.61 0.00
Total Liabilities 605,724.00 1,303,697.20 (697,973.20)
Net Assets 3,746,756.40 3,194,908.55 551,847.85
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 4,352,480.40 4,498,605.75 (146,125.35)

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:16 PM PST

Page 3



o

Operating Revenue
Revenue - Other
Interest Income

Investment Change

Investment Interest Income

Property Tax
Transfer In
Total Revenue - Other

Total Operating Revenue
Expenditures
Service Contracts
Bank

Total Service Contracts
Project Expense
Facilities
Electrical System Rehab
Fiber Service
Generator Upgrades
Grant Writing

Interceptor Grit Assessment

Septic Tank Reduction

Tree Removal & Landscaping
Wetlands/Conservation Area

Total Facilities

Misc Expenses
Contingency

Total Misc Expenses

Total General and Administrative Expenses

Total Expenditures
Change In Net Assets
+ Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:54 PM PST

Water
5 Reclamation
£3

IMistrict
_"'-\-t..\_,.J_ i s o, S L 5 ol pl, et

Short Term Capital
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget
Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
11,294.04 75,000.00 63,705.96
634.21 7,000.00 6,365.79
1,248.65 3,000.00 1,751.35
0.00 605,724.00 605,724.00

0.00 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00
13,176.90 2,190,724.00 2,177,547.10
13,176.90 2,190,724.00 2,177,547.10
357.41 2,000.00 1,642.59
357.41 2,000.00 1,642.59
0.00 250,000.00 250,000.00
7,214.01 0.00 (7,214.01)
0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00
3,495.00 25,000.00 21,505.00
0.00 850,000.00 850,000.00

0.00 250,000.00 250,000.00
7,700.00 30,000.00 22,300.00
0.00 90,000.00 90,000.00
18,409.01 1,520,000.00 1,501,590.99
0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00

0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00
18,409.01 1,670,000.00 1,651,590.99
18,766.42 1,672,000.00 1,653,233.58
(5,589.52) 518,724.00 524,313.52
3,752,345.92 0.00 5,589.52
3,746,756.40 518,724.00 529,903.04

Page 1



Water

Nutrient

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Investments
Long Term Investments
Total Investments
Interfund Due from
Total Assets
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Short-term Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Other Short-term Liabilities
Total Short-term Liabilities
Interfund Due to
Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:16 PM PST

Reclamation
S & Iistrict

BNWRD
Balance Sheet

Year To Date Prior Year To Date

05/31/2024 05/31/2023
Current Year Balance Prior Year Summary
4,379,017.73 6,031,895.71 (1,652,877.98)
2,284,131.67 726,535.92 1,557,595.75
6,663,149.40 6,758,431.63 (95,282.23)
(1,309.98) (998.62) (311.36)
(1,309.98) (998.62) (311.36)
4,028,137.37 0.00 4,028,137.37
10,689,976.79 6,757,433.01 3,932,543.78
(1,988.13) 202,095.31 (204,083.44)
2,111,219.67 726,535.92 1,384,683.75
2,109,231.54 928,631.23 1,180,600.31
393,755.22 1,988.13 391,767.09
2,502,986.76 930,619.36 1,572,367.40
8,186,990.03 5,826,813.65 2,360,176.38
10,689,976.79 6,757,433.01 3,932,543.78

Page 4



o

Water
Reclamation
IMistrict

Nutrient

Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget
Year To Date 05/31/2024

Actual Budget Budget Diff
Operating Revenue
Revenue - Other
Interest Income 17,428.56 150,000.00 132,571.44
Investment Change 2,842.44 10,000.00 7,157.56
Investment Interest Income 3,275.54 4,000.00 724.46
Local Borrowing 0.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00
Property Tax 0.00 2,111,219.67 2,111,219.67
Transfer In 0.00 600,000.00 600,000.00
Total Revenue - Other 23,546.54 8,875,219.67 8,851,673.13
Revenue - Services
BNWRD_Permits 28,611.00 400,000.00 371,389.00
BTPWD_Permits 0.00 16,000.00 16,000.00
City of Bloomington_Permits 17,850.00 184,000.00 166,150.00
Town of Normal_Permits 17,850.00 184,000.00 166,150.00
Village of Downs_Permits 0.00 16,000.00 16,000.00
Total Revenue - Services 64,311.00 800,000.00 735,689.00
Total Operating Revenue 87,857.54 9,675,219.67 9,587,362.13
Expenditures
Service Contracts
Bank 984.10 4,500.00 3,515.90
Total Service Contracts 984.10 4,500.00 3,515.90
Project Expense
Facilities
Goose Creek NUT 4,498.75 25,000.00 20,501.25
Hydraulic Modeling 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
Interstate Regionalization 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
Lobbyist 4,000.00 48,000.00 44,000.00
Meadows Regionalization 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
NARP 0.00 65,000.00 65,000.00
Nutrient Sensor 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
OPPI Insurance 0.00 200,000.00 200,000.00
Park & Green Infrastructure 0.00 125,000.00 125,000.00
Plant 1 Headworks 0.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00
PLC Upgrades_NUT 19,412.50 250,000.00 230,587.50
Sugar Creek_NUT 335.00 130,000.00 129,665.00
Total Facilities 28,246.25 7,003,000.00 6,974,753.75
Misc Expenses
Contingency 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Total Misc Expenses 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
Total General and Administrative Expenses 28,246.25 7,018,000.00 6,989,753.75
Total Expenditures 29,230.35 7,022,500.00 6,993,269.65
Change In Net Assets 58,627.19 2,652,719.67 2,594,092.48
+ Net Assets - Beginning 8,128,362.84 0.00 (58,627.19)
Net Assets - Ending 8,186,990.03 2,652,719.67 2,535,465.29

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:55 PM PST

Page 1



Water

5 = Reclamation
:-*:“t..E.J_ Iistrict

IEPA Loan Retirement

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Loans Receivable
Interfund Due from
Total Assets
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Short-term Liabilities
Other Short-term Liabilities
Total Short-term Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Other Long-term Liabilities
Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:16 PM PST

BNWRD

Balance Sheet

Year To Date Prior Year To Date

05/31/2024 05/31/2023
Current Year Balance Prior Year Summary
308,868.86 243,561.15 65,307.71
964,916.49 988,638.80 (23,722.31)
1,273,785.35 1,232,199.95 41,585.40
2,706,140.51 3,537,563.99 (831,423.48)
2,478,966.29 0.00 2,478,966.29
6,458,892.15 4,769,763.94 1,689,128.21
979,939.33 1,012,477.96 (32,538.63)
979,939.33 1,012,477.96 (32,538.63)
5,981,067.35 8,185,752.30 (2,204,684.95)
5,981,067.35 8,185,752.30 (2,204,684.95)
6,961,006.68 9,198,230.26 (2,237,223.58)
(502,114 .53) (4,428,466.32) 3,926,351.79
6,458,892.15 4,769,763.94 1,689,128.21

Page 5



o

IMistrict
_"'-\-t..\_,.J_ sy T F i B BT ey AT . 1R b

Water
Reclamation

IEPA Loan Retirement
Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget

Year To Date 05/31/2024

Operating Revenue
Revenue - Other
CSO Loan
Interest Income
Property Tax
Total Revenue - Other

Total Operating Revenue
Expenditures
Service Contracts
Bank

Total Service Contracts
Project Expense
Debt Service
EPA Loan 2499 - CSO Phase |
EPA Loan 2613 - CSO Phase 2/3
EPA Loan 2784 - UltraViolet
Total Debt Service
Total General and Administrative Expenses

Total Expenditures
Change In Net Assets
+ Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:57 PM PST

Actual Budget Budget Diff

0.00 831,423.50 831,423.50

782.33 9,000.00 8,217.67

0.00 964,916.49 964,916.49

782.33 1,805,339.99 1,804,557.66
782.33 1,805,339.99 1,804,557.66
13.29 156.00 142.71

13.29 156.00 142.71

0.00 339,838.00 339,838.00

0.00 1,045,868.00 1,045,868.00

0.00 410,634.00 410,634.00

0.00 1,796,340.00 1,796,340.00

0.00 1,796,340.00 1,796,340.00

13.29 1,796,496.00 1,796,482.71
769.04 8,843.99 8,074.95
(502,883.57) 0.00 (769.04)
(502,114.53) 8,843.99 7,305.91

Page 1



Water
Reclamation

;;_:i]- District

WIFIA BNWRD
Balance Sheet

Year To Date Prior Year To Date

05/31/2024 05/31/2023
Current Year Balance Prior Year Summary
Assets
Interfund Due from 391,767.09 0.00 391,767.09
Total Assets 391,767.09 0.00 391,767.09
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Interfund Due to 4,028,467.37 0.00 4,028,467.37
Total Liabilities 4,028,467.37 0.00 4,028,467.37
Net Assets (3,636,700.28) 0.00 (3,636,700.28)
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 391,767.09 0.00 391,767.09

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:16 PM PST Page 8



o

Water
Reclamation

IMistrict
_"'"-\-L\_,.J_ sy VT Fd e B BT iy B 8 . 1R b Bt B

Statement of Activities - Actual vs Budget
Year To Date 05/31/2024

Operating Revenue

Revenue - Other
Congressional Directed Spending
Interest Income
Local Borrowing
McLean County
State Revolving Loan Fund

Total Revenue - Other

Total Operating Revenue
Expenditures
Service Contracts
Application Fee

Total Service Contracts
Project Expense
Facilities
51" Sewer Lining
Autozone CSO #13 Design
CHP Construction
CIPP Lining Projects
Clearview SD Consolidation
Digester Improvements
East Side Interceptor
Far West Sewer
Generator
Northwest Interceptor Design
Plant 3 Headworks Design
SE Nutrient Upgrade Designs
Southeast Plant Construction
W Nutrient Upgrade Designs
West Branch Sewer
West Thickening & Dewatering Design
Wood Street Design
Total Facilities
Total General and Administrative Expenses

Total Expenditures
Change In Net Assets
+ Net Assets - Beginning

Net Assets - Ending

Created on 06/04/2024, 12:58 PM PST

Actual Budget Budget Diff
0.00 1,264,000.00 1,264,000.00
0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00
0.00 27,305,000.00 27,305,000.00
0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00
0.00 26,000,000.00 26,000,000.00
0.00 54,606,500.00 54,606,500.00
0.00 54,606,500.00 54,606,500.00
0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00
0.00 863,675.00 863,675.00
0.00 550,000.00 550,000.00
0.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
0.00 40,000.00 40,000.00
0.00 1,350,000.00 1,350,000.00
0.00 1,600,000.00 1,600,000.00
0.00 5,553,975.00 5,553,975.00
0.00 863,675.00 863,675.00
0.00 55,000.00 55,000.00
0.00 715,000.00 715,000.00
0.00 650,000.00 650,000.00
0.00 75,000.00 75,000.00
0.00 26,750,000.00 26,750,000.00
0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
0.00 863,675.00 863,675.00
0.00 175,000.00 175,000.00
0.00 70,000.00 70,000.00
0.00 42,275,000.00 42,275,000.00
0.00 42,275,000.00 42,275,000.00
0.00 42,290,000.00 42,290,000.00
0.00 12,316,500.00 12,316,500.00

(3,636,700.28)
(3,636,700.28)

0.00
12,316,500.00

0.00
12,316,500.00

Page 1



Bloomington and Normal

Water
" 1 Reclamation
¢ District

This Page is Intentionally Left Blank




REPORTS




This Page Intentionally Left Blank



To: Tim Ervin, Executive Director
From: Josh Stevens, Director of Operations and Maintenance
Subject: June 2024 Operations Report

The West and Southeast Plant (SE Plant) were both in full compliance with NPDES Permit
effluent limits during May 2024. This report includes data on key performance indicators and a
few relevant Operational updates.

¢ Filter media maintenance with hydrogen peroxide treatments were completed by staff on
the final cell at the SE Plant tertiary filter building.

e Preventative maintenance work was performed by an S&C Electric Company technician
on the pad mounted automatic transfer switch (ATS) for the SE Plant backup generator.
Upon completion of the work and subsequent testing of the equipment, it was determined
that the control unit for the ATS was not operating properly and in need of replacement.
Staff are working to procure replacement parts to correct the issue as promptly as possible.

e Operations filled a vacant position with the hiring of Johnathon Warren as a new full time
operator as well as welcoming Illinois Wesleyan student Cole Faivre as an Operations
Intern for the summer.

West Plant Flows
250 1333 232
e B
20.0 -
=) 155 14.7
O 150 -
2
3
O 100 -
(¥
[=]0]
>
<
> 5.0 -
<
=)
c
o
E 0.0 n T T T T T T T T T T T
* * * * ™ * * * * ™ * *
C\,‘\' d,‘\« &,'\' i\\ﬁ' ’5\,'\' (&,‘L & é’,'\' éﬁ' e}f\' éﬂ' éﬁ'
F F¥ & ¥ N @ F &S
& 3 N & X < <
v & L I
E3 9
mmmm Monthly Avg Flow (MGD) = == Design Avg Flow (MGD)




West Plant Effluent Total Suspended Solids

14.0

+ N
o
- N
o™
- N
on
< N
o
©
(o]
L
S o 9o o o o 9
N o oo v @< 4« @O
—

(1/8w) ss1 8ay Ajyauony

= = = NPDES Limit (mg/L)

mmmm Monthly Avg (mg/L)

West Plant Effluent Ammonia Nitrogen

b
~»
"
< L
~»
~4
]
] L
]
\
N\
N L
N\
N
N
4
P4
P
7 i
g
‘ i
| b
] L
| o
S
- —
] o i
+! aql |
o’ ©
Cd -
4
C 4 (Vo)
1~ <
=]
A2
™~
-
T T
o o o o o o o o
Qo n ) n < n ) n Q
< on o o — — o o

o
S
o™
e

(1/8w) N-eluowwy Say Ajyuow

= == NPDES Limit (mg/L)

s Monthly Avg (mg/L)




West Plant Effluent Carbonaceous BOD

4.1

33

B Monthly Avg (mg/L)

12.0

Q
o
-

Q
o

Q
©

(1/8w) aogd Sav Alyauo

- = = NPDES Limit (mg/L)

West Plant Effluent Fecal Coliform

66

450
400

o o o o o o
LN o LN o LN o
o [37] o~ N — —

(JwoOT/sa1uojodi)

wJ04110) |e234 Xe Ajied

50
0

= == NPDES Limit (mg/L)

B Daily Max (mg/L)




West Plant Effluent Dissolved Oxygen

ﬁ?‘

“(/3w

e o <o e o o <o Q9
N U6 un & o o 9« o

) uadAxQ panjossiqg uilAl Ajleg

= == NPDES Limit (mg/L)

B Daily Min (mg/L)

Southeast Plant Flows

|
- -
|
|
| L
|
|
|
! :
|
|
- -
|
|
| L
|
|
|
_ :
|
|
] -
! ™
V(3 ——
| L
.
L] I —
- -
: * I
] <
] -
- (o]
| o —
_ I
|
'
©
T T T T T T
Q Q Q Q Q Q < Q
~ O n < o (g} — o

(@aon) moy4 Say Ajyauown

= == Design Avg Flow (MGD)

s Monthly Avg Volume Treated (MGD)




Southeast Plant Effluent Total Suspended Solids

2.1

1.9

1.7

1.4

1.5

14

o~ o 0 (] < o~

(1/8w) ss1 Sav Ajyauo

i N

0

= == EPA Limit (mg/L)

mmmm Monthly Avg (mg/L)

Southeast Plant Effluent Ammonia Nitrogen

-

-

' d

VNeoeoeoaoaooaow

0.06 0.07

0.05

0.07
I

0.08
—

n 3]

L

o

n

i

n o

(1/8w) N-eluowwy SAy Ajyauon

= == EPA Limit (mg/L)

s Monthly Avg (mg/L)




Southeast Plant Effluent Carbonaceous BOD

= == EPA Limit (mg/L)

B Monthly Geometric Mean (mg/L)

12.0

&
nv,
L &z@ m
% ()
& X =
% 2 o
\As oY) (@)
DN 040 £ —_—
T, v o ©
voé m 1
S - +
o B @ S
o
L nvx.vv ® “ 3
% e
, L
) = -
o 3| B
¥ £
o, &= -
o I QQ\. ¥ P
S I R
L /S > ©
o *» £ &£
S e 2 £
i «A\ow s S
o
S N — n
- %,
.
- %
2,
" J &R s 9 o o @
Z Q S 9 S ¥
T T mvo
%,
S 2 2 3 2 3 s :an\mo_co_ouwv
(1/8w) aog)d 8ay Ajyauow wii1041]0) [ed34 XeAl Ajted




Southeast Plant Effluent Dissolved Oxygen

[e)]

) uadAxQ panjossiqg uilAl Ajleg

- == EPA Limit (mg/L)

B Daily Min (mg/L)




BNWRD Weather Station-Precipitation

9.00

8.00

7.00
c
= 6.00
2
(8}
o
o 5.00
©
‘6
= 200 379

. 3.6
= 346 52
s
€
o 3.00
=
2.01
2.00
1.00
045
18.1
0.00 ZI
A’ d’ \\ﬁ?‘ '%’ ~\' zﬁy \An’b‘ \.ﬁ?‘ kﬂy an'v «ﬂ?‘ «:‘?‘
& Q ? S ) ) ) )
SR A O A A - A
2 ) 2\ ¥ ) & e )
N e xS o K\ s
A\ Q o 2
%2 Q Q

B West Plant Total Precip (in) = GEVPS Total Precip (in) B SE Plant Total Precip (in) B LKPS Total Precip (in)



2709 McGraw Drive

Farnsworth Soomingln, 1o 61704
GROUP

www.f-w.com

June 10, 2024

Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation District
Attention: Tim Ervin, Executive Director

2015 West Oakland Avenue,

Bloomington, IL61701

Subject: June 2024 Engineering Project Status Report
Dear Tim:
Following is an Engineering Projects monthly status summary.

1. SEWWTP Biological Phosphorus Removal Improvements
a. Attached Project Status Report

2. (€SO 13 Design and Permitting — Phase | & 2 (Task Order 2023-6)
a. IEPA and Union Pacific RR Construction Permit Application Package Submitted to respective
permits sections.
b. 75% Progress Plans submitted to District for review on May 13, 2024.

3. SEWWTP 3" Digester Feasibility Study (Task Order 2024-2)
a. Draft Feasibility Study submitted to District for review and comment on June 4, 2024.

4. SCADA Improvements (Task Order 2023-7)
a. GE Valley Panel Installed. Panel As-Builts submitted to District on May 30, 2024, for review.
b. Progress Coordination Meeting scheduled June 13, 2024.

5. Northwest Interceptor Sewer
a. Easement Documentation for West Plant to Golf Learning Center submitted to District on
May 30, 2024, for District Counsel execution.
b. Engineering Service Agreement Amendment #1 for Bid Ready Construction Documents for
Alignment between West Plant to Golf Learning Center submitted for District approval.

6. Interceptor Sewer Rehabilitation — West, Far West; 51”; and Eastside Interceptor Branches (Task Order
2023-3)

a. |Initial preparation phase on West, Far West and 51” Cargill branches is complete. Lining is to
start in the second half of June on West Branch first. Lining schedule likely to alternate
between West and Far West branches depending on weather, flows, bypass options. Cargill
51” Branch to happen during shut down period, July 12" - 26",

b. Initial evaluations have discovered additional required repairs and some recommended
improvements.

c. Eastside Interceptor Lining - SAK to start following the 2024 harvest season.

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | SURVEYORS | SCIENTISTS



Bloomington & Normal Water Reclamation District
June 10, 2024
Page 2 of 2

7. Interceptor Grit Assessment Phase 2 (Task Order 2023-8)
a. Hoerr planning to begin Grit Evaluation in July 2024.

8. GE Valley Generator Replacement
a. 50% Progress Plans submitted to District for review May 6, 2024.
b. District comments to be submitted to FGI on June 7, 2024.

9. CSO Lagoon Ameren Service Improvements
a. 50% Progress Plans submitted to District for review May 6, 2024.
b. District comments to be submitted to FGI on June 7, 2024.

10. North Normal Service Corridor
a. 50% Lift Station Progress Plans submitted to District for review on April 26, 2024.

11. West WWTP Lab Building HVAC Improvements
a. Progress Coordination Meeting held on May 22, 2024.
b. Progress Review Set of Plans delivered to District by July 31, 2024

12. West WWTP Plant (#1/#3) Planning and Design
a. WWWTP Project Phasing Exhibit Provided for District Review.

Sincerely,

FARNSWORTH GROUP, INC.

Z a/&/__

Zach Knight, P.E.
Engineering Manager

cc: Elizabeth Megli
Robert Kohlhase



é Farnsworth

GROUP

BNWRD SEWWTP Biological Phosphorus Removal

To: Tim Ervin and BNWRD District Board of Trustees
From: Zach Knight, PE/ Bob Kohlhase

Date: June 10, 2024

Subject: Progress Update for May/June 2024

IEPA LOAN DISBURSEMENTS
« Disbursement #1 for $2,107,152.23 approved by IEPA on May 23, 2024.
e Disbursement #2 for $2,794,643.88 submitted to IEPA on May 31, 2024.

PROJECT SHORT TERM SCHEDULE (MAY/JUNE 2024)
» Aeration Basin Expansion — Excavation and installation of rock base. Forming to begin.
» Chemical Feed Building — Installation of concrete floor slab and equipment pads.
» Supplemental Influent Pump Station — Excavation, installation of sheet piling for additional excavation
before concrete base slab poured.

» Storage Building — Concrete floor slab completed. Block work to beginning.

RECENT PROGRESS/ACHIEVEMENTS

« NEW CHEMICAL FEED BUILDING - Concrete Slab Installed.

2709 McGraw Drive | Bloomington, IL 61704 | 0 309.663.8435 | www.f-w.com

ENGINEERS | ARCHITECTS | SURVEYORS | SCIENTISTS



Farnsworth Group, Inc.
BNWRD SEWWTP Progress Report
Page 2 of 3

« NEW STORAGE BUILDING — Concrete Slab Installed




Farnsworth Group, Inc.
BNWRD SEWWTP Progress Report
Page 3 of 3

* AERATION BASIN EXPANSION — Excavation and Rock Base Ongoing

2024/06/704 09:32




Bloomington and Normal

Water
" 1 Reclamation
¢ District

This Page is Intentionally Left Blank




Bloomington Normal Water Reclam. Dist.

BAXTER/ " 'WOODMAN

Client Manager:
Derek Wold
dwold@baxterwoodman.com

Project Status Report Issued On: 6/3/2024

Project Title/Job Project Description Project Manager Tasks Completed This Period Milestones Next Period/ Non-Scope Work Estimated
Due Date Completion
Grant Writing Services Engineering services to Mark Gockowski None. WIFIA support as requested. 12/31/2024
Job Number: [0220582.30] identify funding 815-444-4960 None
opportunities compatible mgockowski@baxterwoodman.c
with projects identified by om
the District, determine
application requirements,
and prepare applications for
funding assistance.
Arc Flash Study - Bloomington Assist the District with Keith Bosecker One line drawings provided to district. Final West Plant review to be 7/30/2024
Normal Water Reclamation preparing and Electrical Study 815-444-4428 Remote site studies reviewed B&W and completed and label order will follow.
District that will include a Short- kbosecker@goconcentric.com edited by Schneider. Currently finalizing
Job Number: [0220585.40] Circuit Study, a Protective label proofs to order.
Device Coordination Study,
and an Arc Flash Hazard
Analysis.
General Engineering Assistance General engineering Brent Perz -Project 08: Provide automation support 12/31/2024
Job Number: [0221506.00] assistance for work requested 815-444-4403 -Project 07: Coordination invoicing. as needed. -Project 08: None.
on an as needed basis. bperz@baxterwoodman.com -Project 08: Complete SD-WAN Planning -Project 13: Coordination of Grant -Project 12: None
Meeting Submittal. -Project 13: None
- Project 08: Automation -PI’OJ:ECt 12: None. . -PI’OJ:ECt 14: None -PI’OJ:ECt 14: None
-Project 13: Final 319 grant preparation and  -Project 15: None. -Project 15: None
Support submittal. -Project 16: Provide assistance as -Project 16: None
- Project 12: Funding -Project 14: None. needed on capital projects. -Project 17: None
Assistance - -Project 15: None. -Project 19: Prepare grant. -Project 18: None
Project 13: Goose Creek 31 -Project 16: None. -Project 19: None
Grant Assistance - -Project 17: None.
Project 14: Sugar Creek -Project 18: None.

-Project 19: Prepare narrative, fill out Change
Grant, and review selected strategies &
outcomes.

Greenway Vision Plan -
Project 15: Poster Assistance
-16: Capital Project Support

- Project 17: Sugar Creek
Greenway Phase 2 -
Project 18: ISI Envision -
Project 19: Community
Change Grant

Page: 10f 1 ( Run Date: 6/3/2024 2:13:24 PM ) Project Number Sort



Plant 1 Headworks
Construction Services
Job Number: [0222042.60]

Goose Creek Assessment
Job Number: [0222541.30]

Plant 3 Headworks Design
Job Number: [0230285.00]

Digester & CHP Improvements
Job Number: [0230391.00]

Page: 1of 1 ( Run Date: 6/3/2024 2:13:24 PM )

Const. Engineering assistance Reggie Jansen Project Initiation Tasks, Preconstruction

for the West WWTP 815-444-3391 Meeting, begin Submittal Review.
Headworks Rehab Desing rjansen@baxterwoodman.com

Project.

Perform an assessment of the Matt Moffitt N/A

Goose Creek Tributary. 815-444-4470

identify the priority problem mmoffitt@baxterwoodman.com
areas and conceptual level

improvements with estimates

of probable costs to assist

with obtaining grant funding.

Make improvements to the Mark Gockowski Complete the Client Kick Off Meeting

Plant 3 Headworks Screen ~ 815-444-49560 (5/6/24).
and Grit Removal Building. mgockowski@baxterwoodman.c Initiate survey and geotechnical work.

. . om
The improvements will

replace aging infrastructure,
improve process efficiencies,
increase hydraulic capacity
and improve O&M.

The Project includes design ~ Amanda Streicher Design Meeting #3 (Equipment Selection
engineering services for the ~ 815-444-3373 Review). Design Meeting #4 (Site Grading &
rehabilitation of existing astreicher@baxterwoodman.com Layout). Continue with Procurement specs,
primary anaerobic digester back-checks for 30% design and updates for
cover modifications 60% deliverables. Coordination on grant

)

funding opportunities.
repair/replacement of
secondary anaerobic digester
gas holder cover, mixing and
heating systems, a new
HSW/FOG receiving station,
CHP Generator, Vactor
receiving station, and a new
third anaerobic digester with
gas holder cover, mixing and
heating systems, and
pumping system.

Project Number Sort

General Construction Administration,
Submittal Review, Part-time Field
Observation

Work on 319 application of Goose Creek N/A

Progress design concepts for
screenings/grit.

Begin hydraulic evaluations.

Hold Design Meeting #5 for
Architectural / Structural Review, #6 for
Transportation Access Drives, and #7 for
HVAC, Plumbing & Safety Systems.
Finalize Procurement Specs, Prepare
60% plans, specs, EOPC.

9/28/2025

7/28/2024

7/1/2025

7/23/2025



Clearview Pump Station and
Force Main
Job Number: [2325150.00]

Meadows and Interstate
Regionalization Study
Job Number: [2325790.00]

Goose Creek Parcel NRI
Job Number: [2400385.00]

Bike and Pedestrian Plan
Job Number: [2400520.00]

Sugar Creek Trail Funding
Research
Job Number: [2400522.00]

Goose Creek Federal Earmark
Assistance
Job Number: [2400523.00]

Page: 10of 1

Prepare project plans for
Phase 1 of the Clearview
Sanitary District
Consolidation and submit to
|IEPA for approval as part of
application for funding.
Clearview Sanitary District
Consolidation: Pump Station
and Force main design and
sanitary sewer rehabilitation.
Provide IEPA loan assistance
for the Clearview Sanitary
District consolidation.

This project is the first phase
of consolidating the
Meadows of Bloomington
and Interstate Plaza, located
just south of the interchange
at US 51 (Main St) and I-74,
into the Bloomington Normal
Water Reclamation District
Service Area.

Conduct a Natural Resource

Shane Firsching
815-444-3395
sfirsching@baxterwoodman.com

Shane Firsching
815-444-3395
sfirsching@baxterwoodman.com

Cecily Cunz

Inventory (NRI) and develop a 815-444-4440

Ecological
Restoration/Stewardship
Plan.

Develop a Bike and
Pedestrian Plan for the
western portion part

of Bloomington and Normal,
IL, including and adjacent to
the Bloomington Normal
Water

Reclamation District
(BNWRD) properties.

Research potential funding
opportunities for the Sugar
Creek Trail project in
Bloomington, IL.

Assist with procuring Federal
Earmark funding for the
Goose Creek project in
Bloomington, IL.

( Run Date: 6/3/2024 2:13:24 PM )

ccunz@baxterwoodman.com

Cecily Cunz
815-444-4440
ccunz@baxterwoodman.com

Cecily Cunz
815-444-4440
ccunz@baxterwoodman.com

Cecily Cunz
815-444-4440
ccunz@baxterwoodman.com

Pumping station and force main preliminary
design complete; Wrapping up permit
drawings and specifications; Submitted IHPA
permit application; Submitted IDOT and IEPA
permit applications; Submitted gas service
application; coordinating with Ameren on
cost of extend 3 phase power to the site;
generator and controls design in progress.

Coordinated with Hoerr Construction and
Meadows of Bloomington on upcoming
sanitary sewer cleaning and TV inspections.
Prepare route study and evaluation of PE
demographics.

Completed NRI, and draft report

Baseline data gathering, mapping and
analysis

Held kickoff, started grant research

Submitted to Duckworth and Sorenson, also
authorized to prepare FEMA HMGP grant
application

Project Number Sort

Complete structural design after soil
borings completed; receive IDOT permit
application; receive IHPA signoff;
receive |[EPA permit; prepare contract
and bidding documents.

Perform sanitary sewer TV inspections.
Review existing data and records.
Perform route study and evaluate
alternatives.

Prepare Memo Report.

Present NRI to client None

Internal review, prepare draft report for none
client

research various grant none
opportunities/deadlines/details, draft
report for client

Submit project to FEMA HMGP, add none
project to McLean Co Hazard Mitigation
Plan

None.

None.

Present NRI to client

Prepare draft report and set
meeting to present to client

continue grant research,
prepare draft report for
client

Submit project to FEMA
HMGP, add project to
MclLean Co Hazard
Mitigation Plan

9/30/2024

7/31/2024

7/30/2024

7/20/2024

7/28/2024

7/30/2024



Gl Park Near West Plant
Job Number: [2400544.00]

Green Infrastructure Park
Job Number: [2400544.01]

WWWTP Hydrocyclone Pilot
Job Number: [2400822.00]

NARP Review
Job Number: [2400942.00]

Completed Projects

Facilitate a conceptual design Cecily Cunz
of a Green Infrastructure Park 815-444-4440
near the West WWTP. ccunz@baxterwoodman.com

The purpose of this Project is Cecily Cunz

to facilitate a conceptual 815-444-4440

design of a Green ccunz@baxterwoodman.com
Infrastructure Park near

Bloomington-Normal Water

Reclamation District’s

(BNWRD) West Plant in

Bloomington, IL.

Evaluate the hydrocyclone Mark Gockowski
technology with a pilot, that  815-444-4960
is proposed to be
implemented at scale as part
of the upcoming Liquid
Process Conversion project.

Assist BNWRD in NARP review Mark Gockowski
for West WWTP. 815-444-4960

mgockowski@baxterwoodman.c

om

mgockowski@baxterwoodman.c

performed by subs, sent to Tim

Received the signed ESA 5/20/2024.

completed full proposal, including work to be Tim presents full proposal to board on  none Await board response
May 20th
Schedule topographic survey. None.
Execute rental contracts. None

Initiated design for pilot.
Vendor coordination.

Complete draft NARP review

Prepare operational plan.
Prepare sampling plan.

Meet with consultant to discuss review None.
comments.

7/31/2024

8/31/2024

1/1/2025

5/31/2024

Project Title/Job Project Description Project Manager Tasks Completed This Period Milestones Next Period/ Non-Scope Wo Action Items Completion
Due Date

Biogas Utilization Report
Job Number: [0220584.30]

U Survey 2021
Job Number: [0202173.30]

Ordinance and ERP Update
Job Number: [0210427.30]

Page: 1of 1 ( Run Date: 6/3/2024 2:13:24 PM )

Assist the District with Brent Perz

determining the existing 815-444-4403

anaerobic digester biogas bperz@baxterwoodman.com
characteristics and potential

to increase biogas

production. We will evaluate

the available equipment to

utilize the biogas and the

benefits provided to the

District.

Assistance with the BNWRD  Jennifer Sorensen
Pretreatment Program annual 815-444-3248
industrial user
inventory/survey
requirement of their NPDES
Permits.

Assistance with updating the Jennifer Sorensen
existing sewer use and 815-444-3248
pretreatment Ordinance and
the pretreatment program
Enforcement Response Plan.

jsorensen@baxterwoodman.com

jsorensen@baxterwoodman.com

Project Number Sort

3/1/2023

5/8/2023

4/13/2023



PT Program Assistance 2022-
2023
Job Number: [0212409.30]

Rivian Classification Asst
Job Number: [0202109.30]

Collection System Modeling -
Phase |
Job Number: [0221342.30]

Assist the District with
improvements to and
implementation of its
pretreatment program for
the 2022 calendar year.
Improvements and
implementation of program
components will include both
routine (Annual Pretreatment
Report, Program Forms,
Compliance Assistance,
Enforcement Assistance,
monthly meetings with
District Staff), and periodic,
non-annual elements (IU
permit renewals, trucked
waste permits, brewery
discharge permits, biennial
spill-slug load plan reviews,
and IU Pretreatment Program
Training).

Jennifer Sorensen

jsorensen@baxterwoodman.com

Assist the District in collecting Nichie Schaeffer

and evaluating process
descriptions and facility
information to facilitate the
classification of or ruling out
of any additional categorical
processes.

The overall objective of Phase Matt Moffitt

nschaeffer@baxterwoodman.co

| Collection System Modeling 815-444-4470

Project is to create a
hydraulic model of the
District’s wastewater
collection system; including
interceptors, pump stations,
and force mains.

mmoffitt@baxterwoodman.com

Network Project Phase 2 - PO # Implement the configuration Doug Swanson

WM 2023-48
Job Number: [2325964.00]

Page: 1of 1 ( Run Date: 6/3/2024 2:13:24 PM )

and monitoring of the
primary route (fiber) and
failover upon
communications loss to the
secondary route (cellular)
using a firewall at each
location.

dswanson@goconcentric.com

Project Number Sort

5/12/2023

11/16/2022

10/30/2023

10/17/2023



Network Project Ph3
Job Number: [2325973.00]

Network Project Ph4
Job Number: [2326213.00]

West WWTP Headwork Rehab
Job Number: [0222042.40]

PDOP Modifications
Job Number: [0220615.30]

2023-24 Pretreatment
Program Assistance
Job Number: [0230365.00]

Implement the configuration Keith Bosecker

and monitoring of the 815-444-4428

primary route (fiber) and kbosecker@goconcentric.com
failover upon

communications loss to the

secondary route (cellular)

using a firewall at each

location.

This phase will add SCADA Keith Bosecker
monitoring of the network ~ 815-444-4428
routes to the remote sites, kbosecker@goconcentric.com
created in previous phases,

and alarm the operator both

in iFix and through Win911 of

a route failure.

Make improvements to the  Mark Gockowski
Plant 1 Headworks Screen 815-444-4960

and Grit Removal Building. mgockowski@baxterwoodman.c
The improvements will om

replace aging infrastructure,

improve process efficiencies,

increase hydraulic capacity

and improve O&M.

This study will review the Brent Perz

Phosphorus Discharge 815-444-4403

Optimization Plans (PDOP) bperz@baxterwoodman.com
previously submitted for the

West STP (1L0027731) and the

Southeast WWTP

(ILO073504). Provide a

Phosphorus Feasibility (P-

Feas.) Study is required per

the Special Condition 19 for

the West STP NPDES Permit.

Assist the District with Jennifer Sorensen
improvements to and 815-444-3248
implementation of its jsorensen@baxterwoodman.com

pretreatment program for
the 2023 calendar year.

Page: 1of 1 ( Run Date: 6/3/2024 2:13:24 PM ) Project Number Sort

11/6/2023

2/29/2024

3/26/2024

3/30/2024

4/30/2024



West WWTP Master Plan The West WWTP Master Plan Brent Perz
Job Number: [0230383.30] will provide guidance and 815-444-4403
recommendations to the bperz@baxterwoodman.com

4/30/2024

District to implement,
focusing on future treatment
processes to meet future
effluent limits, providing a
path to energy neutrality,
solar feasibility assessment,
hydraulics review and funding
options.

Page: 1of 1 ( Run Date: 6/3/2024 2:13:24 PM ) Project Number Sort



Bloomington and Normal

Water
" 1 Reclamation
¢ District

This Page is Intentionally Left Blank




Bloomington-Normal
Water Reclamation District

Annual Farm Report Heartland
April 30, 2024 Bank .

Agricultural Services




BLOOMINGTON-NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT

Farm Report - June 10, 2024

2024 Crop Plantings

Corn Soybeans Wheat
Shirley Farm 71.26 n/a n/a
2023 Farm Lease
Base Rent: $250.00 per acre
Bonus Rent: $67.98 per acre

Total:

2024 Farm Lease

$317.98 per acre

Base Rent: $250.00 per acre
Bonus Rent: TBD  peracre
Total: per acre

Current Farm Activities

Shirley:

Ag News:

The tillable fields have been planted to corn for 2024, and the crop is developing
well. The Fitzgeralds have also assisted with the food plots, planting
approximately 4.5 acres in two locations at the Shirley Farm. The District will
reimburse the Fitzgeralds for their cost as well as for the input expense. The
enclosed financial report is the final statement that will show both crop sales
income and cash rent income. The first installment of 2024 cash rent was paid
promptly.

Planting progress got off to a slow start in Central lllinois, but the weekends of
Mother's Day and the following weekend offered good windows for planting
weather. The percentage of corn planted jumped nearly 50% during those
weekend timeframes. Since planting, we've received several timely rains to keep
the crop in good condition. Acreage reporting will take place from now until July
15th, when an accurate indication of planted acres will be known.

A major market driver has been planting progress throughout the Midwest, as well
as the condition and size of the Brazilian crop. Levels of ending stocks remain
strong domestically, and the South American soybean crop could be a record. A
La Nina event is developing which often produces drought conditions in Argentina.
2024 Farm Bill discussions are underway, but it is unlikely that any legislation will
be voted on by the current September deadline.



Al Heartland
Ban, and Trust

Company

Agricultural Services

Heartland Bank and Trust Company
Income Statement - Period vs. YTD
BNWR PRIMARY (BNWRO00002)
05/01/2023 to 04/30/2024

Income
Land Cash Rent
Corn Sales
Soybean Sales
Interest

Total Income

Expense
Grain Check Off

Grain Storage
Real Estate Taxes
Farm Management Fee

Total Expense

Total Net Income

Cash Flow Summary
Beginning Cash
Receipts
Operating Expenses

Ending Balance

Period YTD
$31,059.88 $31,059.88
$9,945.28 $9,945.28
$8,356.68 $8,356.68
$2,367.52 $2,367.52
$51,729.36 $51,729.36
$59.01 $59.01
$1,517.61 $1,517.61
$7,567.78 $7,567.78
$3,620.98 $3,620.98
$12,765.38 $12,765.38
$38,963.98 $38,963.98
$34,085.34 $34,085.34
$51,729.36 $51,729.36
($12,765.38) ($12,765.38)
$73,049.32 $73,049.32

Printed on 05/07/2024

Page 1 of 2



Heartland HEARTLAND BANK AND TRUST COMPANY
i Bank @i TRANSACTION JOURNAL BY FARM

Agricultural Services

FOR FARM: BNWR PRIMARY

FOR PERIOD 05/01/2023 THRU 04/30/2024

Farm No. BNWR00002 BNWR PRIMARY

DATE

RECEIVED FROM OR PAID TO

CHECK #

RECEIVED

PAID

BALANCE

05/01/2023

05/10/2023

05/10/2023

05/17/2023

06/07/2023

06/07/2023

07/12/2023

07/12/2023

07/12/2023

07/13/2023

07/13/2023

08/04/2023

08/04/2023

Beginning Bank Balance

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

MCLEAN COUNTY COLLECTOR

BNWR0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD
Real Estate

1ST & 2ND INSTALLMENT RE TAXES

21-32-100-003

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.

BNWR0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD
Cash Sales: Soybeans

556 BU @ 15.03

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.
BNWR0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD
Grain Check Off

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.
BNWR0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD
Grain Storage Expense
HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

$132.16

46975

$127.90

$7,771.72

$109.25

$134.87

$9.25

$7,567.78

$8.95

$41.78

$252.79

$7.64

$9.44

$34,085.34

$34,217.50

$34,208.25

$26,640.47

$26,768.37

$26,759.42

$34,531.14

$34,489.36

$34,236.57

$34,345.82

$34,338.18

$34,473.05

$34,463.61

Printed on 06/06/2024

Page 1 of 5



Al Heartland
Ban, and Trust

Company

Agricultural Services

Farm No. BNWR00002 BNWR PRIMARY

HEARTLAND BANK AND TRUST COMPANY
TRANSACTION JOURNAL BY FARM

FOR FARM: BNWR PRIMARY
FOR PERIOD 05/01/2023 THRU 04/30/2024

DATE

RECEIVED FROM OR PAID TO

CHECK #

RECEIVED

PAID

BALANCE

08/24/2023

08/24/2023

08/24/2023

09/06/2023

09/06/2023

10/04/2023

10/04/2023

11/03/2023

11/03/2023

11/08/2023

11/16/2023

12/06/2023

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.

BNWRO0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD
Cash Sales: Corn

1969.36 BU @ 5.05

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.
BNWRO0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD
Grain Check Off

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.
BNWR0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD

Grain Storage Expense

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

BLAKE FITZGERALD

BNWR0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD
Land Cash Rent

2ND INSTALLMENT

FITZGERALD FARMS

BNWR0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD
Land Cash Rent

BONUS RENT

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

67667

$9,249.12

$161.46

$181.54

$189.29

$11,355.30

$2,400.74

$227.19

$17.23

$1,264.82

$11.30

$12.70

$13.25

$43,712.73

$43,695.50

$42,430.68

$42,592.14

$42,580.84

$42,762.38

$42,749.68

$42,938.97

$42,925.72

$54,281.02

$56,681.76

$56,908.95

Printed on 06/06/2024

Page 2 of 5



Heartland HEARTLAND BANK AND TRUST COMPANY
Bank @i TRANSACTION JOURNAL BY FARM

FOR FARM: BNWR PRIMARY

FOR PERIOD 05/01/2023 THRU 04/30/2024

Farm No. BNWR00002 BNWR PRIMARY

DATE

RECEIVED FROM OR PAID TO

RECEIVED PAID

BALANCE

12/06/2023

12/06/2023

01/30/2024

01/30/2024

02/05/2024

02/05/2024

03/04/2024

03/06/2024

03/06/2024

04/08/2024

04/08/2024

FITZGERALD FARMS

BNWRO0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD
Land Cash Rent

BONUS RENT

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

FITZGERALD FARMS

BNWRO0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD
Land Cash Rent

1ST INSTALLMENT

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Interest & Dividends
Farm Mangement Fee

$3,774.35

$15.90

$267.57

$18.72

$269.40

$18.85

$11,355.30

$251.28

$17.58

$315.61

$22.09

$60,683.30

$60,667.40

$60,934.97

$60,916.25

$61,185.65

$61,166.80

$72,522.10

$72,773.38

$72,755.80

$73,071.41

$73,049.32

END OF REPORT Ending Balance 04/30/2024

$73,049.32

Printed on 06/06/2024

Page 3 of 5



Al Heartland
Ban, and Trust

Company

Agricultural Services

Heartland Bank and Trust Company

Income Statement - Period vs. YTD

BNWR/FITZGERALD (BNWR0499)
05/01/2023 to 04/30/2024

Income
Land Cash Rent
Corn Sales
Soybean Sales

Total Income

Expense
Grain Check Off

Grain Storage
Real Estate Taxes
Farm Management Fee

Total Expense

Total Net Income

Period YTD
$31,059.88 $31,059.88
$9,945.28 $9,945.28
$8,356.68 $8,356.68
$49,361.84 $49,361.84
$59.01 $59.01
$1,517.61 $1,517.61
$7,567.78 $7,567.78
$3,455.31 $3,455.31
$12,599.71 $12,599.71
$36,762.13 $36,762.13

Printed on 05/07/2024

Page 2 of 2



Heartland HEARTLAND BANK AND TRUST COMPANY
i Bank @i TRANSACTION JOURNAL BY FARM

FOR FARM: BNWR/FITZGERALD

FOR PERIOD 05/01/2023 THRU 04/30/2024

Farm No. BNWR0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD

DATE

RECEIVED FROM OR PAID TO

CHECK #

RECEIVED

PAID

05/17/2023

07/12/2023

07/12/2023

07/12/2023

07/12/2023

08/24/2023

08/24/2023

08/24/2023

08/24/2023

11/08/2023

11/08/2023

11/16/2023

MCLEAN COUNTY COLLECTOR
Real Estate

1ST & 2ND INSTALLMENT RE TAXES

21-32-100-003

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.
Cash Sales: Soybeans
556 BU @ 15.03

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Cash Sales: Soybeans
Farm Mangement Fee

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.
Grain Check Off

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.
Grain Storage Expense

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.
Cash Sales: Corn
1969.36 BU @ 5.05

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Cash Sales: Corn
Farm Mangement Fee

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.
Grain Check Off

RANDOLPH COOP. GRAIN CO.
Grain Storage Expense

BLAKE FITZGERALD
Land Cash Rent
2ND INSTALLMENT

HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Land Cash Rent
Farm Mangement Fee

FITZGERALD FARMS
Land Cash Rent
BONUS RENT

46975

67667

$8,356.68

$9,945.28

$12,210.00

$2,581.44

$7,567.78

$584.96

$41.78

$252.79

$696.16

$17.23

$1,264.82

$854.70

Printed on 06/06/2024

Page 4 of 5



Heartland HEARTLAND BANK AND TRUST COMPANY
i Bank @i TRANSACTION JOURNAL BY FARM
FOR FARM: BNWR/FITZGERALD
FOR PERIOD 05/01/2023 THRU 04/30/2024

Farm No. BNWR0499 BNWR/FITZGERALD

DATE RECEIVED FROM OR PAID TO CHECK # RECEIVED

PAID

11/16/2023 HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Land Cash Rent
Farm Mangement Fee

12/06/2023 FITZGERALD FARMS $4,058.44
Land Cash Rent
BONUS RENT

12/06/2023 HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Land Cash Rent
Farm Mangement Fee

03/04/2024 FITZGERALD FARMS $12,210.00
Land Cash Rent
1ST INSTALLMENT

03/04/2024 HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST
Land Cash Rent
Farm Mangement Fee

$180.70

$284.09

$854.70

Printed on 06/06/2024

Page 5 of 5



Bloomington and Normal

Water
" 1 Reclamation
¢ District

This Page is Intentionally Left Blank




OLD BUSINESS




This Page Intentionally Left Blank



Bloomington and Normal
Water Reclamation District

b

OLD BUSINESS ITEM NO. A
BOARD MEETING DATE: June 10, 2024

SUBJECT: Consideration and Approval of Ordinance 2024-15, Granting Authority to Submit An
Ordinance Enacting a General Waste Control Program Regulating the Use of the Public Treatment
Works and Public and Private Sewers and Drains in the Bloomington and Normal Water
Reclamation District to the United States Environmental Protection Agency

PREPARED BY: Joy Hall, Laboratory Director
REVIEWED BY: Timothy Ervin, Executive Director
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Ordinance 2024-15.

ATTACHMENTS: Ordinance 2024-15

BACKGROUND: In March 2023, the Board of Trustees approved a resolution to authorize
submission of the revised Sewer Use Ordinance (SUO) and Enforcement Response Plan (ERP) to
the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) for review and subsequent approval.
The current sewer use and pretreatment Ordinance and the Enforcement Response Plan are
essential components of the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) approved
pretreatment Program the District manages.

Since the current SUO 972 and Enforcement Management System were adopted, notable
advancements in pretreatment have transpired. Revisions were made with the revised ordinance
to align with evolving industry standards, prioritize worker safety, enhance the quality of the
effluent and biosolids, and establish uniform requirements of the Users of the District. These
revisions were further identified within the comprehensive 2021 USEPA Pretreatment
Compliance Inspection.

The USEPA has communicated the tentative approval of the SUO modifications in accordance
with 40 CFR 403.18. However, USEPA final approval is dependent upon the formal adoption and
ratification of the Ordinance by the Board of Trustees.

The Ordinance to enact a General Waste Control Program Regulating the Use of the Public
Treatment Works and Public and Private Sewers and Drains in the Bloomington and Normal
Water Reclamation District is complete. District staff request approval of the resolution to adopt



and ratify the SUO Ordinance and proceed with submission of the necessary document to the
USEPA for final approval.

BUDGET IMPACT: Not Applicable




ORDINANCE NO. 2024-15

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING A GENERAL WASTE CONTROL PROGRAM
REGULATING THE USE OF THE PUBLIC TREATMENT WORKS AND PUBLIC AND
PRIVATE SEWERS AND DRAINS IN THE
BLOOMINGTON AND NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT

Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation District
2015 West Oakland Avenue
Bloomington, lllinois 61701
309-827-4396
Draft Updated 3/9/23



TABLE OF CONTENTS
PREAMBLE
ARTICLE I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. Authority

Section 2. General Purposes
Section 3. Confidential Information
Section 4. Records Retention

ARTICLE II. DEFINITIONS

Section 1. Technical Terms
Section 2. Abbreviations
Section 3. Definitions

ARTICLE Ill.  USE OF DISTRICT SEWERS

Section 1. Conditions for Discharge to District Sewers

Section 2. Sewer Connection Permit

Section 3. Sewer Construction Permit Application

Section 4. Construction Standards

Section 5. Required Inspections

Section 6. Monitoring Facilities

Section 7. Food Service Establishments

Section 8. Sewer Line Maintenance/Replacement

Section 9. Automobile Service, Repair & Fuel Dispensing Properties
Section 10. Amalgam Management at Dental Offices

ARTICLE IV.  GENERAL DISCHARGE REGULATIONS

Section 1. Discharges Subject to Regulations
Section 2. General Prohibitions

Section 3. Specific Discharge Limitations
Section 4. Monitoring Facilities & Requirements
Section 5. General Discharge Compliance
Section 6. Variance

ARTICLE V. INFORMATION REQUIRED ON NON-RESIDENTIAL USERS
Section 1. Initial Survey (Questionnaire)
Section 2. Affirmation to Initial Survey
Section 3. Reports of Changed Conditions
Section 4. Additional Survey Information

ii



ARTICLE VI.  WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITS REQUIREMENTS & APPLICATION

Section 1. Wastewater Information and Analysis

Section 2. Wastewater Discharge Permit Authority and Requirements

Section 3. Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permitting: Existing Connections
Section 4. Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permitting: New Connections
Section 5. Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permit Application Contents
Section 6. Individual and General Application Signatories and Certification

Section 7. Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permit Decisions

Section 8. Trucked Discharges

Section 9. Intermittent Discharges and Clean-Ups

ARTICLE VII.  WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT ISSUANCE PROCESS

Section 1. Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permit Duration
Section 2. Wastewater Discharge Permit Contents

Section 3. Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permit Appeals
Section 4. Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permit Modification
Section 5. Individual and General Wastewater Permit Transfer

Section 6. Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permit Revocation
Section 7. Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permit Re-issuance
Section 8. Regulation of Waste Received from Other Jurisdictions

ARTICLE VIIl. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Section 1. General Reporting Requirements

Section 2. Pretreatment Requirements for Non-Residential Users
Section 3. Additional Pretreatment Requirements for Categorical Industrial Users
Section 4. Periodic Compliance Reports / Self-Monitoring Reports
Section 5. Reports from Non-Permitted Users

Section 6. Authorized Representative Change Notification
Section 7. Reports of Changed Conditions

Section 8. Reports of Potential Problems

Section 9. Notice of Violation / Repeat Sampling and Reporting
Section 10. Notification of the Discharge of Hazardous Waste
Section 11. Report of Submittal Due Dates

Section 12. Electronic Reporting

ARTICLE IX.  COMPLIANCE MONITORING
Section 1. Right of Entry: Inspection and Sampling

Section 2. Record Keeping
Section 3. Search Warrants

iii



ARTICLE X. PUBLICATION OF USERS IN SIGNIFICANT NONCOMPLIANCE
ARTICLE XI.  ADMINISTRATIVE ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES

Section 1. Notification of Violation
Section 2. Compliance Agreements
Section 3. Show Cause Order
Section 4. Compliance Orders
Section 5. Cease and Desist Orders
Section 6. Emergency Suspensions
Section 7. Termination of Discharge

ARTICLE XIl.  PENALTIES AND JUDICIAL ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES

Section 1. Recovery of Costs Incurred
Section 2. Administrative Fines
Section 3. Injunctive Relief

Section 4. Civil Penalties

Section 5. Remedies Nonexclusive
Section 6. Additional Remedies

ARTICLE XIll.  SUPPLEMENTAL ENFORCEMENT ACTION

Section 1. Failure to Report or Notify

Section 2. Performance Bonds

Section 3. Liability Insurance

Section 4. Payment for Outstanding Fees and Penalties
Section 5. Public Nuisances

Section 6. Contractor Listing

ARTICLE XIV. AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO DISCHARGE VIOLATIONS

Section 1. Upset
Section 2. Prohibited Discharge Standards
Section 3. Bypass

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
Section 1. Severability
Section 2. Conflict

Section 3.
aOffenses Under Previous Ordinances

iv



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-15

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING A GENERAL WASTE CONTROL PROGRAM REGULATING USE OF THE
TREATMENT WORKS AND PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SEWERS AND DRAINS, AND PROVIDING
PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF IN THE BLOOMINGTON AND NORMAL WATER
RECLAMATION DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation District has heretofore
constructed sewage works for collection and treatment of sanitary sewage and Non-Domestic
Woastes produced within the District; and

WHEREAS, the purposes of the sewage work’s constructed and operated by the
Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation District are saving and preserving the water
supplied to the inhabitants and protecting the natural waters from pollution by the sanitary
sewage and Non-Domestic Wastes produced within the District; and these purposes can be
accomplished only by proper control of the design, construction and use of the sewers and sewer
systems connected into the sewage works of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation
District adopted an Ordinance on January 9, 1979 relating to sewers and sewer systems and has
amended that Ordinance and other ordinances from time to time; and

WHEREAS, the said Ordinance adopted on January 9, 1979, and other related Ordinances,
must be comprehensively amended to meet the requirements of the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-500) and the Clean Water Act of 1977 (P.L. 95-217) and the Water
Quality Act Amendments of 1987(P.L. 100-4) and the rules and regulations of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency promulgated pursuant thereto; and

WHEREAS, federal requirements for acceptance of a P.L. 92-500 grant for improving the
quality of effluent discharges from waste treatment plants require the enactment of regulatory
provisions; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation
District has determined that the Sections of this Ordinance provide a just regulation of public
waste treatment and collection facilities, including Applicable Pretreatment Standards, and
comply with applicable Federal Regulations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Trustees of the Bloomington and
Normal Water Reclamation District of McLean County, lllinois, as follows:



ARTICLE |

GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY

A.

The Articles of this Ordinance are enacted by the Board of Trustees pursuant to the
requirements of Title Ill of the Clean Water Act Amendments (33 USC, 1311 et seq.) and
regulations promulgated there under, and the lllinois Environmental Protection Act (Ch.
1111/2, Ill. Rev. Stat. 1983, Sec. 1001, et seq.), and in accordance with the Sanitary District
Act of 1917 (Ch. 42, lll. Rev. Stat. 1983 Sec. 298.99 et seq.).

SECTION 2. GENERAL PURPOSES

A.

This Ordinance sets forth uniform requirements for Users of the Publicly Owned
Treatment Works (POTW) for the Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation District,
hereafter referred to interchangeably as the District. This Ordinance provides for the use
of public and private sewers and drains, private Sewage disposal, and authorizes the
installation and continuation of connections to the Sewage works of the District upon
certain conditions, including permission thereof; providing for the installation and
maintenance of such connections and enforcements thereto; regulating the use of
municipal and private sewers and drains; individual Wastewater disposal, the installation,
connection and disconnection of Building Sewers, the Discharge of water and waste in
the Public Sewer system providing for penalties for violation therefore; and providing for
penalties for violation thereof; and providing for termination of permits issued by the
District pursuant to the provisions hereof.

This Ordinance enables the District to comply with all applicable State and Federal laws,
including the Clean Water Act (33 United States Code §1251 et seq.) and General
Pretreatment Regulations of 40 CFR Part 403. Additional objectives of this Ordinance are:

1. To prevent the introduction of Pollutants into the POTW that will Interfere with
its operation;

2. To prevent the introduction of Pollutants into the POTW that will Pass Through
the POTW, inadequately treated, into receiving waters, or otherwise be
incompatible with the POTW;

3. To protect both POTW Personnel in the course of their employment, and the
general public, who may be affected by air, Wastewater and Biosolids;

4, To promote reuse and recycling of Industrial Wastewater and Biosolids from the
POTW;

5. To enable the District to comply with its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination

System permit conditions, Biosolids Use and Disposal Requirements, and any
other Federal or State laws to which the POTW is subject;



6. To provide for fees for the equitable distribution of the cost of operation,
maintenance, and improvement of the POTW;

7. To provide uniform requirements for Food Service Establishments for the control
of grease Discharge to the Sanitary Sewer system; and

8. To regulate private Wastewater disposal systems.

This Ordinance shall apply to all Users of the POTW and provides for the enforcement of
general requirements for Users. The Ordinance authorizes the issuance of Wastewater
connection and Discharge permits; provides for monitoring, compliance, and
enforcement activities; establishes administrative review procedures; requires User
reporting; and provides for the setting of fees for the equitable distribution of costs
resulting from the programs established herein. The Ordinance authorizes the issuance
of Wastewater Discharge Permits that do not allow the Discharge of defined process
waste streams but continue to allow the Discharge of domestic or Sanitary Wastewater.

SECTION 3. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

A.

Information and data relating to an Industrial User obtained from reports, questionnaires,
permit applications, individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permits and monitoring
programs and from inspections and sampling activities shall be available to the public or
other governmental agency without restriction unless the User specifically requests, and
is able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the District and District Attorney that the
release of such information would divulge information, processes, or methods of
production entitled to protection as trade secrets of the User under applicable State law.
Any such request must be asserted at the time of submission of the information or data.

When requested and demonstrated by the Person furnishing a report that such
information should be held confidential, and until such time as the District determines
that the requested information is not entitled to confidential treatment, the portions of
a report which might disclose trade secrets or secret processes as determined by the
District shall not be made available for inspection by the public, but shall be made
available immediately upon written request to governmental agencies for uses related to
this Ordinance, the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit, and
for use by the State or any state agency in judicial review or enforcement proceedings
involving the Person furnishing the report.

The Wastewater constituents and characteristics and other “effluent data” as defined by
40 CFR §2.302 will not be recognized as confidential information.

Information accepted by the District as confidential shall not be transmitted to the
general public by the District until and unless a 30-day notification is given to the User.

The District shall implement measures to prevent the negligent release of confidential
information; however, the District, the Board of Trustees, and the Executive Director shall



F.

not be held legally responsible for release of information if they have acted in good faith.

If any of the provisions of this Section 3 are in conflict with the Freedom of Information
Act, the provisions of that Act shall prevail.

SECTION 4. RECORDS RETENTION

A.

Users. Users subject to the reporting requirements of this Ordinance shall retain, and
make available for inspection and copying, all records of information obtained pursuant
to any monitoring activities required by this Ordinance and any additional records of
information obtained pursuant to monitoring activities undertaken by the User
independent of such requirements, and documentation associated with BMPs
established under Article VII, Section 2. Records shall include:

1) The date, exact place, method, and time of sampling and the names of the Person
or Persons taking the samples;

2) The dates the analyses were performed;

3) The entity performing the analyses.

4) The analytical techniques/methods used; and

5) The results of such analyses.

These records shall remain available for a period of at least three (3) years. This period
shall be automatically extended for the duration of any litigation concerning the User or
the District, or where the User has been specifically notified of a longer retention period
by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee.

District. The District will maintain such documentation of any monitoring waiver issued
per Article VI, Section 5.D for a period of three (3) years. This period of retention shall be
extended during the course of any unresolved litigation regarding the Discharge of
Pollutants by the Industrial User or operation of the District pretreatment program or
when requested by the Regional Administrator or the Director of IEPA.



ARTICLE Il

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1. TECHNICAL TERMS

A. Technical terms used in this Ordinance but not included in the Definition of Terms are
used in accordance with the Third Edition of "Glossary, Water and Wastewater Control
Engineering", copyright 1981.

SECTION 2. ABBREVIATIONS

A The following abbreviations shall have the designated meanings:
BMP Best Management Practices
BMR Baseline Monitoring Report
BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand
CFR Code of Federal Regulations
Clu Categorical Industrial User
CcoD Chemical Oxygen Demand
CROMERR Cross-Media Electronic Reporting Regulation
FOG Fats, Oils and Grease, interchangeable with Oil and Grease
FSE Food Service Establishment
Gl Grease Interceptor
GPD Gallons per day
IAC Illinois Administrative Code
IEPA Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
U Industrial User
mg/| Milligrams per liter
NCPS National Categorical Pretreatment Standards
NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
NSCIU Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User
NSRU Non-Significant Regulated User
POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works
RCRA Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
SIU Significant Industrial User
SSO Sewer System Overflows
SWDA Solid Waste Disposal Act, 42 USC 6901 et. seq.
TOSCA Toxic Substance Control Act
TRC Technical Review Criteria
TSS Total Suspended Solids
TTO Total Toxic Organics
usc United States Code
USEPA United States Environmental Protection Agency

4



SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS

"Act" shall mean the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 USC 1251 et. seq., also
known as the “the Act” or “Clean Water Act” or “Federal Act.”

"Accidental Discharge" shall mean the unplanned release of substances either directly or
indirectly in such magnitude to cause substantial effects on receiving systems or treatment
processes if the release is the result of accident, acts of nature or operational malfunctions.

"Administrator"” shall mean the Regional Administrator of Region V of the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency or Director in an NPDES State with an approved state pretreatment program.

"Applicable Pretreatment Standards" shall mean, for any specified Pollutant, District prohibitive
discharge standards, District's specific limitations of discharge, the State of Illinois Pretreatment
Standards, or the National Categorical Pretreatment Standards (when effective), whichever
standard is most stringent.

"Approval Authority" shall mean the Regional Administrator of USEPA, Region V, until such time
that the State of Illinois has a USEPA approved pretreatment program.

"Authorized Representative" shall mean
1. If the User is a corporation:

a. By a responsible corporate officer - the president, secretary, treasurer, or a
vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal business function, or
any other Person who performs similar policy or decision-making functions for
the corporation; or

b. The manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operation facilities
provided the manager is authorized to make management decisions that
govern the operation of the regulated facility including having the explicit or
implicit duty of making major capital investment recommendations, and
initiate and direct other comprehensive measures to assure long-term
environmental compliance with environmental laws and regulations; can
ensure that the necessary systems are established or actions taken to gather
complete and accurate information for individual Wastewater permit (or
general permit) requirements; and where authority to sign documents has
been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate
procedures.

2. If the User is a partnership or sole proprietorship: a general partner or proprietor,
respectively.



3. If the User is a limited liability company (LLC): any manager or managing member
of the company.

4, If the User is a Federal, State, or local governmental facility: a director or highest
official appointed or designated to oversee the operation and performance of the
activities of the government facility, or designee.

5. The individuals described in Paragraphs 1 through 4, above, may designate a duly
Authorized Representative, if the authorization is in writing, the authorization
specifies the individual or position responsible for the overall operation of the
facility from which the Discharge originates or having overall responsibility for
environmental matters for the company, and the written authorization is
submitted to the Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation District.

6. If an authorization under Paragraph 5 of this section is no longer accurate because
a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the
facility, or overall environmental matters for the company, a new authorization
satisfying the requirements of Paragraph 5 must be submitted to Bloomington and
Normal Water Reclamation District within 30 calendar days. If an authorization
under Paragraph 5 of this section is no longer accurate because the individual
described in Paragraphs 1 through 4 above has changed, a new authorization
satisfying the requirements of Paragraph 5 must be submitted to Bloomington and
Normal Water Reclamation District within 30 calendar days.

"Baseline Report" shall mean that report required by 40 CFR Section 403.12 b (1-7).

"Best Management Practices (BMPs)” shall mean schedules of activities, prohibitions of
practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to implement the
prohibitions listed in 40 CFR 403.5 (a)(1) and (b). BMPs also include treatment requirements,
operating procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage, or leaks, biosolids or
waste disposal, or drainage from raw material storage. BMPs also include alternative means (i.e.,
management plans) of complying with, or in place of certain established Categorical
Pretreatment Standards and effluent limits.

"Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) or (BODs)" shall mean the quantity of oxygen, expressed
in mg/l, utilized in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory
procedures as described in 40 CFR Part 136 for five (5) days at 20 degrees centigrade.

“Biosolids” shall mean the anaerobically digested and stabilized organic solids removed from the
POTW and disposed of on agricultural land or at a landfill.

"Board of Trustees" or "Board" shall mean the Board of Trustees of the Bloomington and Normal
Water Reclamation District.

“Building Drain” shall mean the sewer which transports the Wastewater from a Discharger’s

6



facility to the public Sanitary Sewer system. The Building Drain is part of the lowest piping of a
drainage system which receives the Discharge from waste, and other drainage pipes inside the
walls of the building and conveys it to the Building Sewer Service Line or other approved point of
Discharge, beginning five feet (1.5 meters) outside the inner face of the building wall. Discharge
of Stormwater runoff to the Building Drain is prohibited.

"Bypass" shall mean the intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of an Industrial
User's treatment or Pretreatment facility.

“Categorical Industrial User (CIU)” shall mean an Industrial User subject to a Categorical
Pretreatment Standard or Categorical Standard. A CIU is considered to be a Significant Industrial
User.

“Categorical Pretreatment Standard” or “Categorical Standard” shall mean any regulation
containing Pollutant Discharge limits promulgated by USEPA in accordance with Sections 307(b)
and (c) of the Act (33 U.S.C. § 1317) which apply to a specific category of Users and which appear
in 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter N, Parts 405-471.

"Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)” shall mean the quantity of oxygen consumed in the chemical
oxidation of all compounds both organic and inorganic in water (standard potassium dichromate
solution) under standard laboratory procedures as described in 40 CFR Part 136.

“Clear Water” shall mean any Stormwater, natural precipitation, melting snow, ground water,
roof drainage, ground surface and subsurface drainage, down spout, yard drain, Sump Pump,
foundation drain, yard fountain, pond, swimming pool, cistern overflow, or any other water that
is not required to be treated by State or Federal law. Swimming pool water that is required to
be treated in accordance with District, county or state regulations shall not be considered Clear
Water.

“Combined Sewer” shall mean a pipe or conduit that is designed and constructed to carry
Wastewater in addition to Stormwater, surface water and/or ground water drainage.

"Combined Waste Stream Formula" shall mean the formula as found in 40 CFR Section 403.6 (e)

(1) ().

"Composite Sample" shall mean a sample of Wastewater based on a flow proportional or time
proportional method.

"Control Authority" shall mean the Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation District.

"Cooling Water" shall mean the water discharged from any use such as air conditioning, cooling,
or refrigeration, or to which the only Pollutant added is heat.

“Cross-Media Electronic Reporting Regulation (CROMERR)” shall mean an Environmental
Protection Agency approved system allowing states, tribes, and local governments that receive

7



or plan to being receiving electronic documents in lieu of paper documents to satisfy regulations
under an authorized program.

“Daily Average” shall mean the arithmetic average of all effluent samples for a Pollutant
collected during a calendar day.

“Daily Maximum” shall mean the maximum allowable Discharge limit of a Pollutant during a
calendar day. Where Daily Maximum is expressed in terms of a concentration, the Daily
Maximum is the arithmetic average measurement of the Pollutant concentration derived from
all measurements taken that day. Where Daily Maximum is expressed in units of mass, the daily
Discharge is the total mass Discharged over the course of a day.

“Dental Amalgam” shall mean an alloy of elemental mercury and other metal(s) that is used in
the practice of dentistry.

“Dental Discharger” shall mean a facility where the practice of dentistry is performed, including,
but not limited to, institutions, permanent or temporary offices, clinics, home offices, and
facilities owned and operated by Federal, state, or local governments, that Discharges
Wastewater to a Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW).

"Discharge or Indirect Discharge" shall mean the introduction of Pollutants into the District
POTW from any non-domestic source regulated under section 307 (b), (c) or (d) of the Act.

“Discharger” shall mean any Person, firm, establishment, or institution that Discharges
Wastewater, excluding Inflow and Infiltration, into the POTW from any non-domestic source
regulated under Section 307(b), (c), or (d) of the Act and 35 Ill Adm. Code (IAC) 307.

“Discharge Permit” shall mean an individual or general permit issued to a User which specifies
the requirements for Discharge of Wastewater or the requirements for zero Discharge of
Wastewater as appropriate.

"District" or "Sanitary District" shall mean the Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation
District.

"District Engineer" shall mean the Engineer of the District registered as a Professional Engineer
by the State of lllinois.

“Domestic Waste” shall mean solid waste, composed of Garbage and rubbish, which normally
originates from residential, private households, or apartment buildings.

“Duly Authorized Agent” shall mean the District Board of Trustees and designated employees
and agents of the District.



“Dwelling” shall mean a unit designed for occupancy by one family. It may be a house designed
for the exclusive use of one family or it may be a portion of a building designed and intended to
be used by one family.

“Easement” shall mean an acquired legal right for the specific use of land owned by others.
“Effluent Criteria” shall mean those criteria defined in any applicable “NPDES” Permit.

“Environmental Protection Agency” shall mean the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or,
where appropriate, the Regional Water Division Director, the Regional Administrator, or other
duly authorized official of said agency.

“Existing Dental Discharger Source” shall mean a Dental Discharger that is not a New Source.
"Executive Director" shall mean the Chief Administrator of the District.
"Existing Source" shall mean any source of Discharge that is not a “New Source.”

"Fats, Oil, or Grease (FOG)" shall mean any hydrocarbons, fatty acids, soaps, fats, waxes, oils,
and any other material that is extracted by hexane solvent. FOG is used interchangeably with
“Qils and Grease.”

“Floatable Oil” shall mean oil, fat, or grease in a physical state such that it will separate by gravity
from Wastewater by treatment in an approved Pretreatment facility.

"Flow" shall mean volume of Wastewater per unit of time.

“Food Service Establishment (FSE)” shall mean any User engaged in the activities of
manufacturing, preparing, serving, or otherwise making available for consumption foodstuffs
that use one or more of the following preparation activities: blending, cooking by frying (all
methods), baking (all methods), grilling, sautéing, rotisserie cooking, broiling (all methods),
boiling, blanching, roasting, toasting, or poaching and infrared heating, searing, barbecuing, and
any other food preparation or servicing activity that produces a consumable food product in or
on a receptacle requiring washing to be reused. A limited food preparation establishment is not
considered to be a FSE when only engaged in reheating, hot holding, or assembly of ready to eat
food products and as a result, there is no Wastewater Discharge containing significant amounts
of FOG.

"Garbage" shall mean solid wastes from the domestic and commercial preparation, cooking and
dispensing of food, and from the commercial handling, storage and sale of produce or food.

"Grab Sample" shall mean a sample which is taken from a waste stream on a one-time basis with
no regard to the Flow in the waste stream and over a period not to exceed fifteen (15) minutes.

"General Pretreatment Regulations" shall mean General Pretreatment Regulations for Existing

9



and New Sources, 40 CFR part 403, as amended.

“Grease Disposal Mitigation Fee” shall mean a fee charged to an owner/operator of a Food
Service Establishment when there are physical limitations to the property that make the
installation of the usual and customary grease interceptor or grease control device for the FSE
under consideration, impossible or impracticable. The Grease Disposal Mitigation Fee is intended
to cover the costs of the increased maintenance of the sewer system for inspection and cleaning
of FOG and other viscous or solidifying agents that a properly employed grease control device
would otherwise prevent from entering the sewer system.

“Hauled Waste” shall mean sanitary or process Wastewater transported as a commercial
venture.

“Hot Spot” shall mean areas Sanitary Sewer lines that have experienced Sanitary Sewer overflows
or that must be cleaned and maintained frequently to avoid blockages of the sewer system.

"Incompatible Pollutant” shall mean all Pollutants other than compatible Pollutants as defined
in Section 20 of this Article.

"Industrial User (1U)" or “User” shall mean a source of Indirect Discharge from a non-Residential
Source.

“Industrial Waste” shall mean a combination of liquid and water carried wastes Discharged,
permitted to Flow, or escape from any non-Residential Source, including the Wastewater from
Pretreatment facilities and polluted Cooling Water.

“Infiltration” shall mean water other than Wastewater that enters a sewer system (including
sewer service connections and foundation drains) from the ground through such means as
defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes. Infiltration does not include, and is
distinguished from, Inflow.

“Inflow” shall mean water other than Wastewater that enters a sewer system (including sewer
service connections) from sources such as, but not limited to, roof leaders, cellar drains, yard
drains, area drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross connections
between Storm Sewers and Sanitary Sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, Stormwaters, surface
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage. Inflow does not include, and is distinguished from,
Infiltration.

“Instantaneous Limit” shall mean the maximum concentration of a Pollutant allowed to be
Discharged at any time, determined from the analysis of any discrete or composite sample
collected, independent of the industrial Flow rate and the duration of the sampling event.

"Interference" or “Interfere” shall mean an inhibition which alone or in conjunction with a
Discharge or Discharges by other sources, disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or
operations, or its Biosolids processes, use or disposal and therefore, is a cause of or significantly

10



contributes to a violation of any requirements of the POTW's NPDES Permit (including an increase
in the magnitude or duration of a violation) or of the prevention of Wastewater or Biosolids use
or disposal by the POTW in accordance with the following statutory provisions and regulations
or permits issued thereunder (or more stringent State or Local regulations): Section 405 of the
Clean Water Act, the Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA) (including Title Il more commonly referred
to as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) and including State regulations
contained in any State Biosolids Management Plan prepared pursuant to Subtitle D or the SWDA),
the Clean Air Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, and the Marine Protection, Research and
Sanctuaries Act.

“Limited Dental Discharger Source” shall mean a Dental Discharger that does not place Dental
Amalgam and does not remove Dental Amalgam except in limited emergency or unplanned,
unanticipated circumstances. A New Limited Dental Discharge Source means a limited Dental
Discharger whose first discharge to a POTW occurs after July 14, 2017. An Existing Limited Dental
Discharge Source means a limited Dental Discharger that is not a new source.

“Local Limit” shall mean specific Discharge limits developed and enforced by the District upon
industrial or commercial facilities to implement the general and specific Discharge prohibitions
listed in 40 CFR Section 403.5(a)(1) and (b).

"Mass Limitation" shall mean limits imposed upon a Discharger based upon volumes or
concentrations that are converted to weight units.

“Maximum Allowable Headworks Loading” shall mean the estimated maximum loading of a
Pollutant that can be received at a POTW’s headworks without causing Pass Through or
Interference.

“Maximum Allowable Industrial Loading” shall mean the estimated maximum loading of a
Pollutant that can be received at a POTW’s headworks from all permitted Industrial Users and
other controlled sources without causing Pass Through or Interference. This is usually calculated
by applying a safety factor to the Maximum Allowable Headworks Loading and discounting for
uncontrolled sources, Hauled Waste, and growth allowance.

"May" is permissive.
“Medical Wastes” shall mean isolation wastes, infectious agents, human blood and blood
products, pathological wastes, sharps, body parts, contaminated bedding, surgical wastes,

potentially contaminated laboratory wastes, and dialysis wastes.

“Milligrams Per Liter” shall mean a unit of the concentration of water or Wastewater constituent
representing 0.001 g of the constituent in 1,000 ml of water.

“Mobile Unit” shall mean a specialized mobile self-contained van, trailer, or equipment used in
providing dentistry services at multiple locations.

11



“Monitoring Facility” shall mean the dedicated location where representative Discharge Flows
from a User can be sampled before entering the Public Sewer system.

"Monthly Average" shall mean the numerical average of all daily Composite Samples taken
during a calendar month. A Monthly Average must be based upon at least four daily Composite
Samples and shall mean the sum of all “Daily Discharges” measured during a calendar month
divided by the number of “Daily Discharges” measured during that month.

“Monthly Average Limit” shall mean the highest allowable average of “Daily Discharges” over a
calendar month, calculated as a sum of all the “Daily Discharges” measured during a calendar
month divided by the number of “Daily Discharges” measured during that month.

"Multiple Family Sewer Connection” shall mean a Sanitary Sewer connecting a Dwelling
structure containing two or more Dwelling units or apartments, consisting of any combination of
the following:

(a) One bedroom or efficiency or single room Dwelling units.
(b) Two-bedroom Dwelling units
(c) Three or more-bedroom Dwelling units.

"National Categorical Pretreatment Standard,” “Categorical Pretreatment Standard,” or
“Categorical Standard” shall mean any regulation containing Pollutant discharge limits
promulgated by the USEPA in accordance with Section 307(b) and (c) of the Act, (33 USC 1317)
which apply to a specific category of Users and which appear in 40 CFR Chapter |, Subpart N, Parts
405-471.

"National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit (NPDES Permit)” shall mean a permit
issued under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System for Discharge of Wastewaters
to the Navigable Waters of the United States pursuant to the Act. A NPDES Permit shall mean a
permit issued pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA. The District operates its Southeast POTW
under NPDES Permit No. IL0O073504 and its West POTW under NPDES Permit No. IL0027731.

“Natural Outlet” shall mean any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or other body of
surface or ground water.

“New Dental Discharger Source” shall mean a Dental Discharger whose first Discharge to a POTW
occurs after July 14, 2017.

"New Source" shall mean:

1. Any building, structure, facility, or installation from which there is (or may be) a Discharge
of Pollutants, the construction of which commenced after the publication of proposed
Pretreatment Standards under Section 307 (c) of the Act which will be applicable to such
source if such Standards are thereafter promulgated in accordance with that section,
provided that one of the following is true:

12



a) The building, structure, facility, or installation is constructed at a site on which no
other source is located;

b) The building, structure, facility, or installation totally replaces the process or
production equipment that causes the Discharge of Pollutants at an Existing Source;
or

c) The production or Wastewater generating processes of the building, structure,
facility, or installations are substantially independent of an Existing Source at the same
site. In determining whether these are substantially independent, factors such as the
extent to which the new facility is integrated with the existing plant, and the extent
to which the new facility is engaged in the same general type of activity as the Existing
Source, should be considered.

2. Construction on a site at which an Existing Source is located results in a modification
rather than a New Source if the construction does not create a new building, structure,
facility, or installation meeting the criteria of Section 1.b. or c. above but otherwise alters,
replaces, or adds to existing process or production equipment.

3. Construction of a New Source as defined under this paragraph has commenced if the
owner or operator has done one of the following:

a) Begun, or caused one of the following to begin as part of a continuous onsite
construction program:

1) Any placement, assembly, or installation of facilities or equipment; or

2) Significant site preparation work including, clearing, excavation, or removal of
existing buildings, structures, or facilities which is necessary for the placement,
assembly, or installation of New Source facilities or equipment; or

b) Entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities or
equipment which are intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable time.
Options to purchase or contracts which can be terminated or modified without
substantial loss, and contracts for feasibility, engineering, and design studies do not
constitute a contractual obligation under this paragraph.

4. New Sources shall install and have in operating condition and shall “start-up” all pollution
control equipment required to meet Applicable Pretreatment Standards before beginning
to Discharge.

“Non-Contact Cooling Water” shall mean water used for cooling which does not come into direct
contact with any raw material, intermediate product, waste product, or finished product.

“Non-Domestic Waste” shall mean all waste not defined as “Domestic Waste.”

13



“Non-Significant Regulated User (NSRU)” shall mean a Non-Residential User that meets the
criteria outlined in Article VI, Section 2.C.5.

“Overhead Sewer” shall mean a sewer that does not Discharge to a public or private sewer main
through the use of gravity. Overhead Sewers utilize a pump to lift the Sewage to an elevation
where gravity can then carry away the Wastewater. Non-Residential Wastes Discharged from
Overhead Sewers are subject to all the same limits and requirements of Sanitary Sewers.

“Pass Through” shall mean a Discharge that exits the POTW into waters of the United States in
guantities or concentrations, which alone or in conjunction with Discharge or Discharges from
other sources, is a cause of a violation of any requirement of the POTW’s NPDES permit, including
an increase in the magnitude or duration of a violation.

"Person" shall mean any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, corporation,
association, joint stock company, trust, estate, governmental entity, or any other legal entity; or
their legal representatives, agents, or assigns. This definition includes all Federal, State, and local
governmental entities.

"pH" shall mean the intensity of the acid or base condition of a solution, calculated by taking the
logarithm of the reciprocal of the hydrogen ion concentration expressed in standard units.

"Pollutant” shall mean any dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, filter backwash,
Sewage, Garbage, Wastewater Biosolids, munitions, Medical Wastes, chemical wastes, biological
materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand cellar dirt and
industrial, municipal, and agricultural wastes and certain characteristics of Wastewater (e.g., pH,
temperature, TSS, turbidity, color, BOD, COD, toxicity, or odor).

"Population Equivalent"” shall mean a term used to evaluate the impact of industrial or other
waste on a Treatment Works or stream. One Population Equivalent is 100 gallons (380 liters) of
Sewage per day, containing 0.17 pounds (77 g) of BODs (five-day Biochemical Oxygen Demand)
and 0.20 pounds (91 g) TSS (Total Suspended Solids). The impact on a Treatment Works is
evaluated or defined as the highest Population Equivalent of the two parameters.

“Potential Problem” shall mean any Discharge which alone or in combination with Discharges
from other sources inhibits or disrupts the POTW or any of its processes or operations including
plant emissions or any conditions which create public nuisance, causing the POTW to expend
additional resources or manpower or take additional steps to protect the POTW processes or
receiving stream.

"Pretreatment” shall mean the reduction of the amount of pollutants, the elimination of
pollutants, or the alteration of the nature of pollutant properties in Wastewater to, or in lieu of,
discharging or otherwise introducing such pollutants into the POTW. This reduction or alteration
can be obtained by physical, chemical, or biological processes; by process changes; or by other
means, except by diluting the concentrations of the Pollutants unless allowed by an applicable

14



Pretreatment Standard.

“Pretreatment Coordinator” shall mean the Director of Laboratory Services of the District or
designee.

“Pretreatment Requirements” means any substantive or procedural requirement related to
pretreatment imposed on a User, other than a Pretreatment Standard.

"Pretreatment Standards" or “Standards” shall mean for any specified Pollutant, District
Prohibitive Discharge Standards as set forth in Article IV Section 2, District specific limitations on
Discharge as set forth in Article IV, Section 3, State of lllinois Pretreatment Standards in lll. Adm.
Code Section 307, or the National Categorical Pretreatment Standards.

"Prohibitive Discharge Standard" or “Prohibited Discharges” shall mean absolute prohibitions
against the Discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions appear in Article 1V, Section 2.

“Properly Shredded Garbage” shall mean the wastes from the preparation, cooking and
dispensing of food that have been shredded to such a degree that all particles will be carried
freely under the Flow conditions normally prevailing in Public Sewers, with no particle greater
than one-half inch (1.27 centimeters) in any dimension.

“Public Sewer” shall mean a sewer provided by or subject to the jurisdiction of the District. It
shall also include sewers within or outside the District limits that serve one or more Persons and,
ultimately Discharge into the District Sanitary Sewer, or Combined Sewer system, even though
those sewers may not have been constructed with District funds.

"Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW)" shall mean a “Treatment Works,” as defined by
Section 212 of the Act, (33 U.S.C. section 1292) which is owned by the District. This definition
includes any devices and systems used in the collection, conveyance, storage, treatment,
recycling, and reclamation of Sewage or Industrial Wastes, of a liquid nature that are connected
to the District POTW, but does not include pipes, sewers and other conveyances not connected
to the District POTW Treatment Plant. For the purposes of this Ordinance, POTW shall also
include any sewers that convey Wastewaters to the POTW from Persons outside the District who
are by contract or agreement with the District, Users of the District’s POTW. Synonymous with
the terms POTW Treatment Plant, Wastewater Treatment Works, Water Pollution Control
Facility, and Wastewater Facilities.

“Qualified Professional” shall mean an individual with working knowledge of facility processes
and Wastewater Discharge.

“Regional Administrator” shall mean the Regional Administrator for USEPA Region V.

“Residential User” or “Residential Source” shall mean a single family or multi-family Dwelling
unit designed primarily as a place of human habitation which Discharges exclusively domestic
Wastewater to the District’s system.

15



“RCRA” shall mean Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, Public Law 94-482 including all
subsequent amendments and applicable regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Sanitary Sewer” shall mean a pipe of conduit designed and/or intended to carry Wastewater
from residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions, and to which
Stormwater, surface water, ground water, and unpolluted Non-Contact Cooling Water are not
intentionally admitted.

“Septic Tank Waste” shall mean any Sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical toilets,
campers, trailers, and septic tanks.

“Sewage” shall mean human excrement and gray water (household showers, dishwashing
operations, etc.).

“Sewerage” shall mean the system of sewers and appurtenances for the collection,
transportation and pumping of Sewage and Industrial Wastes.

“Sewer Extension” shall mean Sanitary Sewer greater than six inches in diameter which is
designed to serve more than one building.

“Shall” is mandatory.

“Significant Industrial User (SIU)” shall mean a User of the POTW (except as provided in
Paragraphs 3 and 4) who is:

1. A User subject to any National Categorical Pretreatment Standards (NCPS); or
2. A User that:

a) Has an average process Wastewater Discharge Flow of twenty-five thousand (25,000)
gallons or more per Work Day (excluding sanitary, non-contact cooling and blower
blowdown Wastewater;

b) Has a Discharge Flow of process Wastewater that makes up five percent (5%) or more
of the average dry weather hydraulic organic capacity of the POTW Treatment Plant;
or

c) Is designated as such by the District on the basis that it has a reasonable potential for
adversely affecting the POTW’s operation or for violating any Pretreatment Standard
or Requirement.

3. The District may determine that a User subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards is
a Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User (NSCIU) rather than a Significant Industrial
User (SIU) on a finding that the User never Discharges more than 100 gallons per day (gpd)
of total categorical Wastewater (excluding sanitary, Non-Contact Cooling and boiler
blowdown Wastewater, unless specifically included in the Pretreatment Standard) and

16



the following conditions are met:

a) The User, prior to the District’s findings, has consistently complied with all
applicable Categorical Pretreatment Standards and Requirements;

b) The User annually submits the certification statement required in Article VIII,
Section 4.C, [see 40 CFR Section 403.12(q)], together with any additional
information necessary to support the certification statement; and

c) The User never Discharges any untreated concentrated Wastewater.

4. Upon a finding that a User meeting the criteria in Subsection (2) of this part has no
reasonable potential for adversely affecting that POTW’s operation or for violating any
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the District may at any time, on its own initiative
or in response to a petition received from a User, determine that such User should not be
considered a SIU in accordance with 40 CFR Section 403.8(f)(6).

"Sludge" see “Biosolids”.

"Slug" or “Slug Load” means any Discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but not
limited to an accidental spill or a non-customary batch Discharge or any Discharge of Flow rate
or concentration, which has a reasonable potential to cause Interference or Pass Through, or in
any other way violate the POTW'’s regulations, Local Limits or Permit conditions or a non-
customary batch Discharge or any Discharge of Flow rate or concentration that could cause a
violation of the Prohibited Discharge Standards in Article 1V, Section 2.

“State Act” shall mean the lllinois Anti-Pollution Bond Act of 1970.

“State Grant” shall mean the state of lllinois participation in the financing of the construction of
POTW as provided by the Illinois Anti-Pollution Bond Act and for making such grants as filed with
the Secretary of the State of lllinois.

“Storm Sewer” shall mean a sewer that carries rainwater, snow melt and surface drainage but
excludes Sewage and Industrial Wastes other than unpolluted Cooling Water.

“Stormwater” shall mean any Flow occurring during or following any form of natural
precipitation, and resulting from such precipitation, including snowmelt.

“Sump Pump” shall mean any electrical and/or mechanical device designed to raise water from
a lower level to a higher level and is designed to remove collected Stormwater from a pit to a
Storm Sewer or other approved point of Discharge.

“Surcharge” shall mean the assessment in addition to the basic User charge and debt service
charge which is levied on those Users whose wastes are greater in strength than the
concentration values established in Article IV Section 3.D.

17



“T” as used in “Cyanide-T,” shall mean total.

"TOSCA" shall mean Toxic Substance Control Act referring to Public Law 94-469 including all
subsequent amendments and applicable regulations promulgated thereto.

"Total Suspended Solids (TSS)" shall mean total suspended matter, expressed in Milligrams Per
Liter, that either floats on the surface of, or is in suspension in water, Wastewater or other liquids
and is removable by laboratory filtration using the approved methods in 40 CFR Part 136.

"Total Toxic Organics (TTO)” shall mean the summation of all quantified values greater than 0.01
Milligrams Per Liter for the toxic organics as specified in the applicable Federal, State or Local
regulation.

"United States Environmental Protection Agency” or "USEPA” shall include the Administrator or
other duly authorized official of said Agency, as appropriate.

"Unpolluted Water" shall mean water of quality equal to or better than the Effluent Criteria in
effect, or water that would not cause a violation of receiving Water Quality Standards and would
not be benefited by Discharge to the Sanitary Sewers and POTWSs provided by the District.

"Upset" shall mean an exceptional incident in which there is unintentional and temporary
noncompliance with Categorical Pretreatment Standards because of factors beyond the
reasonable control of the Industrial User. An Upset does not include noncompliance to the extent
caused by operational error, improperly designed treatment facilities, inadequate treatment
facilities, lack of preventive maintenance, or careless or improper operation.

"User" shall mean a source of Indirect Discharge. It also includes such Persons or sources that are
prohibited from Discharging specific Pollutants or waste streams to the POTW.

"Wastewater" shall mean the combination of the liquid and water carried wastes from
residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions including polluted Cooling
Water.

1. “Sanitary Wastewater” or “Domestic Flow” shall mean the combination of liquid and
water-carried wastes Discharged from toilet and other sanitary plumbing fixtures.

2. “Industrial Wastewater” shall mean a combination of liquid and water-carried waste,
Discharged from any industrial establishment and resulting from any trade or process
carried on in that establishment including the Wastewater from pretreatment facilities
and polluted Cooling Water.

3. “Combined Wastewater” shall mean Wastewater including Sanitary Wastewater,
Industrial Wastewater, Stormwater, Infiltration, and Inflow carried to the POTW
treatment facilities by a sewer.

18



"Wastewater Hauler" shall mean any Person, partnership or corporation engaged in transporting
sanitary Wastewater as a commercial venture.

“Wastewater Discharge Permit” shall mean the document or documents issued to a User by the
District pursuant to Article VII.

“Water Quality Standards” shall mean those Standards defined in the Water Pollution
Regulations of lllinois, Title 35, Subtitle C, Chapter I.

"Waters of the State of lllinois” shall mean all streams, lakes, ponds, marshes, water courses,
waterways, wells, springs, reservoirs, aquifers, irrigation systems, drainage systems and all other
bodies or accumulations of water, surface or underground, natural or artificial, public or private,
which are contained within, Flow through, or border upon the State of lllinois or any portion
thereof.

“Work Day” shall mean Monday through Friday except any Federal or State holiday.

19



ARTICLE 11l

USE OF DISTRICT SEWERS

SECTION 1. CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGE TO THE DISTRICT SEWERS

A.

The purpose of this Article is declared to be that all Public Sewers, Building Drains, and
building sewers and building tributary sewers to and part of the POTW will in their
construction, operation, maintenance, and expansion be conducive to the public health
and in accordance with District Standards.

Public Wastewater collection facilities are required to be used for domestic or Non-
Domestic Wastes that do not meet IEPA NPDES standards for Discharge to surface waters.

Except as provided in this Ordinance, or per the terms of any approved pre-annexation
agreement, no Person shall connect or cause to be connected any building or facility on
property or any part thereof to any sewer unless the entire property shall first be situated
within the corporate limits of the District.

It shall be unlawful for any Person to deposit or Discharge, or to cause to be deposited or
Discharged, to any Wastewater collection facilities, any solid, liquid, or gaseous waste
unless through a connection approved by the District.

Any Person owning improved property within the District, which abuts any street,
alleyway, or right-of-way in which a Public Sewer is located shall if the improvements are
used or are intended to be used for any type of human use or employment and if the
sewer is within three hundred (300) feet of the nearest property line of the property, at
the property owner’s expense, install therein, suitable toilet and waste disposal facilities
and within ninety (90) days after such sewer is in service connect such facilities to the
sewer in accordance with District ordinances; provided, however, that in the event
compliance with this Section causes severe economic hardship to said Person, the
property owner may apply to the District for exemption from this Section. Such
applications shall state in detail the circumstances which are claimed to cause such
economic hardship. Such exemptions shall only be granted to Residential Users, shall not
apply to other Users, and shall be granted only for such period of time as the
demonstrated hardship exists. Applications for exemptions will be reviewed by the
Executive Director or designee.

Such Person as described in this Article Ill, Section 1.D and 1E shall not avoid connection
to such sewer by reason of actual distance from a building or structure to the connection

point of such sewer.

It shall be unlawful for any Person to allow Stormwater to drain into the building sewer
during construction of the sewer or either before or after the plug has been affixed.

20



No Person shall make connections of rainwater leaders, roof downspouts, foundation
drains, areaway drains, or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater to a building
sewer or Building Drain which in turn is connected directly or indirectly to a public Sanitary
Sewer.

The District shall not be held responsible for damages to personal property caused by the
construction or repair to the District sewers, by water and Sewage seepage, or for any
other reason. The District shall make every reasonable effort to avoid, and when possible,
coordinate with the municipality in an effort to minimize any damage to municipal-owned
property.

All new Sump Pumps installed to receive and Discharge ground water, Clear Water, or
other Stormwater shall be connected to a Storm Sewer. Existing Sump Pumps connected
to either a Combined Sewer or Sanitary Sewer are required to connect to a Storm Sewer
when repairs or replacement of the existing Sump Pump occurs.

No Person shall Discharge or cause to be Discharged Clear Water into the District’s Public
Sewer system either directly or through the municipal Sanitary Sewer collection system,
or infiltrate into the District’s Public Sewer system because of Sump Pump, defective
plumbing, a defective sewer lateral or by other means listed in the Clear Water definition.

Upon notice that the Discharge of Clear Water on a property is not in compliance with
this Ordinance, the owner or occupant of the property shall cease from discharging Clear
Water in violation of this Ordinance and shall make the necessary repairs and corrections
to Discharge the Clear Water in accordance with this Ordinance. The District expects each
municipality to enforce this requirement if the Clear Water is being Discharged into the
municipal Sanitary Sewer collection system.

SECTION 2. SEWER CONNECTION PERMIT

A.

No Person shall construct a new Wastewater source and connect same to the POTW of
the District without first making application for the privilege of making said connection to
the District.

A connection permit shall be obtained by the User or builder from the District and the
affected municipality to uncover or make any connection with or opening into, or alter,
disturb or extend any Sanitary Sewer or appurtenances tributary to the facilities of the
District except for the municipalities, sanitary districts and public utilities for the purposes
of operation, maintenance and repair, except for any connection with or opening into, or
alteration, disturbance or extension of any existing Sanitary Sewer or appurtenances
tributary to the facilities of the District by a Discharger which does not result in an
increased Population Equivalent loading. A connection permit shall be obtained by the
User from the District when a change in the use of a facility occurs whereby the Population
Equivalent loading is increased, or when such a change in use results in an introduction
of Industrial Wastewater, or a change in the characteristics of Wastewater to the POTW.

21



1. The District’s permit review period is ten (10) working days.

2. A District connection permit shall not be valid until all other permits required by
this Section are obtained.

3. A District connection permit is required to be obtained and submitted to the
municipality by the User prior to the issuance of a building permit by the
municipality where the work will be performed, namely, the Town of Normal, the
Village of Downs, the City of Bloomington, or the Bloomington Township Public
Water District, as relevant.

4, A District connection permit, once issued, is applicable to only the property or site
specified in the permit and is not transferrable to any other property or site.

A construction permit from the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency shall be obtained
for any Sanitary Sewer connection which will or can serve more than one building, or for
one building or building addition within which fifteen (15) or more residents may reside,
or which will contribute to a Flow to the sewers of 1,500 or more gallons per day.

A building producing any amount of Non-Domestic Waste, even though said building
generates less than 1,500 gpd (15 PE) of domestic Flows, shall be required to obtain a
permit from the IEPA.

A District sewer connection permit to allow a new building sewer service line to be
connected to any District sewer or sewer tributary to a District sewer shall not be issued
unless it can be demonstrated that the downstream District POTW including sewers,
pump stations, and Wastewater Treatment Works, have adequate reserve capacity to
transport and treat the additional Wastewater to be Discharged from the building sewer
service lines.

A sewer connection permit shall only be issued and a sewer connection allowed providing
the plans, specifications and details of construction meet all the requirements of this
Ordinance and all other applicable ordinances of the District, and the Town of Normal,
the Village of Downs, the Bloomington Township Public Water District and the City of
Bloomington, as relevant to the location of the property.

1. Separate building sewer connection permits shall be required for each connection
made to a Public Sewer regardless of whether the building sewers serve the same
property or structure, or are laid in the same trench.

2. District sewer permits shall be issued to the property owner or their Authorized
Representative and building sewers shall be installed only by a bonded, insured
contractor approved by the District.

The District connection permit shall not be issued until the District's Connection Fee as
set forth in AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CODIFICATION OF THE FEES AND CHARGES OF THE

22



BLOOMINGTON AND NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT has been paid. If a User
is found to have a sewer connection without a permit and/or without having paid the
appropriate connection fee such User shall be subject to one or more of the following,
upon reasonable notice, or a period of ten (10) days exclusive of a Holiday, whichever is
lesser, as determined by the District:

1. A fine of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00) nor more than one thousand
dollars (51,000.00) per day;

2. Disconnection of said sewer connection;
3. All incidental and consequential costs and damages associated with enforcement;
4, Such other remedies as allowed by law or ordinance.

The District assumes no responsibility and will not maintain any portion of the building
sewer including the connection to the Public Sewer. The cost of maintaining the building
sewer and house plumbing remains the sole responsibility of the property owner.

SECTION 3. SEWER CONSTRUCTION PERMIT APPLICATION

A. The application for any permit required by Article I, Section 2 above shall be made in the
format required by the District. The application shall consist of the following:

1. Completed District Connection Permit Application Form.

2. The connection fee shall be paid at the time the residential application is filed.
Non-residential, commercial, and industrial facilities will be calculated on a case-
by-case basis, measured by anticipated Flow rates.

3. A copy of the IEPA Permit, if required; and a copy of the permit application from
the governing municipality; and

4, In addition, in the case of Multiple Family Sewer Connection application:

a) A digital copy of the plot plan that can be uploaded and read by District
Staff using commercially readily available software, or one hard copy of
plot plan drawn to scale, showing the property lines and dimensions, the
street and street name on which the building faces, the nearest cross
street and name; the location of the building, the Sanitary Sewer and the
proposed sewer service; and an arrow indicating the North direction of the
drawing. The digital copy shall have no restrictions to uploading, saving the
file(s) to District servers, or sharing between District staff, agents and/or
legal representatives.

23



b) One set of floor plans and the plumbing plans.
5. Or, in addition, in the case of non-residential application:

a) A digital copy of the plot plan that can be uploaded and read by District
Staff using commercially readily available software, or one hard copy of
the plot plan drawn to scale, showing the property lines and dimensions;
the street and street name on which the building faces; the nearest cross
street and name; the location of the building, the Sanitary Sewer, the
proposed sewer service, the sampling manhole, the water main, the
proposed water service, Storm Sewers, inlets, catch basins, proposed
storm drains and appurtenances and an arrow indicating the North
direction of the drawing. If the building for which application is being
made is part of a development involving several buildings, the applicant
shall furnish two copies of the total development plan showing the
information required above. The digital copy shall have no restrictions to
uploading, saving the file(s) to District servers, or sharing between District
staff, agents and/or legal representatives.

b) One set of the floor plans and the plumbing plans.

c) Industrial Waste information as may be required by the Executive Director,
Pretreatment Coordinator, or designee.

SECTION 4. CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS

A.

The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a sewer, and the methods to be
used in excavating, placing of the pipe, jointing, testing, and backfilling the trench, shall
all conform to the requirement of the District and of the municipality in which the work
is to be done. The materials and procedures set forth in the latest editions of lllinois
Plumbing Code, appropriate sections of the specifications of the American Society of
Testing Materials, Water Pollution Control Federal Manual of Practice No. 9, and Standard
Specifications for Water and Sewer Main Construction in lllinois shall apply. In cases of
conflict between standards, the most stringent shall be controlling.

1. Connections with any District Sewer shall be made only at manholes, or such other
junctions as may be provided or designated by the District and then only in such
manner as directed by the Executive Director or designee and no such connection
shall be made or connecting sewers constructed, except by skilled and responsible
sewer builders and drain layers.

2. No connections shall be made of roof downspouts, exterior foundation drains,
areaway drains, or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater to a building
sewer or Building Drain which, in turn, is connected directly or indirectly to a
District Sewer.

24



3. All excavation shall remain open until the work has been inspected and approved,
at which time the excavations shall be backfilled and the site of the work restored
to a condition equal to or better than that which existed prior to the
commencement of said work.

4, Sewer connections from buildings having holding tanks such as septic tanks,
cesspools, and grease traps in residential buildings shall be made in such a manner
that these devices are isolated from the line of waste Flow and upon completion
of construction shall be pumped out by a septic hauler, and filled with compacted
granular material as per the McLean County Health Department.

5. Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the
Executive Director or designee, they are necessary for the proper handling of
liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts, or any flammable wastes,
sand or other harmful ingredients; except that such interceptors shall not be
required for private living quarters or Dwelling units. All interceptors shall be of a
type and capacity approved by the Executive Director or designee and the
municipality in which the work is being performed, and shall be readily and easily
accessible for cleaning and inspection.

SECTION 5. REQUIRED INSPECTIONS

A.

Upon receiving a connection permit from the District, together with a permit from IEPA
(if required) and, where applicable, from the municipality within whose bounds the
connection is to be made, the applicant may proceed to make the connection to the
Sanitary Sewer.

The municipality within whose boundaries the work is being done shall be responsible for
the inspection and approval of the work. The District reserves the right to also inspect any
such work.

When the proposed work does not fall within the boundaries of a municipality, the District
shall inspect and, when the work is satisfactorily completed, approve the said work.
Where the District has sole responsibility, the contractor or other entity performing the
work shall post a bond with the District in the amount of $25,000.00 guaranteeing that
all of the work shall be in compliance with the requirements of the District. Each
contractor shall carry such insurance as is deemed necessary from time to time by the
District to protect it against claims, causes of actions, or any act of any permittee.

The applicant shall notify the District for any required inspections at least twenty-four
(24) hours prior to the commencement of the work. The municipality in which the work
is being performed shall perform inspections within the timeframes established in their
ordinances and/or policies.

Any sewer builder or drain layer who shall neglect, refuse or fail to correct any defect or
fault in any of their work done under any permit from the District, shall not be permitted

25



to do any further or additional work upon any sewer or appurtenance connecting with or
designed to connect with or directly or indirectly Discharge into any District Sewer,
excepting sewers built or being built by the City of Bloomington, Village of Downs, the
Bloomington Township Public Water District, or the Town of Normal, until such defects
or faults have been corrected in a manner satisfactory to the District Engineer or
designee; and any and all then existing District permits in favor of such sewer builder or
drain layer shall be suspended until any such defects or faults are so corrected.

SECTION 6. MONITORING FACILITIES

A.

Sampling Manhole Requirements. All Non-Residential Users are required to install a
monitoring manhole for each separate Discharge in the Building Drain in accordance with
the plans and specifications approved by the District Engineer or designee. Each manhole
shall be situated on the User’s premises in a location approved by the District.

The sampling manhole shall be located on the sewer connection pipe at a point where
there are no changes in grade or alignment for at least 10 pipe diameters upstream and
downstream from the manhole. The grade (slope) of the pipe shall not exceed 2% (2 foot
per 100 feet) through the manhole and for a distance of 15 pipe diameters upstream and
downstream from the manhole.

There shall be ample room in or near such sampling manhole to allow accurate sampling
and preparation of samples for analysis. The manhole shall be installed and maintained
by the owner/User at their sole expense so as to be safe and accessible to the District at
all times. The failure of a User to keep its Monitoring Facility in good working order shall
not be grounds for the User to claim that sample results are unrepresentative of its
Discharge.

1. Where such a manhole location would be impractical or cause extreme hardship
on the User, the District Engineer may concur with the manhole being constructed
in the public street or sidewalk area provided that the manhole is located so that
it shall not be obstructed by landscaping or parked vehicles. In those cases where
a sampling manhole must be in a parking lot, a permanent barricade, such as a
vertical pipe shall be placed around the manhole to prevent vehicles from driving
or parking over the manhole cover.

2. The District Engineer may postpone the installation of the sampling manhole
when specific circumstances prevent the installation of a manhole, as determined
in the discretion of the District Engineer or designee.

3. When a postponement for a sampling manhole installation is granted by the
District Engineer, an affidavit will be signed by the property owner to install the
manhole at a later date should business practices change at the location where
the manhole installation was postponed, or should the specific circumstances
triggering the delay by resolved or changed such that installation is no longer
impeded.

26



Liquid Quantity Measurements. The District may, at its option, based upon the water
usage and/or waste characteristics, require the User to install a device with a recording
and totalizing register for measurement of the liquid quantity. The equipment required
to indicate, record, and totalize the Flow shall be located in a warm dry location and be
accessible to the District for reading. This equipment shall be installed and maintained by
the User at the User’s sole expense. Should the requirement be made, the User shall
complete installation of the flume and secondary Flow measuring device based upon the
installation schedule approved for such device by the District.

The User shall be required to calibrate and maintain the Flow metering equipment in
accordance with the manufacturer’s recommended procedures and frequencies. Users
who operate Flow measuring devices will submit the procedure for operation and
maintenance (O&M) to the District. The User shall further document O&M in a log which
shall be available for inspection by District personnel. At a minimum, the User shall submit
an annual calibration report by the deadline identified in the User’s Discharge Permit. The
User may be required to submit Flow records to the Pretreatment Coordinator or
designee.

Sampling Equipment. The District may, at its option, based on water usage and/or waste
loadings or when the waste loads cannot be accurately evaluated by time Composite
Samples, require the User to install Flow proportional sampling equipment. This
equipment shall be installed and maintained by the User at the User’s sole expense.

Users shall submit the procedure for operation and maintenance to the District. The User
shall further document O&M in a log which shall be available for inspection by District
personnel. At minimum, the User shall submit an annual report confirming the accurate
operation of the equipment performed by an outside representative by the deadline
identified in the Discharge permit.

Garbage Grinders. Garbage is required to be properly shredded in order to be approved
to be Discharged to the Public Sewer. Wastes classified as Properly Shredded Garbage
contain all particles being carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in
Public Sewers, with no particle greater than one-half inch (1.27 centimeters) in any
dimension. The installation and operation of any Garbage grinder equipped, with a motor
of three-fourths horsepower (0.76 hp metric) or greater shall be subject to review and
approval of the District. Discharge of grinders is prohibited to be connected to a grease
interceptor.

Grease, Oil, and Sand Interceptors for Non-FSE. Interceptors shall be provided in services
connected to the District where it is determined that they are necessary for the proper
handling of the Wastewater containing excessive amounts of grease, oil, and sand except
that such interceptors shall not be required for private living quarters or Dwelling units.
All interception units shall be of type and capacity approved by the District and shall be
so located to be easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. Oil and sand interceptors
used for petroleum grease and oils may be located inside the building. Such interceptors

27



shall be inspected, cleaned, and repaired regularly, as needed, by the owner at the
owner’s sole expense.

Neutralizing Basins. Laboratory and facilities commonly using acid or alkaline chemicals
or compounds must install a neutralizing basin. All basins shall be of type and capacity
approved by the District and shall be so located to be easily accessible for cleaning and
inspection.

SECTION 7. FOOD SERVICE ESTABLISHMENTS

A.

Grease and Interceptors — Food Service Establishments (individually, an “FSE”). Hydro-
mechanical grease interceptors and gravity grease interceptors (collectively referred to
as “grease interceptors” or “Gl”) are required to be installed in all new FSE. All Gl shall be
of a type and capacity approved by the governing municipality based on their established
criteria. The governing municipality and/or District may require Gl to be installed or
modified in an existing FSE where the FSE has caused or contributed to overflows and/or
blockages.

1. Permitting Requirements. Engineering plans and Gl sizing calculations shall be
submitted to the District for review and approval.

2. Installation Requirements. All newly constructed FSEs shall install an exterior Gl
prior to operation of the facility and comply with the governing municipality’s
requirements.

3. Location. All Gls shall be so located to be easily accessible for cleaning and
inspection. All Gls will be installed on the exterior to the building for all new
construction and when feasible at an existing FSE. The Gl shall not be located in
drive-through lanes.

4, Maintenance. Gls shall be cleaned, inspected, and repaired regularly, as needed,
by the owner at the owner’s sole expense. Cleaning shall be performed at
frequencies based upon the design of the Gl and so that Discharges are in
compliance with Article IV, Section 3.

a) It shall be the responsibility of the FSE to inspect its Gl during the pumping
procedure to ensure the Gl is properly cleaned out and that all fittings and
fixtures inside the Gl are in working condition and functioning properly.

b) Logs and manifests of inspection and cleaning are to be posted in a readily
accessible location at the facility.

c) In the event that actual operations of the Gl fail to produce results that
consistently prevent prohibitive Discharges, as defined in Article 1V,
Section 2, or fail to meet Local Limits, as defined in Article IV, Section 3, the
owner of the FSE will be required by the governing municipality and/or

28



B.

Executive Director or designee to have the Gl cleaned at a more frequent
rate or install additional Pretreatment as necessary.

Modifications. The governing municipality and/or District may make
determinations of Gl need, modification(s), and conditional usage based on review
of all relevant information regarding Gl performance, and may require repairs to,
or modification or replacement of the GlI.

FSEs may be required to obtain a general Discharge Permit as provided by Articles
VI & VILI.

Grease Interceptor Criteria. Gl installed at new and existing FSE must meet the following
criteria:

Capacity Sizing. A licensed plumber or lllinois Licensed Design Professional shall
calculate and document the GI capacity using a formula approved by the
governing municipality. The sizing of the GI must be approved by the governing
municipality.

Twenty-five Percent Requirement. The Gl must provide for a minimum hydraulic
retention time of 24 minutes at actual peak Flow between the influent and
effluent baffles, with twenty-five percent (25%) of the total volume of the Gl being
allowed for any food derived solids to settle or accumulate and floatable grease-
derived materials to rise and accumulate, identified as a solids blanket and grease
cap respectively.

Access Manholes. Access manholes shall be provided over each exterior Gl
chamber and each sanitary tee. The access manholes shall extend at least to
finished grade and be designed to and maintained to prevent Inflow and/or
Infiltration. The manholes shall also have readily removable covers to facilitate
inspection, grease removal, and Wastewater sampling activities.

SECTION 8. SEWER LINE MAINTENANCE/REPLACEMENT

A.

The property owner is responsible for the maintenance and repair of the private sewer
line from their structure to the main sewer or Public Sewer including the tap into the
main/Public Sewer. Refer to Municipal or Water District Codes for specific requirements.

In the event the property owner finds it necessary to excavate the private sewer line for
maintenance or replacement, that shall be the property owner’s sole responsibility.

All work, as it is related to the replacement and/or repair of the private sewer line, shall
be in conformance with the governing Municipal or Water District Codes and Standards
and will be inspected by a Duly Authorized Agent of the governing Municipal or Water
District during the repair and replacement.

29



SECTION 9. AUTOMOBILE SERVICE, REPAIR AND FUEL DISPENSING PROPERTIES

A.

When property use involves automotive repair or handling, sale and dispensing of
petroleum products and/or automotive fluids, all Discharges shall have installed a
sampling manhole consistent with the requirements of Article lll, Section 6. Additionally,
any property involved in the repair or servicing of automobiles, trucks, or engine-powered
equipment shall install a triple basin oil separator in the sanitary line (per State of Illinois
Plumbing Codes) servicing the repair area of the building. This system shall be cleaned,
serviced, and inspected at least four times per year by the owner at the owner’s sole
expense. The property owner may petition the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee to
reduce the cleaning and servicing of the triple basin oil separator to two times per year
upon demonstration that the amount removed quarterly is significantly less than 25% rule
for the basin capacity and the Discharge does not exceed the Qil and Grease Local Limit.
Conversely, the system may be required by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee to
be cleaned at a more frequent rate if the property cannot meet the requirements.

When property use involves automotive repair or handling, sale and dispensing of
petroleum products and/or automotive fluids, there shall be a separate drainage system
constructed to collect all fluids from the areas associated with pump islands and under
pump canopies. This separate drainage system shall collect these fluids and hold them in
a separate sealed tank for testing and removal by approved special waste handling
methods. All fuel dispensing equipment, piping and venting shall be installed in
accordance with the standards listed below and be in accordance and in compliance with
the current adopted building, electrical and fire codes:

1. Guidance Manual for LUST Cleanups in lllinois, September 1989; and Leaking
Underground Storage Tank Manual, September 1991; both published by IEPA,
2200 Churchill Road, P.O. Box 19276, Springfield, IL 62794-9276.

2. Recommended Practices for Installation of Underground Liquid Storage Systems,
PEI/RP 100, 1994; published by Petroleum Equipment Institute, P.O. Box 2380,
Tulsa, OK 74101.

3. Flammable and Combustible Liquid Code, NFPA/30; Automotive and Marine
Services Station Code, NFPA/30A; National Electric Code, NFPA/70; and
Underground Leakage of Flammable and Combustible Liquids, NFPA/329; latest
editions all published by National Fire Protection Association, 1 Batterymarch
Park, P.O. Box 9101, Quincy, MA 02269-9904.

4, Underground Storage Tanks; Technical Requirements and State Program
Approval; Final Rules, 40 CFR Parts 280 and 281, Part Il, Federal Register, Friday,
September 23, 1988; and Musts for UST’s: A Summary of the New Regulations for
Underground Storage Tank Systems, and Hazardous Waste Management
Standards, Federal Register, July 14, 1986, both published by USEPA, Office of
Underground Storage Tanks, 401 M Street, S.W., Washington, DC 20460.

30



5. Rules of the Illinois State Fire Marshall, Parts 170 & 180, Title 41, Chapter 1, State
of lllinois, Office of the Fire Marshall, 1035 Stevenson Parkway, Springfield, IL
62703.

C. Jurisdiction:

1. These requirements shall be met for any property use associated with automotive
repair or the handling, sale or dispensing of petroleum products and/or
automotive fluids, where any water main, Wastewater or Stormwater facility is
within the District limits.

2. The requirements of this Section shall not be applied to existing property uses

except that whenever a permit shall be required for new construction or
reconstruction of a property use associated with automotive repair or the
handling, sale or dispensing of petroleum products and/or automotive fluids,
involving placement, replacement, reconfiguration, removal or modification of
any fueling area, or a Discharge has occurred that does not meet the Local Limits,
or a blockage has been caused or contributed to, compliance with the provisions
of Article Ill, Section 8 shall be required.

SECTION 10. AMALGAM MANAGEMENT AT DENTAL OFFICES

A Applicability.

1.

Except as provided in Paragraphs 3, 4, and 5 of this Section, this Section applies to
Dental Dischargers as defined in Article Il, Section 3.

Dental Dischargers subject to this Section 10 of the Ordinance, are not SIUs as
defined in 40 CFR Part 403, and are not ClUs or Industrial Users subject to
Categorical Pretreatment Standards as those terms and variations are used in 40
CFR Part 403, as a result of applicability of 40 CFR Part 441.

This Section 10 does not apply to Dental Dischargers that exclusively practice one
or more of the following dental specialties: oral pathology, oral and maxillofacial
radiology, oral and maxillofacial surgery, orthodontics, periodontics, or
prosthodontics.

This Section 10 does not apply to Wastewater Discharges from Mobile Units as
defined in Article II; Section 3 operated by a Dental Discharger.

This Section 10 does not apply to Dental Dischargers that do not Discharge any
Amalgam Process Wastewater as defined in Article I, Section 3 to a POTW, such
as Dental Dischargers that collect all Dental Amalgam Process Wastewater for
transfer to a Centralized Waste Treatment facility as defined in 40 CFR Part 437.

31



6. Dental Dischargers that do not place Dental Amalgam as defined in Article I,
Section 3, and do not remove amalgam except in limited emergency unplanned,
and/or unanticipated circumstances, and that certify such to the Control Authority
as required in 40 CFR Section 441.50 are exempt from any further requirements
of this Section 10.

Existing Dental Discharger Compliance. Existing Dental Discharger as defined in Article I,
Section 3 were required to comply with the requirements of 40 CFR Section 441.30(a) that
defines removal of amalgam solids and (b) implementation of two BMPs by July 14, 2020
and submit a One-Time Compliance Report per 40 CFR Section 441.50(a) by October 12,
2020 to the District and maintain and make available for inspection defined records per
40 CFR Section 441.50(b).

1. If a transfer of an Existing Source occurs after July 14, 2020, the new owner must
submit a new One-Time Compliance Report no later than ninety (90) calendar days
after the transfer.

New Dental Discharger Compliance. As of July 14, 2017, any New Dental Discharger
Source as defined in Article Il, Section 3 subject to this Section 10.C must comply with the
requirements of 40 CFR Section 441.40 which states that Discharges must comply with
the requirements of 441.30(a) that defines removal of amalgam solids and (b)
implementation of two BMPs. Dental Dischargers must file a One-Time Compliance
Report per 40 CFR Section 441.50(a) no later than ninety (90) calendar days following the
introduction of Wastewater into the POTW and maintain and make available for
inspection defined records per 40 CFR Section 441.50(b).

1. If a transfer of a New Source occurs after July 14, 2017, the new owner must
submit a new One-Time Compliance Report no later than ninety (90) calendar days
after the transfer.

Limited Dental Dischargers. Limited Dental Dischargers were required to file a One-Time
Compliance Report with certification that they do not remove Dental Amalgam except in
limited emergency or unplanned, unanticipated circumstances by October 12, 2020, to
the District.

1. New Source Limited Dental Dischargers are required to submit this One-Time
Compliance Report to the District within ninety (9) calendar days following the
introduction of Wastewater for New Sources.

Signatory Requirements. The One-Time Compliance Report must be signed and certified
by a responsible corporate officer, a general partner or proprietor if the Dental Discharger
is a partnership or sole proprietorship, or a duly Authorized Representative in accordance
with the requirements of 40 CFR Section 403.12(l) and Article Il, Section 3 under
Authorized Representative (5) and (6).

32



ARTICLE IV

GENERAL DISCHARGE REGULATIONS

SECTION 1. DISCHARGES SUBJECT TO GENERAL REGULATIONS

A.

It shall be unlawful to Discharge or cause to be Discharged to any facility served by the
District, without having first complied with the terms of this Ordinance.

All non-residential waste Discharges to District sewers must meet the most stringent
applicable requirements and limitations at all times either as set forth in this Ordinance,
or in individual Wastewater Discharge Permits, Federal Pretreatment Standards as
established by 40 CFR Part 403, or State of lllinois Standards as codified in 35 IAC 307.
Said Users shall provide the necessary Wastewater treatment to achieve compliance with
all NCPS and requirements within the time limitations as specified by the Federal
Pretreatment Regulations, and with any other Pretreatment Standards including Local
Limits and requirements, by applicable deadlines.

The District shall develop and enforce specific limits to implement the prohibitions listed
in Article IV, Section 2 of this Ordinance. These specific discharge limitations are listed in
Article 1V, Section 3 of this Ordinance. The District may develop BMPs to implement
specific discharge limitations. Such BMPs and the specific discharge limitations are to be
considered Local Limits and Pretreatment Standards.

Each FSE shall install a Gl and implement BMPs as necessary to comply with this Article IV
and shall achieve compliance with all Local Limits and the prohibitions set out in Article
IV, Sections 2 and 3 of this Ordinance, within the time limitations specified by the
Pretreatment Coordinator or designee.

SECTION 2. GENERAL PROHIBITIONS

These general prohibitions apply to all Users of the POTW whether or not they are subject to a
Categorical Pretreatment Standard or any other National, State, or local Pretreatment Standards
or Requirements.

A.

Where conflicting requirements of applicable federal, state, or local governments
governing waste discharges exist, the most stringent shall apply.

No User shall increase the use of potable or process water in any way, nor mix separate
waste streams for the sole purpose of diluting a discharge as partial or complete
substitute for adequate treatment, in order to achieve compliance with a Pretreatment
Standard or Requirement except where expressly authorized to do so by an applicable
Pretreatment Standard or Requirements and in a Wastewater Discharge Permit. The
Executive Director may impose Mass Limitations on Users who are using dilution to meet
Applicable Pretreatment Standards or Requirements, or in other cases when the

33



imposition of Mass Limitations is appropriate.

No Person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any Stormwater, foundation drain
water, groundwater, roof runoff, surface drainage, Non-Contact Cooling Waters, Clear
Water, or any other Unpolluted Water to any Sanitary Sewer.

No User shall contribute or cause to be contributed, directly or indirectly to the District
POTW, any Pollutant or Wastewater contaminant which will Pass Through, cause
Interference with, inhibition of, or cause a Potential Problem to the operation or
performance of the POTW. The following general prohibitions shall apply to all Users of
District's POTW whether or not a User is subject to National Categorical Pretreatment
Standards or requirements. A User may not contribute the following substances to
District's POTW:

1. Pollutants that create a fire or explosive hazard in the POTW, including, but not
limited to, waste streams with a closed cup flashpoint of less than 140 degrees
Fahrenheit (60 degrees Centigrade) using the test methods specified in 40 CFR
261.21, or any liquids, solids or gases which by reason of their nature or quantity
are, or may be, sufficient either alone or in conjunction with other substances to
cause fire or explosion or be injurious or hazardous in any other way to the POTW
or the operation of the POTW. At no time shall two successive readings on a meter
capable of reading L.E.L. (lower explosive limit) at the point of discharge of the
building's sewer line to the municipal sewer, or at the point of discharge into the
POTW, interceptor sewer, or at any point in the POTW treatment works be more
than five percent (5%) nor any single reading greater than ten percent (10%).
Materials in this subsection include, but are not limited to, gasoline, kerosene,
naphtha, benzene, toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohols, ketones, aldehydes,
peroxides, chlorates, perchlorates, bromates, polychlorinated biphenyls, carbides,
hydrides, Stoddard solvents, and sulfides.

2. Any solid waste or viscous substance that will cause obstruction to the Flow in a
sewer or the POTW, or other Interference to the operation of the POTW are
prohibited. Prohibited materials include but are not limited to: waste cooking oil,
grease, grease interceptor waste, Garbage with particles greater than one-half
inch (1/2-inch) in any dimension, animal guts or tissues, paunch, manure, bones,
hair, hides or fleshings, entrails, whole blood, feathers, ashes, cinders, sand, spent
lime, stone or marble dust, metal, glass, straw, shavings, grass clippings, rags,
spent grains, spent hops, paper, wood, plastics, residues from gas, tar, asphalt
residues from refining or processing of fuel or lubricating oil, mud or glass grinding
or polishing wastes, fatty acids or esters of fatty acids, any material which can be
disposed of as trash, or tumbling and de-burring stones.

3. Any Wastewater having a pH less than 6.0 or greater than 10.0 or having any other
corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to structures equipment,
or personnelinthe POTW. The pH limits are Instantaneous Limits that shall be met
at all times and are not subject to averaging.

34



Any Wastewater containing toxic Pollutants in sufficient quantity, either singly or
in conjunction with other Pollutants, to injure, Interfere with or cause a Potential
Problem to any POTW treatment processes or facilities, constitute a hazard to
humans or animals, or to exceed limitation as set forth in the existing Act, or the
Act as it may be amended. An Incompatible Pollutant shall include, but not be
limited to, any Pollutant identified pursuant to Section 307(a) of the Act.

Any noxious or malodorous solids, liquids, or gasses which either singly or by their
interaction are capable of creating a public nuisance or hazard to life, or to
Interfere with, inhibit or cause a Potential Problem to any operation of POTW,
including but not limited to, prevention of entry into sewers for their maintenance
and repair, or which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors or fumes within
the POTW in a quantity that may cause acute or chronic worker health and safety
problems.

Any substance which may cause the District’'s POTW effluent or Biosolids to be
unsuitable for reclamation and re-use, or Interfere with the reclamation process.
In no case shall a substance discharged to the District’s POTW cause the District
to be in non-compliance with any Biosolids use or disposal criteria, guidelines or
regulations developed under Section 405 of the Act; any criteria guidelines or
regulations affecting Biosolids use or disposal developed pursuant to the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), Solids Waste Disposal Act (SWDA), Toxic
Substances Control Act (TOSCA), or any State, or local Standards applicable to any
Biosolids management methods either being used or considered by the District.

Any substance or combination of substances which shall cause the POTW facilities
to be in violation of its NPDES Permit, or to cause the District’'s POTW to violate
receiving stream quality and/or general effluent Discharge Standards.

Any Wastewater having a temperature at the point of Discharge to the POTW
which will inhibit biological activity in the POTW treatment plant or cause
Interference in the District’s POTW facilities; but in no case shall Wastewater be
introduced to the POTW which exceeds 65°C (157°F) at the point of Discharge or
which exceeds 40°C (104°F) at the POTW treatment plant or be below 4°C (40°F)
at the point of Discharge.

Any Pollutant, including oxygen demanding Pollutants, released in a Discharge at
a Flow rate and/or Pollutant concentration (including any Slug Load), either singly
or by interaction with other Pollutants which may cause Interference with, inhibit,
or cause a Potential Problem at the POTW. In no case shall a Slug measured at the
point of Discharge to the POTW have a Flow rate or contain concentrations of
Pollutants that exceed more than five (5) times the average twenty-four (24) hour
concentrations, or 24-hour Flow during normal operation; provided, however,
that a User subject to National Categorical Pretreatment Standards shall comply
with such standards in addition to this Subsection D.9.

35



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Any Wastewater containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes, except in
compliance with District, State, and Federal rules governing such Discharges.

Any Wastewater containing BOD, total solids, or Total Suspended Solids of such
character and quantity that unusual attention or expense is required to handle
such materials at the POTW; provided, however, that a User may be permitted by
specific, written agreement with the District, which agreement to discharge such
BOD or TSS may provide for special charges, payments or provisions for treating
and testing equipment.

Ammonia nitrogen in amounts that would cause the District to fail to comply with
State of lllinois effluent or water quality standards of the receiving waters of the
POTW.

Mercury in amounts that would exceed the requirements of Section 304.126 of
Title 35: Environmental Pollution, Subtitle C, Water Pollution, Chapter 1, Pollution
Control Board, as amended.

Any Wastewater containing concentrations of fats, oil, grease, (FOG), including,
but not limited to, petroleum oil, non-biodegradable cutting oil, or products of
mineral oil origin, or trichlorotrifluoroethane extractable material which is
sufficient to cause Interference or Pass Through at the POTW.

Any substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would be a hazardous waste under
40 CFR Part 261, or other applicable state or local hazardous waste disposal laws,
without written permission of the Executive Director granted pursuant to Article
IV, Section 9 of this Ordinance.

All trucked or Hauled Waste, except at discharge points designated by the District.
All such wastes are to be individually approved and permitted by the District as
set forth in Article VI, Section 8 prior to Discharge.

Any Unpolluted Water including, but not limited to, uncontaminated Non-Contact
Cooling Water, Stormwater, surface and ground-waters, subsurface drainage, roof
run-off, spill contaminant area run-off, footing drains, or construction drainage
except as specifically permitted by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee;

Pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within the
POTW in a quantity that may cause acute or chronic worker health and safety
problems, or which necessitate the District taking special measures to counteract
and/or alleviate the impact of the Pollutant(s);

Any Wastewater containing substances in sufficient quantity to Interfere with the
POTW.

36



20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Any wastes containing detergents, surface active agents, aqueous firefighting
foam or other substances which may cause excessive foaming in the collection
system or the treatment process that result in POTW Interferences and/or Pass
Through and/or is shown to inhibit the nitrification process. Wastes prohibited in
this Section shall not be processed or stored in such a manner that they could be
Discharged to the POTW.

Additives for the purpose of emulsifying or biologically/chemically treating FOG
for grease remediation or as a supplement to Interceptor maintenance that have
a content of enzymes, surfactants or solvents that is greater than ten percent
(10%) of the volume without the written consent of the Pretreatment Coordinator
or designee.

Any Wastewater containing any organism, including viruses, is considered
pathogenic and/or detrimental to POTW organisms other than by direct
excrement and any other wastes defined as Medical Wastes.

Wastewater or wastes containing iron pickling wastes, concentrated plating
solutions or coating solutions whether neutralized or not.

Any leachate, groundwater remediation Wastewater or waste material,
originating within the POTW service area, which does not meet Discharge
limitations as set forth in this Article or determined by this Article except at
Discharge points designated by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee.

Any Biosolid, screenings or other residues from the Pretreatment of Non-
Residential wastes.

Any solid, solid waste or viscous substances that have caused an obstruction to
the Flow in a sewer that is eliminated by a professional service or contractor.

Inert suspended solids (such as, but not limited to Fullers earth, lime slurries and
lime residues) or of dissolved solids (such as, but not limited to sodium chloride
and sodium sulfate) that will cause a Potential Problem or Interfere with POTW
operations.

Any substance with color which is not removed in the treatment processes, such
as, but not limited to: dye waste, ink waste and vegetable tanning solutions.

Any substances that inhibit the use of UV for disinfection purposes.

Wastewater or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to
treatment or reduction by the POTW treatment processes employed or are
amenable to treatment only to such degree that the POTW effluent cannot meet
the requirements of agencies having jurisdiction over Discharge to the receiving
waters.

37



31. Any Wastewater causing the POTW effluent to fail a toxicity test.

32. Any waste containing items that could clog or damage the District’s Sanitary
Sewers, pump stations or POTW operation including but not limited to the
following items: disposable wipes, personal care wipes and products, antibacterial
wipes, feminine care products, diapers, baby wipes, wet/dry cleaning cloths, rags,
paper towels, napkins, string, zip ties, laundry dryer sheets, and any plastic
products.

Wastes prohibited in this Section shall not be processed or stored in such manner that
they could be Discharged or introduced to the POTW. All Users with prohibited wastes
described in this Section or those that have Hazardous Wastes as defined in 40 CFR Part
261 shall develop and implement a Spill Prevention/Slug Control Containment and
Countermeasures Plan consistent with the requirements in Article IV, Section 5.E. The
Pretreatment Coordinator or designee may also determine Spill Prevention/Slug Control
is required of liquids and solids not previously described on either list based on an
evaluation of a site potential to cause spills or Slug Loads to be introduced to the POTW.
Notice Requirements shall be permanently posted as provided in Article IV, Section 5.E
and Article VIII, Section 10. Note that spill planning applies to all Users not just classified
SIU or regulated NSRU.

Requirements of Polluted Discharges — Discharge Locations:

1. Discharge of Polluting Substances from Fixtures into Storm Sewers Prohibited. It
shall be unlawful for any Person or User to connect or cause to be connected, any
drain carrying, or to carry, any toilet, sink, basement, septic tank, cesspool,
Industrial Waste, or any fixture or device Discharging polluting substances, to any
Storm Sewer or Stormwater drainage system within the corporate limits of the
District.

2. Discharge of Sanitary and Industrial Waste into Storm Drainage Systems
Prohibited, Nuisance Declared. For the protection of the health, safety and
welfare of the inhabitants of the District, it is the declared policy of the District to
prohibit sanitary and Industrial Waste from entering into the Stormwater drainage
system, and any such connection to the Stormwater drainage system is
determined to be injurious to the public health and welfare and is hereby declared
a public nuisance.

3. Prohibited Discharges into Natural Outlets. It shall be unlawful to Discharge into
any Natural Outlet within the District or in any area under the jurisdiction of the
District, any sanitary Sewage, Industrial Wastes or other polluted waters, except
where suitable treatment has been provided in accordance with subsequent
provisions of this Article and the required permits have been obtained and is in
compliance with the Clean Water Act.

38



G.

Compliance with the provisions of Section 2 shall be required on the effective date of this
Ordinance.

SECTION 3. SPECIFIC DISCHARGE LIMITATIONS

The following Pollutant limits are established to protect against Pass Through and Interference.

A.

Non-Toxic Pollutants

POLLUTANT (total unless otherwise listed) CONCENTRATION (mg/l)

Instantaneous Daily Maximum

Oil and Grease 100

Toxic Pollutants

No User shall Discharge any Wastewater containing concentrations greater than the Daily
Maximum Local Limits as set forth below into any sewers that connect either directly or
indirectly to the POTW.

POLLUTANT (total unless otherwise listed) Concentration Limit, mg/L
Daily Maximum Instantaneous

Arsenic 0.2

Cadmium 0.3

Chromium (total) 9.0

Chromium (hexavalent) 1.0

Copper 2.8

Cyanide 0.9

Iron 72

Iron (dissolved) 18

Lead 1.9

Manganese 18.8

Mercury (see Article IV, Section 3.C.1) 0.0005

Molybdenum 0.3

Nickel 0.9

Selenium 0.5

Silver 1.6

Zinc 4.4

All concentrations for metallic substances are for total metals unless indicated otherwise
State Limits

All User are subject to State Standards and requirements as defined in 35 Ill Adm Code
(IAC) 307. Specifically, the Standard for Discharge of mercury is as follows:

39



Mercury (35 IAC 307.1102)

a)

b)

c)

d)

Except as provided below, no Person shall cause or allow the concentration
of mercury in any Discharge to a publicly owned or publicly regulated
Sewer System to exceed the following level, subject to the averaging rule
contained in 35 IAC 304.104(a):

CONSTITUENT STORET NUMBER CONCENTRATION
(mg/L)
Mercury 71900 0.0005

It shall be an exception to Subsection a) above that if the Discharge is to a
publicly owned or publicly regulated Sewer System which is required to
meet a limitation less stringent than the 0.0005 mg/l mercury
concentration in which case the Discharge limitation shall be the same as
that applicable to the publicly owned or regulated Sewer System to which
it Discharges.

It shall be an exception to subsection a) if all the following conditions are
met:

(i) The Discharger does not use mercury; or the Discharger uses
mercury and this use cannot be eliminated; or, the Discharger uses
mercury only in chemical analysis or in laboratory or other
equipment and takes reasonable care to avoid contamination of
Wastewater; and,

(ii) The Discharge mercury concentration is less than 0.003 mg/I, as
determined by application of the averaging rules of 35 IAC
304.104(a); and,

(iii) The Discharger is providing the best degree of treatment consistent
with technological feasibility, economic reasonableness and sound
engineering judgment. This may include no treatment for mercury;
and,

(iv) The Discharger has an inspection and maintenance program likely
to reduce or to prevent an increase in the level of mercury
Discharges.

The Discharge of wastes from medicinal or therapeutic use of mercury,
exclusive of laboratory use, shall be exempt from the limitations of
subsection a) if all the following conditions are met:

(i) The total Discharge is less than 227 g (one half pound) of mercury
(Hg) in any year;

40



(ii) The Discharge is to a Public Sewer system; and

(iii) The Discharge does not, alone or in conjunction with other sources,
causes the effluent from the Sewer System or POTW to exceed
0.0005 mg/I of mercury.

e) No Person shall cause or allow any Discharge of mercury to a publicly
owned or publicly regulated Sewer System which, alone or in combination
with other sources, causes a violation by the sewer treatment plant
Discharge of the Water Quality Standard of 35 IAC 302 for mercury
applicable in the receiving stream.

f) For purposes of permit issuance, the IEPA may consider application of the
exception of subsection (b) or (c) to determine compliance with this
Section. The IEPA may impose permit conditions necessary or required to
assure continued application of the exception. When subsection (b) or (c)
applies, the IEPA may impose an effluent limitation in the permit which
allows the Discharge of a concentration of mercury greater than 0.0005
mg/| but not more than 0.003 mg/I.

Wastes containing BOD levels in excess of 200 mg/l and TSS in excess of 250 mg/I will be
subject to Surcharge according to the provisions of AN ORDINANCE FOR CODIFICATION
OF THE FEES AND CHARGES OF THE BLOOMINGTON AND NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION
DISTRICT. The District reserves the right to reject or require Pretreatment for any wastes
high in BOD and TSS.

FSE Twenty-five Percent (25%) Requirement. The District reserves the right to apply a
Twenty-five Percent (25%) Requirement at the discharge side of the external Grease
Interceptor prior to mixing with any other Wastewater from the contributing FSE’s
property in lieu of the limits listed in Article IV, Section 3.A above. The last section of an
external Gl at an FSE shall be measured to determine that the total volume of the Gl being
used for any food-derived solids to settle or accumulate plus the floatable grease-derived
materials that rise and accumulate, identified as a solids blanket and grease cap
respectively, is less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the total design hydraulic depth as
measured from the effluent discharge pipe to the bottom (“Twenty-five Percent (25%)
Requirement”). The District may also apply the Twenty-five Percent (25 %) Requirement
for external Gl that are used in non-FSE locations such as an automobile service, repair,
and dispensing properties.

The District will apply the Local Limits found in Article IV, Sections 3.A and 3.B above
normally at the end-of-pipe point where the Non-Residential waste is Discharged to the
municipal Sewer System.

The District reserves the right to establish requirements, by ordinance or in a Wastewater
Discharge Permit or general permit, to require control over the quantities and rates of

41



Discharge from any User.

The District reserves the right to establish, by ordinance or in a Wastewater Discharge
Permit, Mass Limitations rather than concentration limitations on Discharges particularly
if Users are using dilution to meet Applicable Pretreatment Standards or Requirements,
or in other cases when the imposition of Mass Limitations is appropriate.

The District reserves the right to set specific limits for those Pollutants not identified in
Article IV, Sections 3.A or 3.B on a case-by-case basis for impacts caused to the POTW
including but not limited to Interference, Potential Problem, Pass Through and prevention
of beneficial Biosolids re-use. Those limits shall be set forth in a Wastewater Discharge
Permit per Article 8.

1. Local Limits for additional Pollutants not identified in Article IV, Sections 3.A or 3.B
will be noticed to the permit holder a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days prior
to the effective date of the Wastewater Discharge Permit. In the event that the
District receives written comment on said limit during the comment period, the
limit will take effect within sixty (60) calendar days of the public notice date to
allow review and comment by the District.

The District may develop BMPs, by ordinance or in individual Wastewater Discharge
Permits or general permits, to implement Local Limits and to meet the requirements of
Article 1V, Section 2.

Any User Discharging Pollutants such as but not limited to: Oils and Grease, BOD or TSS
to the District’s facilities that cause the District to alter its method of Wastewater
treatment or Biosolid disposal to a more costly method shall be assessed the differential
cost between the more costly method of treatment and the less costly method of
treatment. Such costs shall only be assessed upon approval of the District’s Board.

Any User, whose Discharge is pretreated by the District pursuant to the District’s
determination that such Pretreatment is more effective and which Discharges Pollutants
into the District’s facilities so as to necessitate the District’s alteration of its method of
Wastewater treatment or Biosolid disposal to a more costly method, shall be assessed
the differential cost between the more costly method of treatment and the less costly
method of treatment. Such costs shall only be assessed upon approval of the District’s
Board.

Right of Revision

1. The District reserves the right to establish, by ordinance or in Wastewater
Discharge Permits or general permits, more stringent limitations, or requirements
on Discharges to the POTW consistent with the purpose of this Ordinance. The
specific limitations on Discharge listed in Article IV, Section 3 are derived from the
Maximum Allowable Industrial Loading (MAIL) calculation. The MAILs are
allocated only to those IUs, at the District’s discretion, which contribute the

42



regulated Pollutant and all remaining IUs are held to either the background
concentration or slightly higher than background but lower than the specific
Discharge limit. In no case shall the total of all allocations exceed the MAIL.

2. The District will maintain a reserve of the maximum allowable headworks
Pollutant loading for each Pollutant for new industries or increase with existing
industries. The District will recalculate the maximum concentrations from time to
time using site specific data taking into consideration revisions to State and
Federal regulations that may impact the calculations.

National Categorical Pretreatment Standards

These Pretreatment requirements shall apply to all Non-Residential Users subject to
National Categorical Pretreatment Standards, promulgated by the USEPA in accordance
with Section 307(b) and (c) of the Act, currently Discharging or scheduled to Discharge to
the District. The National Categorical Pretreatment Standards, found in 40 CFR Chapter |,
Subchapter N, Parts 405 — 471 are hereby incorporated into this Ordinance.

Limits in Categorical Pretreatment Standards shall apply to the Discharge from the
process regulated by the Standard or as otherwise specified by the Standard. Compliance
with National Categorical Pretreatment Standards is mandatory.

1. Where a Categorical Pretreatment Standard is expressed only in terms of either
the mass or the concentration of a Pollutant in Wastewater, the Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee may impose equivalent concentration or mass limits in
accordance with Paragraphs B and F below and 40 CFR Section 403.6(c) unless
specifically restricted by the Categorical Pretreatment Standard. These equivalent
limitations calculated in accordance with the following requirements are deemed
Pretreatment Standards. Users shall be required to comply with the equivalent
limitations instead of the promulgated Categorical Standards from which the
equivalent limitations were derived. An alternative Pretreatment limit shall not be
used if the alternative limit is below the analytical detection limit for any of the
regulated Pollutants.

2. When the limits in a Categorical Pretreatment Standard are expressed only in
terms of mass of Pollutant per unit of production, the Pretreatment Coordinator
or designee may convert the limits to equivalent limitations expressed either as
mass of Pollutant Discharged per day or effluent concentration for purposes of
calculating effluent limitations applicable to individual Users.

The District calculating equivalent mass-per-day limitations shall calculate such
limitations by multiplying the limits in the Standard by the User’s average rate of
production. This average rate of production shall be based not upon the designed
production capacity, but rather upon a reasonable measure of the User’s actual
long-term daily production during a representative year. For New Sources, actual
production shall be estimated using projected production.

43



The District calculating equivalent concentration limitations shall calculate such
limitations by dividing the Mass Limitations by the average daily Flow rate of the
User’s regulated process Wastewater. This average daily Flow rate must be based
upon a reasonable measure of the User’s actual long-term average Flow rate, such
as the average daily Flow rate during the representative year.

When Wastewater subject to a Categorical Pretreatment Standard is mixed with
Wastewater not regulated by the same Standard, the Pretreatment Coordinator
or designee shall impose an alternate limit using the Combined Waste Stream
Formula in 40 CFR Section 403.6(e) provided that the regulation allows the
Wastewaters to be mixed and the User can supply the information necessary to
allow issuance of an alternative limit.

A User may request and obtain a variance from Categorical Pretreatment
Standards from USEPA based on fundamentally different factors. The request
must comply with the procedural and substantive provisions in 40 CFR Section
403.13.

A User may request a net gross adjustment to a Categorical Pretreatment
Standard in accordance with 40 CFR Section 403.15.

When a Categorical Pretreatment Standard is expressed only in terms of Pollutant
concentrations, a User may request that the District convert the limits to
equivalent mass limits. The determination to convert concentration limits to mass
limits is within the discretion of the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee. The
District may establish equivalent mass limits only if the User meets all the
conditions set forth in Sections 1(a) through 1(e) below.

a) To be eligible for equivalent mass limits, the User must:

i Employ, or demonstrate that it will employ, water conservation
methods and technologies that substantially reduce water during
the term of its individual Wastewater Discharge Permit;

ii. Currently use control and treatment technologies adequate to
achieve compliance with the applicable Categorical Pretreatment
Standard, and not have used dilution as a substitute for treatment;

iii. Provide sufficient information to establish the facility’s actual
average daily Flow rate for all wastestreams, based on data from a
continuous effluent Flow monitoring device, as well as the facility’s
long-term average production rate. Both the actual average daily
Flow rate and the long-term average production rate must be
representative of current operating conditions;

44



b)

Not have daily Flow rates, production levels, or Pollutant levels that
vary so significantly that equivalent mass limits are not appropriate
to control the Discharge; and

Have consistently complied with all applicable Categorical
Pretreatment Standards during the period prior to the User’s
request for equivalent mass limits.

A User subject to equivalent mass limits must:

Maintain and effectively operate control and treatment
technologies adequate to achieve compliance with the equivalent
mass limits;

Continue to record the facility’s Flow rates through the use of a
continuous effluent Flow monitoring device;

Continue to record the facility’s production rates and notify the
Pretreatment Coordinator or designee whenever production rates
are expected to vary by more than 20 percent from its baseline
production rates determined in Paragraph 1(c) of this Section.
Upon notification of a revised production rate, the Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee will reassess the equivalent mass limit and
revise the limit as necessary to reflect changed conditions at the
facility; and

Continue to employ the same or comparable water conservation
methods and technologies as those implemented pursuant to
Paragraph 1(a) of this Section so long as it Discharges under an
equivalent mass limit.

When developing equivalent mass limits, the Pretreatment Coordinator or
designee:

Will calculate the equivalent mass limit by multiplying the actual
average daily Flow rate of the regulated process(es) of the User by
the concentration-based Daily Maximum and Monthly Average
Standard for the applicable Categorical Pretreatment Standard and
the appropriate unit conversion factor;

Upon notification of a revised production rate, will reassess the
equivalent mass limit and recalculate the limit as necessary to
reflect changed conditions at the facility; and

May retain the same equivalent mass limit in subsequent individual
Wastewater Discharge Permit terms if the User’s actual average

45



10.

daily Flow rate was reduced solely as a result of the
implementation of water conservation methods and technologies,
and the actual average daily Flow rates used in the original
calculation of the equivalent mass limit were not based on the use
of dilution as a substitute for treatment pursuant to Article IV,
Section 3.B. The User must be in compliance with Article XV,
Section 3 regarding the prohibition of Bypass.

The Pretreatment Coordinator or designee may convert the mass limits of the
Categorical Pretreatment Standards of 40 CFR Parts 414, 419 and 455 to
concentration limits for purposes of calculating limitations applicable to individual
Users. The conversion is at the discretion of the Pretreatment Coordinator or
designee.

Once included in its Wastewater Discharge Permit, the User must comply with the
equivalent limitations developed in this Section in lieu of the promulgated
Categorical Pretreatment Standards from which the equivalent limitations were
derived. Note: see 40 CFR Section 403.6(c)(7).

Many Categorical Pretreatment Standards specify one limit for calculating
Maximum Daily Discharge limitations and a second limit for calculating Maximum
Monthly Average, or 4-day Average, limitations. Where such Standards are being
applied, the same production or Flow figure shall be used in calculating both the
average and the maximum equivalent limitations. See 40 CFR Section 403.6(c)(8).

Any User operating under a permit incorporating equivalent mass or
concentration limits calculated from a production-based Standard shall notify the
Pretreatment Coordinator or designee within two (2) working days after the User
has a reasonable basis to know that the production level will significantly change
within the next calendar month. Any User not notifying the Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee of such anticipated change will be required to meet the
mass or concentration limits in its permit that were based on the original estimate
of the long-term average production rate. See 40 CFR Section 403.6(c)(9).

All Users that are subject to National Categorical Pretreatment Standards are required to
file reports as required in this Ordinance, signed by an Authorized Representative per
Article VIII, Sections 3 and 4. These reports shall include all information that the District
deems necessary to make compliance determinations.

46



SECTION 4. MONITORING FACILITIES AND REQUIREMENTS

A. Monitoring Facilities
1. Sampling Manhole Applicability.
a) All Non-Residential Users are required to install a sampling manhole for

each separate Discharge in the Building Sewer in accordance with the plans
and specifications approved by the District and Article Ill, Section 6.

i.  When required by the District, a SIU or NSRU, that does not have a
sampling manhole or other approved sampling chamber, shall install a
District approved sampling manhole or sampling chamber for use as
the regulation location of Local Limits in the Building Sewer.

ii.  When required by the District, a CIU shall install a District approved
sampling manhole or sampling chamber for use as the regulation
location of the categorically regulated Discharge in the Building Sewer.
This sampling chamber may be required to be installed within the
building and may be in addition to an end-of-pipe manhole.

b) The District reserves the right to apply said Local Limits in Article IV, Section
3.A and B at an end-of process Discharge location that connects to the
POTW Sewer System in the event that:

i.  Aunique sampling manhole at end-of-pipe is not available;

ii. A more representative sample can be taken of a process batch
Discharge even though an end-of-pipe manhole exists;

iii. A more representative sample can be taken at the end-of-process
location than the end-of-pipe location as a result of impacts from dilute
waste streams;

iv.  An end-of process location is used because the IU is unable to provide
adequate Flow documentation to use a combined wastestream
formula.

c) Inthe eventthat a suitable sampling manhole does not exist as per this Section
and no end-of-process discharge sampling location exists, the “sampling
facility” shall be considered to be the nearest downstream manhole in the
Public Sewer to the point at which the Building Sewer is connected.

2. Wastewater Monitoring and/or Flow Measurement Facility Operation and
Maintenance

47



a)

b)

d)

e)

Such facilities will be installed and maintained at all times at the User’s sole
expense. The failure of a User to keep its Monitoring Facility in good
working order shall not be grounds for the User to claim that the sample
results are unrepresentative of its Discharge. Installation will be consistent
with the requirements of Article I, Section 6.

The manhole or chamber located on a Building Sewer Discharge located in
dedicated Easements shall be easily accessible to representatives of the
District twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week.

The manhole or chamber at a Discharge location within the building shall
be accessible to representatives of the District during normal User
operating hours.

Metered water supply may be used to determine Wastewater Flow if it is
substantiated to the District that the metered water supply and
Wastewater quantities are approximately the same, or where an
adjustment agreed to by the District is made in the metered water supply
to determine Wastewater Flow which is documented through the use of
sub-meters and/or production records. In the event that the Wastewater
Flow cannot be substantiated at any regulated location, the User will be
required to install Flow monitoring consistent with Article Ill, Section 6.B.

The sampling chamber, Flow metering device, sampling equipment and
documentation of the frequency of sampling, sampling methods and
analysis of samples shall be subject, at any reasonable time, to inspection
by the District.

Monitoring Requirements

1. Applicability

At minimum, all SIU including CIU as well as Non-Significant Regulated Users
(NSRU) are required to sample based on the District Monitoring Frequency as
stated in the Wastewater Discharge Permit. Other Users are required to sample
upon the request of the District. The Users shall pay the costs of sampling of its
Discharge and the costs of analyses of its samples, whether or not the sampling
and analyses are done by the User or by the POTW.

a)

Frequency

All SIUs including ClUs with Wastewater Discharge Permits must sample
their effluent consistent with the permit requirements and report the
results to the POTW at least twice yearly. The District may specify more
frequent reporting, quarterly or monthly, dependent of the frequency for
those parameters specified in the User’s Permit and the District

48



b)

d)

e)

f)

Monitoring Frequency defined in the District’s Enforcement Response
Plan. The SIU may have the District conduct routine monitoring using an
independent laboratory. Sampling visits of this type will normally be
unannounced.

Any NSRU with an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit shall
sample their effluent and report the results to the POTW consistent with
the requirements of the Wastewater Discharge Permit and the District
Monitoring Frequency.

Hauled Waste or batch Discharges that have been approved by the
Executive Director or designee will have sampling and analysis defined in
an individual Wastewater Discharge permit.

The District shall have the right to perform its own sampling at any time at
any location. District data will be used for all Surcharge evaluations.

The District may resample a FSE within thirty (30) calendar days when a
violation of the twenty-five percent (25%) requirement as defined in
Article IV, Section 3.E is identified.

The District may initiate sampling and analyses at a greater frequency as a
result of a violation of any Discharge Permit limit, including cases where
Hot Spot maintenance issues or blockage to the Sanitary Sewer System has
occurred.

Sample Collection

a)

b)

c)

Samples collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data
obtained through appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the
period covered by the report, based on data that is representative of
conditions occurring during the entire sampling and reporting period as
defined in the Wastewater Discharge Permit.

Except as indicated in Subsections 3(c) and 3(e) below, the User must
collect Wastewater samples using Flow proportional composite collection
techniques.

In the event Flow proportional sampling is infeasible, the Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee may authorize the use of time proportional
sampling at minimum collecting samples every 15 minutes during a 24-
hour workday; or a minimum of four (4) Grab Samples where the User
demonstrates that this will provide a representative sample of the effluent
being Discharged. A proportional number of samples shall be collected for
Wastewater Discharges less than 24 hours.

49



d) Single Grab Samples may be required in the event of an infrequent batch
Discharge or to show compliance with instantaneous Discharge limits.

e) Samples for Fats, Qil and Grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, hexavalent
chromium, phenols, sulfides, and volatile organic compounds must be
obtained using the number of Grab Samples necessary to assess and assure
compliance with Applicable Pretreatment Standards and Requirements.
Multiple Grab Samples that are individually preserved as specified in 40
CFR Part 136 and appropriate USEPA guidance that are collected during a
24-hour period may be composited prior to the analysis, as follows:

i For, cyanide, hexavalent chromium, phenols, and sulfides: multiple
Grab Samples may be composited in the laboratory or in the field;

ii.  For volatile organics and fats, oil, and grease: multiple Grab Samples
may only be composited in the laboratory.

f) Composite Samples for other parameters unaffected by the compositing
procedures as documented in approved EPA methodologies may be
authorized by the District, as appropriate.

4, Cost

a) The cost of District sampling and analyses for any monitoring will be
invoiced to the applicable User.

Analytical Requirements

All Pollutant analyses, including sampling techniques, to be submitted as part of a
Wastewater Discharge Permit application or report shall be performed in accordance with
the techniques prescribed in 40 CFR Part 136, unless otherwise specified in an applicable
Categorical Pretreatment Standard. If 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain sampling or
analytical techniques for the Pollutant in question, or where the USEPA determines that
the Part 136 sampling and analytical techniques are inappropriate for the Pollutant in
guestion, sampling and analyses shall be performed using validated analytical methods
or any other applicable sampling and analytical procedures, including procedures
suggested by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee, or other parties approved by
USEPA.

Protection of District Sampling and Flow Monitoring Equipment from Damage
No unauthorized Person shall maliciously, willfully, or negligently break, damage, destroy,
or tamper with any structure, appurtenance, or equipment which is owned or contracted

by the District. Any Person violating this provision of the Ordinance shall be subject to any
remedies under Article XII.

50



SECTION 5. GENERAL DISCHARGE COMPLIANCE

A.

Applicability

Each User that Discharges Non-Residential Source waste shall provide Wastewater
treatment and BMPs as necessary to comply with this Ordinance and shall achieve
compliance with all Categorical Pretreatment Standards, Local Limits, and the
prohibitions set out in Article IV, Sections 2 and 3 within the time limitations specified by
USEPA, the State, or the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee, whichever is more
stringent.

Pretreatment Facilities

Any Pretreatment facilities necessary for compliance shall be provided, operated, and
maintained at the User's expense. Detailed plans describing such facilities and operating
procedures shall be submitted to the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee for review
and shall be acceptable to the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee before such facilities
are constructed. The review of such plans and operating procedures shall in no way
relieve the User from the responsibility of modifying such facilities as necessary to
produce a Discharge acceptable to the District under the provisions of this Ordinance.

All Users are required to comply with IEPA permitting requirements. Users shall obtain all
necessary construction-operating permits from the IEPA prior to the District connection
and/or Discharge Permit(s) being issued. IEPA will make the determination of actual
permitting requirements based on changes in the Wastewater volume or characteristics
generated at the User site. The District will track and parallel this IEPA permitting process.
No sources of non-residential Wastewater will be allowed to Discharge to District POTW
until all permitting requirements have been satisfied. Such Pretreatment facilities shall be
under the control and direction of an IEPA-certified Wastewater operator.

Any subsequent changes in the Pretreatment facilities or method of operation shall be
reported to the District and IEPA prior to the User’s initiation of the changes. Users shall
obtain all additional construction-operating permits from IEPA and the District for the
changes prior to Discharge.

Additional Pretreatment Measures

At minimum, the District may require the additional Pretreatment measures defined
below. The District reserves the right to make unannounced inspections of any additional
Pretreatment measures during normal business hours whether the User has been issued
an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit or not.

1. Whenever deemed necessary, the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee may
require Users to restrict their Discharge during peak Flow periods, designate that
certain Wastewater be Discharged only into specific sewers, relocate and/or
consolidate points of Discharge, separate Sewage waste streams from Industrial

51



Waste streams, and such other conditions as may be necessary to protect the
POTW and determine the User's compliance with the requirements of this
Ordinance.

2. The Pretreatment Coordinator or designee may require any Person or User
Discharging into the POTW to install and maintain, on their property and at their
expense, a suitable storage and Flow-control facility to ensure equalization of
Flow. The District may issue an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit
solely for Flow equalization.

3. Users with the potential to Discharge flammable substances may be required to
install and maintain an approved combustible gas detection meter.

D. Best Management Practices (BMP) Plan

1. FSEs are required to develop, implement, and maintain BMP plans that include,
but are not limited to:

a) Proper storage of unused cooking oil;

b) Segregation, collection, and proper storage of waste cooking oil;

c) Disposal of food waste into the trash or Garbage disposal;

d) Installation of drain screens;

e) Wipe-up grease spills before using water;

f) Employee training within ninety (90) calendar days of initiation and twice

each calendar year thereafter;

g) Grease Interceptor maintenance;

h) Kitchen exhaust filter maintenance;

i) Record keeping requirements;

i) Notifications required for spills or Slug Loads changes; and

k) Notices and signage advising employees in the language(s) used in the
kitchen.

All FSEs that meet the criteria defined in Article IV, Section 5.A are required to
develop and implement a BMP Plan regardless of whether such FSEs are regulated
by a Wastewater Discharge Permit.

52



2. Each FSE meeting the criteria in Article IV, Section 5.A is to provide ready
documentation as follows confirming that the provisions of the BMP Plan are
being implemented:

a) Specifics of documentation:

(i) Site diagram showing location of all containers holding unused or
spent yellow grease;

(ii) Procedures to prevent adverse impact from any Accidental
Discharge to Storm or Sanitary Sewers. Such procedures include,
but are not limited to, inspection and maintenance of storage
areas, handling, and transfer of materials, loading and unloading
operations, control of plant site runoff, worker training and
building of containment structures or equipment;

(iii) Location of Notice/Signs posted in conspicuous places advising
employees in English and the language of common use whom to
call in the event of a spill, Accidental Discharge of prohibited
materials, Slug Discharge, or a Bypass of any part of a Pretreatment
system; and

(iv) Off-site emergency (24-hour) telephone number belonging to the
User’'s Authorized Representative or designee, and backup
telephone number.

b) Notification Procedure. The BMP Plan shall contain procedures for
immediately notifying the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee of any
accidental or Slug Discharge of any raw materials or recycled oil to either
the Sanitary or Storm Sewer consistent with the requirements in Article
VIII, Section 8.

3. The District may require the submittal of BMP Plans and documentation of
procedures required in this Section. Review of such plans and documentation of
procedures by the District shall not relieve the User from the responsibility to
modify the User’s facility or BMP Plan and procedures as necessary to meet all
requirements of this Ordinance. Review by the District does not constitute an
approval of a BMP Plan and procedures, and the District and its designee(s) are
not to be construed as responsible for the actions of the User and any impacts the
User may cause as a result of a spill or Slug Discharge.

E. Accidental Discharge & Slug Control Plan

1. All permitted Non-Residential Users are required to develop, implement and
maintain BMPs in the form of an Accidental Discharge & Slug Control Plan
hereafter referred to as Spill Plan. All Non-Residential Users that meet the below

53



criteria are required to develop and implement a Spill Plan regardless of whether
that User is regulated by a Discharge Permit.

a)

b)

c)

d)

Chemicals (raw materials, chemical intermediates, wastes to be recycled,
final products, or utility chemicals) that total or exceed 250 gallons at or
on its site;

Prohibited Discharge Materials as defined in Article IV, Section 2 at or on
its site; or

Hazardous Waste as defined in 40 CFR Part 261 at or on its site; or

Been defined by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee to have a need
to control Slug Discharges.

The Spill Plan which is required to be submitted to the District for review if the
User’s Discharge is regulated, shall address, at a minimum, the following:

a)

Specifics of Spill Plan:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Description of Discharge practices, including non-routine batch
Discharges;

Description of stored chemicals, including quantity of chemicals
and type and number of storage containers;

Site diagram showing location of all tanks holding greater than or
equal to 250 gallons or areas containing 8 drums or more of raw
materials, prohibited wastes, wastes to be recycled, hazardous
wastes or final product. Identification and location of all liquid
materials is mandatory;

Procedures to prevent adverse impact from any accidental or Slug
Discharge. Such procedures include, but are not limited to,
inspection and maintenance of storage areas, handling, and
transfer of materials, loading and unloading operations, control of
plant site runoff, worker training, building of containment
structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic organic
Pollutants, including solvents, and/or measures and equipment for
emergency response. Building containment structures or
production equipment changes are considered procedures to
prevent adverse spills. If containment structures are connected to
the Sanitary Sewer, a valve normally left in a closed position is
required;

Location of Notice/Signs posted in conspicuous places advising
employees in English and the language of common use whom to

54



F.

call in the event of a spill, Accidental Discharge of prohibited
materials, Slug Discharge, or a Bypass of any part of a Pretreatment
system; and

(vi) Emergency telephone number (24-hour) off-site and backup
telephone number belonging to the Authorized Representative or
designee. If the Spill Plan has been submitted to the District, any
change in the telephone numbers should be submitted to the
District within five (5) working days of being revised.

b) Notification Procedure. The Spill Plan shall contain procedures for
immediately notifying the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee of any
accidental or Slug Discharge, as required by Article VIII, Section 8;

c) Documentation. The Spill Plan shall contain a sample of the documentation
maintained at the site that:

(i) Ensures that all employees who are in a position to cause, discover,
or observe such Discharge are advised of the emergency
notification procedures; and

(ii) Such logs to verify inspection and maintenance procedures to
prevent adverse impacts and confirm that said procedures are
being performed on a regular basis. At minimum, logs are required
to verify valves in containment structures, if present, are closed.

Review of such plans and operating procedures by the District shall not relieve the
User from the responsibility to modify the User’s facility or Spill Plan as necessary
to meet all requirements of this Ordinance. Review by the District does not
constitute an approval of a spill plan and the District, and its designee(s) are not
to be construed as responsible for the actions of the User and any impacts the
User may cause as a result of a spill or Slug Load.

At least once every two (2) years the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee shall
evaluate whether each SIU needs a revision to its Spill Plan. The Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee may require any User to submit at a frequency less than
every two (2) years, such Spill Plan or require modification of an existing Spill Plan
based on changes that have occurred at the site or in response to an incident that
had the potential to impact the POTW.

In alternate years, the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee shall evaluate
whether each NSRU is required to file a revision to its Spill Plan based on changes
that have occurred at the site or in response to an incident that had the potential
to impact the POTW.

Closure Plan

55



1. Any Non-Residential User meeting the requirements of Article IV, Section 5.E
including but not limited to those with Wastewater Discharge Permits that
determines it will cease operations permanently, or if some of the processes that
classify the User as significant are closed, the User shall file a written closure plan
with the District. The closure plan shall be submitted ten (10) working days prior
to the initiation of the plan and shall contain, at a minimum, the following:

a) A description of each Wastewater generating process that will be closed;

b) A description of how the facility will be closed and the extent of operations
during the closure period;

c) An inventory and estimate of the volume of all process Wastewater,
chemicals, and hazardous waste on site. A description of the methods for
disposal, including procedures for removing, transporting, treating,
storing, or disposing of all waste and identifying all off-site waste
management facilities to be used;

d) A schedule of the closure activities indicating the time required to
complete each closure step; and

e) Additional monitoring scheduled that will identify compliance with
Pretreatment Standards during the closure operations.

SECTION 6. VARIANCE

A.

To the extent consistent with the applicable provisions of the Act and the lllinois
Environmental Protection Act (Ch. 111 2, Ill. Rev. Stat., Secs. 1001, et seq.), the Board may
grant individual variances beyond the limitations prescribed in Article IV, Section 3 of this
Ordinance, provided that the petitioner has demonstrated that failure to receive a
variance would work an arbitrary or unreasonable hardship on the petitioner and
provided further that petitioner has demonstrated that Petitioner will be in compliance
by the end of the variance period granted. The burden of showing such arbitrary and
unreasonable hardship shall be on the petitioner who shall, before such variance is
granted, show such arbitrary and unreasonable hardship to the Board by clear and
convincing proof. In no case shall the Board grant any variance whose terms might or
could cause "Interference" or "Pass Through” as such terms are defined in this Ordinance.

In granting a variance, the Board may impose such conditions, exceptions, time
limitations, duration, and other limitations as the policies of this Ordinance, and the
Illinois Environmental Protection Act may require, including limitations that will assure
that petitioner will be in compliance by the end of the variance period. Any variance
granted by the Board shall not exceed two (2) years and shall be granted upon the
condition that the Person who receives such variance shall make such periodic progress
reports as the Board shall specify. Such variance may be extended twice for up to two

56



years each time by affirmative action of the Board, but only if satisfactory progress has
been shown. However, no petitioner shall receive any variances, including any extension,
exceeding a combined total of five years for any specific Pollutant.

Any person seeking a variance shall do so by filing a petition for variance with the District
Director in a format required by the District. Within 21 days of receipt of the petition,
notice of the petition shall be published in a newspaper of local circulation once a week
for three weeks.

The District shall specify information required to be submitted by the petitioner. To
enable the District to rule on the petition for variance, the following information where
applicable, shall be included in the petition:

1. A clear and complete statement of the precise extent of the relief sought,
including specific identification of the particular provisions of the ordinance from
which the variance is sought.

2. Data describing the nature and extent of the present failure to meet the numerical
standards or particular provisions from which the variance is sought and a factual
statement why compliance with the ordinances was not or cannot be achieved by
the required compliance date.

3. A detailed description of the existing and proposed equipment or proposed
method of control to be undertaken to achieve full compliance with the ordinance,
including a time schedule for the implementation of all phases of the control
program from initiation of design to program completion and the estimated costs
involved for each phase and the total cost to achieve compliance.

4, Past efforts to achieve compliance including costs incurred, results achieved and
permit status.

5. A discussion of the availability of alternate methods of compliance, the extent that
such methods were studied, and the comparative factors leading to the selection
of the control program proposed to achieve compliance.

6. A concise factual statement of the reasons the petitioner believes that compliance
with the particular provisions of the ordinance would impose an arbitrary or
unreasonable hardship; and

7. Such other information as required by the District

The District Executive Director or designee shall investigate such petition, consider the
views of persons who might be adversely affected by the granting of a variance and make
a report to the Board regarding the petition filed and variance sought. If the Board in its
discretion concludes that a hearing would be advisable or if the District Executive Director
or any other person files a written objection to the granting of such variance within fifteen

57



(15) days from the date of publication of the petition in the newspaper, then a hearing
shall be held and the burden of proof shall be on the petitioner. Such hearing shall be
conducted in the same manner specified in Article XI Sections B.3.

If the limits of a variance are exceeded or if any terms of a variance are violated by the

Person granted a variance, a violation of this Ordinance is deemed to have occurred and
the variance may be revoked on thirty (30) days’ prior notice.

58



ARTICLE V

INFORMATION REQUIRED OF NON-RESIDENTIAL USERS

SECTION 1. INITIAL SURVEY (QUESTIONNAIRE)

A.

The Initial Survey shall be completed in order to ensure that said Non-Residential Users
of the POTW of the District adhere to and comply with the restrictions and prohibitions
pertaining to Pretreatment Standards of wastes Discharged into the POTW of the District
set forth in Article IV, spill control of raw materials, intermediates and waste as set forth
in Article IV, Section 5.E, and to facilitate the District’s investigation of apparent or
suspected violations thereof. The requirements are as follows:

1. All existing or new Non-Residential Users, in areas receiving Sewer Service from
the District, shall complete and submit an Initial Survey on a form provided by the
District when requested by the District.

2. All Users defined in Article V, Section 1.A.1 seeking to establish a new account for
Sanitary Sewer service from the District or to establish a new connection to the
POTW of the District, shall file a completed Initial Survey with the District as a
condition to the establishment of such new Sanitary Sewer service account or
connection to the POTW of the District.

3. All Users defined above that fail to complete and submit to the District an Initial
Survey shall be in violation of the provisions of this Article and shall be subject to
all of the applicable penalties thereof, including but expressly not limited to the
revocation of all permits and approvals previously granted to the commercial or
Industrial User in question for the Discharge of Sewage or Wastewater into the
POTW of the District.

Food Service Establishment (FSE) Survey

1. The Initial FSE Survey shall ensure that FSEs discharging to the POTW of the District
adhere to and comply with the restrictions and prohibitions pertaining to
Pretreatment Standards of wastes Discharged into the POTW of the District set
forth in Article IV, Sections 2 and 3 and to control spills of raw materials,
intermediates and waste as set forth in Article IV, Section 5.E, and shall facilitate
the District’s investigation of apparent or suspected violations thereof. The
requirements for the Initial FSE Survey are as follows:

a) All existing or new FSEs, including those areas receiving Sewer Service from

the District, shall complete and submit an Initial FSE Survey on a form
provided by the District when requested by the District.

59



b)

d)

e)

The Initial FSE Survey shall cover at a minimum information that includes
a description of processes, kitchen fixtures, water usage and Wastewater
characteristics, plus grease usage and management for the facility. This
information will be required to be submitted and will be evaluated by the
District for determination of the requirement to issue a General FSE
Discharge Permit or FSEP per Article VII, Section 2.D.

All new FSEs shall file a completed Initial FSE Survey with the governing
municipality, namely the Town of Normal, the Village of Downs, City of
Bloomington, or Bloomington Township).

The Initial Survey shall contain a statement affirming the truth,
completeness and correctness of information submitted signed by an
Authorized Representative of the User as defined in Article I, Section 3. In
the event that the District obtains the information through a site
inspection(s), but the Initial Survey is not signed by an Authorized
Representative, the District may proceed to determine classification and
permit as appropriate based on the information obtained at the site.

All Users defined above that fail to complete and submit to the District an
Initial Survey within thirty (30) calendar days of notice by the District, or
who shall contain inaccurate and/or information that User knows is
inaccurate or untruthful, shall be in violation of the provisions of this
Article and shall be subject to all of the applicable penalties thereof,
including but expressly not limited to the revocation of all permits and
approvals previously granted to the User for the Discharge of Sewage or
Wastewater into the POTW of the District.

SECTION 2. AFFIRMATION TO INITIAL SURVEY

A.

The District will determine the frequency an affirmation to the Industrial User or FSE
Survey needs to be submitted.

Any User, defined in Article V, Section 1, having filed an Initial Survey of FSE Survey where
the information remains true, complete, and correct in all respects may be allowed to
submit a statement that the information remains current in lieu of submitting a new
survey. The statement is required to be signed by an Authorized Representative of the

All Users defined above that fail to file an Affirmation with the District, or shall file a false
affirmation, shall be in violation of the provisions of this Article and shall be subject to all
of the applicable penalties thereof, including but expressly not limited to the revocation

60



of all permits and approvals previously granted to the commercial or Industrial User in
guestion for the Discharge of Sewage or Wastewater into the POTW of the District.

SECTION 3. REPORTS OF CHANGED CONDITIONS

A.

Any User, defined in Article V, Section 1, that makes any changes determined to be
substantial as defined in Article VIII, Section 7 shall report said changes as required in
Article VIII, Section 7. Reports of changed conditions are required to be made prior to the
anticipated change. The User may be required to file an updated survey as a result of
changed conditions.

SECTION 4. ADDITIONAL SURVEY INFORMATION

A.

After review of the Initial Survey completed per Article V, Section 1, all Non-Residential
Users that the District has identified as a potential SIU or a NSRU shall be required to
complete and file a more detailed Wastewater Survey on a form provided by the District.
At a minimum, a description of processes, water usage and Wastewater characteristics
for the facility must be submitted. This information will be evaluated by the District for
evaluation, and the District will use that information to determine whether an Individual
Wastewater Discharge Permit per Articles VI and VII, or a General Wastewater Discharge
Permit, is required for the User.

Periodic Updates of Wastewater Survey Information. The District reserves the right to
require revised and/or updated Wastewater Survey information under the following
conditions:

1. A Report of Changed Conditions is filed as required in Article VIII, Section 7,

2. An application for a Wastewater Discharge Permit is required to be filed per
Articles VI and VII, or

3. A re-issuance of a Wastewater Discharge Permit occurs per Article VII, Section 7.
In addition to the Wastewater Survey defined in this Section, CIUs may be required to
complete a category specific survey that identifies sub-processes and processes

performed at the site in order to define which sub-processes and processes are regulated
by an USEPA Effluent Guideline category.

61



ARTICLE VI

WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND APPLICATION

SECTION 1. WASTEWATER INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS

When requested by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee, a User must submit information
on the nature and characteristics of its Wastewater within thirty (30) calendar days of the
request. The Pretreatment Coordinator or designee is authorized to prepare a form for this
purpose and may periodically require Users to update this information. The Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee may also prepare specialized forms for various business types and
functions. Information that may be required will be consistent with that identified in Article V
and Article VI, Section 5. Hauled Waste is permitted under the provisions of Article VI, Sections 2

and 8.

SECTION 2. WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT AUTHORITY AND REQUIREMENTS

A.

Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit issued to SIUs which includes ClUs. No SIU,
including any CIU, shall Discharge Wastewater to the POTW without first obtaining an
individual Wastewater Discharge Permit from the Pretreatment Coordinator except that
a SIU, including any CIU, that has filed a timely application pursuant to this Ordinance may
continue to Discharge for the time period specified therein.

General Wastewater Discharge Permit issued to SIU and CIU. At the discretion of the
Pretreatment Coordinator, the District may use general Wastewater Discharge Permits to
control SIU or CIU Discharges to the POTW if the following conditions are met:

1. Involve the same or substantially similar types of operations;

2. Discharge the same types of waste;

3. Require the same effluent limitations or BMPs;

4, Require the same or similar monitoring and/or reporting requirements; and

5. In the opinion of the Pretreatment Coordinator, are more appropriately controlled

under a general permit than under individual Wastewater Discharge Permits.

Other Wastewater Discharge Permits. The Pretreatment Coordinator may require other
Non-Residential Users to obtain either individual or general Wastewater Discharge
Permits as necessary to carry out the purposes of this Ordinance. The Wastewater
Discharge Permit will define that holders of permits issued under this Section shall not be
classified as SIUs. Non-Residential Users with Wastewater Discharge Permits in this class

62



may include but are not limited to:

1.

Any User that has been determined to be a NSCIU as defined in Article Il, Section
3

Any User that has been determined not to be a SIU as defined in Article Il, Section
3 that the Pretreatment Coordinator requires to be regulated by Wastewater
Discharge Permit;

Any User subject to National Categorical Pretreatment Standards that opts not to
Discharge Pollutants shall obtain a Zero Process Wastewater Discharge Permit;

Any User that is a non-Categorical Zero Process Wastewater Discharger that the
Pretreatment Coordinator determines shall be permitted;

Non-Significant Regulated Users (NSRU) as defined below. In the event that the
District operates more than one POTW, the percentage shall be determined based
on the plant to which the User Discharges rather than the total capacity of all of
the District plants:

a) NSRU that Discharge a process Wastewater Flow greater than or equal to
one half (0.5) percent of the POTW’s design dry-weather hydraulic

capacity, or five thousand (5,000) gallons per day, whichever is smaller;

b) NSRU that Discharge more than or equal to one half (0.5) percent of the
design dry-weather organic treatment capacity of the POTW;

c) NSRU that Discharge one half (0.5) percent of the Maximum Allowable
Headworks Loading for any Pollutant regulated by a Local Limit developed
in accordance with Article 1V, Section 3; or

d) NSRU that intermittently Discharge any individual batch or batches that
would meet the criteria in a, b, or c above when Discharged or otherwise
has the potential to Discharge a Slug Load to the POTW;

Non-Residential Users that have devices installed to remove oils, grease, and sand;

Food Service Establishments (FSE);

Trucked waste, and

Non-Residential Users are required to eliminate or control specified Pollutants
from their waste stream through the development and implementation of a BMP

63



Plan.

Any violation of the terms and conditions of an individual or general Wastewater
Discharge Permit shall be deemed a violation of this Ordinance and subject the
Wastewater Discharge permittee to the sanctions set out in Articles XI through XIlII.
Obtaining an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit does not relieve a
permittee of its obligation to comply with all Federal and State Pretreatment Standards
or Requirements or with any other requirements of Federal, State, and local law.

SECTION 3. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITTING: EXISTING
CONNECTIONS

A.

Any SIU or CIU required to obtain an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit
who was Discharging Wastewater into the POTW prior to the effective date of this
Ordinance and who wishes to continue such Discharges in the future, shall, within ninety
(90) calendar days after said date, apply to the Pretreatment Coordinator for the
appropriate Wastewater Discharge Permit in accordance with Article VI, Section 5, and
shall not cause or allow Discharges to the POTW to continue after one hundred eighty
(180) calendar days of the effective date of this Ordinance except in accordance with a
Wastewater Discharge Permit issued by the Pretreatment Coordinator.

Any non-SIU or non-CIU that is required to obtain individual or general Wastewater
Discharge Permits shall file an application not less than ninety (90) calendar days or within
the time frame required in a notification sent by the Pretreatment Coordinator.

General Permits for Food Service Establishments. An existing FSE may be required to
obtain a general FSE Discharge Permit in accordance with Article VI, Section 5.

SECTION 4. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITTING: NEW
CONNECTIONS

A.

Any SIU or CIU, who proposes to begin or recommence Discharging into the POTW must
obtain an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit prior to the beginning or
recommencing of such Discharge. An application for this individual or general Wastewater
Discharge Permit, in accordance with Article VI, Section 5, must be filed at least ninety
(90) calendar days prior to the date upon which any Discharge will begin or recommence
pending review by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee.

Any non-SIU or non-CIU who proposes to begin or recommence Discharging into the
POTW that is required to obtain an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit
must obtain such permit prior to the beginning or recommencing of such Discharge or
operations in the case of a zero process Discharger, in accordance with Article VI, Section
5. An application for this individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit must be filed

64



at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date upon which any Discharge or operations
will begin or recommence pending review by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee.

A FSE that proposes a new connection may be required to obtain a general FSE Discharge
Permit in accordance with Article VI, Section 5.

SECTION 5. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT APPLICATION
CONTENTS

A.

Individual Application Requirement. All Users required to obtain an Individual
Wastewater Discharge Permit or Zero Process Wastewater Discharge Permit must submit
a permit application. Incomplete or inaccurate applications will not be processed and will
be returned to the User for revision.

Individual Application Contents. The Pretreatment Coordinator or designee may require
all Users to submit as part of an application all or some of the following information:

1. All information required by Article V, Sections 1, 3 and 4.

2. Identifying and contact information for the site including name and address of the
facility, the name of the operator and owner as well as contact information for the
Authorized Representative and daily on-site contact.

3. Description of Operations.

a) A brief description of the nature of the activities, services, production, and
plant processes on the premises. Include each product produced by type,
amount, process or processes, and a general rate of production.

b) Number and type of employees, hours of operation, and proposed or
actual hours of operation.

c) Type and amount of raw materials processed (average and maximum per
day) including a list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at the
facility which are, or could accidentally or intentionally be, Discharged to
the POTW.

4, Time and duration of Discharges with an estimate of the average daily and
maximum Flow.

5. Waste Characteristics. Information showing the nature and concentration of the
Discharge in relation to Applicable Pretreatment Standards and Local Limits.

65



6. Requests for a monitoring waiver for a Pollutant regulated as a Categorical
Pretreatment neither present nor expected to be present in the Discharge based
on 40 CFR Section 403.12(e)(2). Representative sampling and analysis will be
required to substantiate the request.

7. Plans and Diagrams

a) Site plans/floor plans that show the footprint of the building with an
outline of major equipment similar to an emergency exit plan;

b) Site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans, and details to show
all sewers, floor drains, and appurtenances by size, location and elevation,
and all points of Discharge; and

c) A diagram showing the location for monitoring the Discharge of all wastes
covered by the permit.

8. Environmental Permits. A list of any environmental control permits held by or for
the facility.

9. Any other information as may be deemed necessary by the Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee to evaluate the Wastewater Discharge Permit
application.

General Application Requirement. The Pretreatment Coordinator may require all Users
that are required to obtain a general Wastewater Discharge Permit to submit an
application on a form provided by the District which is specific to the category regulated
by the general Wastewater Discharge Permit. The form may require but is not limited to
contact information, production processes, the types of wastes generated, and the
location for monitoring all wastes if regulated by the general permit. Where the Standard
will require compliance with a BMP or pollution prevention alternative, the User shall
submit documentation as required by the Pretreatment Coordinator.

General Application Requirement for Food Service Establishments (FSE). The
Pretreatment Coordinator may require all FSE that are required to obtain a general
Wastewater Discharge Permit to submit an application on a form provided by the District
which is specific to FSE. The form may require but is not limited to contact information,
general business information; facility operation; kitchen fixtures; fats, oil, and grease
handling; kitchen clean-up and water usage; grease interceptor or alternatives used; and
sampling locations. The District requires FSE to comply with a BMP and the FSE shall
submit documentation as required by the Pretreatment Coordinator.

General Application for Waste Haulers. All Wastewater Haulers are required to obtain a

66



Wastewater Discharge Permit and submit an application on a form provided by the
District. The form may require but is not limited to contact information, truck
identification, names, and addresses of sources of waste, volume and characteristics of
the waste, type of industry, known or suspected waste constituents, and whether any
wastes are RCRA hazardous wastes.

Categorical Monitoring Waivers

1. Authority. Pursuant to 40 CFR Section 403.12(e)(2)(v) and (vi), the District may
authorize an Industrial User subject to a Categorical Pretreatment Standard to
forego sampling of a Pollutant regulated by a Categorical Pretreatment Standard
if the User has demonstrated through sampling and other technical factors that
the Pollutant is neither present nor expected to be present in the Discharge, or is
present only at background levels from intake water and without any increase in
the Pollutant due to activities of the User. This waiver is not available to Users
whose concentration Standards are derived from mass Standards or production-
based Standards. This authorization is subject to the following conditions:

a)

b)

The waiver may be authorized where a Pollutant is determined to be
present solely due to Sanitary Wastewater Discharged from the facility
provided that the Sanitary Wastewater is not regulated by an applicable
Categorical Pretreatment Standard and otherwise includes no process
Wastewater.

The monitoring waiver is valid only for the duration of the effective period
of the individual Wastewater Discharge Permit, but in no case longer than
5 years. The User must submit a new request for the waiver before the
waiver can be granted for each subsequent individual Wastewater
Discharge Permit.

This provision does not supersede certification processes and
requirements established in Categorical Pretreatment Standards, except
as otherwise specified in the Categorical Pretreatment Standard.

2. Application Requirements

a)

b)

In making a demonstration that a Pollutant is not present, the User must
provide data from at least one sampling of the facility’s process
Wastewater prior to any treatment present at the facility that is
representative of all Wastewater from all processes.

The request for a monitoring waiver must be signed in accordance with
Article VI, Section 6 and include the certification statement in Article VI,

67



Section 6.

c) Non-detectable sample results may be used only as a demonstration that
a Pollutant is not present if the EPA approved method from 40 CFR Part
136 with the lowest minimum detection level for that Pollutant was used
in the analysis.

3. Documentation and Record Retention for CIU Monitoring Waivers

Any grant of the monitoring waiver by the Pretreatment Coordinator must be
included as a condition in the User’s permit. The reasons supporting the waiver
and any information submitted by the User in its request for the waiver must be
maintained by the Pretreatment Coordinator for 3 years after expiration of the
waiver.

SECTION 6. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL APPLICATION SIGNATORIES AND CERTIFICATION

A.

All Wastewater Discharge Permit applications, User reports and certification statements
must be signed by an Authorized Representative of the User and contain the following
certification statement:

"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared
under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that
qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on
my inquiry of the Person or Persons who manage the system, or those Persons directly
responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. | am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and
imprisonment for knowing violations".

If the designation of an Authorized Representative is no longer accurate because a
different individual or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the facility
or overall responsibility for environmental matters for the company, a new written
authorization satisfying the requirements of this Section must be submitted to the
Pretreatment Coordinator or designee prior to or together with any reports to be signed
by an Authorized Representative.

SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT DECISIONS

The Pretreatment Coordinator or designee will evaluate the data furnished by the User
and may require additional information. Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of a
complete Wastewater Discharge Permit application, the Pretreatment Coordinator will

68



determine whether to issue a Wastewater Discharge Permit. The Pretreatment
Coordinator may deny any application for a Wastewater Discharge Permit. If the
Pretreatment Coordinator fails to act within ninety (90) calendar days, a request for
permit application shall be deemed to be denied.

SECTION 8. TRUCKED DISCHARGES

A.

B.

Permits

No person, firm or corporation shall Discharge Septic Tank Wastes, holding tank wastes,
portable toilet wastes, or other wastes from a tanker truck into the designated discharge
facilities of the District without first obtaining a written permit or permission from the
District. The District does not accept industrial process Wastewater and landfill leachate.
No trucked wastes are to be Discharged by any entity except at the Discharge points
designated by the District. Any violation of this Ordinance by a Wastewater Hauler shall
be justification for the Executive Director to immediately bar the Wastewater Hauler from
dumping wastes into the District POTW for a period of time as may be determined by the
Executive Director.

1.

Application for permits shall be filed with the District on forms so provided. The
application shall be signed as required by Article VI, Section 6.

The permit will list all trucks that are included in the permit. A District approved
identification tag shall be required on each truck when on District property.

Each permit shall designate the location of disposing of trucked wastes.

No permit shall be valid for a period of more than three (3) years, and each permit
shall expire on January 31st of the expiration year.

No permit shall be transferable. A permit becomes void under any of the following
conditions:

a) Change in ownership of the permittee;
b) Change in vehicle for which the permit is issued; or
c) Change in the name and address of the permittee.

Administration and Fees

The District, from time to time shall review said applications and fees, and issue said
permits, if in compliance with this Ordinance.

69



Fees for dumping wastes are contained in “AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE
CURRENT RATES FOR FEES, CHARGES, PERMITS AND PENALTIES OF THE BLOOMINGTON
AND NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT.”

Rules and Regulations

No person, firm or corporation shall dispose of any trucked wastes upon any property of
the District other than at the designated discharge point established by the District. In its
discretion the District may accept waste subject to the following:

1. Septic tank disposal shall be limited to wastes from a septic toilet, chemical closet,
or any other water-tight enclosure used for storage and decomposition of human
excrement and/or Domestic Wastes. Other non-residential wastes may be
approved on a case-by-case basis by the District. The District will not accept
Hauled Waste containing RCRA hazardous waste.

2. Disposal shall be limited to wastes generated within McLean County.

3. Routine disposal shall be permitted daily at the POTW indicated in the permit
between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 3:30 p.m. Emergency dumping requires
District approval. These hours may be adjusted from time to time by the Executive
Director or designee.

4, All trucks which are permitted by the District shall be identified with the following:
a) Owner’s name, address, and phone number;
b) Liquid capacity; and
c) The District Permit No. and year covered.

5. For each trucked load disposed of at the District’'s POTW, the truck driver shall
deliver to the District office building designated on the permit, a signed, numbered
ticket showing the permit identification number, liquid capacity of the truck, time
of arrival and departure, origin of every pickup point comprising the load, along
with the telephone number of each originating source. The ticket shall contain a
signed certification that all septic tank and portable toilet wastes identifying
where the load has originated and that they are domestic in origin. The ticket shall
also contain a certification that the load does not contain RCRA hazardous waste.
The driver shall not unload until obtaining approval by the Operator at the District.

6. The driver is required to take a sample of every load Discharged in accordance

70



10.

11.

with District procedures. A sample may also be taken by the District of each
truckload of waste delivered to the District’s POTW.

Persons disposing of waste at the District shall be responsible for cleaning up all
the spills and replacing the manhole covers at the end of the unloading process.

The permittee shall furnish a list of authorized drivers to the District covered by
the permit and keep this list current.

The District will implement procedures to randomly confirm the source and type
of waste hauled and to analyze Hauled Waste samples for compliance with this
Ordinance.

The District reserves the right to reject any wastes delivered to the facilities of the
District, which the District believes may have an adverse effect on the POTW
and/or District processes.

District operating personnel may require the load be dumped over a period of a
half-hour or more, depending upon the Flow and characteristics of the incoming
Sewage at the POTW.

Insurance Requirements

Each permittee shall carry such insurance as is deemed necessary by the District to
protect the District against claims, causes of actions or any act of any permittee.

A Certificate of Insurance shall be filed with the District. After approval of the
Certificate and upon issuance of a permit, the septic tank Wastewater Hauler shall
be permitted to Discharge at the designated location. No one shall be allowed on
the site without a valid Certificate of Insurance. The District shall be a named
insured on any such policies. The Certificate of Insurance shall conform to the
types and amounts of insurance as listed in the insurance requirements on file
with the District. The Certificate of Insurance shall include the coverage for
general liability, automobile liability and Worker's Compensation in amounts
specified from time to time by the Executive Director or designee.

Revocation of Permits

Any violation of the conditions stated above shall be justification for the District to
immediately revoke any or all permits issued in addition to the reasons stated in Article
VII, Section 6. The District reserves the right to revoke any and all permits at any time if it
determines the revocation of said permits is in the best interests of the District.

71



SECTION 9. INTERMITTENT DISCHARGES AND CLEAN-UPS

A.

No person, firm or corporation shall Discharge atypical waste, contaminated waters from
any non-domestic source or special waste on an intermittent or one-time basis without
first obtaining a connection permit and Wastewater Discharge Permit as provided in
Article Ill, Section 2 and Article VI, Section 2, respectively. The request to Discharge and
project description shall be submitted on a form provided by the District. In the event
that such waste will be hauled to a discharge point designated by the District, the
Discharger shall also comply with the provisions of Article VI, Section 7.

An evaluation by the District shall be made to determine provisions necessary to prevent
the introduction of Pollutants to the POTW which could:

1. Cause injury, Interference or otherwise be incompatible with the system or the
use or disposal of Biosolids;

2. Constitute a hazard to humans, animals and/or the environment; and/or
3. Cause Pass-Through of Pollutants into the receiving waters or the atmosphere.

Provisions may include site specific Discharge rates, unique standards — either
concentration or mass based or both, special monitoring and/or Pretreatment
requirements. The Discharge water from these special projects may be subject to one or
more Surcharge fees as defined in “AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE CURRENT RATES
FOR FEES, CHARGES, PERMITS AND PENALTIES OF THE BLOOMINGTON AND NORMAL
WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT.”

72



ARTICLE VI
WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT ISSUANCE PROCESS
SECTION 1. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT DURATION

A. An individual Wastewater Discharge Permit shall be issued for a specified time period, not
to exceed five (5) years from the effective date of the permit. An individual Wastewater
Discharge Permit may be issued for a period of less than five (5) years, at the discretion
of the Pretreatment Coordinator. Each individual Wastewater Discharge Permit will
indicate a specific date upon which it will expire.

B. A general Wastewater Discharge Permit shall be issued for a specific time period, not to
exceed five (5) years from the effective date of the permit. The District will identify in the
general Wastewater Discharge Permit whether or not the permittee is defined as a SIU.

C. A general FSE Discharge Permit (FSEP) may be issued for a specified time period, not to
exceed three (3) years from the effective date of the permit. Each FSEP will indicate a
specific date upon which it will expire.

D. The Pretreatment Coordinator may extend a permit issued under Article VII, Section 1.A,
B or C above with a duration of less than five (5) years to a maximum duration of five (5)
years upon written notification.

SECTION 2. WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT CONTENTS

A Wastewater Discharge Permit shall include such conditions as are deemed reasonably
necessary by the Pretreatment Coordinator to prevent Pass-Through or Interference, protect the
quality of the water body receiving the POTW'’s effluent, protect worker health and safety,
facilitate Biosolids management and disposal, and protect against damage to the POTW.

A Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permits must contain:

1. A statement that indicates Wastewater Discharge Permit issuance date, expiration
date and effective date;

2. A statement that the Wastewater Discharge Permit is nontransferable without
prior notification to the District in accordance with Article VII, Section 5, and
provisions for furnishing the new owner or operator with a copy of the existing
Wastewater Discharge Permit;

3. Effluent limits, including BMPs, based on Applicable Pretreatment Standards;

73



4, Requirements to control Accidental Spills and Slug Discharges, if determined by
the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee to be necessary;

5. Self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record-keeping
requirements. These requirements shall include an identification of Pollutants or
BMPs to be monitored, sampling location, sampling frequency, and sample type
based on Federal, State, and local law; and

6. A statement of applicable civil and criminal penalties for violation of Pretreatment
Standards and Requirements, and any applicable compliance schedule. Such
schedule may not extend the time for compliance beyond that required by
applicable Federal, State, or local law.

An individual Wastewater Discharge Permit must contain the process for seeking a waiver
from monitoring for a Pollutant neither present nor expected to be present in the
Discharge in accordance with Article VI, Section 5.F. Any grant of the monitoring waiver
by the Pretreatment Coordinator shall be included as a condition of the User’s permit.

Individual and General Wastewater Discharge Permits may contain, but need not be
limited to, the following conditions:

1. Limits on the average and/or maximum rate of Discharge, time of Discharge,
and/or requirements for Flow regulation and equalization;

2. Requirements for the installation of Pretreatment technology, pollution control,
or construction of appropriate containment devices, designed to equalize, reduce,
eliminate, or prevent the introduction of Pollutants into the POTW;

3. Requirements that allow the use of Bypass of the Pretreatment system conditions
consistent with 40 CFR Section 403.17 and Article XIV, Section 3;

4, Requirements for the development and implementation of Spill Prevention
Containment and Countermeasures / Slug Control Plan or other special conditions
including BMPs necessary to adequately prevent accidental, unanticipated, or
non-routine Discharges;

5. Development and implementation of waste minimization plans to reduce the
amount of Pollutants Discharged to the POTW;

6. Development and implementation of BMP Plans to reduce the amount of

Pollutants Discharged to the POTW if the categorical standards do not already
require the implementation of a BMP Plan;

74



10.

11.

12.

The unit charge and/or schedule of Surcharge fees for the management of the
Wastewater Discharged to the POTW;

Requirements for installation and maintenance of inspection and sampling
facilities and equipment;

Requirements for the zero Discharge of process waste regulated by a National
Categorical Pretreatment Standard or local Standard;

Documentation of any monitoring waiver approved by the Pretreatment
Coordinator for categorically regulated Pollutants found not to be present and
requirements to re-institute monitoring in the event that a waived Pollutant is
found to be present or is expected to be present because of changes that occur in
the User’s operation;

A statement that compliance with the Wastewater Discharge Permit does not
relieve the permittee of responsibility for compliance with all applicable Federal
and State Pretreatment Standards, including those which become effective during
the term of the Wastewater Discharge Permit; and

Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Pretreatment Coordinator to
ensure compliance with this Ordinance, and State and Federal laws, rules, and
regulations.

General Permits for Food Service Establishments. The general permit for FSE will include
grease interceptor requirements with operation and maintenance requirements. All FSE
shall implement a BMP Plan in its operation to minimize the Discharge of FOG to the
Sewer System. Detailed requirements for BMP Plans shall be specified in the permit. This
may include but is not limited to:

N o u kW N

Installation of drain screens;

Segregation and collection of waste cooking oil;
Disposal of food waste into the trash or Garbage;
Employee training;

Record keeping requirements;

Notifications required, and

Kitchen signage.

If the FSE has a waiver for some aspect of the program, that waiver will be documented
in an attachment to the permit.

75



SECTION 3. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT APPEALS

No Discharge or facility connection permit shall be issued by the Executive Director or designee
to any Person whose Discharge of material to sewers, whether shown upon the User’s application
or determined after inspection and testing conducted by the District, is not in conformity with all
applicable ordinances, and regulations or whose application is incomplete or does not comply
with the requirements of this Ordinance. The Executive Director shall state the reason or reasons
for denial in writing, which shall be mailed or personally delivered to the applicant within five (5)
days after denial.

The Pretreatment Coordinator shall provide public notice of the issuance of an individual or
general Wastewater Discharge Permit. Any Person, including the User, may petition the
Pretreatment Coordinator to reconsider the terms of a Wastewater Discharge Permit within
thirty (30) calendar days of notice of its issuance. The following conditions apply to Wastewater
Discharge Permit appeals:

A. Failure to submit a timely petition for review shall be deemed to be a waiver of the
administrative appeal.

B. In its petition, the appealing party must indicate the Wastewater Discharge Permit
provisions objected to, the reasons for the objection, and the alternative condition, if any,
it seeks to place in the Wastewater Discharge Permit.

C. The effectiveness of the Wastewater Discharge Permit shall not be stayed pending the
appeal.
D. If the Pretreatment Coordinator fails to act within thirty (30) calendar days, a request for

reconsideration shall be deemed to be denied. Decisions not to reconsider a Wastewater
Discharge Permit, not to issue a Wastewater Discharge Permit, or not to modify a
Wastewater Discharge Permit shall be considered final administrative actions for
purposes of judicial review.

E. Aggrieved parties seeking judicial review of the final administrative Wastewater
Discharge Permit decision must do so by filing a complaint with the Circuit Court for
McLean County within sixty (60) calendar days.

SECTION 4. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT MODIFICATION

A The Pretreatment Coordinator may modify an individual Wastewater Discharge Permit
for good cause, including, but not limited to, the following reasons:

1. To incorporate any new or revised Federal, State, or local Pretreatment Standards
or Requirements;

76



10.

11.

To address substantial alterations or additions to the User's operation, processes,
or Wastewater volume or character since the time of Wastewater Discharge
Permit issuance;

To address introduction of a Pollutant for which a monitoring waiver had been
obtained;

A change in the POTW that requires either a temporary or permanent reduction
or elimination of the authorized Discharge;

Information indicating that the permitted Discharge poses a threat to the District’s
POTW, District personnel, or the receiving waters;

Violation of any terms or condition of the Wastewater Discharge Permit;

Misrepresentations or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the Wastewater
Discharge Permit application or in any required reporting;

Revision of or a grant of variance from Categorical Pretreatment Standards
pursuant to 40 CFR Section 403.13;

To correct typographical or other errors in the Wastewater Discharge Permit;

To reflect a transfer of either the facility ownership or operation to either a new
owner or operator as provided by Article VII, Section 5; or

To reflect the issuance of a monitoring waiver.

The Pretreatment Coordinator may modify a general Wastewater Discharge Permit for
good cause, including, but not limited to, the following reasons:

To incorporate any new or revised Federal, State, or local Pretreatment Standards
or Requirements;

A change in the POTW that requires either a temporary or permanent reduction
or elimination of the authorized Discharge;

To correct typographical or other errors in the Wastewater Discharge Permit; or

To reflect a transfer of either the facility ownership or operation to either a new
owner or operator as provided by Article VII, Section 5.

77



SECTION 5. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL WASTEWATER PERMIT TRANSFER

Wastewater Discharge Permits shall not be transferred, assigned, or sold to a new owner or new
User in different premises or to a new or different operation in the same or different premises
without the expressed written approval of the District. If the premises is sold or otherwise
transferred by the permittee to a new owner who will maintain the operation in the same
premises, whether or not the seller will continue to operate the equipment or the equipment is
leased to another entity for its operation at the site of the original permittee, then the permit
held by the seller and/or owner shall be reissued by the District to the new owner and/or
operator as a temporary permit; provided:

A The new owner and/or operator notified the District at least thirty (30) calendar days in
advance of the transaction, and

B. The new owner and/or operator confirmed to the District, within five (5) working days of
the transaction, completion of the date of sale or execution of an operating contract, and

C. The new owner and/or operator shall apply for a new permit within ninety (90) calendar
days of the date of sale/transfer.

Failure to provide the sale/transfer notification defined in subsection A and B above, renders the
Wastewater Discharge Permit void as of said sale and/or transfer date. It is further provided that
the temporary permit shall only be effective for one hundred eighty (180) calendar days after the
date of sale or transfer. The District shall have the same remedies for violation of temporary
permits as it has for violation of other Wastewater Discharge Permits.

SECTION 6. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT REVOCATION

The Pretreatment Coordinator may revoke an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit
for good cause, including, but not limited to, the following reasons:

A. Failure to notify the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee of significant changes to the
Wastewater prior to the changed Discharge;

B. Failure to provide prior notification to the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee of
changed conditions pursuant to Article VIII, Sections 6 and 7;

C. Misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the Wastewater
Discharge Permit application;

D. Falsifying self-monitoring reports and certification statements;

E. Tampering with monitoring equipment;

78



Refusing to allow the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee(s) timely access to the facility
premises and records;

Failure to meet effluent limitations;
Failure to pay fines;

Failure to pay sewer charges;

Failure to meet compliance schedules;

Failure to complete a Wastewater survey or the Wastewater Discharge Permit
application;

Failure to provide advance notice of the transfer of business or operation ownership of a
permitted facility; or

Violation of any Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, or any terms of the Wastewater
Discharge Permit or this Ordinance.

Wastewater Discharge Permits shall be voidable upon cessation of operations or transfer of
business or operation ownership. All Wastewater Discharge Permits issued to a particular User
are void upon the issuance of a new Wastewater Discharge Permit to that User.

SECTION 7. INDIVIDUAL AND GENERAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT RE-ISSUANCE

A User with an expiring Wastewater Discharge Permit shall apply for Wastewater Discharge
Permit re-issuance by submitting a complete Wastewater Discharge Permit application, in
accordance with Article VI, Section 5, a minimum of ninety (90) calendar days prior to the
expiration of the User's existing Wastewater Discharge Permit.

SECTION 8. REGULATION OF WASTE RECEIVED FROM OTHER JURISDICTIONS

A.

If another municipality, or User located within another municipality, contributes
Wastewater to the POTW, the District shall enter into an intergovernmental agreement
with the contributing municipality.

The District shall request the following information from the contributing municipality at
a frequency determined by the District:

1. A description of the quality and volume of Wastewater Discharged to the POTW
by the contributing municipality;

79



2. An inventory of all Users located within the contributing municipality that are
Discharging to the POTW; and

3. Such other information as the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee may deem
necessary.

An intergovernmental agreement, as required by paragraph A, above, shall contain the
following conditions:

1. A requirement for the contributing municipality to adopt a sewer use ordinance
which is at least as stringent as this Ordinance and Local Limits which are at least
as stringent as those set out in Article IV, Sections 2 and 3 for the area to be served
by the District. The requirement shall specify that such ordinance and limits must
be revised as necessary to reflect changes made to the District’s Ordinance or

Local Limits.

2. A requirement for the contributing municipality to submit a revised Non-
Residential User inventory at a frequency determined by the District but at least
annually;

3. A provision specifying that Pretreatment implementation activities, including

Wastewater Discharge Permit issuance, inspection and sampling, and
enforcement, will be conducted by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee;

4, A requirement for the contributing municipality to provide the Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee with access to all information that the contributing
municipality obtains as part of its Pretreatment activities;

5. Limits on the nature, quality, and volume of the contributing municipality's
Wastewater at the point where it Discharges to the POTW;

6. Requirements for monitoring the contributing municipality's Discharge;

7. A provision ensuring the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee access to the
facilities of Users located within the contributing municipality's jurisdictional
boundaries for the purpose of inspection, sampling, and any other duties deemed

necessary by the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee; and

8. A provision specifying remedies available for breach of the terms of the inter-
municipal agreement.

80



ARTICLE VI
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
SECTION 1. GENERAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Each User of the POTW and facilities of the District shall provide reports as necessary to comply
with this Ordinance and any Wastewater Discharge Permit. Reporting requirements may apply
to Users that are not required to obtain a Wastewater Discharge Permit

SECTION 2. PRETREATMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR NON-RESIDENTIAL USERS

Should the District find that a Non-Residential User does not meet Pretreatment Standards and
Requirements applicable to its Discharge, causes or contributes to a Potential Problem at the
POTW, or when analysis of waste or observation of the effect of such wastes on the POTW
indicate that said wastes cannot be treated satisfactorily at such POTW, or that said wastes are
injurious to the POTW, or to the treatment processes, or pollute the natural waters within the
District, its service areas or the Waters of the State of Illinois additional Pretreatment and/or
operations and maintenance will be required by the District to meet Pretreatment Standards and
Requirements. Such facilities as the District may deem necessary for Pretreatment of the wastes
shall be furnished by and at the expense of the User as a condition of the Discharge of said wastes
into the POTW or to any natural water within the District service area.

A. Pretreatment Review: The Pretreatment Coordinator will require the User to initiate a
Pretreatment review through a telephone call, letter, or certified letter to the Authorized
Representative of the User.

B. Pretreatment Initiation Meeting. A Pretreatment Initiation Meeting will be held between
the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee and the User to discuss the problem and the
solution to said problem. If it is determined that changes in operation and maintenance,
plant modifications, and/or the installation of Pretreatment equipment shall occur to
resolve noncompliance, a schedule shall be established with events and completion
deadlines agreeable to both parties to resolve the noncompliance. If appropriate, a
Compliance Agreement defining the agreed upon schedule will be sent from the District
to the User shortly after the meeting. If a schedule for compliance acceptable to the
Pretreatment Coordinator or designee cannot be established, the matter will be referred
for further enforcement action consistent with the provisions of Article Xl as appropriate.

C. Progress Reports. Progress Reports will be filed by the User on a schedule agreed to by
the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee and the User concerning the completion of
major events leading to the construction and operation of additional Pretreatment
required for the User to meet the Applicable Pretreatment Standards (such events
include, but are not limited to, hiring an engineer, completing preliminary and final plans,

81



executing contracts for major components, commencing and completing construction,
and beginning and conducting routine operation). The User shall identify whether it
complied with the increment of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if appropriate,
the steps being taken by the User to return to the established schedule.

Final Report. A Final Report will be filed with the Pretreatment Coordinator by the User
normally required within ninety (90) calendar days from the end of the schedule deadline
to verify the success or failure or the schedule objective chosen by the User. The Final
Report will if appropriate identify the steps being taken by the User to resolve
noncompliance.

SECTION 3. ADDITIONAL PRETREATMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR CATEGORICAL INDUSTRIAL

USERS

In the event that either the District, EPA or a User determines that the User is regulated as a CIU
by Standards and Requirements promulgated by the USEPA in accordance with Section 307 (b)
and (c) of the Act, the following reports are required to be filed by the User with the District:

A.

Baseline Monitoring Reports (BMR)

Within either one hundred eighty (180) calendar days after the effective date of a
Categorical Pretreatment Standard, or the final administrative decision on a category
determination under 40 CFR Section 403.6(a)(4), whichever is later, existing ClUs
currently Discharging to or scheduled to Discharge to the POTW shall submit to the
Pretreatment Coordinator a report which contains the information listed below. At least
ninety (90) calendar days prior to commencement of their Discharge, New Sources, and
sources that become ClUs subsequent to the promulgation of an applicable Categorical
Standard, shall submit to the Pretreatment Coordinator a report which contains the
information listed below. A New Source shall report the method of Pretreatment it
intends to use to meet applicable Categorical Standards. A New Source also shall give
estimates of its anticipated Flow and quantity of Pollutants to be Discharged.

Users described above shall submit the information set forth below.

1. Identifying Information. Name and address of the facility including the name of
the operator and owners.

2. Environmental Permits. List of any environmental control permits held by or for
the facility.
3. Description of Operations. Brief description of the nature, average rate of

production, (including each product produced by type, amount, processes, and
rate of production), and Standard Industrial Classification of the operation(s)

82



carried out by such User. This description shall include a schematic process
diagram indicating points of Discharge to the POTW from the regulated processes.

Flow Measurement. Information showing the measured average daily and
maximum daily Flow, in gallons per day, to the POTW from each of the following:

a) Regulated process streams, and

b) Other streams as necessary to allow use of the Combined Waste Stream
Formula set out in 40 CFR Section 403.6(e).

The District may allow for verifiable estimates of these Flows when it is justifiable
for cost or feasibility considerations.

Measurements of Pollutants

a) The Categorical Pretreatment Standards applicable to each regulated
process and any new categorically regulated processes for Existing
Sources;

b) The results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and

concentration, and/or mass, where required by the Standard or by the
Pretreatment Coordinator, of regulated Pollutants in the Discharge from
each regulated process. Instantaneous, Daily Maximum and long-term
average concentrations (or mass, where required) shall be reported. The
sample shall be representative of daily operations. In cases where the
Standard requires a BMP or pollution prevention alternative, the User shall
submit such documentation as required by the Pretreatment Coordinator
or designee or the applicable Standards to determine compliance with the
Standard;

c) The User shall take a minimum of one representative sample to complete
that data necessary to comply with the requirements of this Paragraph. 24-
hour Composite Samples must be obtained through flow-proportioned
composite sampling techniques where feasible. The District may waive
flow-proportional composite sampling for any Industrial User that
demonstrates that flow-proportional sampling is infeasible. In such cases,
samples may be obtained through time-proportional composite sampling
techniques or through a minimum of four (4) Grab Samples where the User
demonstrates that this will provide a representative sample of the effluent
being Discharged;

d) Samples should be taken immediately downstream from Pretreatment

83



facilities if such exist or immediately downstream from the regulated
process if no Pretreatment exists. If other Wastewaters are mixed with the
regulated Wastewater prior to Pretreatment the User should measure the
Flows and concentrations necessary to allow the use of the Combined
Wastestream Formula of 40 CFR Section 403.6(e) in order to evaluate
compliance with Pretreatment Standards. Where an alternate
concentration or mass limit has been calculated in accordance with 40 CFR
Section 403.6(e) this adjusted limit along with supporting data shall be
submitted to the Control Authority;

e) Sampling and analysis must be performed in accordance with procedures
set out in Article IV, Section 4. Where 40 CFR Part 136 does not contain
sampling or analytical techniques for the Pollutant in question, or where
the Administrator determines that the Part 136 sampling and analytical
techniques are inappropriate for the Pollutant in question, sampling and
analysis shall be performed by using validated analytical methods or any
other applicable sampling and analytical procedures, including procedures
suggested by the District or other parties, approved by the Administrator;

f) The Pretreatment Coordinator or designee may allow the submission of a
Baseline Report which utilizes only historical data, so long as the data
provides information sufficient to determine the need for industrial
Pretreatment measures.

g) The Baseline Report shall indicate the time, date, and place of sampling
and methods of analysis and certification that such sampling and analysis
is representative of normal work cycles and expected Pollutant Discharges
to the District.

Compliance Certification. A statement, reviewed by the User’s Authorized
Representative of the User (as defined in Article II, Section 3), and certified by a
Qualified Professional, indicating whether Pretreatment Standards are being met
on a consistent basis, and, if not, whether additional operation and maintenance
(O&M) and/or additional Pretreatment is required for the User to meet the
Pretreatment Standards and Requirements.

Compliance Schedule. If additional Pretreatment and/or O&M will be required to
meet the Pretreatment Standards, the shortest schedule by which the User will
provide such additional Pretreatment and/or O&M must be provided. The
completion date in this schedule shall not be later than the compliance date
established for the applicable Pretreatment Standard. A compliance schedule
pursuant to this Section must meet the requirements set out in Article VIII, Section
3.B.

84



8. Signature and Report Certification. All BMRs must be signed and certified in
accordance with Article VI, Section 6.

Compliance Schedule Progress Reports

If additional Pretreatment or proper O&M will be required to meet the National
Categorical Pretreatment Standards; the User will provide the shortest schedule which
will provide such additional Pretreatment or proper O&M. The completion date in this
schedule shall not be later than the compliance date established for the applicable
National Categorical Pretreatment Standards. The following conditions shall apply to the
compliance schedule required by Article VIII, Section 3.A.7.

1. The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates for the
commencement and completion of major events leading to the construction and
operation of additional Pretreatment required for the User to meet the Applicable
Pretreatment Standards (such events include, but are not limited to, hiring an
engineer, completing preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major
components, commencing and completing construction, and beginning and
conducting routine operations);

2. No time increment in the schedule shall exceed nine (9) months;

3. The User shall submit a progress report to the Pretreatment Coordinator no later
than fourteen (14) calendar days following each date in the schedule and the final
date of compliance including, as a minimum, whether or not it complied with the
increment of progress, the reason for any delay, and, if appropriate, the steps
being taken by the User to return to the established schedule;

4, In no event shall more than nine (9) calendar months elapse between such
progress reports to the Pretreatment Coordinator; and

5. All compliance schedule progress reports must be signed and certified in
accordance with Article VI, Section 6;

Reports On Compliance with Categorical Pretreatment Standard Deadlines

Within ninety (90) calendar days following the date for final compliance with applicable
Categorical Pretreatment Standards, or in the case of a New Source following
commencement of the introduction of Wastewater into the POTW, any User subject to
such Pretreatment Standards and Requirements shall submit to the Pretreatment
Coordinator a report containing the information described in Article VIII Section 3.A. For
Users subject to equivalent mass or concentration limits established in accordance with

85



the procedures in 40 CFR Section 403.6(c) and Article IV, Section 3, this report shall
contain a reasonable measure of the User's long-term production rate. For all other Users
subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards expressed in terms of allowable Pollutant
Discharge per unit of production (or other measure of operation), this report shall include
the User's actual production during the appropriate sampling period. All compliance
reports must be signed and certified in accordance with Article VI, Section 6.

SECTION 4. PERIODIC COMPLIANCE REPORTS/SELF-MONITORING REPORTS
A Significant Non-Categorical Industrial Users

1. Significant Non-Categorical Industrial Users shall, at a frequency determined by
the Pretreatment Coordinator but in no case less than twice per year (on dates
specified by the District), submit a report to the District with a description of the
nature, concentration of Pollutants in the Discharge which are limited by
Pretreatment Standards and the measured or estimated average and maximum
daily Flows for the reporting period.

2. These reports shall be based on sampling and analysis performed in the period
covered by the report, and performed in accordance with the techniques
described in 40 CFR Part 136 and amendments thereto. All Wastewater samples
must be representative of the User's Discharge and comply with the requirements
of Article IV, Section 4.

3. All sampling and analysis may be performed by the District, at the sole cost of the
User, in lieu of being performed by the Significant Non-Categorical Industrial User.
In such cases, the District will issue an Attachment to the Wastewater Discharge
Permit that specifies the District will perform sampling and analysis semi-annually

at minimum.
B. Categorical Industrial Users (CIU)
1. All Industrial Users subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standard shall, at a

frequency determined by the Pretreatment Coordinator but in no case less than
twice per year on dates specified by the District (normally in July and January),
submit a report indicating the nature and concentration of Pollutants in the
Discharge which are limited by Pretreatment Standards and the measured or
estimated average and maximum daily Flows for the reporting period. In the cases
where the Pretreatment Standard requires compliance with a BMP (or pollution
prevention alternative), the User shall submit documentation required by the
District or the Pretreatment Standard necessary to determine the compliance
status of the User. All of the Wastewater samples collected and analyzed for the
periodic compliance report must be representative of the Industrial User's daily

86



operational Discharge. At the discretion of the District and in consideration of such
factors as local high or low Flow rates, holidays, budget cycles, etc., the District
may agree to alter the months during which the above reports are to be
submitted. All periodic compliance reports must be signed and certified in
accordance with Article VI, Section 6.

These reports shall be based on sampling and analysis performed in the period
covered by the report and performed in accordance with the techniques described
in 40 CFR Part 136 and amendments thereto. All Wastewater samples must be
representative of the User's Discharge and comply with the requirements of
Article IV, Section 4.

This sampling and analysis may be performed by the District, at the sole cost of
the User, in lieu of CIU. In such cases, the District will issue an attachment to the
Wastewater Discharge Permit that specifies the District will perform sampling and
analysis semi-annually at minimum.

If a User subject to the reporting requirement in this Section monitors any
Pollutant more frequently than required by the Pretreatment Coordinator, using
the procedures prescribed in Article 1V, Section 4, the results of this monitoring
shall be included in the report.

Where the District has imposed Mass Limitations on Users as provided for by 40
CFR Section 403.6(c), the report required by Paragraph B.1. of this Section shall
indicate the mass of Pollutants regulated by the Pretreatment Standards in the
Discharge from the Industrial User.

For Users subject to equivalent mass or concentration limits established by the
District in accordance with the procedures in Article IV, Section 4, the report
required by Paragraph B.1. shall contain a reasonable measure of the User’s long
term production rate. For all other Users subject to Categorical Pretreatment
Standards expressed only in terms of allowable Pollutant Discharge per unit of
production (or other measure of operation), the report required by Paragraph B.1.
shall include the User’s actual average production rate for the reporting period.

In cases where the Pretreatment Standard requires compliance with a BMP or
pollution prevention alternative, the User must submit documentation required
by the Pretreatment Coordinator or the Pretreatment Standard necessary to
determine the compliance status of the User.

Upon approval of a monitoring waiver for Pollutants found to be not present and

revision of the User’s permit by the Pretreatment Coordinator, the User must
certify on each periodic report with the statement in Article VI, Section 6, that

87



there has been no increase in the Pollutant in its wastestream due to activities of
the User with the following statement:

“Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for managing
compliance with the Pretreatment Standard for 40 CFR (specify
applicable National Categorical Pretreatment Standard part(s)), | certify that, to
the best of my knowledge and belief, there has been no increase in the level of
the (list the categorically regulated pollutant(s)) in the Wastewaters
due to the activities at the facility since filing of the last periodic report.”

In the event that a waived Pollutant is found to be present or is expected to be
present because of changes that occur in the User’s operations, the User must
immediately comply with the monitoring requirements of Paragraph B.1 of this
Section or other more frequent monitoring requirements imposed by the
Pretreatment Coordinator, and notify the Pretreatment Coordinator.

Non-Significant Categorical Users (NSCIU)

NSCIUs as defined in Article Il, Section 3 shall, at a frequency determined by the
Pretreatment Coordinator but no less frequently than annually (on dates specified
by the District) submit a report which contains the certification statement
contained in Article VIII, Section 4.C.2 below.

Certification Statement

“Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for managing

compliance with the Categorical Pretreatment Standards under 40 CFR ___, |

certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief that during the period from
, to , (months, days, year):

a) The facility described as (facility name) met the
definition of a Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User as described by
Article Il, Section 3;

b) The facility complied with all Applicable Pretreatment Standards and
Requirements during this reporting period; and

c) The facility never discharged more than 100 gallons of total categorical
wastewater on any given day during this reporting period.

This compliance certification is based on the following information:

88



D.

This report is required to be signed by an Authorized Representative of the User.

Other Non-Significant Regulated Users

Categorical Zero Process Dischargers, Non-Categorical Zero Process Dischargers,
Batch Dischargers, Food Service Establishments, and any firms regulated by
individual or general permit requirements including but not limited to BMPs shall,
at a frequency determined by the Pretreatment Coordinator, submit a periodic
report at a frequency defined in their Wastewater Discharge Permit.

The reports may require sampling and analyses or some other measure to
determine compliance with permit Pretreatment Standards and Requirements.
The User must submit documentation including BMP documentation necessary to
determine the compliance status of User as defined by the Pretreatment
Coordinator and identified in the Wastewater Discharge Permit.

All FSEs with Gls must maintain cleaning logs. These logs shall be immediately
available at the time of an inspection and are required to contain the following
information:

a) Person and company that performed the cleaning;

b) Measurement of the depth of solids blanket and grease cap prior to
cleaning in each interceptor;

c) Volume of material removed from each interceptor; and
d) Location where waste will be disposed.

A copy of the cleaning log may be required to be submitted to the District by a
date specified in a request issued by the Pretreatment Coordinator.

SECTION 5. REPORTS FROM NON-PERMITTED USERS

All Users not required to obtain a Wastewater Discharge Permit shall provide appropriate reports
to the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee as required. These reports include but are not

limited to surveys of business activities, water usage, wastes Discharged, spill and Slug Loading
potential, Pretreatment equipment, Wastewater Hauling and facility layout.

89



SECTION 6. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE CHANGE NOTIFICATION

Any SIU that changes the Authorized Representative of its company as defined in Article II,
Section 3 shall file a change notice with the District within thirty (30) calendar days.

SECTION 7. REPORTS OF CHANGED CONDITIONS

Each User must notify the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee of any planned substantial
changes to the User's operations or system which might alter the nature, quality, or volume of
its Wastewater at least thirty (30) calendar days before the change that, for example, results in
an increase or addition or planned shutdown or deletion of products. User must provide notice
to the Executive Director, or designee, of immediate shutdowns or deletion of products within
five (5) working days of determination.

A.

The Pretreatment Coordinator may require the User to submit such information as may
be deemed necessary to evaluate the changed condition, including the submission of a
Wastewater Discharge Permit application under Article VI, Section 5.

The Pretreatment Coordinator may issue or modify an existing individual or general
Wastewater Discharge Permit under Article VII, Sections 2 and 4 in response to changed
conditions or anticipated changed conditions.

For purposes of this requirement, substantial changes include, but are not limited to, Flow
increases of twenty percent (20 percent) or greater, the addition or deletion of a shift,
the Discharge of any previously unreported Pollutants including changes to the listed or
characteristic hazardous wastes for which the User has submitted initial notification
under Article VIII, Section 10, introduction of a Pollutant for which a monitoring waiver
had been obtained, the addition of a new process regardless of waste Discharge or lack
of Discharge, shutdown of a process, or addition or deletion of a product.

SIUs and ClUs are required to notify the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee
immediately of any changes at its facility affecting the potential for a Slug Discharge.

SECTION 8. REPORTS OF POTENTIAL PROBLEMS

A.

Initial Notification. In the case of any Discharge, including, but not limited to, Accidental
Discharges, Discharges of a non-routine, episodic nature, a non-customary batch
Discharge, or a Slug Load, that may cause Potential Problems for the POTW, the User shall
immediately telephone (within fifteen (15) minutes), and notify the Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee of the incident. If this notification cannot be made to the POTW
staff during routine business hours, the User shall notify the governing municipality’s
police department. This notification shall include the name of the caller, location of the
Discharge, physical state of Discharge, chemical composition, concentration, and volume,

90



if known, and date and time of Discharge as well as duration of the Discharge, and
corrective actions taken by the User. The notification shall include what Federal, State,
and local entities have also been notified by the User.

B. The User shall control production of all Discharges to the extent necessary to maintain
compliance with all applicable regulations upon reduction, loss, or failure of its treatment
facility until the facility is restored or an alternative method of treatment is provided. This
requirement includes the situation where, among other things, the primary source of
power of the treatment facility is reduced, lost, or fails.

C. Written Notification: Within fifteen (15) calendar days following such Discharge, the User
shall, unless waived by the Pretreatment Coordinator, submit a detailed written report
describing the cause(s) of the Discharge and the measures to be taken by the User to
prevent similar future occurrences

D. Such notifications shall not relieve the User of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability
which may be incurred as a result of damage to the POTW, natural resources, or any other
damage to Person or property; nor shall such notification relieve the User of any fines,
penalties, or other liability which may be imposed pursuant to this Ordinance.

E. A notice or sign shall be permanently posted on the User's bulletin board or other
prominent place advising employees in English and the language of common use at the
facility whom to call in the event of a Discharge described in Paragraph A above.
Employers shall ensure through documentation that all employees, who may cause such
a Discharge to occur, are advised of the emergency notification procedure.

SECTION 9. NOTICE OF VIOLATION/REPEAT SAMPLING AND REPORTING

If sampling performed by a User indicates a violation, the User must notify the Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the violation. The
User shall also repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the results of the repeat analysis to
the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee within thirty (30) calendar days after becoming aware
of the violation. The User may not required to resample if the District monitors at the User's
facility at least once a month, or if the District samples between the User's initial sampling and
when the User receives the results of this sampling. If the District performed the sampling and
analysis in lieu of the User, the District will perform the repeat sampling and analysis unless it
notifies the User of the violation and requires the User to perform the repeat sampling and
analysis.

91



SECTION 10. NOTIFICATION OF THE DISCHARGE OF HAZARDOUS WASTE

A.

Pursuant to 40 CFR Section 403.12 (p) any User who commences the Discharge of
hazardous waste shall notify the POTW, the USEPA Regional Waste Management Division
Director, and State hazardous waste authorities, in writing, of any Discharge into the
POTW of a substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would be a hazardous waste under
40 CFR Part 261. Such notification must include the name of the hazardous waste as set
forth in 40 CFR Part 261, the EPA hazardous waste number, and the type of Discharge
(continuous, batch, or other). If the User Discharges more than one hundred (100)
kilograms of such waste per calendar month to the POTW, the notification also shall
contain the following information to the extent such information is known and readily
available to the User: an identification of the hazardous constituents contained in the
wastes, an estimation of the mass and concentration of such constituents in the waste
stream Discharged during that calendar month, and an estimation of the mass of
constituents in the waste stream expected to be Discharged during the following twelve
(12) months. All notifications must take place no later than one hundred eighty (180)
calendar days after the Discharge commences. Any notification under this Paragraph
need be submitted only once for each hazardous waste Discharged. However,
notifications of changed conditions must be submitted under Article VI, Section 7. The
notification requirement in this Section does not apply to Pollutants already reported by
Users subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards under the self-monitoring
requirements of Article VIII, Sections 3.A, 3.C, and 4.B.

Dischargers are exempt from the requirements of Paragraph A, above, during a calendar
month in which they Discharge no more than fifteen (15) kilograms of hazardous wastes,
unless the wastes are acute hazardous wastes as specified in 40 CFR Sections 261.30(d)
and 261.33(e). Discharge of more than fifteen (15) kilograms of non-acute hazardous
wastes in a calendar month, or of any quantity of acute hazardous wastes as specified in
40 CFR Sections 261.30(d) and 261.33(e), requires a one-time notification. Subsequent
months during which the User Discharges more than such quantities of any hazardous
waste do not require additional notification.

In the case of any new regulations under Section 3001 of RCRA identifying additional
characteristics of hazardous waste or listing any additional substance as a hazardous
waste, the User must notify the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee, the USEPA
Regional Waste Management Waste Division Director, and State hazardous waste
authorities of the Discharge of such substance within ninety (90) calendar days of the
effective date of such regulations.

In the case of any notification made under this Section, the User shall certify that it has a

program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous wastes generated to the
degree it has determined to be economically practical.

92



E. This provision does not create a right to Discharge any substance not otherwise permitted
to be Discharged by this Ordinance, a permit issued thereunder, or any applicable Federal
or State law.

SECTION 11. REPORT SUBMITTAL DUE DATES

Written reports will be deemed to have been submitted on the date postmarked. For reports
which are not mailed, postage prepaid, into a mail facility serviced by the United States Postal
Service, the date of receipt of the report shall govern. In order to meet deadlines, reports may
be faxed or emailed on the due date to the District. The original of the fax or email is required to
be mailed to the District postmarked within one (1) working day of the transmission.

SECTION 12. ELECTRONIC REPORTING

The District may develop procedures for receipt of electronic reports through a CROMERR
compliant system for any reporting requirements of this ordinance. Such procedures shall comply
with 40 CFR Part 3. These procedures shall be enforceable under Articles XI and XlI of this
ordinance.

Each User shall submit such CROMERR reports as the District identifies in an individual or general
Wastewater Discharge Permit to the User within the time frame set forth, which shall provide
the User at least ninety (90) calendar days to become CROMERR compliant. The User may request
additional time for good cause, but such request does not automatically extend the deadline for
becoming CROMERR compliant.

93



ARTICLE IX

COMPLIANCE MONITORING

SECTION 1. RIGHT OF ENTRY: INSPECTION AND SAMPLING

The Pretreatment Coordinator or designee(s), Duly Authorized Agents of the District, the lllinois
Environmental Protection Agency, and the United States Environmental Protection Agency,
hereafter referred to as above -named entities, shall have the right to enter the premises of any
User at reasonable times to determine whether the User is complying with all requirements of
this Ordinance and any individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit or order issued
hereunder. Users shall allow the above-named entities ready access to all parts of the premises
for the purposes of inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, analyses, records
examination and copying, and the performance of any additional duties.

A.

Where a User has security measures in force which require proper identification and
clearance before entry into its premises, the User shall make necessary arrangements
with its security guards so that, upon presentation of suitable identification, the above-
named entities will be permitted to enter without delay for the purposes of performing
specific responsibilities.

The District shall have the right to set up on the User's property or require installation of
such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling and/or metering of the User's
operations.

The Pretreatment Coordinator may require the User to install monitoring equipment, as
necessary. The facility's sampling and monitoring equipment shall be maintained at all
times in a safe and proper operating condition by the User at the User’s sole expense. All
devices used to measure Wastewater Flow and quality shall be calibrated twice yearly (at
six-month intervals) to ensure their accuracy. The User shall submit these calibration
reports semi-annually to the District with the Periodic Compliance Reports required in
Article VIII, Section 4.

Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility to be
inspected and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the User at the written or verbal
request of the Pretreatment Coordinator and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing
such access shall be borne by the User.

Unreasonable delays in allowing the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee access to the
User's premises shall be a violation of this Ordinance.

Each User sampled by the District for compliance may be required to pay for the cost of
sampling and analysis in accordance with the “ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE

94



CURRENT RATES FOR FEES, CHARGES, PERMITS AND PENALTIES OF THE BLOOMINGTON
AND NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT.”

SECTION 2. RECORD KEEPING

A.

Users: Users subject to the reporting requirements of this Ordinance shall retain, and
make available for inspection and copying, all records of information obtained pursuant
to any monitoring activities required by this Ordinance and any additional records of
information obtained pursuant to monitoring activities undertaken by the User
independent of such requirements, and documentation associated with BMPs
established under Article VII, Section 2. Records shall include the date, exact place,
method, and time of sampling, and the name of the Person(s) taking the samples; the
dates analyses were performed; who performed the analyses; the analytical techniques
or methods used; and the results of such analyses. These records shall remain available
for a period of at least three (3) years. This period shall be automatically extended for the
duration of any litigation concerning the User or the District, or where the User has been
specifically notified of a longer retention period by the Pretreatment Coordinator.

District: The District will maintain documentation of any monitoring waiver issued per
Article VI, Section 5.D for a period of three (3) years after the expiration of the waiver.
The documentation will include the reasons supporting the waiver and any information
submitted by the User in its request for the waiver.

SECTION 3. SEARCH WARRANTS

If the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee has been refused access to a building, structure, or
property, or any part thereof, and is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there
may be a violation of this Ordinance, or that there is a need to inspect and/or sample as part of
a routine inspection and sampling program designed to verify compliance with this Ordinance or
any permit or order issued hereunder, or to protect the overall public health, safety and welfare
of the community, then the Pretreatment Coordinator may seek issuance of a search warrant
from the Circuit Court of McLean County.

95



ARTICLE X

PUBLICATION OF USERS IN SIGNIFICANT NONCOMPLIANCE

The Pretreatment Coordinator shall publish annually, in a newspaper of general circulation that
provides meaningful public notice within the jurisdiction served by the POTW, a list of the Users
which, at any time during the previous twelve (12) months, were in Significant Non-Compliance
with Applicable Pretreatment Standards and Requirements. The notification shall also summarize
any enforcement action taken against Users during the same 12 months. The term Significant
Non-Compliance shall be applicable to all SIUs and ClUs (or any other User that violates
paragraphs C, D or H) of this Section and shall mean:

A.

Chronic violations of Wastewater Discharge limits, defined here as those in which sixty-
six percent (66 percent) or more of all the measurements taken for the same Pollutant
parameter during a six-(6-) month period exceed (by any magnitude) a numeric
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including Instantaneous Limits as defined in
Article IV;

Technical Review Criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which thirty-three
percent (33 percent) or more of Wastewater measurements taken for each Pollutant
parameter during a six-(6-) month period equals or exceeds the product of the numeric
Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including Instantaneous Limits, as defined by
Article IV multiplied by the applicable criteria (1.4 for BOD; TSS; Fats, Oil and Grease; and
1.2 for all other Pollutants except pH);

Any other violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by Article IV
(Daily Maximum, long-term average, Instantaneous Limit, or narrative Standard) that the
Pretreatment Coordinator has determined caused, alone or in combination with other
Discharges, Interference or Pass Through, including endangering the health of POTW
personnel or the general public;

Any Discharge of Pollutants that has caused imminent endangerment to the public or to
the environment, or has resulted in the Pretreatment Coordinator exercise of the
District’s emergency authority to halt or prevent such a Discharge;

Failure to meet, within ninety (90) calendar days of the scheduled date, a compliance
schedule milestone contained in an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit or
enforcement order for starting construction, completing construction, or attaining final
compliance;

Failure to provide, within forty-five (45) calendar days after the due date, any required
reports, including BMRs, reports on compliance with Categorical Pretreatment Standard

96



deadlines, periodic self-monitoring reports, and reports on compliance with compliance
schedules;

Failure to accurately report noncompliance; or
Any other violation(s), which may include a violation of BMPs, that the Pretreatment

Coordinator determines will adversely affect the operation or implementation of the local
Pretreatment program.

97



ARTICLE XI

ADMINISTRATIVE ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES

SECTION 1. NOTIFICATION OF VIOLATION

A.

When the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee finds that a User has violated, or
continues to violate, any provision of this Ordinance, a Wastewater Discharge Permit or
order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including
Instantaneous Limits, the Pretreatment Coordinator may serve upon that User a written
Notice of Violation (NOV). Within ten (10) working days of the receipt of this NOV, an
explanation of the violation and a plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention
thereof, to include specific required actions, shall be submitted by the User to the
Pretreatment Coordinator. Submission of this plan in no way relieves the User of liability
for any violations occurring before or after receipt of the NOV.

The Pretreatment Coordinator may initiate a Pretreatment Compliance Review meeting
for any violation issued under Article XI, Section 1.A but most likely for the first violation
of any parameter. The District shall schedule a Pretreatment Review meeting, normally
within thirty (30) calendar days of the determination that a meeting is required.

As a result of a Pretreatment Review meeting, the District may issue a compliance
directive stating that the User is in a “corrective action” status. A plan for correction and
compliance schedule illustrating milestones may be issued by the District to the User. This
plan for correction and compliance schedule may become part of the User’s permit. The
User is responsible for meeting the permit limits at all times. The plan for correction,
compliance schedule and revised permit does not relieve the User of meeting the permit
limits and/or ordinance requirements. The User shall take whatever actions are necessary
to meet the permit limits and permit conditions.

As a result of a violation, the District may continue to sample the User and inspect the
User’s progress towards meeting milestones as needed to determine if the User is
complying with the conditions of the plan of action, compliance schedule and/or permit.
In the event the District detects and documents any violation, a NOV will be issued to the
User.

Each detected violation of the plan of action, compliance schedule, and permit, will result
in a NOV being issued to the User.

When the User has met the conditions of the compliance directive, compliance schedule,
and permit, the District will notify the User in writing that the conditions have been
satisfied and they are no longer under a “corrective action” status if such a status was
formally issued.

98



F. Nothing in this Section shall limit the authority of the Pretreatment Coordinator to take
any action, including emergency actions or any other enforcement action, without first
issuing a NOV.

SECTION 2. COMPLIANCE AGREEMENTS

The Pretreatment Coordinator may enter into Compliance Agreements, i.e., Consent Orders,
assurances of compliance, or other similar documents establishing an agreement with any User
responsible for noncompliance. Such documents will include specific action to be taken by the
User to correct the noncompliance within a time period specified by the document. Such
documents shall have the same force and effect as the administrative orders issued pursuant to
Article XI Sections 4 and 5 and shall be judicially enforceable.

SECTION 3. SHOW CAUSE ORDER

The Pretreatment Coordinator may order a User which has violated, or continues to violate, any
provision of this Ordinance, a Wastewater Discharge Permit or order issued hereunder, or any
other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, to appear at a specified date and time to show
cause why the proposed enforcement action should not be taken. Notice shall be served on the
User specifying the time and place for the meeting, the proposed enforcement action, the
reasons for such action, and a request that the User show cause why the proposed enforcement
action should not be taken. The notice of the meeting shall be served personally or by registered
or certified mail (return receipt requested) at least ten (10) working days prior to the hearing.
Such notice may be served on any Authorized Representative of the User. A show cause hearing
shall not be a bar against, or prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

SECTION 4. COMPLIANCE ORDERS

When the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee finds that a User has violated, or continues to
violate, any provision of this Ordinance, a Wastewater Discharge Permit or order issued
hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the Pretreatment Coordinator
may issue an order to the User responsible for the Discharge directing that the User come into
compliance within a specified time. If the User does not come into compliance within the time
provided, sewer service may be discontinued unless adequate treatment facilities, devices, or
other related appurtenances are installed and properly operated. Compliance orders also may
contain other requirements to address the noncompliance, including additional self-monitoring
and BMPs designed to minimize the amount of Pollutants Discharged to the sewer. A compliance
order may not extend the deadline for compliance established for a Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, nor does a compliance order relieve the User of liability for any violation, including
any continuing violation. Issuance of a compliance order shall not be a bar against, or a
prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

99



SECTION 5. CEASE AND DESIST ORDERS

When the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee finds that a User has violated, or continues to
violate, any provision of this Ordinance, a Wastewater Discharge Permit or order issued
hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, or that the User's past
violations are likely to recur, the Pretreatment Coordinator may issue an order to the User
directing it to cease and desist all such violations and directing the User to:

A Immediately comply with all requirements; and

B. Take such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to properly
address a continuing or threatened violation, including halting operations and/or
terminating the Discharge.

Issuance of a cease and desist order shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any
other action against the User.

SECTION 6. EMERGENCY SUSPENSIONS

The Pretreatment Coordinator may immediately suspend a User's Discharge, after informal
notice to the User, whenever such suspension is necessary to stop an actual or threatened
Discharge which reasonably appears to present or cause an imminent or substantial
endangerment to the health or welfare of Persons. The Pretreatment Coordinator shall obtain
the concurrence of the District’s attorney before initiating action. The Pretreatment Coordinator
may also immediately suspend a User's Discharge, after notice and opportunity to respond, that
threatens to Interfere with the operation of the POTW, or which presents, or may present, an
endangerment to the environment. Methods of informal notice shall include, but not be limited
to, personal telephone calls, letters, hand delivered messages, or notices posted at the User’s
premises or point of discharge.

A. Any User notified of a suspension of its Discharge shall immediately stop or eliminate its
contribution. In the event of a User's failure to immediately comply voluntarily with the
suspension order, the Pretreatment Coordinator may take such steps as deemed
necessary, including immediate severance of the sewer connection, to prevent or
minimize damage to the POTW, its receiving stream, or endangerment to any individuals.
The Pretreatment Coordinator may allow the User to recommence its Discharge when the
User has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Pretreatment Coordinator that the
period of endangerment has passed, unless the termination proceedings in Article XI,
Section 7 are initiated against the User.

B. A User that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any Discharge presenting imminent

endangerment shall submit a detailed written statement, describing the causes of the
harmful contribution and the measures taken to prevent any future occurrence, to the

100



Pretreatment Coordinator prior to the date of any show cause or termination hearing
under Article XI, Sections 3 or 7.

Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency
suspension under this Section.

SECTION 7. TERMINATION OF DISCHARGE

In addition to the provisions in Article VII, Section 6, any User who violates the following
conditions is subject to Discharge termination:

A Violation of Wastewater Discharge Permit conditions;

B. Failure to accurately report the Wastewater constituents and characteristics of its
Discharge;

C. Failure to report substantial changes in operations or Wastewater volume, constituents,

and characteristics prior to Discharge;

D. Refusal of reasonable access to the User's premises for the purpose of inspection,
monitoring, or sampling; or

E. Violation of the Pretreatment Standards in Article IV.
Such User will be notified of the proposed termination of its Discharge and be offered an
opportunity to show cause under Article Xl, Section 3 why the proposed action should not be

taken. Exercise of this option by the Pretreatment Coordinator shall not be a bar to, or a
prerequisite for, taking any other action against the User.

lol



ARTICLE XII

PENALTIES AND JUDICIAL ENFORCEMENT REMEDIES

SECTION 1. RECOVERY OF COSTS INCURRED

A.

Any entity or User violating any of the provisions of this Ordinance, who causes the
District to be fined by the State of Illinois or USEPA for violation of the District’s NPDES
Permit, who causes the District to violate water quality standards as the result of a
Discharge of Pollutants, or who causes damage to or impairs the District’s POTW shall be
liable to the District for any expense, loss or damage caused by such violation or
Discharge. The District may invoice, to the User, the costs, including but not limited to,
sampling and analyses associated with the investigation, costs of mitigating impact to the
POTW, costs of preparing the administrative enforcement actions such as notices and
orders investigative and/or correction actions, and review of response(s) from the User.
In the event of damage, losses or impairments, the District shall bill the User for the costs
incurred by the District for any cleaning, repair, replacement or other investigative and/or
corrective action(s) as a response to the violation or Discharge. Refusal to pay the
assessed costs shall constitute a violation of this Ordinance enforceable under the
provisions of Article XI.

Recovery of costs incurred also includes but is not limited to the following provisions
specific for Food Service Establishments (FSE):

1. Grease Disposal Mitigation Fee. FSE that operate without a grease interceptor (Gl)
may be required to pay an annual Grease Disposal Mitigation Fee to equitably
cover the costs of increase maintenance of the sewer system as a result of the
FSE’s inability to adequately remove FOG from its Wastewater Discharge. This
Section shall not be interpreted to allow the new construction of, or existing FSE
undergoing remodeling to operate without an approved Gl.

a) The Grease Disposal Mitigation Fee shall be established in the District’s
Rate Ordinance and shall be based on the estimated annual increased cost
of maintaining the sewer system for inspection and removal of FOG and
other viscous or solidifying agents attributable to the FSE resulting from
the lack of a grease interceptor or grease control device.

b) Sewer System Overflows, Public Nuisance, Abatement and Cleanup Costs.
Notwithstanding the waiver of grease interceptor installation for existing
FSE established in Article Ill, Section 7, FSE found to have contributed to a
sewer blockage, SSOs or any sewer system Interferences resulting from the
Discharge of Wastewater or waste containing FOG may be subject to costs
incurred by the District, established in the District’s Rate Ordinance. SSOs

102



may cause threat and injury to public health, safety, and welfare of life and
property and are hereby declared public nuisances. Furthermore, sewer
lateral failures and SSOs caused by FSE alone or collectively, are the
responsibility of the private property owner or FSE, and individual(s) as a
responsible officer or owner of the FSE. If the District must act immediately
to contain and clean up an SSO caused by blockage of a private or Public
Sewer lateral or system serving a FSE, or at the request of the property
owner or operator of the FSE, or because of the failure of the property
owner or FSE to abate the condition causing immediate threat of injury to
the health, safety, welfare, or property of the public, the District’s costs for
such abatement may be entirely borne by the property owner or operator
of the FSE, and the individual(s) as a responsible officer or owner of the
FSE(s) and may constitute a debt to the District and become due and
payable upon the District’s request for reimbursement of such costs.

SECTION 2. ADMINISTRATIVE FINES

A.

When the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee finds that a User has violated, or
continues to violate, any provision of this Ordinance, an individual or general Wastewater
Discharge Permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or
Requirement, the Pretreatment Coordinator may fine such User in an amount not to
exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000) per-violation, per-day basis, nor more than ten
thousand dollars ($10,000) per-violation, per-day. In the case of monthly or other long-
term average Discharge limits, fines shall be assessed for each day during the period of
violation. Fines shall be issued that, at a minimum, remove the economic benefit to a User
by its non-compliance, include an additional monetary amount reflecting the seriousness
or gravity of the violation(s), and ensures that the User has a strong economic incentive
to fully comply in a timely manner. The Pretreatment Coordinator shall consider any
corrective actions taken by the User and the compliance history of the User prior to
issuance of the fine.

Unpaid charges, fines, and penalties shall, after (30) calendar days, be assessed and
additional penalty of (10 percent (10%) of the unpaid balance, and interest shall accrue
thereafter at a rate on (10percent (10%)) per month. A lien against the User’s property
shall be sought for unpaid charges, fines, and penalties.

Users desiring reconsideration of such fines must file a written request for the
Pretreatment Coordinator to reconsider the fine along with full payment of the fine
amount within thirty (30) calendar days of being notified of the fine. Where a request has
merit, the Pretreatment Coordinator may convene a hearing on the matter. In the event
the User’s appeal is successful, the payment, together with any interest accruing thereon,
shall be returned to the User.

103



D. Issuance of an administrative fine shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking
any other action against the User.

E. The District may recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, court reporter fees,
and any other expenses associated with enforcement activities, including sampling and
monitoring expenses, and the costs of any actual damages incurred by the District.

SECTION 3. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

When the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee finds that a User has violated, or continues to
violate, any provision of this Ordinance, an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit,
or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the
Pretreatment Coordinator may petition the Circuit Court of McLean County through the District’s
attorney for the issuance of a restraining order or temporary or permanent injunction, as
appropriate, which restrains or compels the specific performance of the individual or general
Wastewater Discharge Permit, order, or other requirement imposed by this Ordinance on
activities of the User. The Pretreatment Coordinator may also seek such other action as is
appropriate for legal and/or equitable relief, including a requirement for the User to conduct
environmental remediation. A petition for injunctive relief shall not be a bar against, or a
prerequisite for, taking any other action against a User.

SECTION 4. CIVIL PENALTIES

When the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee finds that a User has violated, or continues to
violate, any provision of this Ordinance, an individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit,
or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, the
Pretreatment Coordinator may petition the Circuit Court of McLean County through the District’s
attorney for civil penalties as follows:

A. Any User shall be subject to the imposition of a civil penalty in at least the amount of not
less than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per day, nor more than ten thousand ($10,000)
per day, plus any actual damages incurred by the District, for each violation in accordance
with the terms and provisions of the Sanitary District Act of 1917 (lll. Rev. Stat. Ch. 42, Sec
305.1) for as long as the non-compliance continues. In the case of a monthly or other
long-term average Discharge limit, penalties shall accrue for each day during the period
of the violation. For the purpose of this Section, each day in which any such violation shall
occur, shall be deemed a separate violation, and a separate violation shall be deemed to
have occurred for each constituent which has limitations listed in this Ordinance found to
exceed the limits established in this Ordinance during any such day.

B. In addition to the foregoing, the District may recover costs, including but not limited to,

filing fees, witness fees, attorneys' fees, court costs, and other expenses associated with
enforcement activities, including sampling and monitoring expenses, and the cost of any

104



actual damages incurred by the District.

C. In determining the amount of civil liability, the Court shall take into account all relevant
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation,
the magnitude and duration of the violation, any economic benefit gained through the
User's violation, corrective actions by the User, the compliance history of the User, and
any other factor as justice requires.

D. Any Person who fails to submit reports or information required by this Ordinance or who
knowingly makes any false statements, representation or certification in any application,
record, report, plan or other document filed or required to be maintained pursuant to
this Ordinance or a Wastewater Discharge Permit, or who falsifies, tampers with, or
knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under this
Ordinance, shall be subject to the penalties and costs provided in Section 4.A of this
Article and shall, in addition, be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction, may be
punished by (1) a fine of not more than $1,000.00, or (2) incarceration in a penal
institution other than a penitentiary for a period not to exceed three (3) months, or both.

E. Filing a suit for civil penalties shall not be a bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any
other action against a User.

SECTION 5. CRIMINAL PROSECUTION

If a User engages in activity or conduct in apparent violation of the statute of lllinois or a federal
regulation, the District may refer such matters to the Office of the State’s Attorney, the IEPA, the
USEPA or any other appropriate agency for investigation and criminal enforcement action. Any
such referral will be made in addition to an appropriate enforcement action taken pursuant to
the District’s Enforcement Response Plan and will not reduce the District’s responsibility to
aggressively pursue such enforcement.

The District will seek, through the appropriate agency, the maximum criminal penalty assessable
under statute or regulation and will supply evidence and testimony as deemed necessary by the
agency in the prosecution of any such matters.

SECTION 6. REMEDIES NONEXCLUSIVE

The remedies provided for in this Ordinance are not exclusive. The Pretreatment Coordinator
may take any, all, or any combination of these actions against a noncompliant User. Enforcement
of Pretreatment violations will generally be in accordance with the District’s enforcement
response plan. However, the Pretreatment Coordinator may take other action against any User
when the circumstances warrant. Further, the Pretreatment Coordinator is empowered to take
more than one enforcement action against any noncompliant User.

105



SECTION 7. ADDITIONAL REMEDIES

A.

In addition to remedies available to the District set forth elsewhere in this Ordinance, if the
POTW is fined by the state, IEPA or USEPA for violation of the POTW NPDES permit or
violation of Water Quality Standards as the result of Discharge of Pollutants by a User or
group of Users, then the fine, including all legal, sampling, analytical testing costs and any
other related costs incurred by the District shall be charged to the responsible User or group
of Users. Such charges shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies the
District may have under this Ordinance, statutes, regulations, at law or in equity.

If the discharge from any User causes a deposit, obstruction, or damage to any portion of
the District’s collection system or wastewater treatment plant, the Pretreatment
Coordinator or Executive Director shall cause the deposit or obstruction to be promptly
removed or cause the damage to be promptly repaired. The cost for such work, including
materials, labor, and supervision, shall be borne by the person(s) causing such deposit,
obstruction, or damage.

The remedies provided in this Ordinance shall not be exclusive and the District may seek
whatever other remedies are authorized by statute, at law, or in equity, against any
person(s) violating the provisions of this Ordinance, including lllinois Revised Statutes 1983,
Chapter 42, Section 305.1, which Section is hereby made a part of this Ordinance as though
fully set forth herein. The District is hereby empowered to take more than one enforcement
action (remedy) against any non-compliant User.

106



ARTICLE X1l

SUPPLEMENTAL ENFORCEMENT ACTION

SECTION 1. FAILURE TO REPORT OR NOTIFY

A.

Sewer Extension and Connection Permits

Any entity who fails to file for and obtain a Sewer Extension or connection permit prior to
commencing construction of said extension or connection required by this Ordinance may
be subject to the following late filing fees in addition to extension, connection, or
annexation fees:

1. First Notice Issuance of Warning/Citation
2. Second Notice $250.00
3. Cost per day per Population Equivalent (PE) for each

additional day past second notice deadline $100.00

District Reports or Notifications
Any entity who fails to file any report or notification so required by this Ordinance may
be subject to the following late filing fees:

1. First Offense — less than 30 calendar days past due Issuance of Warning
2. Recurring reporting violations or

30 or more calendar days past due $100.00

NOV response noncompliance $250.00

Cost per additional day past final request deadline $50.00
3. Substantial Change Notification

No written notification of substantial change whether

Discharged or not:

At start-up or shutdown $500.00
Per each additional 15 days in excess of 30 calendar days $100.00

Reports or Notifications required by SIUs or CIUs

Any entity who fails to file any Periodic Pretreatment Report (Semi-Annual), BMR, or 90-
day Final Compliance Report so required by this Ordinance may be subject to the
following late filing fees:

1. First Offense —less than 30 calendar days past due Issuance of Warning
2. Recurring reporting violations or

30 or more calendar days past due $250.00

NOV response noncompliance $500.00

1lo07



Cost per additional day past final request deadline $100.00

3. Substantial Change Notification
No written notification of substantial change whether
Discharged or not:

At start-up or shutdown $1,000.00
Per each additional 15 days in excess of 30 calendar days $200.00
D. Ownership Notification Specific to Entities with Wastewater Discharge Permits

1. No written notification of change in ownership and/or

operation of facility, or any portion thereof with an individual

permit. $1,000.00
2. No written notification of change in ownership and/or

operation of facility, or any portion thereof with a general

permit $500.00

SECTION 2. PERFORMANCE BONDS

The Pretreatment Coordinator may decline to issue or reissue an individual or general
Wastewater Discharge Permit to any User who has failed to comply with any provision of this
Ordinance, a previous individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit, or order issued
hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, unless such User first files a
satisfactory bond, payable to the District, in a sum not to exceed a value determined by the
Pretreatment Coordinator to be necessary to achieve consistent compliance.

SECTION 3. LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Pretreatment Coordinator may decline to issue or reissue an individual or general
Wastewater Discharge Permit to any User who has failed to comply with any provision of this
Ordinance, a previous individual or general Wastewater Discharge Permit, or order issued
hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, unless the User first submits
proof that it has obtained financial assurances sufficient to restore or repair damage to the POTW
caused by its Discharge.

SECTION 4. PAYMENT FOR OUTSTANDING FEES AND PENALTIES
The Pretreatment Coordinator may decline to issue or reissue an individual or general
Wastewater Discharge Permit to any User who has failed to pay any outstanding fees, fines or

penalties incurred as a result of any provision of this Ordinance, a previous individual or general
Wastewater Discharge Permit or order issued hereunder.

108



SECTION 5. PUBLIC NUISANCES

A violation of any provision of this Ordinance, an individual or general Wastewater Discharge
Permit, or order issued hereunder, or any other Pretreatment Standard or Requirement is hereby
declared a public nuisance and shall be corrected or abated as directed by the Pretreatment
Coordinator. Any Person(s) creating a public nuisance shall be subject to the provisions governing
such nuisances, including reimbursing the District for any costs incurred in removing, abating, or
remedying said nuisance.

SECTION 6. CONTRACTOR LISTING

Users which have not achieved compliance with Applicable Pretreatment Standards and
Requirements are hereby declared to be non-responsible Users and therefore are not eligible to
receive a contractual award for the sale of goods or services to the District. Existing contracts for
the sale of goods or services to the District held by a User found to be in Significant Non-
Compliance with Pretreatment Standards or Requirements may be terminated at the discretion
of the Executive Director and/or Pretreatment Coordinator.

109



ARTICLE XIV

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES TO DISCHARGE VIOLATIONS

SECTION 1. UPSET

A.

Definition of Upset is provided in Article Il, Section 3.

An Upset shall constitute an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance
with Categorical Pretreatment Standards if the requirements of Paragraph (C), below, are
met.

A User who wishes to establish the affirmative defense of Upset shall demonstrate,
through properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence
that:

1. An Upset occurred and the User can identify the cause(s) of the Upset;

2. The facility was at the time being operated in a prudent and workman-like manner
and in compliance with applicable operation and maintenance procedures; and

3. The User has submitted the following information to the Pretreatment
Coordinator or designee within twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the
Upset (if this information is provided orally, a written report must be provided
within five (5) working days):

a) A description of the Indirect Discharge and cause of noncompliance;
b) The period of noncompliance, including exact dates and times or, if not
corrected, the anticipated time the noncompliance is expected to

continue; and

c) Steps being taken and/or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent
recurrence of the noncompliance.

In any enforcement proceeding, the User seeking to establish the occurrence of an Upset
shall have the burden of proof.

Users will have the opportunity for a judicial determination on any claim of Upset only in
an enforcement action brought for noncompliance with Categorical Pretreatment

Standards.

Users shall control production of all Discharges to the extent necessary to maintain

110



compliance with Categorical Pretreatment Standards upon reduction, loss, or failure of
its treatment facility until the facility is restored or an alternative method of treatment is
provided. This requirement applies in the situation where, among other things, the
primary source of power of the treatment facility is reduced, lost, or fails.

SECTION 2. PROHIBITED DISCHARGE STANDARDS

A User shall have an affirmative defense to an enforcement action brought against it for
noncompliance with the general prohibitions in Article IV, Sections A-C or the specific
prohibitions in Article IV, Sections 2 C.1-32 (excluding Paragraphs C.1, C.9 and C.16 if it can prove
that it did not know, or have reason to know, that its Discharge, alone or in conjunction with
Discharges from other sources, would cause Pass Through or Interference or that either:

A.

A Local Limit exists for each Pollutant Discharged and the User was in compliance with
each Local Limit directly prior to, and during, the Pass Through or Interference; or

No Local Limit exists, but the Discharge did not change substantially in nature or
constituents from the User’s prior Discharge when the District was regularly in compliance
with its NPDES Permit, and in the case of Interference, was in compliance with applicable
Biosolids use or disposal requirements.

SECTION 3. BYPASS

A.

For the purpose of this Section,

1. "Bypass" means the intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a
User's treatment or Pretreatment facility.

2. "Severe property damage" means substantial physical damage to property,
damage to the treatment facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or
substantial and permanent loss of natural resources which can reasonably be
expected to occur in the absence of a Bypass. Severe property damage does not
mean economic loss caused by delays in production.

A User may allow any Bypass to occur which does not cause Pretreatment Standards or
Requirements to be violated, but only if it also is for essential maintenance to assure
efficient operation. These Bypasses are not subject to the provision of Subsections C and
D of this section.

Bypass Notifications

1. Anticipated: If a User knows in advance of the need for a Bypass, it shall submit
prior notice to the Pretreatment Coordinator or designee, at least ten (10) working

111



days before the date of the Bypass, if possible.

2. Unanticipated: A User shall submit oral notice to the Pretreatment Coordinator
or designee of an unanticipated Bypass that exceeds Applicable Pretreatment
Standards within twenty-four (24) hours from the time it becomes aware of the
Bypass. A written submission shall also be provided within five (5) calendar days
of the time the User becomes aware of the Bypass. The written submission shall
contain a description of the Bypass and its cause; the duration of the Bypass,
including exact dates and times, and, if the Bypass has not been corrected, the
anticipated time it is expected to continue; and steps taken or planned to reduce,
eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the Bypass. The Pretreatment
Coordinator may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis if the oral report
has been received within twenty-four (24) hours.

D. POTW Actions

1. Bypass is prohibited, and the Pretreatment Coordinator may take an enforcement
action against a User for a Bypass, unless:

a) Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe
property damage;

b) There were no feasible alternatives to the Bypass, such as the use of
auxiliary treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or
maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime. This
condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been
installed in the exercise of reasonable engineering judgment to prevent a
Bypass which occurred during normal periods of equipment downtime or
preventive maintenance; and

c) The User submitted notices as required under Paragraph C of this Section.
2. The Pretreatment Coordinator may approve an anticipated Bypass, after

considering its adverse effects, if the Pretreatment Coordinator determines that
it will meet the three conditions listed in Paragraph D.1 of this Section.

112



ARTICLE XV
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
SECTION 1. SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect.

SECTION 2. CONFLICT

All other ordinances and parts of other ordinances inconsistent or conflicting with any part of this
Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency or conflict.

SECTION 3. OFFENSES UNDER PREVIOUS ORDINANCES

This Ordinance shall not be construed or held to repeal a former ordinance, whether such former
ordinance is expressly repealed or not, as to any offense committed against such former
ordinance or as to any act done, any penalty, forfeiture or punishment so incurred, or any right
accrued or claim arising under the former ordinance, or in any way whatever to affect such
offense or act so committed or so done, or any penalty, forfeiture or punishment so incurred or
any right accrued or claim arising before the new Ordinance takes effect, save only that
proceedings thereafter shall conform to the Ordinance in force at the time of such proceeding,
so far as practicable. Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall be construed as abating any
action now pending.

113



CONSENT AGENDA




This Page Intentionally Left Blank



Bloomington and Normal

Water Reclamation District

b

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM NO. A
BOARD MEETING DATE: June 10, 2024

SUBJECT: Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2024-05 for the Executive Session Minutes
Semi-Annual Review

PREPARED BY: Renee Gooderham, HR Manager
REVIEWED BY: Jake Callahan, Assistant Executive Director

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution 2024-05 the Retention and Release of Executive
Session Minutes

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution —2024-05

BACKGROUND: Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2.06(d)), a review of all closed
session minutes has been completed. During the archival preparations, two Executive Session
minutes were discovered which had not been included in the semi-annual review process. Staff
has determined that three sets of minutes will be released as identified on Schedule A and one
set of minutes will be retained as identified on Schedule B.

The minutes of each Executive Session minutes identified on Schedule A have been adopted. The
verbatim recordings for all other Executive Sessions meetings occurring at least 18 months before
this meeting will be destroyed.

BUDGET IMPACT: None.




RESOLUTION NO. 2024-05
A RESOLUTION REPORTING THE RETENTION OF EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees for the Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation
District (BNWRD), Bloomington, Illinois has set from time to time an executive session for
the purpose authorized by the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1, et seq.); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of 5 ILCS 120/2.06(d), a review of all closed
session minutes has been completed; and

WHEREAS, the BNWRD has further determined that a need for confidentiality does not exist
as to the Executive Session Minutes from the meetings set forth in Schedule A, attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the BNWRD has further determined that a need for confidentiality does exist as
to the Executive Session Minutes from the meetings set forth in Schedule B, attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE BLOOMINGTON
AND NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT OF MCLEAN COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows:

Section 1. All recitals set forth above are at this moment incorporated herein as if fully set
forth in this.

Section 2. The Executive Session Minutes from those meetings set forth on Schedule A
should, and shall, remain confidential.

Section 3. The District Clerk is authorized and directed to destroy the verbatim audio
recording for those Executive Sessions occurring at least eighteen (18) months prior to this
meeting of the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees hereby affirms that the meeting
minutes of all such Executive Sessions have been previously approved.

Section 4. According to law, this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

ADOPTED this 10th of June 2024.

APPROVED this 10th of June 2024.

Jeffrey K. Feid, President
Board of Trustees
Bloomington and Normal Water Reclamation District

ATTEST:

Dr. Joan Brehm, Clerk



SCHEDULE A

TO BE RELEASED
DATE REASON
February 13, 1984 120/2(c)(11) to discuss litigation, when an

action against, affecting, or on behalf of the
particular public body has been filed and is
pending before a court or administrative
tribunal

September 11, 1992 120/2(c)(11) to discuss litigation, when an
action against, affecting, or on behalf of the
particular public body has been filed and is
pending before a court or administrative
tribunal

December 11, 2023 120/2(c)(5) to consider the purchase or lease
of real property for the use of the public body




SCHEDULE B

TO BE RETAINED

DATE REASON

November 13, 2023 120/2(c)(11) to discuss litigation, when an
action against, affecting, or on behalf of the
particular public body has been filed and is
pending before a court or administrative
tribunal




Bloomington and Normal

' Water Reclamation District

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM NO. B
BOARD MEETING DATE: June 10, 2024
SUBJECT: Renewal of Property, Liability, Pollution, and Cyber Insurance
PREPARED BY: Timothy L. Ervin, Executive Director

REVIEWED BY: Attorney Elizabeth Megli, Partner with Livingston, Barger, Brandt, and
Schroeder; Jacob Shasteen, Gallagher Insurance Broker; Ted Miller, Gallagher Area Senior Vice
President

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: That the Property and Liability Insurance renewal with Travelers,
Pollution Insurance renewal with Navigators Specialty, and Cyber Insurance renewal with
Beazley be approved.

ATTACHMENTS: Executive Summary July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025

BACKGROUND: Staff has met with insurance brokers from Gallagher to discuss the renewal of
the Property and Liability insurance. Currently, Travelers Insurance provides property, inland
marine, liability, automobile, crime, umbrella, workers compensation and equipment breakdown
liability insurance. Beazley Insurance provides cyber insurance, while Navigators Specialty
provides pollution remediation coverage. According to A.M. Best’s Rating Travelers is an A++,
Merchants National is rated A-IX, while Beazley and Navigators Specialty are A rated.

A year-to-year premium comparison of the total liability insurance package with no program
changes would result in a 14.1 percent increase, representing a $72,161 increase in premium.
The higher insurance premium is a combination of enhanced exposure plus rates. Below is an
itemized list of significant renewal factors:

1. Property values increased 8% to account for continued inflationary costs.
a. 2023 property rate =.107
b. 2024 property rate =.110
2. There are two more ratable autos at this year’s renewal versus last year.
3. Workers’ compensation payrolls increased by 2% year over year.
4. Inland Marine values are up 24%.



With no changes in coverage, insurance premiums would increase from $510,719 (expiring
premium) to $582,880 (new premium). The Executive Summary attached provides an overview
of the liability insurance program. The document outlines modifications made to the property
(Southeast Digester coverage and flood mapping) and workforce violence coverage for the
upcoming years. Gallagher Insurance continues to provide active, prompt, and excellent
customer service, and supports the proposed policy changes considering the anticipated
infrastructure projects.

BUDGET IMPACT: The insurance policies are in effect from July 1 to June 30™. The tax levy
includes a component that reimburses the cost of the insurance. Although the cost of insurance
will exceed the fiscal year 2025 budget, the Tax Levy 2024 paid in Fiscal Year 2026 Tax Levy will
reimburse the difference.




Gallagher

Insurance | Risk Management | Consulting

ajg.com
©2024 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.



mailto:Jacob_Shasteen@ajg.com

Your Team

#% ¢ Gallagher

“a® CORE360

Your Gallagher team is a true partner. We have the expertise to understand your business and we’re here to service and

stay alongside you, every step of the way.

Name/Title Phone Email

Primary Service Team

Role

Jacob Shasteen 217.233.3365 Jacob Shasteen@ajg.com

Area Vice President

Ted Miller
Area Senior Vice President

217.233.3316 Ted Miller@ajg.com

Debbie McGough-Tooker 217.233.3388 Debbie _mcgoughtooker@ajg.com

Client Service Manager

Program Specialists

Service Team

Service Team

Service Team

Ryan Bensyl 217.233.3334 Ryan Bensyl@ajg.com

Broker Placement Specialist

Claims

Marketing &
Placement
All Other Lines

Jack Nelson 630.694.5488 Jack Nelson@ajg.com

Claim Advocate

Bloomington Normal Water Reclamation District

©2024 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.
18GGB17\29618W — Exec Sum — Separate

P&C Claim Advocacy

(£ Gallagher


mailto:Jacob_Shasteen@ajg.com
mailto:Ted_Miller@ajg.com
mailto:Debbie_mcgoughtooker@ajg.com
mailto:Ryan_Bensyl@ajg.com
mailto:Jack_Nelson@ajg.com

#% ¢ Gallagher

“a® CORE360

CORE360™ Executive Summary Scorecard

Your CORE360™ Executive Summary Scorecard has been developed for you to get a quick snapshot of how we've
impacted your total cost of risk for the policies detailed in this proposal.

— A
t Successfully negotiated renewal terms
with BNWRD’s incumbent insurance
Insurance carriers

Premiums 14.1% overall increase for all lines of

increases

o Rate increases incorporate
marketing conditions and
BNWRD'’s loss history

coverage includes both exposure and rate

¢ None identified at this time

Coverage
Gaps

g applicable loss prevention services and
0SS

. training
Prevention . .
& Claims e Gallagher Claim Advocacy team is

available for assistance with challenging
claim outcomes

%

G

visits with carriers and provided access to

Gallagher STEP

e All Insurance Carriers provide an array of

e Gallagher has facilitated loss prevention

Gallagher’s digital loss prevention platform,

Bloomington Normal Water Reclamation District

©2024 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.
18GGB17\29618W — Exec Sum — Separate

Property values for SE Plant digesters
were put on a ‘specific limit’

Program Flood limits have increased for the SE
Structure Treatment Plant based on Travelers
updated flood mapping

e Actual Cash Value roof endorsement for
the SE Plant digester

o Workplace Violence quotes were secured
to provide higher limit options for the
districts consideration

@ PFAS exclusions are becoming
commonplace. PFAS exclusions are
Uninsured currently present on BNWRD policies.
& Uninsurable Coverage for this risk is continually being
Losses monitored by your Gallagher team

Gallagher has issued Certificates of
Insurance during the current policy period
Contractual on BNWRD'’s behalf

Liability Contract Review available upon request

Gallagher



#% ¢ Gallagher

“a® CORE360

. -
I nsurance Pl’em IUms (all premiums include applicable taxes & fees) Insurance

Premiums

Coverage Carrier 2023-2024 2024-2025
Expiring Premiums Renewal Premiums
(incl. all policy endorsements (incl. all policy endorsements
annualized) annualized)
Commercial Property Travelers $304,738 $353,449
Inland Marine Travelers $7,877 $8,547
General Liability Travelers $22,171 $25,382
Commercial Auto Travelers $23,815 $28,043
Workers Compensation Travelers $55,097 $58,761
Crime Travelers $987 $987
Umbrella ($5m) Travelers $10,100 $13,048
Excess Umbrella (S5M X S5M) Merchants National $27,260 $34,508
Equipment Breakdown Travelers $19,647 $19,271
Public Entity Management Travelers
Liability $7,841 $8,912
o Directors & Officers Included Included
o Employment Practices Included Included
Cyber Liability Beazley $6,250 $6,690
Pollution Liability Navigators $24,936 $25,282
Total Cost (TRIA included) $510,719 $582,880
(14.1%)

e Overall premium increase is a combination of exposure increases + rate
-~ Property values were increased 8% to account for continued inflationary costs
— 2023 property rate =.107
— 2024 property rate = .110

e There are 2 more ratable autos at this year’'s renewal versus last year

«  Workers compensation payrolls were increased by 2% year over year

e Inland Marine values are up 24%

Bloomington Normal Water Reclamation District

©2024 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved. G 11 g.h
18GGB17\29618W — Exec Sum — Separate 7 a a er




Program Structure

@ g Gallagher

“e® CORE360

]
- . I
L

Program
Structure

Type of Policy Coverage Expiring Coverages 2023-24 Renewal Coverages 2024-25
Property & Inland Blanket Building & BPP $294,739,216 $306,237,329
Marine SE Plant Digesters Included in Blanket $11,999,427 Specific Limit
Business Income & $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Extra Expense
Property Deductible $50,000/$100,000 (SE Digester) $50,000/$100,000 (SE Digester)
Earthquake Limit $10,000,000 blanket $10,000,000 blanket
Earthquake Deductible $50,000 $50,000
Flood Limit $1,000,000 locations 1-86,92 $1,000,000 locations 1-67,92
$5,000,000 locations 87,95-99 $5,000,000 locations 68-87,95-99
Flood Deductible $50,000 locations 87,95-99 $50,000 locations 68-87,95-99
$100,000 locations 1-86,92 $100,000 locations 1-67,92
Sewer or Drain Backup $500,000 $500,000
All Equipment $2,085,101 $2,582,023
Equipment Deductible $1,000 $1,000
Auto Liability Limit $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Vehicle Count 39 Owned Units 41 Owned Units
General Liability Limit $1,000,000 occ $1,000,000 occ
$2,000,000 agg $2,000,000 agg
Public Entity Limit $1,000,000 occ $1,000,000 occ
Management Liability $2,000,000 agg $2,000,000 agg
Deductible $15,000 $15,000
Equipment Limit $100,000,000 per breakdown $100,000,000 per breakdown
Breakdown Deductible $25,000 $25,000
Umbrella Liability Limit $5,000,000 $5,000,000

(GL, Auto, EBL, ML, EL)

Excess Umbrella Limit $5,000,000 X $5,000,000 $5,000,000 X $5,000,000
Liability ($10,000,000 Total Umbrella Limits) ($10,000,000 Total Umbrella Limits)
Crime Limit $100,000 $100,000
Deductible $1,000 $1,000
Cyber Liability Limit $2,000,000 $2,000,000
Deductible $5,000 $5,000
Pollution Liability Limit $1,000,000 occ $1,000,000 occ
$1,000,000 agg $1,000,000 agg
Deductible $50,000 $50,000
Workers Total Payroll $2,567,325 $2,625,443
Compensation Employers Liability $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Bloomington Normal Water Reclamation District

©2024 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved.
18GGB17\29618W — Exec Sum — Separate

Gallagher




@ Gallagher

«® CORE 360

Property

» Travelers has removed the SE Plant digesters from the ‘blanket limit’ and put them on a ‘specific limit’

o This means the max limit for the SE Plant digesters for any one occurrence is $11,999,427.
Travelers did increase the values when doing this and while we asked Travelers to leave the
digesters in the blanket limit they were firm in their stance that they wanted the SE Plant digesters
on a specific limit.

» Travelers has added an ACV (Actual Cash Value) roof endorsement to the policy for the SE Plant
digesters. ACV roof endorsements are becoming common.

> Due to updated flood mapping, Travelers moved locations at the SE Treatment Plant from the $1,000,000
blanket flood limit to the $5,000,000 blanket flood limit providing higher coverage limits for those locations.

Workplace Violence

As discussed and promised in our pre-renewal visit, we have secured a higher limit option for Workplace Violence.
BNWRD currently has a $250,000 Workplace Violence limit on its Travelers Public Entity Management Liability
Policy. This is the highest limit Travelers will offer for that coverage.

The higher limit options are through a proprietary Gallagher program called ‘Gallagher Crisis Protect’. The insurer
for this program is Hiscox, a Lloyd’s syndicate.

Option Each Occurrence/Aggregate Limit Annual Premium
Active Shooter w/ $1,000,000/$1,000,000

Liability $15,000 + taxes and fees
Active Shooter w/ $2,000,000/$2,000,000

Liability $28,500 + taxes and fees
Active Shooter w/ $5,000,000/$5,000,000

Liability $55,500 + taxes and fees

Pollution

» Navigators (Hartford) has offered a two year pollution option for a total premium of $35,400. For multi-year policies the
limits do not reinstate annually.

Bloomington Normal Water Reclamation District 5

©2024 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved. ‘; )
18GGB17\29618W — Exec Sum — Separate Z



#% ¢ Gallagher

“a® CORE360

Thank You for Your Business

We have enjoyed our partnership and appreciate the continued time, support and confidence you have placed in us
as your risk management team. BNWRD’s total cost of risk is being impacted favorably and our strategy for this
renewal continues to focus on ways to improve your insurance program. Thank you.

Legal Disclaimer

Gallagher provides insurance and risk management advice that is tailored to our clients’ risk transfer needs. Our review can include evaluation of insurance
premium, risk transfer options, finance agreements, insurance limits, indemnification obligations, and contracts to ascertain appropriate coverage. We do
emphasize that any risk management advice, insurance analysis, and limited review of contract terms and conditions, is only provided from an insurance/risk
management perspective and is NOT legal advice. We do not provide legal advice and always recommend that our clients seek advice from legal counsel to
become fully apprised of all legal implications from their business transactions.

Contract Review Legal Disclaimer

Clients and prospects benefit from our expert guidance to ensure their contracts are compliant and reasonable from an insurance perspective, and to ensure that
the insurance provision in a particular contract accurately matches the client’s current insurance limits. If a particular client requests Gallagher’s review of
indemnification language solely in connection with their insurance coverage, we can also provide that review by individuals qualified to do so. We cannot,
however, provide comprehensive contract review or revision for any client — that responsibility must remain with each client and its legal counsel.

Bloomington Normal Water Reclamation District

©2024 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved. Gallagher

18GGB17\29618W — Exec Sum — Separate




Bloomington and Normal

Water
" 1 Reclamation
¢ District

This Page is Intentionally Left Blank




ANNEXATIONS




Bloomington and Normal

Water
" 1 Reclamation
¢ District

This Page is Intentionally Left Blank




NEW BUSINESS




This Page Intentionally Left Blank



Bloomington and Normal
Water Reclamation District

b

NEW BUSINESS ITEM NO. A
BOARD MEETING DATE: June 10, 2024
SUBJECT: Authorization to Initiate Hydrocyclone Pilot Study at West Plant #3
PREPARED BY: Jake Callahan, Assistant Executive Director
REVIEWED BY: Josh Stevens, Director of Operations & Maintenance

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve World Water Works, Inc. inDense Rental Agreement, as a
Sole Source Supplier, for Initial Term of Three Months Including Start-up, Training, and
Estimated Shipping Round-Trip in the Amount of $30,550 with Staff Authorized to Extend the
Rental Agreement an Additional Three Months not to exceed $54,550.

ATTACHMENTS: Proposal from World Water Works, Inc. for inDense Rental Agreement,
Technical Information on inDense System, and Signed ESA with Baxter & Woodman Consulting
Engineers for Pilot Study.

BACKGROUND: Conventional activated sludge is the predominant wastewater treatment
technology used globally at wastewater treatment facilities serving larger communities. The
District’s West Plant #3 and Southeast Plant both utilize conventional activated sludge.
Separation of solids and water is a key function of an activated sludge system. Settleability of the
biological floc created in the activated sludge process directly impacts overall treatment plant
removal efficiencies. Gravimetric selection technology produces aerobic granular sludge (AGS),
commonly classified as an unconventional technology used to promote selection and retention
of denser biomass to facilitate improved settling, enhanced biological phosphorous removal, and
improved hydraulic throughput.

The District’s existing treatment processes at the West Plant will require significant infrastructure
changes to comply with future effluent phosphorous limits outlined in the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System Permit. The 2023 West Plant Master Plan included an evaluation
of liquid process alternatives to address these future effluent phosphorous limits. The selected
alternative, consolidated liquid treatment, provides the space and flexibility to evaluate
unconventional treatment technologies such as AGS. With the potential to significantly reduce
overall capital costs and supplement biological phosphorous removal efficiencies, staff
recommends further evaluation of the AGS technology on a pilot scale prior to design work on
secondary process conversion at the West Plant.



Staff have collaborated with gravimetric selection technology equipment manufacturer World
Water Works Inc. and Baxter & Woodman engineers on a pilot study layout at the District’s West
Plant #3. Baxter & Woodman is under contract to assist the District in pilot design,
implementation, and produce a written report summarizing findings and recommendations.

The selected pilot configuration leverages existing infrastructure to simplify day-to-day
operations and reduce costs of the study. Additionally, Plant #3 was selected for this study due
to the ability to provide a control and experimental process train for quantifying performance of
various parameters to be analyzed.

The overall pilot study goal is to determine the impacts of granulation on settling, nitrification,
and phosphorous removal. The findings of this pilot study will be utilized during design of the
liquid process conversion to potentially allow higher surface overflow rates of secondary clarifiers
and/or higher loading rates to aeration basins, if justified by pilot findings.

Staff is requesting authorization to proceed with World Water Works Inc. on initiating the
Hydrocyclone Pilot Study at the District’s West Plant #3 for term of three months with the option
to extend the rental agreement up to six months at a cost not to exceed $54,550.

BUDGET IMPACT: FY 2025 WIFIA Fund account activity West Nutrient Upgrade Design includes a
budget of $100,000 for engineering, rental fees, and equipment installation for this pilot study.




orld water works

WWW inDENSE® RENTAL AGREEMENT

Bloomington-Normal Water Reclamation District
Bloomington, IL

ATE
o&, WATER 2
S s




World Water Works, Inc.

RENTAL AGREEMENT (r1)

This RENTAL AGREEMENT (the “RENTAL” or “AGREEMENT”) is made and entered into as 6/6/2024 by
and between:

OWNER: World Water Works, Inc.
4000 SW 113 Street, Oklahoma City, OK 73173
Attention: John Mickler
Phone: 405-943-9000 Fax: 405-943-9006

AND

RENTER: Bloomington-Normal Water Reclamation District
2015 W. Oakland Avenue, Bloomington IL 61701
Attention: Jake Callahan
Phone: (309) 827-4396

In consideration of the mutual covenants and AGREEMENTSs contained in this RENTAL, OWNER rents to RENTER,
and RENTER rents from OWNER, inDENSE® System (the “EQUIPMENT”) on the terms and conditions set forth in
this RENTAL.

Pilot Goals: Evaluate the impacts of hydrocyclones on SVI
Evaluate the impact of hydrocyclone on nitrifier and PAO kinetics
Determine effect of hydrocyclone on oxygen transfer

Determine impacts on secondary effluent bacteria count

Note: consistent performance is assumed under conditions without plant upsets.

1. Major plant upsets including but not limited to
a. significant wet weather
b. MLSS washout
c. major dewatering upsets
d. significant conditions of underloading or overloading.
e. Industrial discharger(s) out of compliance or spills.

In addition, the following conditions need to be followed:

The facility should have all equipment operational and operating within the normal design ranges.
Solids Retention Time (SRT) should be maintained within normal design ranges.

The minimum opening for the headworks screening should be no larger than 10 mm.

The activated sludge system should be operated in the specified configuration (e.g. MLE, A/O, A20).
All wasting shall be conducted through the hydrocyclone and the inDENSE system.

Wasting should be conducted consistently per item 11 below.

All components of the inDENSE system shall be operated per WWW operating guidelines.

All auxiliary systems (whether or not supplied by WWW) need to be operated and maintained per the
manufacturer’s recommendation.

9. All chemical dosing needs to remain consistent. There should be no major changes in the type of
chemicals and/or dosage range being utilized.

©® N A WNRE

Confidential Page 2 6/6/2024



World Water Works, Inc.

10. The current aeration strategy should be noted and maintained. The system needs to be operated with
the required design DO ranges.

11. Wasting will continue to be a batch process. BNWRD will flush the cyclone with non-potable water
following each wasting cycle to remove any WAS from the cyclone in between cycles.

Summary of RENTAL Charges

Monthly RENTAL Rate: $8,000 per Month

Startup & Training: $4,050, 1 representative 3 days on-site, 1 trip. Additional days
are billed at $1,350 per day

Shipping & Handling Round-Trip: TBD, Billed at Cost, FOB Origin, Prepay & Add. Freight Estimate
round trip: $2,500

RENTAL Credit towards Purchase: 25% of monthly RENTAL fees incurred (capped at three months)

will be applied as a discount towards the purchase of a
permanent system — this does not include shipping, startup, or
cleaning fees incurred.

First invoice paid in advance to shipment of unit to site:
The 1°%-month RENTAL, startup & training, and shipping round trip are included in the first invoice.

1. TERM—The TERM of this RENTAL (the “TERM”) shall be 3 months, commencing after startup and training
are completed, no later than 30 days from equipment shipping to the site; provided, that so long as RENTER is not
in default under any provision of this AGREEMENT, the TERM will automatically extend 30 Days unless either
OWNER or RENTER Terminates this AGREEMENT by written notice provided to the other at least 30 days prior to
the end of the initial TERM. RENTER shall return the EQUIPMENT to OWNER at the end of the TERM in the same
condition as when received by RENTER, excepting reasonable wear and tear resulting from normal use. RENTER
may Terminate this RENTAL at any time that it is not in default under this AGREEMENT by giving OWNER at least
30 days prior written notice of its election to Terminate. Accordingly, the parties agree that such an amount
represents a reasonable estimate of such damages.

2. RENTAL CHARGES— RENTER shall pay RENT on the EQUIPMENT(“RENT”) at the rate of $8,000 per month
plus all applicable sales, excise, or similar tax. RENT shall not be subject to any set-off or deduction for any reason
whatsoever, nor shall RENTER be relieved from its responsibility to pay RENT for the entire TERM by reason of the
fact that the EQUIPMENT is returned to OWNER prior to the end of the TERM. RENT shall be paid by RENTER to
OWNER within 30 days after RENTER’s receipt of OWNER'’s invoice. If repairs are found to be required by OWNER
upon return of the EQUIPMENT, RENTER shall continue to pay RENT until the EQUIPMENT is returned to good
operating condition as determined by OWNER. All overdue payments shall bear interest at the rate of 12% per
annum without prejudice to any other rights of OWNER under this RENTAL.

EQUIPMENT supply includes:
Qty Item EQUIPMENT Description
1 inDENSE Support Structure | Polypropylene Construction, PVC and 304SS or 316SS Wetted Parts

4 inDENSE Hydrocyclone Red polyurethane, 316 SS, and Black Thermoplastic
1 Pressure Transmitter w/ 4" |solation Ring w/ 1/2" Instrument Connection
Isolator Ring Endress+Hauser Cerabar M PMP51 or Equal
12 | Hydrocyclone Spigots Red polyurethane (QTY) 1 of each size: 15 mm, 18 mm, 20 mm

Confidential Page 3 6/6/2024



World Water Works, Inc.

1 Freeze Protection Heat Tracing and Insulation

Influent Feed Manifold & cyclone feed piping

FreezePro 120 Volts & HE-C-01 (Controller)

Items Excluded EQUIPMENT Supply excludes shipping (billed at cost), installation,
offloading at the site, reloading at the site, controls, transfer pump
systems, tanks, flow meters, utilities, testing EQUIPMENT, or any
EQUIPMENT outside of that listed here.

3. DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION OF THE EQUIPMENT—RENTER shall inspect the EQUIPMENT upon taking
delivery. RENTER's failure to notify OWNER in writing of any deficiencies in the EQUIPMENT within 24 hours after
taking delivery shall be deemed an acknowledgment by RENTER that the EQUIPMENT was when delivered, in
good, safe, and serviceable condition and fit for its intended use. Title to all parts, materials, and supplies
furnished with respect to the EQUIPMENT shall remain the property of OWNER. Any replacement parts shall
become the property of the OWNER. All accessories or attachments not listed herein or necessarily included as
part of the EQUIPMENT shall be furnished by RENTER at its own expense. RENTER shall be responsible for properly
installing the EQUIPMENT and when the TERM ends, de-installing the EQUIPMENT. RENTER acknowledges that it
has the proper EQUIPMENT, tools, manpower, and expertise to install and de-install the EQUIPMENT,; including,
but not limited to, electrical installation, making connections to existing pipes, any necessary building or
foundation modifications, and obtaining any necessary permits required by the state or jurisdiction where the
EQUIPMENT is to be operated. RENTER acknowledges that it has reviewed the requirements for the EQUIPMENT
and that it has sufficient space for the EQUIPMENT to meet the requirements of the EQUIPMENT.

4. FREIGHT—AII costs of transporting the EQUIPMENT from OWNER’s yard to RENTER’s location and of
transporting the EQUIPMENT from RENTER’s location back to OWNER’s yard shall be at the expense of RENTER.
The OWNER will work with the RENTER in making appropriate transportation arrangements. As noted in the
paragraph on Insurance, it will be the RENTER’s responsibility to obtain freight insurance for moving the
EQUIPMENT.

5. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT—RENTER, at its own expense, shall operate the
EQUIPMENT in compliance with OWNER’s operating instructions, complying with all applicable federal, state, or
local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders. RENTER acknowledges that it is responsible for
supplying the utilities to operate the EQUIPMENT, including but not limited to, electrical, fresh water, etc. RENTER
is also responsible for providing an adequate sewer/disposal system sufficient for the use in connection with the
EQUIPMENT. RENTER, at its own expense, will maintain the EQUIPMENT in good working condition. RENTER will
not modify the EQUIPMENT. RENTER agrees that it will not permit the EQUIPMENT to be removed from the
delivery location without the express written consent of OWNER.

6. RETURN OF THE EQUIPMENT — RENTER will notify OWNER no later than 30 days before it intends to allow
the RENTAL to Terminate, return the EQUIPMENT, and not seek an extension of the TERM. If the RENTER fails to
give the information before the expiration of that notice, the RENTER agrees to pay an amount equal to 1 month
of RENTAL charges. On the expiration of the TERM, the earlier termination of the RENTAL, or the OWNER is
returning it for any reason, the RENTER must, at its own expense, promptly return the EQUIPMENT in good
condition, reasonable wear, and tear accepted, to OWNER at an address in the United States as OWNER may
designate. Before returning the EQUIPMENT, RENTER is to clean the EQUIPMENT, including flushing it with fresh
water such that any process water and/or wastewater has been removed from the EQUIPMENT. If RENTER fails
to return the EQUIPMENT or requests OWNER collect the EQUIPMENT, RENTER will be responsible for all
collection costs, including but not limited to shipping costs. If the RENTER does not return any part of the
EQUIPMENT “either in whole or in part”, the RENTER will remain responsible for the daily RENTAL charge until the
EQUIPMENT is returned to OWNER’s yard in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, or repossessed by the OWNER. If RENTER
fails to clean the EQUIPMENT prior to return, it agrees to pay a cleaning fee of $2,000 plus any waste disposal
fees incurred.

Confidential Page 4 6/6/2024



World Water Works, Inc.

7. RIGHT TO CONTROL—RENTER acknowledges and agrees that during the TERM the EQUIPMENT and all
personnel operating the EQUIPMENT are under RENTER’s exclusive jurisdiction, supervision, and control. RENTER
acknowledges that OWNER has absolutely no control over any person operating or assisting in operating the
EQUIPMENT.

8. INDEMNIFICATION—RENTER shall indemnify, defend, and hold OWNER, its affiliates, and their respective
directors, managers, officers, partners, members, shareholders, employees, representatives, and agents
(collectively, the “OWNER INDEMNIFIED PARTIES”) harmless from any and all causes of action, claims, demands,
suits, judgments, losses, and liabilities, including any damage to the EQUIPMENT, arising in whole or in part out of
(a) RENTER’s use of the EQUIPMENT, (b) RENTER’s actions or those of its employees, representatives, or agents,
or (c) RENTER’s breach of this RENTAL (collectively, “INDEMNIFICATION CLAIMS”). RENTER’s duty to indemnify
and hold the OWNER INDEMNIFIED PARTIES harmless hereunder shall include all costs or expenses arising out of
any INDEMNIFICATION CLAIMS, including all court and/or arbitration costs, filing fees, attorneys’ fees, and costs
of settlement. The indemnification obligation of RENTER hereunder shall not be limited in any way by any
limitation on the amount or type of damage, compensation, or benefits payable by or for RENTER under worker’s
compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts. RENTER’s indemnification obligations
hereunder shall not be limited by the amount of its liability insurance and the purchase of such insurance for
OWNER shall not operate to waive any of the above obligations. This provision is separate and distinct from any
other provision or paragraph in this RENTAL, including any provision or paragraph concerning the procurement of
insurance.

9. INSURANCE—During the TERM, RENTER will maintain worker’s compensation and employer’s liability
insurance with limits of at least the statutory minimum of the state where the EQUIPMENT will be operated; and
include a waiver of subrogation in favor of World Water Works; commercial general liability insurance on an
occurrence basis, including bodily injury and property damage coverage with minimum limits of $1,000,000 per
occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate, and all risk physical damage insurance to cover the REPLACEMENT
VALUE of any EQUIPMENT in RENTER’s possession or control for its loss or damage from any and all causes,
including but not limited to, misuse, fire, theft, flood, explosion, accident, and acts of God occurring during the
TERM and during Freight/Delivery and Freight/Return. The RENTER shall name World Water Works as an
additional insured under the General Liability, including a Waiver of Subrogation in favor of World Water Works;
and loss payee under the inland marine (equipment) policy. The “REPLACEMENT VALUE” of the Equipment is
$275,000 and the parties agree that this is the actual value of the EQUIPMENT for the purposes of fixing the
EQUIPMENT’s insurable value. All such policies shall be written by insurance companies acceptable to
OWNER. RENTER’s obligation to indemnify and hold OWNER harmless from any INDEMNIFIED CLAIMS are in
addition to, and not an alternative to, these insurance provisions, and the purchase of any of the above coverage
shall not operate to waive any of the above indemnity provisions. Please see Appendix A for Sample

10. DAMAGE TO EQUIPMENT—AII risks of loss or damage to the EQUIPMENT during the TERM and during
Freight/Delivery and Freight/Return, accidental or otherwise, shall be borne by RENTER except to the extent any
such loss or damage occurs while such EQUIPMENT is in OWNER's control for servicing or occurs as a result of any
negligent or willful act of OWNER or its employees or agents. The appraisal of any such loss or damage shall be
based upon the REPLACEMENT VALVUE of the EQUIPMENT as set forth above. In making such appraisal it is
understood that no RENT, paid or due, up and till the time of loss, shall apply to the payment of such loss.
RENTER's obligations under this RENTAL (including the obligation to pay RENT) shall continue while all repairs to
the EQUIPMENT are completed unless such repairs are necessary as a result of an event for which OWNER is
responsible pursuant to the first sentence of this section. If the EQUIPMENT is damaged or made inoperable in
any way other than as a result of normal operating wear, RENTER shall notify OWNER in writing within 48 hours
of its occurrence, specifying the extent and nature of the damage.

Confidential Page 5 6/6/2024



World Water Works, Inc.

11. RENTER DEFAULT—If (a) RENTER fails to comply with any TERM, provision, or covenant of this RENTAL;
(b) any representation or warranty of RENTER in this RENTAL is or becomes incorrect, false, or misleading in any
material respect; or (c) RENTER voluntarily files a petition for bankruptcy or reorganization, a petition in
bankruptcy is filed against RENTER, a receiver or other representative is appointed for RENTER or its business or
assets, or RENTER makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, OWNER shall have the following remedies:

A. OWNER may, at its election, terminate this RENTAL and enter any premises where the
EQUIPMENT is located without notice and may repossess the EQUIPMENT without being liable
for any damages therefore, and without the need of a court order or other legal process.

B. OWNER shall be entitled to recover as damages all RENT due associated with the full TERM of this
agreement and the cost of performing any other activities required to be performed by OWNER
as a consequence of such default including but not limited to all shipping, repair, and cleaning
costs necessary to return the EQUIPMENT to OWNER in the same condition as when it was
delivered to RENTER ordinary wear and tear excepted.

Pursuit of any of the foregoing remedies shall not preclude pursuit of any of the other remedies herein provided
or any other remedies available at law or in equity (all such remedies being cumulative), nor shall pursuit of any
remedy herein provided constitute a forfeiture or waiver of any RENT due to OWNER hereunder or of any
damages accruing to OWNER by reason of the violation of any of the terms, provisions, and covenants of this
RENTAL. No act or thing done by OWNER or its agents during the TERM shall be deemed a Termination of this
RENTAL and no AGREEMENT to Terminate this RENTAL shall be valid unless in writing signed by OWNER and
RENTER.

12. TITLE—OWNER shall retain title to the EQUIPMENT during the TERM. RENTER shall keep the EQUIPMENT
free from all liens or other encumbrances. RENTER agrees to notify OWNER immediately if any lien or any
attachment or other claim is filed against the EQUIPMENT. RENTER acknowledges that this RENTAL is intended
to be a true RENTAL, and RENTER authorizes the OWNER to file financing statements to give public notice of this
RENTAL. If this RENTAL is deemed by a court of competent jurisdiction to be a RENTAL intended for security,
RENTER grants OWNER a purchase money security interest in the EQUIPMENT, which security interest shall secure
any and all obligations now or hereafter owed by RENTER to OWNER, including without limitation, RENTER’s
obligations to OWNER under this RENTAL with respect to the EQUIPMENT.

13. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE; JURISDICTION—This RENTAL shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with Oklahoma law. The parties agree that any dispute arising out of this AGREEMENT shall be decided
by either the state or federal court in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma. The parties shall each submit to the
jurisdiction of those courts and agree that service of process by certified mail, return receipt requested, shall be
sufficient to confer such courts within personal jurisdiction.

14. INTERPRETATION—In the construction and interpretation of this RENTAL, the rule of construction that
documents be construed most strictly against the party who prepared it shall not be applied because both parties
have participated in the preparation of this RENTAL. Should any provision of this RENTAL be invalidated in whole
or in part by any competent authority, such provision shall continue in effect only to the extent permitted;
however, the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect. Paragraph headings are not a part of this
RENTAL and shall have no effect upon its construction or interpretation.

15. WAIVER OF DAMAGES—IN NO EVENT SHALL OWNER BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOST OR PROSPECTIVE PROFITS
OR ANY OTHER SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR INDIRECT LOSSES OR
DAMAGES (IN TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) UNDER OR IN RESPECT TO THIS RENTAL OR FOR ANY FAILURE
OR PERFORMANCE RELATED TO THIS RENTAL.

Confidential Page 6 6/6/2024



World Water Works, Inc.

16. ASSIGNMENT/SUBRENTAL—AnNy attempt by RENTER to assign, sublet, or otherwise transfer this RENTAL
or any interest herein, by operation of law or otherwise, without OWNER’s written consent, shall be void. This
RENTAL shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, successors,
administrators, executors, trustees, and permitted assigns.

17. ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS—If OWNER institutes any proceeding to enforce this RENTAL or any
provision thereof, it shall be entitled to recover all court costs, including but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’
fees if successful.

18. TIME OF ESSENCE/WAIVER—Time is of the essence of this RENTAL and all of its provisions. OWNER's
failure to require strict performance by RENTER of any of the provisions of this RENTAL, or OWNER’s acceptance
of late or partial performance hereunder, shall not constitute a waiver of any prior defaults of RENTER, nor of
OWNER'’s rights thereafter to demand strict compliance therewith, or with any other provision hereof.

19. NOTICES—AII notices or other communications required or contemplated by this RENTAL shall be in
writing and shall be (a) personally delivered in return for a receipt; (b) mailed by registered or certified mail, return
receipt requested; (c) sent by a recognized overnight courier service; or (d) sent by facsimile transmission (with a
copy or original to be promptly provided by one of the other means set forth herein for giving notice) addressed
to the party for whom it is intended at its address set forth above or to such other person or address as either
party shall hereafter designate from time to time by similar notice. Such notices or communications shall be
deemed given on personal delivery in return for a receipt, on the third business day after depositing with the U.S.
mail, on the next business day after being deposited with the recognized overnight courier service, or on the date
sent by facsimile transmission during normal business hours (otherwise on the next business day). Failure of
delivery due to a refusal to accept delivery or due to a change of address for which no notice was properly given
shall be deemed to constitute delivery on the date on which delivery was attempted.

20. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES—This RENTAL does not create, nor shall it be construed as creating, a
partnership, a joint venture, or the relationship of employer and employee between OWNER and RENTER. RENTER
shall be a customer of OWNER and is in no way authorized to make any contract, agreement, warranty, or
representation on behalf of OWNER or to create any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of OWNER.

21. EXECUTION—This RENTAL may be executed in multiple counterparts with the same effect as if both
parties had signed the same document. All counterparts will be construed together and will constitute one
AGREEMENT. The delivery of sighed counterparts by facsimile or email transmission that includes a copy of the
sending party’s signature is as effective as signing and delivering the counterpart in person. This RENTAL will not
be binding on or constitute evidence of an AGREEMENT until both parties affix their signature to a counterpart of
this document.

22, AMENDMENTS—No modification or amendment hereof shall be binding on OWNER and RENTER unless
it is in writing and signed by OWNER and RENTER.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT—This RENTAL, when duly executed by the parties, is the complete AGREEMENT of
the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. RENTER represents that it has not relied upon any previous
representations by anyone as an inducement to enter into this RENTAL. OWNER may withhold delivery of the
EQUIPMENT until this RENTAL has been properly executed by all parties; however, acceptance of delivery of the
EQUIPMENT and its use by RENTER shall constitute its acceptance of the terms and conditions of this RENTAL.

Confidential Page 7 6/6/2024



World Water Works, Inc.

OWNER:

RENTER:

World Water Works, Inc.

By:

Name: John Mickler
Title: Vice President of Contracts and Risk

Bloomington-Normal Water Reclamation District

By

Name:
Title:

Confidential

Page 8

6/6/2024



World Water Works, Inc.

Appendix A:

Insurance Certificate Sample

Confidential Page 9 6/6/2024



World Water Works, Inc.

ACORD' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE PATE oYY
e —

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER DONTACT
PHONE FAX
{AIC, Nao}:
E-MAIL
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A :
INSURED INSURER B :
XYZ Company INSURER C :
111 Any Street INSURERD :
Any Town USA 11111 INSURER E *
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS5 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

INSR [ADDLISUER POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANGE INSD | WD POLICY NUMBER (MMIDDIYYYY) | (MM/DDIYYYY) LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH DCCURRENCE § 1 ,DOO‘OOO
" DAMAGE 10 RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR Y|Y | TBD PREMISES (Eaocewrence) | 5 100,000
= MED EXP (Any one person] | § 5,000
- PERSONAL & aDv INJURY | 5 1,000,000
| GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
rouicy | X | GBS D LOC PRODUCTS - compror aca | 5 2,000,000
QOTHER;
SAMPLE CERTIFICATE OF CE
[\ . L Iani i, ‘ L .
OWMNED SCHEDULED
|| Autos ony AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Peraccident)| §
HIRED NON-CWNED PROFERTY DAMAGE %
|| AUTDS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | (Per accident]
§
|| UMBRELLA LIAB QCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE k]
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 5
oEs | | RETENTIONS s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY SREE—— X | Sthnure | |5
ANYPROPRIETORIPARTNER/EXECUTIVE wial ¥ TBD P E.L EAGH ACCIDENT s 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED?
(Mandatary i NH) per contract EL se-eaempeoveel s 1,000,000
If yes, describe und
DESCRIPTION OF _SPER)\TIONS below E.L. DISEASE - v |5 1,000,000
Inland Marine-Equipment Per ltem $400,000
TBD Aggregate $400,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS | LOCATIONS | VEHICLES {ACORD 101, A il may be attached if more space is required)

Certificate holder is named as an additional insured on a primary and non-contributory basis under the general liability as
required by a written and signed contract. A waiver of subrogation in favor of the certificate holder applies to the general
liability and worker's compensation as required by a written and signed contract.

Certificate holder is named as a Loss Payee under the Inland Marine-Equipment policy as required by a written and signed

contract.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
. _ SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
World Water Works Inc THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
P O Box 892050 ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Oklahorma City OK 73189
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
; Signed by Agent
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Confidential Page 10 6/6/2024



INDENSE

Gravimetric Selection Technology

orld water works I n D E N s E

eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee

process intensification with densified biomass



inDENSE™

World Water Works’ inDENSE system
increases process throughput and
performance through the selection of dense
sludge aggregates with improved settling
rates and the promotion of enhanced

biological phosphorus removal (EBPR).

inDENSE is a gravimetric selection technology
that provides a method for retaining the
denser biomass while wasting out the lighter
fraction of the MLSS in the treatment system.
Increased density can lead to improved
settling characteristics which allows for the
prevention of biomass loss and subsequent
treatment disruptions, especially during wet

weather scenarios.

OVERFLOW
Less Dense Split
(waste)

FEED
Tangential

Inlet VORTEX

FINDER

AIR
CORE
BODY
EXTENSION

PRIMARY
VORTEX

MORE DENSE SLUDGE
CONCENTRATED ALONG
HYDROCYCLONE WALLS

MAIN

SECONDARY BODY

VORTEX

LESS DENSE SLUDGE
CONCENTRATED ALONG
CENTRAL AIR CORE

SPIGOT

o
.
g8
Je
doa

UNDERFLOW

More Dense Split
(recycle)

.
.
.

Selection for faster settling particles, process
configuration, and physical forces can
encourage aerobic granular sludge formation.
Hydrocyclones function by forcing denser
flocs/solids to the cyclone walls and down
through the underflow to be recycled while
the lighter solids move towards the cyclone
center and are pushed upwards through

the overflow to be wasted. With the use of
an external mechanism for selective sludge
wasting and biological process configuration,

facilities can gain improved operation for a

low capital cost investment.




INFLUENT

EFFLUENT

~ RAS

UNDERFLOW

K

inDEI\|ISETM

WAS

Benefits

Enhanced nitrogen and phosphorus removal
Promotes denser sludge selection

Solution for poor settling MLSS

Reduced and/or eliminated chemistry

Easily integrated into any existing plant
Rapid return on investment

Minimization of sludge loss

©c © © o o o o ©

Operational stability

—

[T,

T
—T

80 1/4"

o
i

b
L———61U$————#-*—3wﬂe'

~—— 68 15/16" ———

“%%

76 1/16" ————

Conventional activated sludge (CAS) is

the predominant wastewater treatment
technology globally. One key requirement of
the CAS technology is the ability to effectively
separate the liquid and solid fractions.
Unfavorable settleability can plague facilities
seasonally or can be a chronic issue. World
Water Works’ inDENSE technology helps

alleviate this problem.

i
(0




(mg/L)

4,500 1,000

inDENSE Operation

4,000 900
3500 800
3,000 " e
500
2,500
500
2,000
400
1,500 S
1,000 . 500
500 100
o LSS (ME/L) —===Settle Sludge Volume (ML) =SV gt
-s'\:\ <,<’\ -;\’x% ~<>"\£’b \\(’b & » -\:\’% 0’)& \:\.'N{b Qa'& Q"\"b <‘>’® ~\'® ":{b 0'\9) ‘0:\9 "'9 ‘:\9
(8] @ %) L 2 Q & ) N ) @ (8] L2 ) @ 2 Q
’\;% ,\9 \P ,\;( ,\'ﬁ .\;‘?' ’\R‘\ P\'\’ " ,»,\’“ .\;'3 %,O \‘.\\ \9 ’\;\ .\?‘ ,\F‘\ ,\:‘?‘
The graph above shows performance of an volume index (SVI) with increase MLSS
activated sludge system before and after concentrations. Other process modifications
installation of the inDENSE Process. Once were recommended and implemented by plant
operational, there was an immediate reduction staff. The SVl is consistently in high 70’s low
in the Settle Sludge Volume (SSV) and sludge 80’s.

World Water Works, Inc. is a highly focused company in the
wastewater treatment sector. We are driven to provide industrial and
municipal customers proven and cost-effective wastewater treatment
solutions delivering superior effluent quality.

We are a passionate and adaptable company providing value through expertly
engineered products and technologies. Founded in 1998, we have unparalleled
depth of application knowledge and experience.

We have offices located throughout the US, India, and UAE with a fully integrated
in-house manufacturing facility at our headquarters in Oklahoma City, OK. This
strategically positions us to control schedule while delivering the highest quality
products and solutions at the lowest cost of ownership. Working hand-in hand
with our customers, we optimize wastewater treatment solutions globally.

We at World Water Works are ensuring our wastewater treatment systems meet
today’s challenges while preparing for tomorrow’s water needs.

@)or/dwaierwor/cs 1-800-607-PURE www.worldwaterworks.com

(mL)



BLOOMINGTON-NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
WEST WWTP HYDROCYCLONE PILOT
DESIGN SERVICES

ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) effective as of
/7/1}/ 7~ , 2029 (“Effective Date”) between Bloomington-Normal Water
Reclamation District (“Owner”) and Baxter & Woodman, Inc., an lllinois Corporation (“Engineer”).

Owner’s Project, of which the Engineer’s services under this Agreement are a part, is generally identified
in Exhibit A (“Project”), attached hereto and incorporated as though fully set forth herein;

Engineer has the capability and capacity to provide the necessary services to complete certain engineering
services, as further set forth herein, necessary to complete the Project;

Owner desires to retain Engineer to provide the said services under the terms and conditions hereinafter
set forth, and Engineer is willing to perform such services;

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Owner and
Engineer (hereinafter, collectively, the “Parties”, or each, individually, a “Party”) agree that the recitals
set forth above are a material part of this Agreement and further agree as follows:

1. SERVICES OF ENGINEER.

1.1 Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, if part of its scope, the services set forth herein
and in Exhibit B (collectively, the “Services”), attached hereto and incorporated as though fully
set forth herein.

2. OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

2.1  Owner shall provide the Engineer with all criteria and full information as to the Owner’s
requirements for the Project, including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and
performance requirements, and any budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all design and
construction standards which Owner will require to be included in the Drawings and
Specifications, and furnish copies of Owner’s standard forms, conditions, and related
documents for Engineer to include in the Bidding Documents, when applicable, except as
otherwise provided in Exhibit B.

2.2 Owner shall furnish the Engineer all available information pertinent to the Project including
reports and data relative to previous designs, existing conditions, or investigations at or
adjacent to the Project Site.

! BAXTER/"\'WOODMAN



2.3 Owner shall furnish or otherwise make available, to the extend in Owner’s possession and/or
control, additional project related information and data as is reasonably required to enable
Engineer to complete its Services.

2.4 Owner warrants that all known hazardous materials on or beneath the site have been identified
to the Engineer. The Engineer shall have no responsibility for the discovery, presence, handling,
removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, unidentified or undisclosed hazardous
materials. The Engineer shall not be required by the Owner to provide certifications that soils,
including soil mixed with other clean construction or demolition debris, are or are not
contaminated uniess this service is set forth in Exhibit B.

2.5 Owner agrees and acknowledges that the Fngineer will rely, without liahility, upan the accuracy
and completeness of all information furnished by the Owner, including its consultants,
contractors, specialty contractors, manufacturers, suppliers, and publishers of technical
standards pursuant to this Agreement without independently verifying the information.

2.6 Owner agrees and acknowledges that, unless otherwise known to the contrary, the Engineer
may reasonably rely on the express and implied representations made by contractors,
manufacturers, suppliers, and installers of equipment, materials, and products required by the
construction documents as being suitable fit for their intended purposes and compliant with
the construction documents and applicable project requirements.

2.7 Owner shall arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter upon public
and private property as required for Engineer to perform Services under this Agreement.

SCHEDULE FOR RENDERING SERVICES.

3.1 Engineer is authorized to begin Services as of the Effective Date.

3.2 Engineer shall complete its obligations within a reasonable time. Specific periods of time for
rendering Services, if any, or specific dates by which Services are to be completed, if any, are
set forth in Exhibit B, and the Parties hereby agree such periods of time or specific dates are
reasonable.

3.3 If Owner authorizes changes in the scope, extent, or character of the Project, then the time for
completion of Engineer’s Services, and the rates and amounts of Engineer’s compensation shall
be adjusted equitably.

3.4 If the Engineer is hindered, delayed or prevented from performing under the Agreement as a
result of any act or neglect of the Owner (or those for whom the Owner is responsible) or force
majeure, the time for completion of the Engineer’s work shall be extended by the period of the
resulting delay and the rates and amounts of Engineer’'s compensation shall be adjusted
equitably. Force majeure includes, but is not limited to acts of God, wars, terrorism, strikes,
labor walkouts, fires, natural disasters, or requirements of governmental agencies.

2 BAXTER.\WOODMAN



4. COMPENSATION, INVOICES AND PAYMENTS.

4.1 The Ownershall pay the Engineer for the Services performed or furnished under Exhibit B, based
upon the Engineer’s standard hourly billing rates for actual work time performed plus
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses including travel, the total of which will not exceed
$25,600; Engineer’s Project No. 2400822.00. The Engineer may adjust the hourly billing rate and
out-of-pocket expenses on or about January 1 of each subsequent year and will send the new
schedule to the Owner.

4.2 The Engineer may submit requests for periodic progress payments for Services rendered.
Payments shall be due and owing by the Owner in accordance with the terms and provisions of
the State of lllinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 505/1 ef seq.) (the “Act”).
If Owner fails to comply with the requirements as set forth in the Act, the Engineer may, after
giving seven (7} days written notice to the Owner, suspend Services under this Agreement until
the Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for Services, expenses, and late payment
charges as provided in the Act. For the avoidance of any doubt, the provisions set forth in the
Act shall apply to Owner, regardless of whether Owner is an entity specifically identified in
Section 2 of the Act.

4.3 The Owner may, at any time, by written order, make changes to the scope of Services, which
changes shall not become effective unless and until Engineer issues its written acceptance of
same. If such changes cause an increase or decrease in the Engineer’s fee or time required for
performance of any Services under this Agreement, an equitable adjustment shall be made and
this Agreement shall be modified. No Service for which added compensation is to be charged
will be provided without first obtaining written authorization from the Owner. The Parties
further agree that if elements of the scope of Services are reduced or eliminated by the Owner,
then the Owner agrees to waive, forgive, release, and hold harmless the Engineer from all
claims, causes of action, and damages arising from those reduced and/or eliminated Services.
The Engineer shall not be responsible for any changes made to the Project documents by the
Owner, contractor, or others, without the Engineer’s prior review and written approval.

5. OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS.

5.1 The Engineer’s opinion of probable construction costs, if the provision of which is included in
its scope of Services, represents its judgment as a professional engineer. The Owner
acknowledges that the Engineer has no control over construction costs or contractor's methods
of determining prices, or over competitive bidding, or market conditions. The Engineer cannot
and does not warrant or guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual construction costs will not

vary from the Engineer’s opinion of probable cost. Engineer shall not be responsible for any cost
variance.

’ BAXTER.\WOODMAN



6. ENGINEER’S PERFORMANCE

6.1 The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or
furnished by the Engineer under this Agreement will be the same care and skill ordinarily used
by members of Engineer’s profession practicing under similar circumstances at the same time
and in the same locality on similar projects. Except as otherwise provided herein, Engineer
makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection
with Engineer’s Services.

6.2 Engineer shall be responsible for the technical accuracy of its Services and its instruments of
service resulting therefrom, and Owner shall not be responsible for discovering deficiencies, if
any, in them. Engineer shall correct known deficiencies in its instruments of service without
additional compensation except to the extent such action is directly attributable to deficiencies,
errors or omissions in Owner-furnished information.

6.3 The Engineer will comply with applicable laws, regulations, and Owner-mandated standards as
of this Agreement’s Effective Date. Changes to these requirements after the Effective Date of
this Agreement may be the basis for modifications to Owner’s responsibilities or to Engineer’s
scope of Services, times of performance, or compensation, all of which shall be adjusted
equitably as necessary.

6.4 Engineer may employ such sub-consultants as Engineer deems necessary to assist in the
performance or furnishing of the Services, subject to reasonable, timely, and substantive
written objections by the Owner.

6.5 - Engineer shall not supervise, direct, control, or-have-charge-or-authority-over any-contractors’
work, nor shall the Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any contractor, or
the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety at the site, nor for
any failure of any contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to such contractor’s
furnishing and performing of its work.

6.6 Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any contractor nor assumes responsibility for
any contractors’ failure to furnish and perform the work in accordance with the contract
documents, which contractors are solely responsible for their errors, omissions, and failure to
carry out the work.

6.7 Engineer shall not provide or have any responsibility for surety bonding or insurance-related

advice, recommendations, counseling, or research, or enforcement of construction or surety
bonding requirements.

¢ BAXTER \WOODMAN



6.8 Engineer is not acting as a municipal advisor as defined by the Dodd-Frank Act. Engineer shall
not provide advice or have any responsibility for municipal financial products or securities.

6.9 Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts of omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or
supplier, or of any of their employees or any other person (except Engineer’s own employees,
and consultants), at the Project site or otherwise in the furnishing or performing of any work;
or for any decision made regarding the contract documents, or any application, interpretation,
or clarification, of the contract documents, other than those made by the Engineer.

6.10 Shop drawing and submittal review by Engineer shall apply only to the items in the submissions
and only for the purpose of assessing, if upon installation or incorporation in the Project, they
are generally consistent with the construction documents. Owner agrees that the contractor is
solely responsible for the submissions (regardless of the format in which provided, i.e. hard
copy or electronic transmission) and for compliance with the contract documents. Owner
further agrees that the Engineer’s review and action in relation to these submissions shall not
constitute the provision of means, methods, techniques, sequencing or procedures of
construction or extend to safety programs of precautions. Engineer’s consideration of a
component does not constitute Engineer’s acceptance of the assembled item.

6.11 Engineer’s site observation shall be at the times agreed upon in Exhibit B. Through standard,
reasonable means, Engineer will become generally familiar with observable completed work. If
Engineer observes completed work that is inconsistent with the construction documents, that
information shall be communicated to the contractor and Owner to address.

7. INSURANCE

7.1  Forthe duration of the Project, the Engineer shall procure and maintain the following insurance
coverage and Certificates of Insurance will be provided the Owner upon written request. The
insurance required shall provide coverage for not less than the following amounts, or greater
where required by law:

(1) Worker’'s Compensation Statutory Limits
(2) General Liability

Per Claim/Aggregate $1,000,000/$2,000,000
(3) Automobile Liability

Combined Single Limit $1,000,000

(4) Excess Umbrella Liability
Per Claim/Aggregate $5,000,000/$5,000,000

(5) Professional Liability
Per Claim/Aggregate $5,000,000/55,000,000

> BAXTER"\WOODMAN



7.2 Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by
law, the collective aggregate liability of the Engineer and its officers, directors, employees, or
consultants, to anyone claiming by, through or under Owner for any claims, losses, costs, or
damages arising out of, resulting from, of in any way related to the Project or the Agreement
for any claim or cause of action, including but not limited to the negligence, professional errors
or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, indemnity, subrogation, or warranty (express or
implied), hereafter referred to as the “Claims”, shall not exceed the total remaining insurance
proceeds available under the terms and conditions of Engineer’s responding insurance policy.

8. INDEMNIFICATION AND MUTUAL WAIVER

8.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Engineer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner
and its officers, trustees, and employees from claims, costs, losses, and damages (“Losses”)
arising out of or relating to the Project, provided that such Losses (including but not limited to
all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court,
arbitration, or other dispute resolution costs) recoverable under applicable law are attributable
to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property,
including the loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by the Engineer’s
grossly negligent acts or omissions.

8.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Engineer
and its officers, directors, employees, and consultants from and against all Losses {including but
not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals,
and all court, arbitration, or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the
Project, provided that any such Losses are attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or
death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property, including the loss of use resulting
therefrom, but only to the extent arising out of or occurring in connection with the Owner’s, or
Owner’s officers, directors, employees, consultants, or others retained by or under contract to
the Owner, negligent acts or omissions, willful misconduct, or breach of this Agreement.

8.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and Engineer waive against each other, and the
other’s employees, officers, directors, insurers, and consultants, any and all claims for or
entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, exemplary, enhanced, punitive, or consequential
damages, in each case regardless of whether such party was advised of the possibility of such
losses or damages or such losses or damages were otherwise foreseeable, and notwithstanding
the failure of any agreed or other remedy of its essential purpose.

8.4 Inthe event Losses or expenses are caused by the joint or concurrent fault of the Engineer and
Owner, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to their respective fault, as determined
by a mediator or court of competent jurisdiction.

6 BAXTER.\WOODMAN



8.5 The Owner acknowledges that the Engineer is a business corporation and not a professional
service corporation, and further acknowledges, accepts, and agrees that the Engineer’s officers,
directors, and employees shall not be subject to any personal liability for services provided
under this Agreement.

9. TERM & TERMINATION

9.1 The term of this Agreement commences as of the Effective Date and, unless terminated earlier
pursuant to any of the Agreement's express provisions, will continue in effect until the parties
have performed their obligations under the Agreement’s terms and conditions (“Term”).

9.2 Inaddition to any other express termination right set forth elsewhere in this Agreement:

(1) Engineer may terminate this Agreement, effective on written notice to Owner, if: (i) Owner
fails to pay any amount when due hereunder, and such failure continues more than ten (10)
calendar days after Engineer’s delivery of written notice thereof; or (ii) there have been
three (3) or more such payment failures in the preceding twelve (12) month period,
regardless of whether any such failures were timely cured.

(2) Either party may terminate this Agreement effective on written notice to the other party if
the other party materially breaches this Agreement through no fault of the terminating
party, and such breach: (i) is incapable of cure; or (ii) being capable of cure, remains uncured
thirty {(30) calendar days after the non-breaching party provides the breaching party with
written notice of such breach.

(3) Either party may terminate this Agreement, effective immediately, if the other party: (i) is
dissolved or liquidated or takes any corporate action for such purpose; (ii) becomes
insolvent or is generally unable to pay, or fails to pay, its debts as they become due; {iii) files
or has filed against it a petition for voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or otherwise
becomes subject, voluntarily or involuntarily, to any proceeding under any domestic or
foreign bankruptcy or insolvency law; (iv) makes or seeks to make a general assignment for
the benefit of its creditors; or (v) applies for or has appointed a receiver, trustee, custodian,
or similar agent appointed by order of any court of competent jurisdiction to take charge of
or sell any material portion of its property or business .

9.3 If this Agreement is terminated by either party, the Engineer shall be paid for all Services
performed through the effective date of termination, including reimbursable expenses. In the
event of termination, the Owner will receive reproducible copies of Drawings, Specifications
and other documents completed by the Engineer up to the effective date of termination.

10. USE OF DOCUMENTS

10.1 All documents (data, calculations, reports, Drawings, Specifications, Record Drawings and other
deliverables, whether in printed form or electronic media format, provided by Engineer to
Owner pursuant to this Agreement) are instruments of service in respect to this Project, and
the Engineer shall retain an ownership and property interest therein (including the copyright
and right of reuse at the discretion of the Engineer) regardless of the Project’s completion.

7

BAXTER " \"WOODMAN



11.

Owner shall not rely in any way on any document unless it is in printed form, signed or sealed
by the Engineer or one of its consultants.

10.2 Either party to this Agreement may rely on data or information set forth on paper (also known
as hard copy) that the party receives from the other party by mail, hand delivery, or facsimile,
are the items that the other party intended to send. Information in electronic format or text,
data, graphics, or other types that are furnished by one party to the other are furnished only
for convenience and not for reliance by the receiving party. The use of such electronic files will
be at the user’s sole risk. If there is a discrepancy between the electronic files and the hard
copies, the hard copies will govern.

10.3 Because data stored in electronic media format can deteriorate or be modified inadvertently or
otherwise without authorization of the data’s creator, the party receiving electronic files agrees
that it will perform acceptance tests and/or procedures within sixty (60) calendar days of
receipt, after which the receiving party shall be deemed to have accepted the transferred data
thus. Any transmittal errors detected within the sixty (60) day acceptance period will be
corrected by the party delivering the electronic files.

10.4 When transferring documents in electronic media format, the transferring party makes no
representations as to long-term compatibility, usability, or readability of such information
resulting from the use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer
hardware differing from those used by the creator.

10.5 The Engineer’s document retention policy will be followed upon Project closeout. Executed
copies of agreements, work orders, letters of understanding or proposals; design or other
documents created by the Engineer or received from the Owner or a third party; plan review
submittals from a third party and the Engineer’s review of those submittals; and studies or
reports prepared by the Engineer, will be kept for time periods set forth in the Engineer’s
document retention policy.

SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS AND BENEFICIARIES

11.1 Owner and Engineer are hereby bound, as are their respective successors, assigns, employees,
and representatives to the other party to this Agreement with respect to all covenants, terms,
promises, and obligations contained herein.

11.2 Neither the Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest in
(including, but without limitation, monies that are due or may become due) this Agreement
without the written consent of the other, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting,
or transfer is required by law. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent
to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any obligation
under this Agreement.

° BAXTER WOODMAN



11.3 Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, nothing contained shall be construed
to create, impose, or give rise to any duty owed by Owner or Engineer to any Contractor,
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee of any of
them. All duties and responsibilities undertaken to this Agreement will be for the sole and
exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any other party.

12. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, including the alleged
breach, termination, validity, interpretation, and performance thereof (“Disputes”) shall be resolved
with the following procedures:

12.1 Upon written notice of any Dispute, the parties shall attempt to resolve it promptly by
negotiation between executives who have authority to settle the Dispute and this process
should be completed within thirty (30) calendar days {the “Negotiation”) from the date of notice
prior to invoking the procedures of paragraph 12.2 or other provisions of the Agreement, or
exercising their rights under law.

12.2 If the dispute has not been resolved by Negotiation in accordance with Section 12.1, then the
parties agree that they shall first submit any and all unsettled claims, counterclaims, disputes,
and other matters in question between them arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the
breach thereof (“Disputes”) to mediation. Owner and Engineer agree to participate in the
mediation process in good faith. The process shall be conducted on a confidential basis, and
shall be completed within 120 calendar days of notice if the Dispute unless the parties mutually
agree to a longer period. If such mediation is unsuccessful in resolving a Dispute, then the
parties may seek to have the Dispute resolved by a court of competent jurisdiction.

13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

13.1 This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state or jurisdiction in which the Project is
located.

13.2 Any notice required under this Agreement will be in writing and addressed to the designated
party at its address on the signature page. Notices sent in accordance with this Section will be
deemed effectively given: {a) when received, if delivered by hand, with signed confirmation of
receipt; (b) when received, if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier, signature
required; (c) when sent, if by facsimile or e-mail, (in each case, with confirmation of
transmission), if sent during the addressee's normal business hours, and on the next business
day, if sent after the addressee's normal business hours; and (d) on the third (3rd) day after the
date mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid.

13.3 All express representations, waivers, indemnifications, and limitations of liability in this
Agreement will survive its completion and/or termination.

K BAXTER-"\/WOODMAN



13.4 Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any laws or
regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and
binding upon the Owner and Engineer, which agree that the Agreement shall be reformed to
replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that
expresses the intention of the stricken provision.

13.5 No waiver by any party of any of the provisions hereof shall be effective unless explicitly set
forth in writing and signed by the party so waiving. Except as otherwise set forth in this
Agreement, no failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any rights, remedy, power, or privilege
arising from this Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver thereof; nor shall any
single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power, or privilege hereunder preclude any other
or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power, or privilege.

13.6 To the fullest extent permitted by law, all causes of action arising under this Agreement shall be
deemed to have accrued, and all statutory periods of limitation shall commence, no later than
the date of substantial completion, which is the point where the Project can be utilized for the
purposes for which it was intended.

13.7 This Agreement, together with any other documents incorporated herein by reference,
constitutes the entire agreement between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous understandings, agreements, representations and warranties, both written
and oral, with respect to such subject matter. No amendment to or modification of this
Agreement is effective unless it is in writing and signed by each party.

13.8 With the execution of this Agreement, Engineer and Owner shall designate specific individuals
to act as Engineer’s and Owner’s representatives with respect to the services to be performed
or furnished by Engineer and responsibilities of Owner under this Agreement. Such an individual
shall have authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions relative
to the Project on behalf of the respective party whom the individual represents.

13.9 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which is deemed an original, but all
of which together are deemed to be one and the same agreement. A sighed copy of the
Agreement delivered by facsimile, e-mail, or other means of electronic transmission is deemed
to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement.

10 BAXTER \WOODMAN



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

Engineer:

. Dhg{ ya )AL

B

Title: _Executive Vice President

Date Signed: _ May 7, 2024

Address for giving notices:
8678 Ridgefield Road
Crystal Lake, IL 60012

Designated Representative:
Mark Gockowski

Phone Number: 815-444-4960
Email Address: mgockowski@baxterwoodman.com

11

Owner:

Bv:f;.f,’f;{%_ |

Title: Zxecu )[ft»\‘é &//t‘ﬁér-

Date Signed: _95™-0 #-202

Address for giving notices:
2015 W. Oakland
Bloomington, IL 61702-3307

Designated Representative:
Tim Ervin, Executive Director

Phone Number: 309-827-4396
Email Address: tervin@bnwrd.org

BAXTER \WOODMA

i

ne



BLOOMINGTON-NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
WEST WWTP HYDROCYCLONE PILOT

DESIGN SERVICES
EXHIBIT A
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The purpose of this Project is to evaluate the hydrocyclone technology that is proposed to be
implemented at scale as part of the upcoming Liquid Process Conversion project. Completing a
pilot prior to the Liquid Process Conversion will provide operational data on nitrification and
phosphorus removal, aeration, and improvements to sludge settleability. These data can be
utilized during design of the Liquid Process Conversion to right-size infrastructure and reduce
construction costs. Additionally, the pilot provides District staff with the opportunity to gain
familiarity with the equipment before it is implemented at a much larger scale.

Outcomes of the pilot include:

1. Establish a functional surface overflow rate for final clarifiers following granulation. These
data can be utilized in permitting future final clarifiers at surface overflow rates that exceed
IEPA standards, if merited, saving on construction costs.

2. Determine an oxygen transfer “alpha” for granular sludge. Increases in the “alpha” term can
significantly change the quantity of air required to maintain a given dissolved oxygen setpoint.
If higher values of alpha are determined during the pilot, they could result in smaller blowers
as part of the future project, saving capital costs.

3. Assess phosphate accumulating organism (PAO) and nitrifier kinetics.

4. Increased operator familiarity with proposed technology at a manageable scale.

Ourscope-ofservices-is-listed-Exhibit-B.

\\corp.baxwood.com\project\Azure\BNWRD\230285-West WWTP 3 Headwork\Contracts\Work\Exhibit A - Project Description.docx

BAXTER " WOODMAN



BLOOMINGTON-NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT, ILLINOIS
WEST WWTP HYDROCYCLONE PILOT
DESIGN SERVICES
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

PROJECT COORDINATION AND DATA COLLECTION

1. PROJECT MANAGEMENT & MEETINGS
A. Plan, schedule, and control the activities that must be performed to complete the project

including budget, schedule, and scope.

w

Coordinate with OWNER and project team to ensure the goals of the project are achieved.
C. Prepare and submit monthly invoices, and provide a monthly status report via email

describing tasks completed the previous month and outlining goals for the subsequent
month.
D. Project Meetings — The following meetings are anticipated for this project:

1) Site visit to Yorkville-Bristol Sanitary District (YBSD)
i. Meet with YBSD staff to obtain lessons learned from their ongoing
hydrocyclone pilot
2) Pilot Design Review Meeting
i.  Review improvements required to support the hydrocyclone pilot
3) Pilot Start-up Meeting
4) Pilot Troubleshooting Meeting
5) Summary Report Review Meeting

2. PILOT DESIGN ASSISTANCE
A. Coordinate with World Water Works to select the correct size and number of

hydrocyclones.

B. Coordinate with World Water Works on pilot period and scope of work to be completed
by World Water Works.

C. Determine layout for feed pumping to hydrocyclones, underflow piping, and overflow
piping.
1) Ensure overflow (light sludge to be wasted) can be removed from the system.

i.  Tentative concept is to use a scum pump in one of the two secondary
clarifiers to waste overflow sludge.

Determine electrical needs to support proposed installation.

E. Prepare design sketches for contractor to prepare pricing. Sketches will consist of
markups on existing drawings.

BAXTERC\WOODMAN



3. PILOT IMPLEMENTATION ASSISTANCE

A. Provide direction to installing contractor during installation of pilot items.

B. Assist with start-up and provide training to staff on system operations (2 site visits,
maximum).
1) Provide Owner support with any operation issues pertaining to this pilot.

C. Establish sampling plan including monitoring parameters and frequency. Monitoring to
be completed by Bloomington-Normal Water Reclamation District. Tentative list:
1) Sludge volume index (SVI)
2} Densification index
3) MLSS - overflow and underflow
4) Particle size distribution
5) Settling velocity
6) EffluenL TP
7) Microscopic images

D. “Stress Testing” Guidance
1) Coordinate with IEPA to obtain approval prior to any stress testing to account for

potential effluent water quality excursions.
2) Evaluate lowering the SRT to “push” the capacity of the existing infrastructure.
3) Increase the surface overflow rate of final clarifiers to establish maximum final
clarifier performance with granulation.
E. Provide data analysis to evaluate the performance of the pilot.

4. SUMMARY REPORT
A. Prepare summary report summarizing findings of the pilot.
B. Describe future infrastructure needs and layout.
C. Enumerate potential issues and operational challenges.
D. Extrapolate pilot results to full-scale operations, if feasible.

BAXTER .\ WOODMAN



Schedule:

Task Completion Date
District Approves Contract Mon | 5/20/24
Pilot Design Assistance 3 months
Mon | 09/09/24
Pilot Implementation Assistance 6 months
Mon | 5/12/25
Summary Report 2 months
Mon | 07/14/25

BAXTER'\WOODMAN



Bloomington and Normal

Water
" 1 Reclamation
¢ District

This Page is Intentionally Left Blank




	0. Front Cover Sheet
	1. Agenda - June 10 2024 REV
	3. RecognitionAppointments COVERPAGE
	4. Minutes COVERPAGE
	Blank Page

	4a. 2024-5-20 Regular Minutes
	4b. 2024-5-20 Budget Public Hearing Minutes
	4c. 2024-5-20 Show Cause Hearing Minutes
	5. Financial Transactions COVERPAGE
	Blank Page

	5. Financials
	6. Reports COVERPAGE
	Blank Page

	6A. June 2024 Operations Report
	6A1. June Weather Graph
	6Ba. 6-2024 BNWRD Monthly Report
	6Bb. Baxter Client Status Report 2024-06-03 Updated
	6C. 6.10.24 BNWR Farm Report
	4.30.24 BNWR.4Q cover
	Bloomington-Normal
	Water Reclamation District

	Report Spreadsheet June 2024
	Sheet1

	Income Statement with Summary - Period vs 4.30.24
	Transaction Journal by Farm (No Closing Transactions) 06-06-2024

	7. Old Business COVERPAGE
	Blank Page

	7A. Sewer Use Final Approval
	ATTACHMENTS: Ordinance 2024-15

	7A1. Sewer Use Pretreatment Ordinance
	ORDINANCE NO. 2024-15
	AN ORDINANCE ENACTING A GENERAL WASTE CONTROL PROGRAM
	REGULATING THE USE OF THE PUBLIC TREATMENT WORKS AND PUBLIC AND
	PRIVATE SEWERS AND DRAINS IN THE
	BLOOMINGTON AND NORMAL WATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	PREAMBLE
	ORDINANCE NO. 2024-15
	ARTICLE I
	GENERAL PROVISIONS
	SECTION 1. AUTHORITY
	SECTION 2. GENERAL PURPOSES
	SECTION 3. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
	SECTION 4. RECORDS RETENTION
	ARTICLE II
	DEFINITIONS
	SECTION 1. TECHNICAL TERMS
	SECTION 2. ABBREVIATIONS
	SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS
	"Approval Authority" shall mean the Regional Administrator of USEPA, Region V, until such time that the State of Illinois has a USEPA approved pretreatment program.
	"Baseline Report" shall mean that report required by 40 CFR Section 403.12 b (1-7).
	"Bypass" shall mean the intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of an Industrial User's treatment or Pretreatment facility.
	"Executive Director" shall mean the Chief Administrator of the District.
	"Flow" shall mean volume of Wastewater per unit of time.
	"Industrial User (IU)" or “User” shall mean a source of Indirect Discharge from a non-Residential Source.
	"May" is permissive.
	“Shall” is mandatory.
	ARTICLE III
	USE OF DISTRICT SEWERS
	SECTION 1. CONDITIONS FOR DISCHARGE TO THE DISTRICT SEWERS
	SECTION 2. SEWER CONNECTION PERMIT
	A. No Person shall construct a new Wastewater source and connect same to the POTW of the District without first making application for the privilege of making said connection to the District.
	SECTION 3. SEWER CONSTRUCTION PERMIT APPLICATION
	SECTION 4. CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS
	SECTION 5. REQUIRED INSPECTIONS
	ARTICLE IV
	GENERAL DISCHARGE REGULATIONS
	SECTION 1. DISCHARGES SUBJECT TO GENERAL REGULATIONS
	SECTION 2. GENERAL PROHIBITIONS
	SECTION 3. SPECIFIC DISCHARGE LIMITATIONS
	SECTION 5. GENERAL DISCHARGE COMPLIANCE
	A. Applicability
	SECTION 6. VARIANCE
	ARTICLE V
	INFORMATION REQUIRED OF NON-RESIDENTIAL USERS
	SECTION 1. INITIAL SURVEY (QUESTIONNAIRE)
	SECTION 2. AFFIRMATION TO INITIAL SURVEY
	SECTION 3. REPORTS OF CHANGED CONDITIONS
	SECTION 4. ADDITIONAL SURVEY INFORMATION

	ARTICLE VI
	WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND APPLICATION
	ARTICLE VII
	WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT ISSUANCE PROCESS
	ARTICLE VIII
	REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
	ARTICLE IX
	COMPLIANCE MONITORING
	ARTICLE X
	ARTICLE XII
	ARTICLE XIII
	ARTICLE XIV
	ARTICLE XV

	8. Consent Agenda COVERPAGE
	Blank Page

	8A. Executive Session Review
	8A1. Resolution
	8B - Traveler Insurance
	8B1. BNWRD Executive Summary (2024)
	Your Team
	CORE360™ Executive Summary Scorecard
	Insurance Premiums (all premiums include applicable taxes & fees)
	Program Structure
	Program Structure
	Thank You for Your Business


	9. Annexations COVERPAGE
	10. New Business COVERPAGE
	Blank Page

	10A. Plant 3 Hydrocylone Pilot Study 2024
	10A1. WWW-Bloomington,IL- inDENSE Pilot-6_6_2024 (r1)
	10A2. WWW_inDENSE_Brochure
	10A3. 2400822_ESA_BNWRD_Hydrocyclone Pilot Signed



